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The English translation is for reference purposes only.

In the event of any discrepancy between the Chinese original and the English translation,
the Chinese original shall prevail.
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A Letter to Investors

Unfazed by mountains, let us embrace the journey together

Dear investors and friends:

Time flies, and another year of spring has arrived.

Reflecting on the past year, we have seen the global economy slowly
emerge from uncertainty, with recovery as the main focus. Despite
the challenges faced by the global economy due to complex changes
in the international situation, we have seen positive signals and a
certain degree of resilience. Meanwhile, stability and development have
become more precious.

Since the “14th Five-Year Plan”, the Chinese pharmaceutical industry has
made significant strides in strengthening its development foundation,
optimizing its industrial system, and improving its quality and efficiency.
The comprehensive promotion of the construction of Healthy China,
the accelerated formation of the double-cycle development pattern
at home and abroad, and the deep integration of artificial intelligence
and big data with pharmaceutical research and development have
contributed to the high-quality development of the biomedical industry
and the transformation of the industry into an innovation-driven one.
| have always emphasized with my team that “innovation is the first
driving force of development and the lifeline of Gan & Lee's sustainable
development, and we must insist on high investment in R&D and
innovation”. In practice, Gan & Lee has always been pursuing global-
oriented innovation, and we have the responsibility to stand on the
world stage to break the stereotype of being a major country in the
generic drug industry, and to show China’s style of pharmaceutical
innovation. Especially for the development of insulin products, which is
an important branch of the biopharmaceutical industry, it has been 100
years since then, and we are accelerating the transition from imitation
innovation to original innovation. In my opinion, the fourth-generation
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insulin should be a class of innovative insulin that can smoothly control
blood glucose, reduce the risk of hypoglycemia, and improve patients’
compliance. For example, the weekly basal insulin analogue, which
can reduce the number of injections, thus reduce patients’ injection
burden with improved treatment compliance, as well as the innovative
dual insulin analogue, which can better mimic the physiological insulin
secretion pattern, take care of both fasting plasma glucose control,
post-prandial glucose control, etc. At present, our self-developed new
drugs, GZR4 injection and GZR101 injection, are focused on the R&D
and clinic of the world’'s most advanced new field. We are making
unremitting efforts in this blank innovation field, and we believe that
the fourth generation insulin will bring patients brand new treatment
choices and superior therapeutic effects.

It took a thousand hard knocks and sandblasting to reach the land of
gold. Gan & Lee celebrated its 25th anniversary in the year of 2023.
Looking back, we started from a small laboratory, and together, through
thick and thin, we have made it through the difficult start-up period
and gradually grown into the global biopharmaceutical company
that we are today, achieving breakthrough development. The team'’s
collective dedication and each employee’s hard work have yielded
positive results. Talents are of great importance of the growth and
steady development of Gan & Lee, and talents and “strivers” will always
be valued by the Company with ongoing adherence to the concept
that “wealth is created by and belongs to its creators”. Based on this
commitment, we aim to build a young, professional, and energetic
management team. We hope that young people with forward-thinking
and innovative ideas will be better equipped to follow current trends
and lead Gan & Lee to overcome challenges and succeed in today’s
world. Furthermore, it is with great pleasure to announce that we have
successfully completed the first step of our stock incentive plan this
year, reward talents with practical actions, motivate the team with value
sharing, and make further progress in the “two-way effort putting” to
realize the dream.

Not indulge in fantasies, nor chase after empty fame. The year 2024
is the key year for realizing the objectives and tasks of the “14th Five-
Year Plan”, and as spring gives birth to all things, the high-quality
development of enterprises has already set sail. We would like to
express our gratitude to all shareholders, friends, and employees
for the continued trust and support. As a team of strivers, we will
collaborate to develop a new blueprint for this progressive and hopeful
era in the name of Gan & Lee, in order to witness the transformation
of our country from a “pharmaceutical giant” to a “pharmaceutical
powerhouse”.

Chairman of Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
Zhongru Gan
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Clarity of purpose propels you closer to your destination

Dear investors and friends:

“The flowers by the roadside bloom splendidly, while a gentle breeze
carries the essence of spring.” Spring heralds the birth of myriad
wonders, and the best is yet to come.

In 2022, China implemented a policy for the insulin-specific centralized
procurement, which has relived patients from long-term high costs of
drugs and allowed them to use high-quality drugs at preferential prices
with ease and peace of mind, effectively allowing patients to feel the
warmth of the policy. Gan & Lee's products have taken advantage of
this opportunity to gain access to more medical institutions, including
many grassroots hospitals, and have naturally become a preference
for more diabetic patients. In this competition, we believe that only
excellent product is the best competitiveness, and only the evaluation
and selection of patients is the best touchstone. Thanks to huge
advantages brought by the procurement policy, our Company has
gained recognition and favor in the market, which has accelerated our
business development. In 2023, we successfully realized a turnaround
in performance, with net profit attributable to the parent company
of RMB 340 million, operating revenue of RMB 2,608 million, which
represents a year-on-year increase of 52.31%. This achievement was
driven by the rapid growth of product sales, particularly in domestic
sales of insulin preparation products that increased by 66.36% during
the same period of previous year. The rapid growth in sales of basal,
mealtime, and pre-mixed insulin all grew rapidly, and the Company's
domestic sales revenue increased by RMB 746 million compared to
the previous year, significantly contributing to the Company's overall
performance.

The year 2023 marks the 10th anniversary of the "Belt and Road"
initiative, to which Gan & Lee is one of the companies that have
responded. Looking back, we have been involved in emerging markets
since 2005, and we have continued to expand our business to countries
along the "Belt and Road", bringing high-quality and diverse Chinese
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medicines to benefit the local people. As the development of "Belt
and Road" progresses, we will align ourselves with the country's pace
of opening up, based on the domestic market, and constantly expand
the international market. When dealing with countries and regions with
different social systems and levels of economic development, we will
prioritize harmony, tolerance, and win-win cooperation to establish
long-term, stable, and sustainable relationships with our partners.
Upon learning of Brazil's urgent need for millions of fast-acting insulin
products due to a shortage of insulin supply, Gan & Lee took immediate
action and contacted the relevant departments of the Brazilian Ministry
of Health. Our goal was to ensure that the medicines could be delivered
to Brazil as quickly as possible while maintaining quality and quantity
standards. In recent years, we have broken the monopoly of original
drugs in the Indonesian market by providing patients with a wide range
of drug choices, and we have successfully addressed the urgent drug
problems of local patients through our fast and efficient drug delivery
capabilities. We continue to provide more valuable treatment options
to healthcare systems in different countries and regions, making
persistent contributions to improving global accessibility to insulin
medications.

With over 20 years of experience in the domestic market, high-quality
products that have been tested both domestically and overseas, and
cost-effective pricing advantages, we are confident that we will be
able to reach the European and American pharmaceutical markets. It
is believed that in the near future, patients in Europe and the United
States may have access to a high-quality insulin treatment program
from China, which could potentially address the issue of expensive and
inaccessible medication. It is hoped that our initial intention to expand
internationally will be met with a favorable response.

As a pharmaceutical company, we recognize the importance of R&D
and innovation in establishing a solid revenue base and expanding
our core insulin products both domestically and internationally. Our
corporate motto, "Quality First, Innovation Forever", motivates us
to investigate new drug action mechanisms and create safer, more
effective, and higher quality medicines. In 2023, the Company invested
RMB 582 million in R&D, which accounted for 22.30% of sales revenue.
Currently, the Company's clinical studies have entered into new
progress, the Company's self-developed weekly GLP-TRA preparation,
GZR18 Injection, a Class 1 new drug, has successfully completed
Chinese Phase Ic, as well as two Chinese Phase Ib/2a clinical studies
for the treatment of type 2 diabetes mellitus and overweight/obesity,
respectively. This is the first GLP-TRA product to conduct head-to-
head comparative studies with Semaglutide in China. Meanwhile, our
independently developed new fourth-generation pre-mixed dual insulin
analogue, GZR101 injection, has completed two Phase | clinical studies.
The fourth-generation weekly basal insulin analogue, GZR4 injection,
also completed two Phase | clinical studies in China and achieved
dosing of the first subject in a Phase Il clinical trial. We will continue to
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focus on the diabetes market, deeply cultivating in the field of glucose
reduction, aiming to bring innovative treatment solutions and products
to more patients.

The national insulin-specific centralized procurement has a positive
and far-reaching impact on the development of the biopharmaceutical
industry, effectively reducing the burden of domestic patients'
medication and improving the accessibility of insulin by exchanging
volume for price. With great strides forward, the Company have
ushered in the successive procurement of insulin. Gan & Lee, as a
domestic leader in the industry, will leverage the stable cash flow to
intensify academic promotion, continuously advance into grassroots
markets, promote the upgrade from second-generation to third-
generation insulin, respond to national policies, actively compete for
market share, and offer more favorable products to patients. The
company will also actively adapt to the international situation, focusing
on entering the European and American markets, consolidating
emerging markets, seeking broader R&D, investment, and commercial
licensing partnerships. Leveraging the momentum of China's
characteristic development path, we aim to reward our investors with
outstanding performance.

CEO of Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
Kai Du
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IMPORTANT NOTES

Vi

Vil

The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Committee and
the directors, supervisors and senior management of
the Company guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and
completeness of the contents of the annual report, and that
there are no false records, misleading statements or material
omissions, for which they shall be individually and jointly
liable.

All Directors of the Company have attended the board
meetings.

Da Hua Certified Public Accountants (Special General
Partnership) has issued a standard unqualified audit report
for the Company.

Zhongru Gan (Legal Representative), Cheng Sun (Chief
Accountant) and Li Zhou (Head of Accounting Department)
hereby certify that the financial report set out in the annual
report is true, accurate and complete.

Proposal of profit distribution or proposal of converting

capital reserves into share capital examined and reviewed by
the Board in the reporting period

A cash dividend of RMB 2 per 10 shares will be paid to all
shareholders (tax included), based on the share capital on the
record date for the distribution of dividends. The above profit
distribution proposal is to be submitted to the 2023 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for approval and implementation.

Disclaimer in respect of forward-looking statements

The forward-looking descriptions of plans and development
strategies contained in the report do not constitute substantial
commitments by the Company to investors. Investors and
related parties should be aware of the risks involved and should
understand the differences between plans, forecasts and
commitments. Please pay attention to inventment risks.

Whether there is any fund occupation by controlling
shareholders and their related parties for non-operational
purposes

No
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Whether external guarantees have been provided in violation
of the prescribed decision-making procedures

No

Whether more than half of the directors are unable to
guarantee the truthfulness, accuracy and completeness of
the annual report disclosed by the Company

No

Major risk warnings

During the reporting period, there were no particularly
significant risks that had material effect on the production and
operation of the Company. The Company has detailed the various
risks it may face in the course of production and operation in this
report, as described in “Section IV Management Discussion and
Analysis/ VI. Risks the Company may face”.
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In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following

terms have the following meanings

ERIERNX
Definition of frequently used terms

NE . EARF . BHF. HFEHW

Gan & Lee, the Company

tREH
Beijing Gangan

HFEILH
Gan & Lee Jiangsu

H=ER(E#E)
Gan & Lee Holdings (HK)

HEXE
Gan & Lee USA

H 2= mM
Gan & Lee Europe

HF UK
Gan & Lee Shandong

HZE=LE
Gan & Lee Shanghai

HEHEAER
G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY

HEWEBER™
G&L MANUFACTURING NEW
JERSEY

R R

Yuanhe Genze

EMKR A

Greenwoods Investment

A EE
Kuanjie Bohua

B 2 6l
MING HUA TECHNOLOGY

JEESF P
Xute Hongda

5

indicates

i
indicates

i
indicates

i
indicates

]
indicates

5

indicates

5
indicates

{5
indicates

5

indicates

5

indicates

5
indicates

5

indicates

{5
indicates

5

indicates

5

indicates

HEHIERDERAE
Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

EREHMEERAE, RE2EFAH
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Beijing Gangan
Technology Co., Ltd.

HEHIIHRERAT, REE2RFAQT
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Gan & Lee
Pharmaceutical Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

HEERBRAT, RaEFEEBRIUNEETFAF
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, established in HK,
China, Gan & Lee Holdings Limited

HFEAHIWXERE, §FHEATKREEF QT
A wholly-owned subsidiary of G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC,
Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals USA Corporation

HEHUIMMERFTERS, RAEEERINEEF LT
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in Germany, Gan &
Lee Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH

HEAHWWLWAEBRRE, RE2EFLRE
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Gan & Lee
Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.

HEEYRE(EB)BRAT, RAE2EFAH
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Gan & Lee
Biotechnology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

HEHZFAERAR, REEXERINEEF L
A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company in the United States,
G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC

HERZFOAEFTRR, HFEHMEAERE2RZFAQE
A wholly-owned subsidiary of G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC,
G&L MANUFACTURING NEW JERSEY INC

ERBREREFHNREBRAE, RBEEERFAF
Indirectly held subsidiaries of the Company , Beijing Yuanhe
Genze Technology Co., Ltd.

EEEMEBEERRLEREGN, 2AKRAK
Greenwoods Jinggi Investment Center(L.P.), Company
Shareholder

REHBERERLEREGN), REBRK

Beijing Kuanjie Bohua Investment Center(L.P.), Company
Shareholder

BHEAFEARR(EB)BRLQR, 28KAR
Ming Hua TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENT (HK) LIMITED, Company
Shareholder

ERBEZERKREBRAT, AFKAK
Beijing Xute Hongda Technology Co.,Ltd, Company Shareholder
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EREIERX
Definition of frequently used terms

5 IR BR
Zhucheng Shunkang

GS Direct

Hillhouse

STRONG LINK

Wintersweet

W&+
Sandoz

LREY)
ANKEBIO

=AY
Hualan Bio

MG E
Novo Nordisk

BURE
Tonghua Dongbao

YRG5
Bio-Technology

BXH 1 29
United Laboratories

ERHBEE
NMPA

ERERD
NHSA

FEIESES
CSRC

i
indicates

5
indicates

&5

indicates

5

indicates

5
indicates

5
indicates

i
indicates

5

indicates

=
indicates

5

indicates

5

indicates

5

indicates

=
indicates

5

indicates

=
indicates

FERERINR I IEFESUEL(BREW, BAZAZEULE

MEGCIVERZHEUELERSNK), AFKRRKR

Nanjing Zhucheng Shunkang Venture Capital Partnership
(L.P.), formerly known as Maanshan Casting Growth Enterprise
Management Consulting Partnership (L.P.), Company
Shareholder

GS Direct, LL.C,RBEK R
S Direct, L.L.C.,, Company Shareholder

HillHouse G&L Holdings(HK) Limited, A & i& &
HillHouse Gan & Lee Holdings(HK) Limited, Company
Shareholder

STRONG LINK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, A & B &
STRONG LINK INTERNATIONAL LIMITED, Company Shareholder

Vast Wintersweet Limited, A & i /&
Vast Wintersweet Limited, Company Shareholder

L&+ A5 (Sandoz AG)
Sandoz AG

ZHEMEYM IR (EEA)RNDERQT
Anhui Anke Biotechnology (Group) Co., Ltd

EZEMTIERNDBERRE

Hualan Biological engineering, Inc

BEMIEERE
Novo Nordisk Company

BUREAHUIRMDERAT
Tonghua Dongbao Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.

TFEVERAROHERRF
JinYu Biotechnology Co., Ltd.

KHEAERIZEREREQT

The United Laboratories International Holdings Limited

ERALEEEER
National Medical Products Administration

RETRER
National Healthcare Security Administration

FPEIEFGREEEZERS
China Securities Regulatory Commission
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EREIERX
Definition of frequently used terms

HEXRE. EX
Volume-based procurement,
centralized procurement

B (KB BRBHE~m. B
(R MFRBERER @

Basal insulin products
(longacting), Meal time (fast-
acting) and premixed insulin

products

ADA

BLA

EMA

FDA

GMP

IDF

NMPA

i
indicates

5

indicates

5

indicates

5
indicates

5

indicates

5
indicates

i
indicates

=
indicates

=
indicates

2021F118, ERARIRESXBWDRAELRB(EELRER
KM (B &R EW)(GY-YD2021-3)), AREAMERARL®
EPHERVWRIRLTI) IF. ERERERKREXRBORE
022F1BBHNERARBERLTMERPELE R FT2022F58
Fwaskm, BEARTHBRUSMABEN NE. " &N REXEH
N2E, BREMAPEEREGRITHEITE

In November 2021, the Office of Centralized Drug Procurement
Organized by the State issued “National Centralized Drug
Procurement Document (Insulin Specific) (GY-YD2021-3)"
to carry out the sixth round of national centralized drug
procurement (insulin specific). The notice of the Office of
Centralized Drug Procurement Organized by the State in
January 2022 requires that “the results of the insulin specific
volume-based procurement will be implemented in May
2022, and the specific implementation date shall be subject
to the notice issued by various localities”. The centralized
procurement period is 2 years, calculated from the actual
implementation date of the selection results in various
localities.

AATEM (K BEEETREEKFRORKEROMER, &
AEEN (R MNFBEESE~REBIFERF R RFEHR25. &
FROTMNIATT . HB R, HHE R0 E FHF®30
The Company’'s basal (long-acting) insulin products include
Basalin® and Basalin®ElasPen. The Company’'s mealtime (fast-
acting) and premixed insulin products include Prandilin®,
Prandilin®25, Prandilin®ElasPen, Rapilin® Rapilin®30 and
Similin®30

ZERERBED=
American Diabetes Association

BLA (448 & RI8R3%) 2 Biologics License Application B9 f&E #F ,
EMEE FA RXATZHETHENELARELEYHmAEXE L
AN E XA #

BLA (Biologics License Application), is a document submitted

to the US FDA to support the review and the final approval of
biological products for marketing and sales in the United States

MUNA mEED

The European Medicines Agency

sEERARKEEEER
Food and Drug Administration

HAREFREEENT
Good Manufacturing Practice of drugs

R 48 PR % BX R
International Diabetes Federation

FEEXRARBEEEER
National Medical Products Administration
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BAEERX
Definition of frequently used terms

DPP-4i

SGLT-2i

HbATc

GZRI1017E 5 i
GZR101 Injection

GZR337E S W
GZR33 Injection

GZRI8TE 4 Wi
GZR18 Injection

GZRI8F
GZR18 Tablet

GZRATE 4 ¥
GZR4 Injection

5

indicates

5

indicates

5

indicates

5
indicates

i
indicates

{5
indicates

i
indicates

k=
indicates

T BRE BRES -4 40 1 5
Dipeptidyl peptidase-4 inhibitor

Mm-AEEDRY T EQ- 286 5
Sodium-glucose cotransporter 2 inhibitor

FEHMIED (HbAL) BAMMPNMAERSMBRNREE (T
EEEER BIFBRNBEESNTY. BEIAN, EAMOD

ERRE B MM R BROT E8~12/8 T M4 KF

Glycosylated hemoglobin (HbA1c) is the product of a
nonenzymatic reaction between hemoglobin in the red blood
cells and sugars in the serum, mainly glucose. Glycated
hemoglobin concentration is generally considered to be a valid
indicator of the average blood glucose level over the past 8 to
12 weeks.

NEEHNILFE BTRENT R, B—MAEIRNRES
REAHH, ARBEMNKBEMBEDRGCIRIBERMITL R
BREGHIK, MBFATERRK

The class | innovative therapeutic biological product under
research by the Company, is a new type of premixed dual
insulin analogue. It is made by mixing the long-acting basal
insulin GZR33 under development by the Company and fast
acting insulin aspart, which is intended to be used to treat
diabetes.

N TE B YA RO B R B 2R 2K
The Company's long-acting basal insulin analogue under
development.

ABEMNILCFHERTREYF R, E—MRNASE TN —
RBK R ER M AR R A1 (GLP-1) B HohHI KXY, ERilt
I PR B9 3&E R AE 22U PR s . IERY /B ER EEE

The class | innovative therapeutic biological product under
research by the Company is a long-acting glucagon-like
peptide-1 (GLP-1) receptor agonist which is expected to be
injected once a week. The approved clinical indications are type
2 diabetes and obesity / overweight management.

NEEMMILBFEATREN &, B —MXAFEORRE
MU EANORSZR A, TEEERDNGIRIS, BB TF BT

2B ¥ PR 955

The Company's innovative Class 1 therapeutic biologic product
under development is an oral peptide tablet with a novel oral
absorption technology. The main active ingredient of this
product is GZR18, and it is intended for the treatment of type 2
diabetes mellitus.

NEEMILSFEATHEYS R, MPASEAR T EFSAH

—RMBKUBERDRAGFN, MBFATERRK

The class | innovative therapeutic biological product
under research by the Company is expected to be injected
subcutaneously into the human body once a week to be used to
treat diabetes.
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ERIEIERX
Definition of frequently used terms

GLR1023 7% 4 ¥
GLR1023 Injection

Me Better #r 2
Me Better new drug

Me Too#T 24
Me Too new drug

REH . &5
Reporting period, current
period

5

indicates

{5
indicates

]
indicates

5
indicates

NEEMNEYEMS, B—Te ANREHBREIgCIHE,

HFabBENMRESURASABABRNTRILIARRIES S, 10
FESILIARGIEEFER, BT AT ARG AT RALTEL
W FEHEESEERRKERBHE

The Company's biosimilar under research is a fully
human recombinant monoclonal IgGTk antibody, with an
antigenbinding site in the Fab segment that binds specifically to
human interleukin IL-17A, and inhibits it from interacting with
the IL-17A receptor. It is used for the treatment of adults with
moderateto-severe plague psoriasis that meets the indications
for systemic therapy or phototherapy.

SRMABLEETAYERNE. L. 2 EFHTEEANS

B9 Bl 37 25

Compared with the original drug, it is an innovative drug with
more advantages in drug acting mechanism, efficacy, and
safety.

SRMABLEAYERANE. AU, R2eESFEHFESE LM

BY Bl #7 45

Compared with the original drug, it is a highly similar innovative
drug in terms of drug acting mechanism, effectiveness and
safety.

2023F1B1HZE2023F12831H
From January 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023
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F-T nTEAHE

SECTION Il CORPORATE INFORMATION

—. QREMEBR I Information of the Company
AT XX & R Name in Chinese HEHURHBERLSE
N B 5T FR Name Abbreviation in Chinese HZE=w0
NE I A TR Name in English Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
REWIN BIRES Name Abbreviation in English Gan & Lee
NEWEERERA Legal representative H B4 Zhongru Gan
—. BRAMEBRAR I Contact person and contact Information
BB Secretary to the Board
e Name PE Rong Zou
N I - = No. 8, Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian,
BX 2 3 it Address ItRMEMNX A EERERE —KS Tongzhou District, Beijing
BiE Tel 010-80593699 010-80593699
(3= Fax 010-80593678 010-80593678
BFEH Email IR@ganlee.com IR@ganlee.com
=. EBXRBERTEHEEHN Il Summary of the changes in general information

ItRMmEMINXSEERERE—KS
UNID=8 5 1B s Registered address No. 8, Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian,
Tongzhou District, Beijing

A6 R A8 N X A R AT B E XOE N E & 4
The hi ol eh fhe Bl it S it =%H8%
N= s : S T e e historical change of the Company's No. 8, Jingsheng North Third Street,
ABEMAAB L T ER R registered address Jingiao Science and Technology Industrial
Base, Tongzhou Park, Zhongguancun
Science Park, Tongzhou District, Beijing

It mBMINX S EHERER A —KS
NI b HE Business address No. 8, Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian,
Tongzhou District, Beijing

YNEID WA Re ol =R Postal code of the business address 101109
NI el Website https://www.ganlee.com.cn
BFiEM Email IR@ganlee.com
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M., EEREREEMRE

IV Summary of the change in information disclosure

and storage location

NE B F E IR S B9 & MR Rk

RNERBEFERS ISR 5 PR it

Name of the newspaper selected
by the Company for information
disclosure

The Website address of annual report

(£ IE 5 1R ) (A0 [E IE 35 3R )
"Shanghai Securities News", "China
Securities Journal"

http://www.sse.com.cn

Storage location of the Company'’s BERHWIESRAR ., LBIEHZE M

REIEERESEEMS Department of Securities of Gan & Lee,
annual report Shanghai Stock Exchange
. AEREREMR V  Profile of company share
< A a8
B E Type of Shares A stﬁgre
- . LBIESR B
BRELTRZZM Stock exchange Shangha Stock Exchange
. e HE=H
B’ EEM Stock abbreviation Gan & Lee
B =S Stock code 603087
T EHI R EE IR Stock abbreviation before variation Ng':;we

Other related information

N HtEXEH Vi
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Da Hua Certified Public

IR 1B 2 34 £z
N%ajr?’e 7(—.—32'\2%7'3’}5& Accountants (Special
(HHEBEN) General Partnership)
N mre  12/F Building 7, No. 16, West
NEBEH R IHES R W) D AR FEFEFSREBIAFH 16 5% 4 2o iddle Road, Haidian
Accounting firms engaged by the Address TS 12/ District, Beijing, China
Company (domestic)
EFITmER
Name of Signatory eS¢, A Pengfei Fan, Cong Fan
Accountant
#70 REIESFROBRAE CITIC Securities Co.
Name
North Block, Excellence
RERNBTRSEESRENGRE N P v e = Times Square (Phase II),
Sponsors who performed - District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
continuous supervision duties Province, China
during the reporting period
TFMREARARS
Name of Signatory Sponsor 24 N Luyin Zhao, Qi Wang
Representative
SRS RERI
Peff) j(%goﬁgt’i‘ﬁ{ius 20235 11 527 A% From November 27, 2023 to
- 2024 12 A31H December 31, 2024
Supervision
 KLEMSHREE A VI Directors, supervisors and senior management

cr
A0 et
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R4E58  Weigiang Song

=30

F&

Name

Zhongru Gan

Kai Du

Jiao Jiao

Lei Yin

FETHREZR

1948 F HE, BL, BAFEEBHRINIA
Fo 19T4FE1983F AR F IR AF; 19834
EF1987F , TEREZBBIMNILAF LR E L
REFM; 198TFE195F FRF EEHK =l
HRE; DSFEFERRHARTBEREE
WRFEBULEZREEFKFLEIE; 199845
F2020F, FRABAEFEKFLALHE; 20008 F
S, BEREEEK. HRWAERFIEMLEE
BREAGTES, tRBEARERNEERAF
BEEK. L8, IINTRAMNEBERRATHT
ESR==i

1977 BE, Mt , BIVFRENKXERE,

2000 22002F , FRFREXRFEIUBRA
B, BEFEFEME; 2005FF2006F , FIRFIL
REBAMERRQR, BEEEFREME; 20018 %
2008 F AR FEELDDHHOBRAR, B
DABIREIE; 2008FF20165F , BEABEPR
B ; 2010 E 20155, BEQBKE; 2016
FE020F, BERABDRISEZE; 200085,

BERABREE., 2019F2%, HERFIES,

HCERNEBEHFEEEESK, HFE LB
AITE S . G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INCH]
G&L MANUFACTURING NEW JERSEY INCEE K
KX CEO . Gan&Lee Holdings Limited #l Gan&Lee
Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH{TE S . HZ=
VL7 R

1982F %, MBA, Rl FHEARKF,
2005F 20105, BELRABHSKLE. 2EH
SEI8; 2011F F2012F, BEERBFS MR
A5 2013FE2016%F , BERABSELLIE,;
2016FE%5, BERFRSEE; 2015FES,
BEABES, REBRLERNBET I
HFELUAR. EREHHNEEK,

1988F3BF WA, L, RPUFIRITEXRES
EREBSHEMRA. 2013FE2016F , £E
PRERFEFRIELE, 20166882 ES, B
EHFEAHAVEGFRELEARA, THFERH
8, REILRMENISIHSERAT BRI
FEWMELTR, ERBREFEFRI; 2021
FI[ES, BERAEE,

1979 3R E, BL, Bl FIRIMERF .
WBFTRES, BEAHFAUFZLRER
TA, EHFEERBERBIRTEMNXE K
MEANAEZERI; 2021F38 8%, BERAE
%,

Main Work Experience

Born in 1948, graduated from Michigan State
University, USA. From 1974 to 1983, he worked at
Peking University; From 1983 to 1987, he studied
for his Ph.D. at Michigan State University, USA;
From 1987 to 1995, he worked at Merck & Co., Inc,,
USA; after leaving Merck & Co, USA, he served
as the Chairman and CEO of Tonghua Antaike
Bioengineering Co., Ltd.; From 1995 to 2012. From
1998 to 2020, he served as the Chairman and CEO
of the Company; From 2020 to the present, he has
served as the Chairman of the Company. Mr. Gan is
also an executive director of Beijing Xute Hongda
Technology Co.,Ltd, Chairman and manager of Beijing
Yuanhe Genze Technology Co., Ltd., and executive
director of Taizhou Xihao Technology Co.

Born in 1977, Master, graduated from Loughborough
University, UK. From 2000 to 2002, he worked at
Dalian Tianyuan Industry Co. as account exeutive;
From 2005 to 2006, he worked at Beijing Cadbury
Co. Ltd. as account exeutive;; From 2007 to 2008,
he worked at LDD Import & Export GmbH, Germany
as branch manager; From 2008 to 2016, he served
as the director of the Company's international
department; From 2010 to 2015, he served as the
supervisor of the Company; From 2016 to 2020,
he served as the vice president of the Company;
From 2020 to present, he served as CEO of the
Company. Since 2019, he has served as a director
of the Company. Mr. Du also serves as Chairman
of Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical USA Corporation.,
Executive Director of Gan & Lee Shanghai, Chairman
and CEO of G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC and
G&L MANUFACTURING NEW JERSEY INC, Executive
Director of Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH,
and Supervisor of Gan & Lee Jiangsu.

Born in 1982, MBA, graduated from Renmin
University of China. From 2005 to 2010, he served
as the Company’'s commercial manager and national
commercial manager; From 2011 to 2012, he served
as the Company’'s commercial director; From 2013
to 2016, he served as the general manager of the
Company's commercial department; Since 2016, he
has served as the Company’s vice president; Since
2015, he has served as a director of the Company;
Mr. Song also serves as the chairman of Gan & Lee
Jiangsu, Gan & Lee Shandong and Beijing Gangan.

Born in March 1988, graduated from Beijing Normal
University and Beijing Institute of Life Sciences.
From 2013 to 2016, she was a postdoctoral fellow at
the University of Michigan School of Medicine, USA.
Since august 2016, she has served as the head of
Jiaojiao Laboratory of Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.,
and during her tenure at Gan & Lee, she has been
awarded the “Beijing Overseas Introduced High-Level
Talents Haijiu Project Youth Project Specialist” and
“Beijing Science and Technology Rising Star”, etc.;
Since March 2021, she has served as a director of the
Company.

Born in March 1979, Ph.D., graduated from Beijing
Normal University. Since July 2013, he has served
as the head of Yin Lei Laboratory of Gan & Lee
Pharmaceuticals. During his tenure in Gan & Lee, he
has won awards such as “Leading Talents in Science
and Technology in Tongzhou District, Beijing”; Since
March 2021, he has served as a director of the
Company.
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Name

Wei Chen

Yanging He

Guojun Zheng

Zengyi Chang

Yi Wang

Tao Zhang

FTETHREZR

1980F 4%, L, LW TFIRTESYHYH
FAT, AR EVTFRIFEERKF . 20006%F
19FERFIEAHSYANHARE, HEE
BRxR. 8RR, MEHRESIH; 2014
FEEFIE, EEEBHRRAFZFEZRELE;
2019 MM ANE Z=H L, BEHIESEIM A
MEBHAMELERERTLMN,; 2Q1F7T8E
SEFRKREZBHALEDELIE,; 2021F98%
S, BERATESE; 204F18FS, BEAT
BlERE,

1985F M4, KFEAR, RAEEMAITID, &
WF A E B KF . 2008F£20235F , F£RF
EREEREHMNESHERTELS, 8B
ERITBE. MELERS; 2045855, 8
FIAREFEUHMESHHEHREBSUW SN
A5 2019FES, BERABRIES,

1968FWHAE, BL, BUFHEAEZFHZR.

1998 £ 20004 72 1 E &} 2 B i £ ¥ b 55 P M
EE LRI, 2000FEE22001F T 2E R
FHRPOMEBFLEARIE; 20028E%5,

FIARUIARFHE;, 2019FES, BELF
BIUEBEE,

1965F HAE, L, RUTFEENHEF K
1996 F E2003F E B ERFEYREE; 2003
FRPERKFESBFFR L, AEILERK
FEBBRFZEREE, FLLESM, ERKF
BRAEARBMZRLEES.

1990F 4, MiE, RBUTHEEIBAF.
2016F12BMANE FH Ak, 20165F E 20174,
BAEIREMINE, 20174 -20184F 18 1T #5 I 2
R 5, 2018-20194F , 1B {E#5 ) BB £ 1, 2019
F20215F, BEEFRABSREE, 202145
ESBAEEFRASE S E; 2021F38ES,
BEADESE,

1978 FE W E, HEESE, TXAEIINEEN,
REAM, BUFAHILLERKRTF . 2002F F
003F AR FHRMAENERT SHERLATEMSE
TR ER; 2003F E2004F E IR F L 4 fth e
MEHPE)BERABIBERMEE; 2006002
SHMBRTFEHEZAHURNBERRE, KEEHE
BEHLELE . HUREABSEIRS; 20214
IAES, BERAKRESIR,

Main Work Experience

Born in 1980, Ph.D., graduated from Beijing Institute
of Poisons and Drugs, and graduated from Harbin
Medical University with a bachelor’'s degree. From
2009 to 2019, he worked at Beijing Institute of
Toxicology and Drugs, serving as assistant researcher,
associate researcher, and master tutor; From 2014
to 2016, postdoctoral fellow at the University of
Michigan School of Medicine; In 2019, he joined Gan
& Lee Pharmaceuticals. as the executive director
of pharmacology and toxicology department and of
new drug research and development laboratory for
metabolic diseases; Since July 2021, he served as
deputy general manager of R&D of clinical medicine
department; Since September 2021, he served as
the director of the Company; Since January 2024, he
served as the vice president of the Company.

Born in 1985, bachelor degree, Chinese CPA,
graduated from Hebei University of Economics and
Business. From 2008 to 2023, she has worked at
Beijing Jinhua Chengxin Certified Public Accountants
Co., Ltd. as an audit assistant and project manager;
Since 2024, she has been a partner of Beijing Hefang
Accounting Firm (Special General Partnership); Since
2019, she has been an independent director of the
Company.

Born in 1968, Ph.D., graduated from Chinese Academy
of Medical Sciences. From 1998 to 2000, he worked
as a postdoctoral researcher at the Institute of
Microbiology, Chinese Academy of Sciences; From
2000 to 2001, he worked as a postdoctoral researcher
at the French Scientific Research Center; Since 2002,
he has been a professor at Beijing University of
Chemical Technology; Since 2019, he has been an
independent director of the Company.

Born in 1965, Ph.D., graduated from Baylor College
of Medicine, USA. He taught in the Department of
Biology, Tsinghua University from 1996 to 2003; In
2003, he transferred to the School of Life Sciences,
Peking University and is currently a professor, a Ph.D.
supervisor, and director of the Interdepartmental
Centre for Protein Science, Peking University.

Born in 1990, Master, graduated from Southwest
Jiaotong University. Joined Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals
in December 2016. From 2016 to 2017, he served as
a staff member of the engineering department, from
2017 to 2018, he served as a staff member of the
refining department, from 2018 to 2019, he served
as the manager of the refining department, and from
2019 to 2021, he served as a senior manager of the
production technology department. Since 2021, he
has served as the deputy director of production
technology department; Since March 2021, he has
served as supervisor of the Company.

Born in 1978, Chinese nationality, no permanent
residency abroad, undergraduate degree, graduated
from Hebei University of Economics and Business.
From 2002 to 2003, he worked at China Television
Golden Bridge International Advertising Co., Ltd. As a
planning specialist; From 2003 to 2004, he worked at
Red Bull Vitamin Beverage (China) Co., Ltd. as a brand
supervisor; Since 2005, he has worked at Gan & Lee
Pharmaceuticals.as general manager of marketing
department and director of performance improvement
department; Since September 2021, he has served as
chairman of the supervisory board of the Company.
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Name

Jiaxin Wang

Cheng Sun

Zifei Yuan

Cheng Xing

Zhi Li

Rong Zou

FTETHEZR

1993FHE, KEFH, B FERIRKR
WET o 2015FMARE, MEMREER;
019FES, BERBKSE,

1979 A, BNEMS T, MEHTE,
ENFEERF, 2003FF20105F, FIRFE
SEEREITIMESAT, BERITEE; 2010
FE8F, FRTLEEERERERELT
(HK2686) , BEM S5 2 4 ; 2018F £2020F £
RFIRMAAEREFEEFTRQR, BEM
SHLSEE, 2020F6FE5, BEERFAEEE
B MSHHFEA. HEEERNEBEEHEFL
A.IEREHEESR, §FLE. xR E
BRABNMSHE A

1989FE, B, RUFBEERFUF R,
07FETRBLEINE, UWEBESHIMAE
F A ; 2017TFI0B BERT LAY 73 47 88 12
RS, 2018568 £20205F 7R, BAERB DM
TFRSYE; 20208 E5BERBERSEHE, 28
FYLITANBETFTULURES,

191FEHE, Hid, EWTFEBEFRAZK
F ., 201645, IBEEEGHMANLAT; 2017TEE
20184, BAFMAMEALE LA ESREE;
2018 F 20205, BEATANKBRILENE;
2000 7TEESEERBRIREE, MEL T
BNECEFIA. BEUAR. ERHHE
=,

1993FHE, FL, Bl FIRUIKRFME
BHEETRFR. 2020F7TBETEILE, U
BINE S HMAEFHI; 20216108 £2022
FIFEAERENBRERE; 2022848 ES518
FRBDEENEE MK, 2023FTRESEER
BAIEM EEmEEXKE AR A 2024F1
AESHERTRSLE,

1983FEHE, ML, LU TFRHIEFRZ K
F, 2006FE F2007E, FRTIRBERE
BEERAT, BELZKEBIRE,; 20016 F
20176, BERBIEHFES N EK; 20174128
S, BEARNESW P . PELLRHEE
FHZEEBYSE,

Main Work Experience

Born in 1993, college degree, graduated from the
Heilongjiang Vocational College for Nationalities. She
joined the Company in 2015 and is currently a file
manager; Since 2019, she has served as a supervisor of
the Company.

Born in 1979, certified public accountant in Australia,
Master, graduated from Tsinghua University. From
2003 to 2010, he worked at KPMG Huazhen Accounting
Firm as an audit manager; From 2010 to 2018, he
worked at Asia American Energy Holdings Co., Ltd.
(HK2686) as the financial director; From 2018 to
2020, he worked at Beijing Sunshine Haitian Parking
Management Co., Ltd. worked as the general manager
of the financial center. Since 2020, he has served as
the vice president and chief financial officer of the
Company. Mr. Sun also serves as the director of Gan
& Lee Shandong, and Beijing Gangan, and director as
well as financial director of Gan & Lee Shanghai, and
Gan & Lee Holdings.

Born in 1989, Ph.D., graduated from Department
of Chemistry, Tsinghua University. After graduating
with a doctorate in July 2017, she joined Gan &
Lee Pharmaceuticals. as a management trainee; In
October 2017, she served as the acting director of
the Company’s drug analysis department; From June
2018 to July 2020, she served as the director of the
Company’s analysis platform. Since 2020, she has
served as the vice president of the Company. Ms. Yuan
also serves as the director of Gan & Lee Shandong.

Born in 1991, Master, graduated from Capital
University of Economics and Business. In 2016, she
joined the Company as a management trainee; From
2017 to 2018, she served as the senior manager
of compensation performance and organizational
development; From 2018 to 2020, she served as
the director of the Company’s human resources
department; Since July 2020, she has served as the
Company's vice president. Ms. Xing also serves as the
director of Gan & Lee Jiangsu, Gan & Lee Shandong
and Beijing Gangan.

Born in 1993, Ph.D., graduated from the School of
Materials Science and Engineering, Beijing University
of Chemical Technology; After receiving the Ph.D.
degree, he joined Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. as a
management trainee in July 2020; From October 2021
to March 2022, he served as senior manager of the
general manager's office; Since April 2022, he has
served as deputy director of the general manager’s
office of the Company; Since July 2023 to present, he
has served as regional head of the Company’s sales
in Zhejiang Province and Shanghai Municipality; Since
January 2024, he has served as the vice president of
the Company.

Born in 1983, Master, graduated from University of
International Business and Economics. From 2005 to
2007, she worked at Beijing Aolan Taisheng Technology
Co., Ltd. as the assistant to the general manager; From
2007 to 2017, she served as the Company's security
affairs representative; Since December 2017, she
has been the secretary of the Company’'s board of
directors. Ms. Zou also serves as the supervisor of Gan
& Lee Shanghai.
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Special committees under the Board of Directors

Membership of specialized committees under the Board of
Directors

HITEZERS
Audit Committee

REZRAS

Nomination Committee

HFNSEZERE

Remuneration and Appraisal Committee

HIEERS
Strategic Committee

kS §om. BEH
Yanging He, Zhongru Gan, Guojun Zheng

Eigm. MEY. #M
Zengyi Chang, Guojun Zheng, Kai Du

MEDY. HEW. E¥m
Guojun Zheng, Zhongru Gan, Zengyi Chang

Ham. WM. E¥x
Zhongru Gan, kai Du, Zengyi Chang

B 2024FE2H19H, AEBFE
MEBEEESE+TAASN, FivEd
TAXTRAERAEMNEEESHIT
ZREZAMNUER), BEEESH
HERESZRBZBEN: MiEE (X4
ZR). FEY. HEW. #BEE
F AT F2024E2B208 I B £ £
IE#5 32 5 B Wik (www.sse.com.cn) BY
(KT RABRAFMNEESSFITE
REZERNREN R ERS: 2024-
010) -

Note: On 19 February 2024, the Company held the Sixteenth
Meeting of the Fourth Session of the Board of Directors and
passed the “Proposal on the Adjustment of Audit Committee Members
of the Fourth Session of the Board of Directors of the Company”,
and adjusted the list of members of the Audit Committee
of the Board of Directors as follows: Yanging He (Chairman),
Guojun Zheng and Zhongru Gan. For details, please refer to
the “Announcement on the Adjustment of Audit Committee Members
of the Fourth Session of the Board of Directors of the Company”
(Announcement No. 2024-010) published on the website of
Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) on 20 February 2024

by the Company.

(Z) REBAFHZERZRBASREN ()

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the reporting
period

HM(XRFLQNEFEEFIHIERZERBERIRS
SHMUENKFRFQLQWNNFFERS>RBENN
ENAXTFEBERBBFERITIMESARRAEH
WEN B I ZNCR F<2022F ER R ENITNIRE>8
REY

Consideration of the “Proposal on the <2022 Report
on the Performance of the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors>", “Proposal on the Company’s <2022 Annual
Report> and Summary’, “Proposal on the Renewal of the
Company’s Accounting Firm for the Fiscal Year of 2023 and

Determination of Its Compensation’, and “Proposal on the
<2022 Evaluation Report on Internal Controls>".

EHRERAYULBRARMGES M
AREESN
All members attended the
meeting by correspondence or
on-site participation

FRE N ENED
All proposals were
considered and
adopted

2023-03-29
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2023-04-26

2023-05-08

FIENEYENE 2hZRYUBEBNRANES 0T

BEMN(KF<Q23FE—FTERE>HINER) ol HEFEEIN

Consideration of the “Proposal on the <First all proposals were All members attended the meeting

Quarterly Report 2023>" considered and by correspondence or on-site
adopted participation

HI(XTFREFEARENRELITRESRHFHIN
ENAXTFRERTARENRRATRESZNN
ENXTFRABATDARENRETREEEEZ SR
TRETROBENUENXFEBITELIFLRITA
BREMENUENXFTEITRATAFENREIT
RERIEDITRENNENXFBITATDELAAR
TARKREZSERSEANITTEDTREHINE)
(XRFBITRBERAFLRITARKR ERHRNHLE KR
BUEAME REX THRAENNENX TR 5
EXNREEB<MEFHERHNRMGINBD N 237D
W>BXBEZFEIINE)

Consideration of the “Proposal on the Company’s FENZHENE SAEEYLEBNRMG 22N

Fulfillment of the Conditions for the Issuance of Shares

to Specific Recipients * “Proposal on Adjusting the i AEF=W

Company’s Plan for the Issuance of Shares to Specific All proposals were All members attended the meeting
Recipients’, “Proposal on Adjusting the Total Amount of considered and by correspondence or on-site
Proceeds Raised from the Company’s Issuance of Shares adopted participation

to Specific Recipients and the Number of Shares to Be
Issued”, “Proposal on Amending the Pre-proposal for the
Non-public Issuance of A-share Stocks’, “Proposal on
Amending the Report of the Analysis of the justification
of the Company’s Issuance of Shares to Specific
Recipients’, “Proposal on Amending the Feasibility
Analysis Report on the Utilization of Proceeds from
the Non-public Issuance of A-share stocks”, “Proposal
for Amending the Measures to Be Taken to Fill in the
Immediate Return on Dilution of the Company's Non-
public Offering of A Shares and the Undertakings Made
by the Relevant Parties”, and “Proposal for Signing of
the <Supplemental Agreement to the Conditional Share
Subscription Agreement> with the Specific Recipients
and Connected Transaction Matters between the
Company and the Specific Recipients”
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AR TREBEFFERERNBENUENE
FREQIVBFEFFESEATHFERNEGERB R
THRENUENXRFRATERLAFARTRERD

SRMBEMARTRAT KA T MBI A T /Y “ IR 2RZERYUBAHNA G Z 2K
TIEERNES SRR VST:pul N P
2023-08-23 =) . All proposals were 7R HRR W
Consideration of the “Proposal on the Company’s considered and All members attended the
2023 Semi-Annual Report and Abstract’, “Proposal on adopted meeting b)/ corresponc}ence or
the Company’s 2023 Semi-Annual Special Report on the on-site participation
Deposit and Actual Use of Proceeds’, and “Proposal on
the Closing of Part of the Company’s Initial Public Offering
of Proceeds and Permanent Supplementation of Liquidity
with the Savings from the Fund”
) o 2REZEYUBHAFIN TS 2K
ZZ JA <
F(XFATNBFE=FEREHNR) NS SRS Y
2023-10-27  Consideration of the “Proposal on the Company’s Third Copngiggigdsan% € All members attended the
Quarterly Report for 2023" adopted meeting by correspondence or

on-site participation

(Z) IREPRAFMSEREZERSBFF () Remuneration and Appraisal Committee held 1 meeting
1R&EW during the reporting period

2RERYUBAER G S 2K

(XFREVBFESREEARFIHAIRNNUE) MENEYHERNED

90230399  Consideration of the “Proposal on the Compensation  All proposals were 73 AR = -
Program for Company’s Senior Management for Fiscal Year considered and All members attended the
2023" adopted meeting by correspondence or

on-site participation
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H. REBVFRBATMEEFL IX Employees of the parent Company and major
TER subsidiaries at the end of the reporting period

BRBZRATINEE

Number of active employees in the parent Company 3,797
FTEFRATRAINHE 685

Number of active employees in major subsidiaries
FRAINHESIT 448

Total number of employees in employment

BRERTBEFRIDFABEANBRMKEI AL
Number of retirees for which the parent Company 34
and major subsidiaries need to bear the expenses

Tl 1 5% 2 5 XN/
Professional Composition Category Number of professional composition
E;}R;&Di 704
Proidr?c?iéon 1,313
%ﬁiﬁ 2,153
Admeoative 312
Ta;tjl 4,482
N
HBEREES HEN)
Education level Quantity (person)
&S 65
Moster 466
Undeizfiduate 1,397
CO|7§g§§W%;§|OW 2,554
ait 4,482

Total
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SECTION 111 KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS AND STATE OF OPERATION

—. EEFFELS IR L Key accounting data and financial indicators for the
5tR last three years
(—) XESIHTHIE () Key accounting data
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
FERITHIE  Keyaccounting data 20224F A HALL - 4 [E)HE 1R (%) 20214

Year of 2022

BRI PN Operating revenue 1,712,270,496.85

3BT LEH AT Net profits attributable to
N = shareholders of the listed
REV & A E company

-439,516,357.48

JFEF LB Net profits attributable to
£ 4z« shareholders of the listed
;RE’HEB%E“E’IL% company after deduction
MRS FE of non-recurring profits or
losses

-473,533,852.73

ZEETTEM Net cash flow from
Mes @ e Operating activities

296,681,691.38

2022F K
End of 2022

B F LEH AT Net assets attributable to
gy shareholders of the listed
R B A company

9,585,802,149.50

BEFE Total assets 10,606,912,380.06

Increase/decrease in
the current reporting
period over the same

period last year (%)

52.31

TiE
N/A

RIE
N/A

-63.11

AEAR L EEEHA R 1
R (%)
Increase/decrease in
the current reporting
period over the same
period last year (%)

12.07

10.45

Year of 2021

3,612,043,827.88

1,452,754,862.29

1,343,324,113.26

1,078,176,370.68

20215 K
End of 2021

10,167,304,894.99

10,853,163,478.10

32 \ HEHIRHERAQT



(Z) EEM SR

Annual Report 2023

Key financial indicators

FEM SR Key financial indicators
BEASRKHE Basic earnings per share (RMB
(£ / B2) per share)

wRERWE Diluted earnings per share
(7 /B8) (RMB per share)

I FRIEE % M & Basic earnings per share

; n b >« after deducting non-recurring
)—E;E’ngkﬁguym profit or loss (RMB per share)
(7T /B&)

A F 1% 5K = UR Weighted average return on
353 (0p) net assets (%)

Az

MR IER E 45 & Weighted average return on

; T+ 2= Net assets after deducting
5 B9 DAL 4% non-recurring profit or loss

7= I 3 K (%) (%)

20234
Year of 2023

20214
Year of 2021

2022%F  ZRHERLL b 4 [ HR 1R (90)
Year of 2022 Increase/decrease n
the current reporting

period over the same

period last year (%)

0.60 -0.78 & A 2.59
N/A

0.60 -0.78 T1& R 2.59
N/A

0.53 -0.84 FiEHA 2.39
N/A

3.44 -4.45 RiEH 15.24
N/A

3.01 -4.79 RiEHA 14.09
N/A

REPBRADM=ZFTESITEIE
It 55 48 A5 B9 15t B

1. BUYBANEHREA:

KR EHE W WA 926081278, B
FEBEEIN52.31%, EEFERW
I

DEREERANR LEFERBAEK
7.46127T o

QEMREEWNR EERHEM
1.861Z27c, [ELEIEN131.78% ,» Bk
REFRLE=T TEVMSHEHRNE
BREA/ME. REPAETELEBNR
[ (D) EE WS D2 WMANFRED
/(). £EEL STk BF@ . 2
WX, DHEERABR

2. PRFLEHABRKRFENEFNE.
AR F LT ABDRKROMBRIESR
BUHRENAFAENRE:

TREMEABT LT AT REABAEF
B RBTLETRERANINGKIEES

Description of the Company’s key accounting data and financial
indicators

Reasons for changes in operating income:

The operating income for the reporting period was RMB 2.608
billion, an increase of 52.31% over the same period of last year.
The specific reasons are as follows:

(1) The Company's revenue from domestic sales increased by
RMB 746 million compared to the previous year.

(2) Revenue from international sales increased by RMB 186
million, a year-on-year increase of 131.78%. For details on the
reasons, please refer to “SECTION Il KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS
AND STATE OF OPERATION/ IV . Main operations during the
Reporting Period/ (I) Analysis of main business/ 2. Analysis of
income and costs/ (1). Main business by operating division,
product, region and sales model”.

Reasons for changes in net profit attributable to shareholders
of listed companies and net profit attributable to shareholders
of listed companies after deducting non-recurring profits and
losses:

During the reporting period, the net profit attributable to
shareholders of listed companies, and net profit attributable

2023FFEHRS [/ 33
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F R m YR E D 5 93,4012t
2972w, SEERBAEL, KIHE
SHE, TBERRSBEARE WA
K. HEEARLDPAE

to the shareholders of the listed company net of non-recurring
profits and losses during the reporting period were RMB 340
million and RMB 297 million respectively, which turned losses
into profits compared with the same period of the previous year,
mainly due to the increase in operating income and the decrease
in sales expenses during the reporting period.

3. RKEFWEENMERE RT3 Reasons for changes in net cash flows from operating activities:
IR A
AIBEHAZEETHNESRBE LK The net cash flow from operating activities for the reporting
FERFD18TIZT, TEER2022FHA period decreased by RMB 187 million year-on-year, mainly due to
AN RSB ESMAREHH KRB the higher receivable balance at the beginning of 2022 and the
B FF 4+ Bh £ BB D FR 3 decrease in the amount of government grants received in the

current reporting period.

4, EXxsRkksE., ERERKE 4. Reasons for changes in basic earnings per share, diluted
MNBRELEEHRBZENERS earnings per share and basic earnings per share after deducting
R TEE: nonrecurring profit or loss:

AIREHE AR KNG . HREESRK Basic earnings per share, diluted earnings per share and basic
SR ELEUEREENELRE earnings per share after deducting non-recurring profits and
B UK &= 9 5 90.607T . B . 0.607T losses for the reporting period were RMB 0.60 per share,
R#10.5370 k& , 5 LEFREAAL, RMB 0.60 per share and RMB 0.53 per share, respectively,
BAEE, TERAIRGHIPETL representing a turnaround compared with the same period of
MABIRANAFIEARFEFLETA the previous year, mainly due to the turnaround of net profit
BIRANIRIEEEER TN ST attributable to shareholders of the listed company and net profit
HAEMHAST HBRAIN . after extraordinary gains and losses attributable to shareholders
of the listed company for the reporting period.
Z. 2023EFEHRFEEFEMSHIE Il Key Financial Data by Quarter 2023
Bl x M ARM
Unit:RMB
E—FF EEE B=FE EMEE
(1-3B%) (4-6B17) (7-9B %) (10-128 %)
First quarter Second quarter Third quarter Fourth quarter
(January to March) (April to June) (July to September) (October to December)
BRI PN 557,999,537.96 671,765,575.69 675,905,764.02 702,366,073.38

Operating revenue

FEF LT RAB R KRB EFF
Net profits attributable to shareholders
of the listed company

ABFLTRABERANMGIFELEERE
=898 F

Net profits attributable to shareholders
of the listed company after deduction of
non-recurring profits or losses

EEEDNENINEREFM
Net cash flow from operating activities

30,086,854.49

49,223,261.29 84,931,981.40 132,320,637.97 73,592,689.18

72,134,282.62 121,920,823.86 73,016,579.75

16,260,120.77 -41,905,600.40 -18,790,537.63 186,408,343.53
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Non-recurring profit and loss items and amount

B mHFH: ARE™T

Unit:RMB
2023 F £ & 2022F & & 2021 &5
EEEHRNTME Non-recurring profit or loss items Amount for Amount for Amount for
2023 2022 2021

ERBUEARTVRERE, 821t Profit or loss from disposal of -493,503.51 485,848.90 -1,000.53

RAFREEEHNAHEDD

TAZERmNBUFHE, BE5AF
EEZ2EBLSEYHEX. FEER
HEME. RBHENITERZSE.
xF R B R w7 A A 4 R I Y U Ab
81 B 5h

BAASNEREAELSHEXNEN
ERRELSIH, FERELFE
ETRAFNERAGTENQAN
BEEREUNRLEER B~ MNE
[ AR e 5 N iaker

bR bR =0 2 Sh By H A E Ak SN
sz

N

HttmaFLEMREE XK
=

L P AS A 2 Pie 2

DR AN G F I (R E)

it

non-current assets, includes
elimination of provision for
impairment of assets

Government grants recognized in
profit or loss other than grants
which are closely related to the
Company’s business, in line with
national policies, in accordance
with defined criteria, and that
have a sustained impact on the
Company's profit or loss

Gains and losses from changes in
fair value of financial assets and
liabilities held by non-financial
corporations and gains and losses
from the disposal of financial
assets and liabilities, other than
those used in the effective hedging
activities relating to normal
operating business

Other non-operating revenue or
expenses than the above items

Other profit and loss items that
meet the definition of non-
recurring profit and loss

Less: Income tax effects

Non-controlling interest impact (after tax)

Total

13,759,486.13

45,414,567.99

-8,362,139.43

650,296.37

7,895,753.43

162,925.00

42,910,029.12

46,098,165.00

6,911,706.69

-13,665,180.84

584,880.20

6,397,924.70

34,017,495.25

45,462,239.86

85,629,422.52

-2,996,136.29

800,744.98

19,464,521.51

109,430,749.03

AR FARAFRITIESFHATER
REBBEUEQASEIS—FLBE MR
MYRFIENTEINENNIEFELEMN
BRmMBEBEEMEARN, URKER
AETIESHAREERBREML
NEBIS—FELBEHm) P HIEE
WELELERTmNBERENLEE
MEMIE, MiRBERE,

2023 FERE

Explanations shall be made for the non-recurring items identified
by the Company according the “Explanatory Announcement No. 1
on Information Disclosure by Companies Publicly Offering Securities -
Non-recurring Items’, and for the Company identifying the non-
recurring items enumerated in the “Explanatory Announcement No.
7 on Information Disclosure by Companies Publicly Offering Securities -
Non-recurring ltems” as recurring items.
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Bt MM ART

Unit: RMB

= Item Bk E RE&
Amount Reason

6 3E U 5 BB B5 Amortization of 9,608,863.68 KABRABAFHEXNB A RELERENREINENEEE R G
deferred income The Company recognizes the amortization of deferred income from

asset-related government grants as recurring gains and losses

a1t Total 9,608,863.68 /
M, REARETEZLERR IV. Major operation status during the reporting

20235, ~AElE IR N 9260,803.70
A7, REFFEHREKS2.31%; 138
T EHRBRARBYAFE34,006.86
A, REERAAEL, KMHAS

period

In 2023, the Company’s operating revenue was RMB 2,608.04
million, a year-on-year increase of 52.31%; Net profit attributable
to shareholders of the listed company was RMB 340.07 million,
compared with the same period of the previous year, realizing a

N o reversal of loss to profit.

(—) EEWLSSWH ) Main business analysis
1. FEAREMEREREAXHFBET 1. Analysis of changes in the income statement and related

5 th R accounts in the cash flow statement
Bt mi: ARM
Unit: RMB
7 HR #) FEREBAH T 5h £ 1 (%)
FY=| Item For the current Same period of Percentage change(%)
period prior year
ERIZ/@N Operating income 2,608,036,951.05 1,712,270,496.85 52.31
Bl B A Operating cost 697,421,415.19 405,803,824.65 71.86
HEZH Selling expenses 945,947,681.96 1,086,546,460.67 -12.94
EIEEA General and administrative expenses . 216,749,734.43 247,389,398.20 -12.39
155 2% A Financial expenses -78,722,700.11 -94,293,723.23 & A
N/A
it & 2% R&D expenses 501,022,439.64 562,469,155.04 -10.92
ZEENENIEREAFEE Net cash flow from operating 109,452,084.73 296,681,691.38 -63.11
activities

KRB END & RE AT Net cash flow from investing -977,397,528.04  -442,445,863.94 TiEA
activities N/A
FERFDTENIMERME ST Net cash flow from financing 754,698,628.67  -100,870,004.85 &M
activities N/A

BUWANZESDRRARE: ZEE
W EEFIBIN8.961Z 7T, BILLIG M
52.31%, ZohREFL“E=T FEW
SEMMEEBR/M. REAARE
B2EBR/ () ETE WSO/ 2HN
M A/ EE WS 21T 57
m. K. DEERABR;

BYRATHEEARE: KFEL
B R L F 29200 7T, bt
m71.86%, T BB RE N B =
FERHEBHK, BEERBYEK

36 \ HEHURMBERQE

Reasons for changes in operating income: Operating income for the year
increased by RMB 896 million as compared with that of the previous year,
representing a year-on-year increase of 52.31%. For the detailed change
reasons, please refer to “SECTION Ill. KEY FINANCIAL INDICATORS AND
STATE OF OPERATION/ IV. Main operations during the Reporting Period/ (1)
Analysis of main business/ 2. Analysis of income and costs/ (1). Main business
by operating division, product, region and sales model”.

Reasons for changes in operating cost: Operating costs for
the year increased by RMB 292 million as compared with the
previous year, representing a year-on-year increase of 71.86% ,

mainly due to the growth in sales of domestic insulin preparation



66.36% , NEAE W A FE 2 1K

HEZREZNRARE: XFEHE
BB EFR1I4MZT, R RED
1294% , EBARARERUERIENE
B, Myl k& &R DFTEG

EEERATHRERARRE. AFEE
AR LEFRV03MZIT, AR
D12.3%9%, TBRRARAEEN
X, RIRESHEE A RBVER T #H
REFFEHATEREE;

WS ERAENREWER: &FNMSHE
R EF1EM0.16127w , EBRAH
BN R D PREL

MRBERBEREREA: XEHR
BRAREFRLV0.611Z7T, ALY
10.92% , F E FR20234F A 5 = Hl A
RIMEREL, EQEHELTIRRK
MENIE, EXMAERAXHAR
=

ZREENTENNERE ST LD
RERA: RELEFNRNERE
AR EFERA1.8T1Z7T, FLLED
63.11% , EER2022F B W R
BNER = A A 3R 5 HA U B BY BT b B
&= FOR D PR B

RAGBDTENNEREFMED
RARRA: xERAETHNAERE
AR EFER 53512, TERA
REMABEEN R TN E
&0 PR EL

ERFEDTENINEREFTMED
RARE: xEEREDNIUERE
AR EFIBING.5612T, TERIIR
SHRNARENRETRRERISE

RE1602T R EERRADIKIAE
B FI 2 41,6812 70 P B o
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products, which increased by 66.36% over the same period of
the previous year, and consequently operating costs increased in
the period.

Reasons for changes in selling expenses: selling expenses for the
year decreased by RMB 141 million compared with the previous year,
a year-on-year decrease of 12.94%, mainly due to the decrease in
marketing and consulting expenses as the Company deepened its
management of cost reduction and efficiency enhancement, and
reduced the marketing and consulting expenses.

Reasons for changes in administrative expenses: Administrative
expenses for the year decreased by RMB 31 million compared
with the previous year, a year-on-year decrease of 12.39%, mainly
due to the Company’'s improvement of management efficiency
and the decrease in employee remuneration of management
personnel in this reporting period compared with the same
period of the previous year.

Reasons for changes in financial expenses: Finance costs for the
current year increased by RMB 16 million compared with the
previous year, mainly due to the decrease in interest income in
the current period.

Reasons for changes in R&D expenses: R&D expenses decreased
by RMB 61 million compared with the previous year, or a year-on-
year decrease of 10.92% compared with the previous year, mainly
due to the Company controlling the selection of R&D projects in
2023, focusing on the promotion of projects in the clinical stage
and controlling R&D expenses.

Reasons for the change in net cash flows from operating
activities: Net cash flows from operating activities decreased
by RMB 187 million compared with the previous year, or 63.11%
year-on-year, which was mainly due to the higher receivable
balance at the beginning of the period in 2022 and the decrease
in the amount of government grants received in this reporting
period.

Reasons for the change in net cash flows from investing
activities: Net cash flows from investing activities decreased by
RMB 535 million in the current year as compared with that of
the previous year, which was mainly attributable to the increase
in cash paid for the purchase of wealth management products
during the reporting period.

Reasons for the change in net cash flows from financing
activities: Net cash flows from financing activities increased by
RMB 856 million in the current year as compared with that of
the previous year, which was mainly attributable to the receipt
of proceeds of RMB 760 million from the issuance of shares to
specific recipients during the reporting period and the payment
of cash dividends of RMB 168 million in the same period of the
previous year.

2023FFEHRS
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2. WAMBEDHH

REBR, 28 EF LK AR

260,803.705 7T , [AELEIN52.31% ,

B AR K E69,742.145 70, Fltb

B KT71.86% o

(1) ZFEUSHTI. 570 K.
RHEERVIENR

£47 0k
By operating division

[R5 ON
Operating income

B 25 Sk
Pharmaceutical
Manufacturing

2,608,036,951.05

pal -
By product

ERIZON
Operating income

AW (R A2 R 150 7= )
Biological products (APIs
and formulated products)

2,360,202,125.13

B i7 28 1 e HAth
Medical devices and others

148,460,999.43

BIFEERRSBEA

Franchise services income

99,373,826.49

=0
Total

2,608,036,951.05

2. Analysis of income and costs

During the reporting period, the Company’s operating revenue
amounted to RMB 2,608.04 million, a year-on-year increase of
52.31%, while operating costs grew to RMB 697.42 million, a year-
on-year increase of 71.86%.

(1)  Main business by operating dividion, product, region and
sales model

B M ARD

Bl A EBFE) BLRANLLEFE BLmALL EF
Operating cost Gross profit

697,421,415.19

margin(%)

73.26

18R (%)
Increase/
decrease in
operating
income over
the previous
year (%)

52.31

R (%)
Increase/
decrease in
operating
cost over the
previous year
(%)

71.86

Bl pA EFME () BEWRALLEF Bl piatt EF

Operating cost

617,617,965.33

79,803,449.86

697,421,415.19

Gross
margin (%)

73.83

46.25

100.00

73.26

IR (%)
Increase/
decrease in
operating
income over
the previous
year (%))

58.98

60.45

-26.48

52.31

R (%)
Increase/
decrease in
operating
cost over the
previous year
(%)

72.99

63.61

71.86

Unit: RMB

EF KL EFERE
(%)
Increase/decrease
in gross margin
over the previous
year (%)

B304 E D R
Decreased by
3.04%

EFFEL EFIBRE
(%)
Increase/decrease
in gross margin
over the previous
year (%)

A2 12T ED R
Decreased by
2.12%

BALL0ANE D =
Decreased by
1.04%

B3.04ME DR
Decreased by
3.04%
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2 X
By region

ER-HEEWA

Domestic - sales revenue

= f5- 55 & U

International - sales revenue

nEES R == Y FE=R N
International - franchise
services income

&t
Total

HEFE

Sales model

A&
Domestic distribution

HOHEE
Export sales

FFEENRS N X EA
Franchise services income
and others

&t
Total

[ER12L N

Operating income

2,182,056,960.92

326,606,163.64

99,373,826.49

2,608,036,951.05

[ERI2L N

Operating income

2,175,911,383.54

326,606,163.64

105,519,403.87

2,608,036,951.05

SR %:N

Operating cost

498,582,024.44

198,839,390.75

697,421,415.19

R34S
Operating cost

493,890,207.86

198,839,390.75

4,691,816.58

697,421,415.19
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BT MM ARM

EFMEFIWRANLL EE Bl pi AL EF

(%)
Gross
margin (%)

7715

39.12

100.00

73.26

(%)
Gross
margin (%)

77.30

39.12

95.55

73.26

R (%)
Increase/
decrease in
operating
income over
the previous
year (%)

51.93

131.78

-26.48

52.31

EMFEWRANLL EF BV R AL EF

1R (%)
Increase/
decrease in
operating
income over
the previous
year (%)

51.76

131.78

-23.30

52.31

1R (%)
Increase/
decrease in
operating
cost over the
previous year
(%)

51.00

162.93

71.86

1R (%)
Increase or
decrease in
operating

cost over the
previous year(%)

50.46

162.93

142.53

71.86

In RMB

EF KL EFIZH
(%)
Increase/decrease
in gross margin
over the previous
year (%)

BIN0.14 N8B 9D =
Increased by 0.14%

BAT2IMNED =
Decreased by
7.21%

BA3.04 N B D R
Decreased by
3.04%

EF XL EFIZH
(%)
Increase/decrease
in gross margin
over the previous
year (%)

EIN0.20ME 2D =
Increased by
0.20%

BWAT2ITMED R
Decreased by
7.21%

L3304 E D R
Decreased by
3.04%

B304 N ED =
Decreased by
3.04%
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FEUVSHTL. 2@ X,
DEERIVIB AN A

REHAN, NFRDERE:

DIREAAR, AFELRNTER
BEY® (R K657 7~ ) B9
HE, £Fam (R R FI55 7~ &)
B9 35 & I & Eb X F]90.50% , E FI
REAT3.83%, 5 LFME, £Y
il aa (R 25 K 6l 57 7= &m ) B9 55 & Ue
AIEK5898%, TERBEDHEEXR
BMMITE, R BKRD RS~ S
HEABEKAAE, Hf, Ha
FHROMPEFHRO30) W AFB LB K
214.73% . IEHA, REED T 5
(RFHES R 570 7= dm ) O B Ak AU A3 £
FHEKT2.99% , Hep, BE SRS
7 dm B9 & A B A8 B2 _E S 1 I065.70%
, TERBTARESHAS T~ @
BY 55 8 K18 18 K FT B,

(QIREIA, ABETRMNEM
FamAEE, HEWRAERILEK
60.45% , B AY A EE T dn B9 UL
AME, T HEERE, 5
HERI

QIBREHAN, REFTFELENRS
W EFTE2648%, TERK
HABRENDNABTOERINNE
FEBE T R N R D P o

REHRN, MILSHKKE:

(D RBEERNEERANSBEE I
ANEEB983.67% , ) _EF R HIIE K
7461270, AEEEK51.93% , TBHK
RNEERNED RS~ mEE KR
BKAAH . ABERBKRDES ™5
FTEERM KW BRETR . B
CRX) MFCRBRD R, HpE
KM BEBEFRBERKFROKK
FHROTIEA 7, & B (W) 7 FUE &
BEFREERFRC . BHERKR25 .

Description of main business by operating division, product,
region and sales model:

During the reporting period, from the perspective of product
classification:

(1) During the reporting period, the Company’s operating income
mainly came from the sales of biological products (APIs and
preparation products), with a revenue share of 90.50% and
a gross profit margin of 73.83%, representing an increase of
58.98% compared with that of the previous year, which was
mainly attributed to the substantial increase in sales volume of
the Company'’s insulin preparation products after insulin-specific
centralized procurement was implemented. The sales volume of
preparation products increased significantly, among which, the
revenue of new products (Rapilin® and Rapilin®30) increased by
214.73% year-on-year. During the reporting period, the operating
costs of the Company’s biological products (APIs and preparation
products) increased by 72.99% compared with the previous year,
of which, the operating costs of insulin preparation products
increased by 65.70% compared with the previous year, which
was mainly due to the substantial increase in sales volume of the
preparation products during the reporting period.

(2) During the reporting period, the Company’s medical devices
and other products continued to be enriched, and its sales
revenue also increased by 60.45% year-on-year. In order to expand
the revenue scale of its device products, the Company continued
to broaden its sales channels and enrich its sales model.

(3) The Company’s pre-concession service revenue decreased
by 26.48% compared with the previous year, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in milestone revenue recognized by
the Company in accordance with the content of the agreement
during the period.

During the reporting period, from the perspective of operating
region:

(1) The Company's domestic sales revenue accounted for
83.67% of the overall operating income, which represents a
51.93% year-on-year increase of RMB 746 million compared to
the same period of the previous year. This increase was mainly
due to the substantial increase in the sales of the Company's
domestic insulin preparation products. The Company’s insulin
products for domestic use consist mainly of basal (long-acting)
insulin, mealtime (fast-acting) insulin, and premixed insulin.
The basal (long-acting) insulin products include Basalin® and
Basalin® prefilled, the mealtime (fast-acting) and premixed




RERCTNET . B KR HHH
®30 ME F O30, 2023FE, 17
ERNRSEGF~REER ALK
66.36% , HAEM (KM B2 E~
mHEEERLIEK3247%, SERN
PR 5 2R 5T P am SH E L 19 45.87%;
BE CER) MMBBR S HE~REED
ERE, HEERIEK112.38%,
REFFRPAKMEELE K, SERRK
BEGF T RHEELLH954.13%

QIREMA, AREREEBRANS
BAEE LW NLEAF 912.52%, B E
FEEAEKIL8%, TERERS
HA, RAFER DT RBIHINE
7, BREMHT AR IFE,
FERRHMAMETSMEOITR
BIMBED T, HERANREER
HEZEEK,
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insulin products include Prandilin®, Prandilin®25, Prandilin®
prefilled, Raplin®, Raplin®30, and Similin®30. In FY2023, the
sales volume of the Company’s domestic insulin preparation
products increased by 66.36%. Basal (long-acting) insulin
products accounted for 45.87% of the domestic sales volume
and experienced a 32.47% year-on-year increase. Mealtime (fast-
acting) and premixed insulin products saw a rapid increase in
sales volume, doubling over the same period of the previous
year and accounting for 54.13% of the domestic sales volume
of insulin preparation products, with a year-on-year increase of
112.38%.

(2) During the Reporting Period, the proportion of the Company’s
international sales revenue to the overall operating revenue
was 12.52%, representing an increase of 131.78% over the
corresponding period of the previous year, which was mainly
due to the fact that the Company continued to devote itself
to the expansion of the overseas markets, in particular the
development of the emerging markets, during the reporting
period. Driven by the increase in export orders for international
APls and medical devices, the sales revenue increased
significantly compared with the same period last year.

(2) FHERBREDWE (2) Analysis table of production and sales
FE”m B 8 HES EEFE AFE EFEEEEN EtF EFEL LR
Main Products Unit Production Sales Inventory (%) #8 (%) H2ORL (%)
volume Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
decrease in  decrease in  decrease in
production over sales volume inventories
the previous over the over the
year (%)) previous year previous year
(%) (%)
PR & 2= 51 ¥ 7,340.68 7,321.07 1,278.61 42.89 71.99 -0.98

Insulin 10,000 untis

preparation

IR E BRI A

RERN, REEFRAOTE, UH
/'_EFI; #T%%_Eiﬁﬁﬁo

Description of production and sales

During the reporting period, the Company had sufficient
production capacity, set production based on sales and retained
a certain amount of safety stock.

2023 FERE
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(3) HEHRHE (3)  Cost analysis table
BI: v M AR™
Unit:RMB
317k BY 75 1 A T B FHEH *PLEHE LERPSH LERBSE FASTREF &
By operating Cost  Current amount kb5 (%) Amountin the g s b 5 (%) [E) 28 25 5h bk 141 (%) 35 B
division component The current same period of Year-on-year  Proportion of  Condition
items period as a lastyear  percentage changesinthe  statement
proportion of of total  amount of the
the total cost cost(%) current period
(%) compared with
the same period
of the previous
year (%))
= 24 il 15 b FEWSEMA 697421,415.19 100.00 405,803,824.65 100.00 71.86
Pharmaceutical Operating
manufacturing costs
37 B Z< 45 B 1 B AHPEH ABPLEERE LERPEH LFRABLE KPETRLEE 15
By product Cost  Current amount kb5 (%) Amountin the gg 7 b {6l (%) [F 8 25 5h b 161 (%) 354 BF
component The current same period of Year-on-year Proportion of Condition
items period as a last year percentage  changes in the statement
proportion of of total  amount of the
the total cost cost(%) current period
(%) compared with
the same period
of the previous
year(%)
EHlm(ERE FEWSMA 617,617,965.33 88.56 357,027,635.49 87.98 72.99
Rgle=g)  Mainoperating
Biological
products
(APIs and
preparations)
EirssmkEM FTEWSmA  79,803,449.86 11.44  48,776,189.16 12.02 63.61

Medical devices

and others

Main operating

cost

B 72 73 #T EL A 15 5 i BR

Cost analysis and other information

REHAN, 2BEDH@R(RBER
70 7 ) Bk A KT72.99% , E
ERAERPEERZMIITE, B
BEBF T REEDRERMAN.

During the reporting period, the operating cost of the
Company’s biological products (APl and preparation products)
increased by 72.99%, which was mainly attributable to the rapid
growth in the sales of insulin preparation products after the
implementation of the results of the centralized procurement.

HFEHUKRHBERAF



Annual Report 2023

Expensed R&D investment in the current period

FEFE R RN

Capitalized R&D investment in the current period

MAERANEG I

Total R&D investment

MAERNST G E WAL (%)

Proportion of total R&D investment to operating revenue (%)

AR NERUBLLE (%)

Proportion of R&D investment capitalization (%)

(4) ZETEHEFFREIZMHIFER (4)  Major sales customers and major suppliers
ARBETEHERFER A. The Company’s major sales customers
A AZEFHEEM3S,45044 570, & The sales of the top five customers amounted to RMB 384.50
FEHESTL14%;, EHFHAER million, accounting for 14.74% of the total annual sales, of which
Ffﬁ‘i%ﬁqﬂ%ﬁfﬁfﬁ%%mﬁn, =] the sales of related parties amounted to RMB 0, accounting for
FEHEDZT0%, 0% of the total annual sales.
BABTEMNEGB R B. The Company’s major suppliers
B AZ N EREE28,491.75 77T, The purchase amount of the top five suppliers is RMB 281.92
HEEXWRE41.90%; HF A million, accounting for 41.90% of the total annual purchases,
BENERWE P XE AXWEOL of which purchases from related parties amounted to RMB 0,
T, SFEEXRBEE0% . accounting for 0% of the total annual purchases.
3. = H 3. Fees
HIE=1 T2V SEMNEER For details, please refer to “SECTION Il KEY FINANCIAL
A -,:.‘-,E
,R/@ REMREIREEE R/ () INDICATORS AND STATE OF OPERATION/ (I) Main business
AN
TEWSM/LFEERRASRE analysis/ 1. Analysis of changes in the income statement and
%ﬂﬁ%ﬂ BEHDHE. related accounts in the cash flow statement”.
4. MHEREBA 4. R&D investment
(1) HERBANELZE (1) Analysis of R&D investment
BT
Unit:RMB
REAZRAUHAE AN

501,022,439.64

80,543,171.11

581,565,610.75

22.30

13.85

(2)

HEANFIER %

(2)

R&D personnel investment

NERRAGZNEHE

The number of R&D staff in the Company

MEANZHELRNB DAL

LHY EE 51 (%)

704

15.71

The ratio of the number of R&D staff to the total staff

number of the Company (%)
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FHEHWEF FHEH AN
Educational structure category Number
BEMRE 58
PhD
mEMRE 280
Master
A 243
Undergraduate
RKERUT 123
College and below
FU KR FIREBMA
Age structure category Number
30% AR (R &30%) 447
Under 30 years of age (not included)
30-40% (£30%, F&40%) 228
30-40 years old (excluding 30 years old)
40-50% (£40%, F&50%) 25
40-50 years (including 40 years old, excluding 50 years old)
50-60% (&£50%, F&60%) 8
50-60 years (including 50 years old, excluding 60 years old)
60% KL £ 2
60 years and above
5. MER 5.  Cash Flow
FRNE=T FTEVSIEHRNELES For details, please refer to “SECTION Il KEY FINANCIAL
/A REARFEZRERR/ (—) INDICATORS AND STATE OF OPERATION/ (I) Main business
FEUVSOM/LIANBREMRERE analysis/ 1. Analysis of changes in the income statement and
REXBREBZH DR related accounts in the cash flow statement”.
Z) BFE. ABRBRSW (I)  Asset and liability analysis
1. ZBERBGRK. 1. Assets and liabilities

44 \ HFEBURHBERASE
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(1)

BHNHEFBR

BEEHR

H g 4 3 119,167,395.31 (8
fi:x ™M AR™, S82&H
EE51791.02% -
BERSHREIEATZRER
FRBLET USHE/ L. &HY
SRF B TR /19. P78 NS E B

RREF

2.

(1)

3.

Annual Report 2023

Status of offshore assets

Asset size

Of which: RMB 119.17 million of foreign assets, accounting for
1.02% of total assets.

Restrictions on major assets as at the end of the reporting
period

For details, please refer to "SECTION VII FINANCIAL REPORTING/
VIl. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements/ 19. Assets
with restrictions on ownership or use".
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SECTION VI MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

A Y

(—)

KEBRITIES 2
KLEME:

2023F B K+ AR MK A BT R
ERXRE—F. BRVKIFE, B
RHHEN, BT &,
EHTHREZFERE A 2023F
BWREXKEMELD B A ™R FH K
EEH B — &, SMIMATEL,
R #HIZNETINE . QB 1E2023F
HWEREFHITE, TNERNIHE
BUVSHEAN, ZPHET @GR
HEBIFEEIRF . KREH, 2F
KHE M W N26.08127T, BILLIEK
52.31% , V3 & & F 3401275, B
FFRRHESHE

VENHSHBEBRRARAFTEMAR
BlEEE, RA QB ETHRERMER
BN, IXBELXENBHNEZRK
Wo BE20NFERRIREEXRF
AL, BEBRBHEXRNEMRE
MEBRNMENERNNE, &
MRENHTHRERNMNEE T LT
ANETHRBKL, REREY K
HIFA. MMRTBHEE . E20235F,
REXAEREKMMDEEEE SR
TIET R, MUZERX. 2R
ROTZES, ERIERBEHT IR
ERKHEN, #—-—FMATHE
EHHHEER, 2023F, RAE
FREERKAE, mH O ML
', BEETHSBEXRIU LXK,
THRTRABEERRIEE XN
BEE AT o 20235, AEEAHEEW
Ni1£218,205.705 70 , 4 EF (A HAH
K51.93% . ABREARFIF~mEE
@ L 18 66.36% , H &, & fifl (K
MBEBETFREEERKEEKR
3247% , B (RB)MIBED &
FaRHEEER LB KI12.38%

(1)

Discussion and analysis of business conditions

Business overview:

The year 2023 marks the beginning of implementing the essence of
the 20th National Congress of the Communist Party of China and is
an important year for implementing the “14th Five-Year Plan.” The
state is taking measures to regulate and stimulate market vitality,
while various industries are working towards promoting China’s
economic stabilization and recovery. The year 2023 was also a year
of intense competition among global biopharmaceutical companies
in product innovation, resulting in the launch of several new drugs
and an acceleration of the R&D process. The Company has been
keeping up with this trend, with favorable domestic and international
sales performance, as well as smooth clinical progress of several
products under R&D. During this reporting period, the Company
successfully realized a turnaround in performance, with operating
income of RMB 2,608 million, representing a significant year-on-year
increase of 52.31%,and net profit attributable to the parent company
of RMB 340 million.

The turnaround in performance is an important manifestation
of the Company’s continuous optimization of corporate strategy,
enhancement of operational efficiency and profitability,
and effective grasp of development opportunities. The
implementation of the first round of insulin-specific centralized
procurement in 2022 enabled the Company to rapidly expand
its team and accelerate its market coverage. It took advantage
of the price advantage and the opportunity presented by nearly
10,000 new access hospitals, superimposed on the brand effect
of the original market and the strengths of its own professional
academic promotion team. In 2023, the Company implemented
a combination of differentiated and collaborative marketing
strategies, supported by multi-form and multi-level marketing
activities, to increase the penetration rate of the grassroots
market while maintaining stable growth in the original market.
This resulted in a significant increase in sales volume for various
products, which led to a notable increase in market share,
particularly in the grassroots market. This achievement marks
the successful attainment of the Company’s strategic goal in
the first round of insulin-specific centralized procurement,
Additionally, the Company's domestic sales revenue in the same
year amounted to RMB 2,182.06 million, representing a year-on-
year increase of 51.93%. The Company’'s domestic preparation
products have demonstrated a notable increase in sales volume,
with a year-on-year growth of 66.36%. This growth is particularly
evident in basal (long-acting) insulin products, which have seen
a 32.47% increase in sales volume. Additionally, mealtime (fast-
acting) and pre-mixed insulin products have experienced a
remarkable year-on-year increase of 112.38%.
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In 2023, the Company strengthened sales cooperation with
both new and existing customers by virtue of a solid customer
base and good brand effect despite the complex and volatile
international situation. This resulted in significant market
growth in countries along the “Belt and Road.” The Company'’s
international sales revenue amounted to RMB 326.61 million
during the reporting period, which represents a year-on-year
increase of 131.78%.

R&D innovation is the foundation of the Company’s sustainable
development. During the reporting period, the Company completed
the first-subject dosing of GZR101 Injection, an innovative dual
insulin analog developed independently by the Company, in the
Phase Ib clinical trial. Furthermore, the Company has completed
the first-subject dosing of GZR18 Injection, a new long-acting (GLP-
1RA) product under development targeting the indications of type
2 diabetes mellitus and obesity/overweight, in the Phase Ilb clinical
trial. In addition, the clinical trial of the Company’s innovative
therapeutic biologic, GZR18 oral tablets, was accepted by the State
Drug Administration in November of the same year. In 2023, the
Company continued to expand its R&D pipeline and efforts in other
areas. In July 2023, the Company obtained a “Notice of Approval for
Drug Clinical Trial” from the National Medical Products Administrations
(NMPA) regarding GLR1023 Injection. This is the Company's first
biosimilar monoclonal antibody approved for conducting clinical
trials in treating moderate to severe plague psoriasis in adults who
require systemic therapy or phototherapy. The approval of this
new product will expand the Company’s product line and provide
momentum for its sustainable development.

Currently, the Company has successfully developed six core
insulin products, five of which are mainstream insulin analogue
products in the global insulin market. In the first half of 2023,
Gan & Lee's self-developed biosimilars, including Insulin
Glargine Injection, Insulin Lispro Injection, and Insulin Aspart
Injection, were formally accepted by the FDA. In the latter half
of 2023, the Company welcomed a pre-approval inspection by
the United States Food and Drug Administration (FDA) for the
three biosimilars, namely Insulin Glargine, Lispro, and Aspart
Injection. The Company has received preliminary feedback from
the FDA, and is currently working on improvements based on
the comments. Necessary rectifications will be completed as
soon as possible. These are the first Chinese-manufactured
insulin products to be submitted for approval in the US and
now in the stage of substantive review. The submission of these
three insulin biosimilars in the US marks a significant milestone
in Gan & Lee's internationalization journey. In the second half
of the year, the company submitted marketing authorisation
applications (MAA) for three insulin biosimilars, which were
successively accepted by the EMA. In the first quarter of 2024,
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the Company underwent pre-approval inspections by the
European Medicines Agency (EMA) for the three biosimilars,
namely Insulin Glargine, Lispro, and Aspart Injection. The
Company has received EMA's initial feedback on the inspection.
The Company is currently preparing responses to these technical
questions and meet EMA's requirements. The Company will
continue its efforts to expand its brand overseas, broaden
overseas sales channels, and promote overseas sales coverage
of the Company’s products. This will enable more diabetic
patients around the world to enjoy insulin products with better
efficacy and affordability.

During the reporting period, the Company mainly
accomplished and focused on the following work:

Accelerating clinical development programs

In 2023, the Company’'s accumulated investment in R&D projects
was RMB 581.57 million, accounting for 22.30% of sales revenue,
Of this total, the expensed R&D investment was RMB 501.02
million, accounting for 19.21% of sales revenue, while the
capitalized R&D investment was RMB 80.54 million, accounting
for 13.85% of the total R&D investment.

Innovation and R&D have always been the foundation of Gan
& Lee. The Company consistently advanced and explored
product development and technological innovation. It adheres to
independent innovation and R&D, with endogenous development
as the main driving force. While making breakthroughs in the field
of diabetes treatment, the Company has actively invested in the
R&D of drugs in other fields, and has established its R&D pipeline
in the field of autoimmune drugs. As of the date of the report
disclosure, the R&D projects in the clinical stage include GZR18
Injection, GZR18 Tablet, GZR4 Injection, and GZR101 Injection. In
addition, GLR1023 Injection have received the "Notice of Approval
for Drug Clinical Trial" approved by the National Medical Products
Administration (NMPA), and are in the process of accelerating the
Phase I clinical trials.

Long-acting GLP-1RA (glucagon-like peptide-1 receptor
agonist): GZR18 Injection

The Company’s investigational new Class 1 drug, GZR18 Injection,
is a long-acting GLP-1RA (glucagon-like peptide-1 receptor
agonist) with 94% homology to endogenous GLP-1 (glucagon-
like peptide-1) in the human body. The proposed indications
for GZR18 Injection are type 2 diabetes mellitus and obesity/
overweight. In May 2023, the Company initiated a Phase Ic clinical

trial of GZR18 Injection for the indication of obesity/overweight
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in China. In June of the same year, the Company completed the
dosing of the first subject in a Phase llIb clinical trial for the
indication, with further exploration in the application of the drug
towards weight-loss. In August 2008, the Company completed the
dosing of the first subject in a head-to-head Phase IIb clinical trial
of GZR18 Injection for the indication of type 2 diabetes mellitus

versus Semaglutide.

The global GLP-1RA market is experiencing rapid growth, with
an estimated value of USD 145.4 billion by 2030 (source: IQVIA).
In China, the GLP-1TRA market share in the domestic diabetes
drug market is still relatively low compared to the global
market, indicating significant potential for growth in China's
GLP-TRA market. The Company's R&D strategy of dual clinical
development in China and the US will continue to support the
expansion of the Company’s sales in international and domestic
markets in the future..

A significant number of domestic pharmaceutical companies
are currently entering the GLP-1RA track. However, to achieve
a high market share in the future focuses, it is essential to
focus on the ability to commercialize products, in addition to
the current R&D speed. The commercialization of products is
influenced by several key factors, including product efficacy,
production capacity, and the strength of the commercial sales
team. The Company has a clear advantage in these areas. Firstly,
the Company actively pursues product differentiation and
superior efficacy to cope with the intense market competition,
while ensuring the efficacy of the drug. The Company is the first
domestic single-target GLP-1RA to head-to-head assess drug
efficacy with Semaglutide. Our GZR18 Injection is a weekly GLP-
1RA preparation whose indications include both type 2 diabetes
mellitus and overweight/obesity. Currently, global research on
GLP-TRA in obesity/overweight indication is at an early stage, and
there is no relevant weekly preparation approved for marketing
in China. The Company has a significant advantage in product
differentiation with a layout in advance. Secondly, the Company
already has sufficient production capacity and strong ability to
secure product supply. The Company has sufficient land and
plant reserves and leading scale production capacity, which
can meet the potential supply demand of the rapidly growing
Chinese and even global market in the future with the continuous
increase in production capacity. Thirdly, the Company has been
deeply engaged in the field of diabetes treatment for many years.
The Company's products will be rapidly commercialized following
listing, thanks to its outstanding and extensive commercialization
experience, a professional scientific promotion team of
over 2,000 people, mature sales channels, and clear brand
advantages.
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Innovative oral GLP-1RA: GZR18 Tablet

The Company’s GLP-1RA formulation (GZR18 Tablet) adopts a
novel oral absorption technology that combines the drug molecule
with an absorption enhancer through formulation technology to
improve the bioavailability of the drug molecule, thus achieving
oral delivery of the GZR18 molecule. GZR18 Tablet is a new
Class 1 hypoglycemic drug in the treatment of type 2 diabetes
mellitus, which can significantly improve the major pathological
and physiological deficiencies in type 2 diabetes patients. In
addition, the drug enriches the Company's pipeline of novel oral
hypoglycemic drug and provides treatment options for diabetes

patients.

In November 2023, GZR18 Tablet, a new Class 1 therapeutic
biologic product declared by subsidiary, Gan & Lee Shangdong,
has received the "Notice of Approval for Drug Clinical Trial” by
the National Medical Products Administration (NMPA), with the
approved indication of type 2 diabetes mellitus. In April 2024,
GZR18 Tablet completed the dosing of the first subject in the
Phase I clinical trial to treat type 2 diabetes in China.

Currently, only one oral GLP-1RA is available on the global
market. The clinical trial of GZR18 Tablet has been approved in
China, which demonstrates the Company'’s ability to continuously
innovate in drug discovery and development and marks a
significant step forward in the pursuit of new oral antidiabetic
drugs.

The fourth-generation insulin analog: GZR4 Injection

GZR4 Injection is a new Class 1 therapeutic biological product
under development by the Company that belongs to the fourth-
generation of insulin analogs. It is designed be administered
subcutaneously once a week to achieve smooth basal blood
glucose control. GZR4 Injection is expected to significantly
reduce the frequency of insulin injections for patients. Compared
to the daily preparation, the weekly insulin preparation is
expected to reduce the number of injections by more than 300
times per year, which will significantly reduce the frequency of
injections and help patients overcome injecting barriers, and
reduce the burden of treatment. This is expected to improve
overall adherence and quality of life for patients. There is
currently no weekly insulin preparation product being approved
for marketing worldwide. The Company’'s GZR4 Injection is

expected to provide a new therapeutic option for patients.
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In April 2023, the Company’'s completed the dosing of the first
subject in @ multiple dosing, Phase Ib clinical trial of GZR4 Injection
in patients with type 2 diabetes mellitus in China. In September
of the same year, GZR4 Injection completed the dosing of the
first subject in the Phase Il clinical trial in China. Furthermore, the
Company is actively preparing clinical trial of GZR4 Injection in the
us.

Diabetes is a chronic disease that requires long-term medication.
Insulin is an indispensable treatment and end-point agent in the
management of diabetes, and basal insulin is the cornerstone
of insulin therapy. Currently, basal insulin products are mainly
once-daily preparations, which account for a considerable share
of the insulin market. However, with the iterative upgrading of
products and the continuous upgrading of patients’ demand
for insulin products, weekly insulin preparation products will be
another important product changing the current sales pattern
of the insulin market. The Company has always been the leading
domestic enterprise in the sales market of third-generation
basal insulin. The layout of weekly insulin preparation products
is both the Company’s strategic choice, and the reflection of the
Company's commitment to providing better treatment options
for diabetic patients.

Fourth-generation innovative dual insulin analog: GZR101
Injection

GZR101 Injection is a self-developed fourth-generation
innovative dual insulin analog. It is made by mixing the
investigational long-acting basal insulin GZR33 and fast-
acting insulin Aspart, with the intended use for the treatment
of diabetes. GZR101 Injection is designed to can mimic the
biphasic mode of physiological insulin secretion under once-
daily administration, considering both fasting plasma glucose
control and post-prandial glucose control. As a result, it can
lower glucose level smoothly and improve the rate of glucose
control. It may also simplify treatment to improve patient
compliance and reduce treatment burden, thereby optimizing
long-term management of diabetes and helping reduce or delay
the occurrence of complications. In December 2023, GZR101
Injection was completed the dosing of the first subject in a head-
to-head Phase Il clinical trial with insulin degludec/insulin aspart

injection.
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China’s insulin market is primarily dominated by pre-mixed
insulin, with second-generation insulin accounting for a larger
share than in developed countries such as Europe and the United
States. The implementation of China's centralized procurement
policy is driving the trend of third-generation insulin replacing
second-generation insulin, due to lower prices for third-
generation pre-mixed insulin products and improved patient
accessibility. The Company has leveraged the advantages of
centralized procurement to rapid expand its market access and
achieve grassroots coverage. Our pre-mixed insulin products,
Prandilin®25 and Raplin®30 have achieved rapid volume release.
Building on this success, the Company is now developing the
fourth-generation innovative dual insulin analog, GZR101 injection,
which will further enhance patient compliance and expand

patients’ medication choices.

Monoclonal antibody biosimilar: GLR1023 Injection

The Company has entered the field of monoclonal antibody
drugs based on the long-term strategic development plan.
The Company is focusing on the development of large-scale
animal cell culture technology, leveraging its rich R&D and GMP
production experience of insulin in large-scale fermentation
processes amplification, chromatographic purification of
recombinant protein, preparation process development, and
other related areas. The production process of antibody drugs
is similar to that of insulin, which also involves cell expansion,
fermentation and culture, multi-step purification, preparation
filling, and so on. The launch of the antibody drug into
production will help enhance the utilization efficiency of the

Company’s production line in the future.

GLR1023 Injection is the Company's self-developed biosimilar
of Secukinumab. It is a fully human recombinant monoclonal
lgG1k antibody, whose antigen-binding site in the Fab segment
specifically binds to human interleukin IL-17A and inhibits
its interaction with the IL-17A receptor. It is indicated for the
treatment of severe plaque psoriasis in adults who require
systemic therapy or phototherapy.

In July 2023, the Company received the “Notice of Approval
for Drug Clinical Trial” for GLR1023 Injection from the National
Medical Products Administration (NMPA), with the approved
indication for the treatment of severe plaque psoriasis
in adults who require systemic therapy or phototherapy.
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GLR1023 Injection is the Company's first monoclonal antibody
candidate biosimilar to receive clinical approval. The Company
will accelerate the development of biosimilar Secukinumab
monoclonal antibody (GLR1023 Injection) to provide universal,
sufficient, safe,and unambiguous drug treatment solutions for
psoriasis patients as soon as possible, with the goal of benefiting
more patients.

As of the end of the reporting period, only Secukinumab
injection, manufactured by Novartis, the brand-name company,
had received approval for marketing in China. According to the
US National Psoriasis Foundation, there are approximately 125
million people with psoriasis worldwide, with a global prevalence
of 2-3%. Both men and women of all ages may have the disease,
Global sales of Secukinumab injection reached USD 4.98 billion
in 2023 (Source: Novartis FY2023 financial report). In April 2019,
the National Medical Products Administration (NMPA) approved
the use of Secukinumab injection for the treatment of psoriasis.
The market for the drug is experiencing rapid growth, with sales
in China's domestic market of approximately RMB 500 million
Yuan and RMB 1.5 billion Yuan in 2020 and 2021, respectively.
However, based on the annual treatment cost of Secukinumab
injection of USD 40,400, only approxiamtely 30,000 additional
patients will be treated with Secukinumab injection in 2021.
Furthermore, the market penetration rate of Secukinumab
injection is still below 1% (Source: public information).
Currently, no biosimilar version of Secukinumab injection has
been approved for marketing in China. GLR1023 Injection has
promising market prospects and a large market space, which
will enrich the Company’s product pipeline and enhance its core
competitiveness if approved for marketing.

Oral antidiabetic drug SGLT-2 (sodium-glucose
cotransporter protein-2) inhibitor: Empagliflozin Tablet

Empagliflozin Tablet is an orally administered small molecule
antidiabetic drug developed by the Company. It is a type of SGLT-
2 (sodium-glucose co-transporter protein-2) inhibitor. By inhibiting
SGLT-2, it reduces the reabsorption of glucose in the kidney, lowers
the renal glucose threshold, and increases the excretion of glucose

in the urine, thereby lowering blood glucose levels.

In July 2023, the Company’s listing application for Empagliflozin
Tablet was accepted by the National Medical Products
Administration (NMPA). Empagliflozin Tablet is the Company’s
first SGLT-2 inhibitor to be submitted for listing, which is
expected to be approved in 2025. After listing, it will provide a
universal, sufficient, safe, and equivalent glucose-lowering option
to benefit more patients.
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Currently, the brand-name product from Germany’s Boehringer
Ingelheim and 15 generics have been approved for marketing
in China. According to the IQVIA database, global sales of
Empagliflozin are expected to reach USD 14 billion in 2022 and
USD 37.2 billion in 2030. According to data from Pharnexcloud,
the market growth rate of Empagliflozin is rapid, with sales in
domestic hospitals expected to reach RMB 348 million Yuan in
2022, representing a year-on-year growth of 42%. The market for
Empagliflozin Tablet is promising and has significant potential,
Once approved, it will greatly expand the Company’s glucose-
lowering product line, enhancing the Company's competitiveness
in the field of diabetes medication and consolidating the
Company’s leading market position in the field of diabetes
treatment in China.

Strengthening the refined management of market promotion

In 2023, the Company enhanced the implementation of market
refinement management, aligning with the principle of "Reducing
Costs and Increasing Efficiency." This led to the formulation
grassroots academic activities tailored to local conditions, with
the objective of enhancing the coverage rate of the grassroots
market. In the specific implementation process, the aim of
improving the academic level of grassroots doctors and solving
patients' after-sales problems, and with the ultimate result of
increasing the accessibility of insulin products to patients, the
Company carried out highly targeted and practical academic
exchanges, after-sales guidance, and other universal activities
to promote doctors' understanding and knowledge of insulin
products, improve the level of diagnosis and treatment, and help
patients to popularize knowledge about diseases and treatments,
and to effectively manage chronic diseases.

In terms of academic promotion, the Company organized and
participated in nearly 20 major national academic conferences,
including the 25th National Academic Conference of the
Chinese Diabetes Society (CDS) and the 20th annual meeting
of the Chinese Society of Endocrinology (CSE). The Company’s
participation in major national academic conferences has
strengthened cooperation and communication between the
Company and the national endocrinology community, improved
understanding of the Company's products among grassroots
doctors, and further consolidated and strengthened the brand
image of Gan & Lee. Furthermore, the regions continue to
reinforce and expand their academic promotion activities in the
grassroots market with the goal of enhancing disease awareness,
diagnosis, and control rates among grassroots diabetic patients,
reducing the cost of medication for these patients, and improving
their quality of life.
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In terms of patient care, the Company published a total of 848
articles and videos on diabetes science in the public account
and video platforms, and carried out 78 live broadcasts in 2023,
benefiting more than 450,000 diabetes patients. The Company
has launched a 24-hour after-sales customer service function
on the Gan & Lee Care applet to assist patients in efficiently
and effectively solving product usage problems and in achieving
scientific blood glucose control. The Company upholds the
concept of patient-centricity and is committed to fulfilling its
mission and social responsibility, with the goal of providing more
diabetics with accessible and affordable insulin products.

As of the end of the reporting period, the domestic sales of
preparation products increased by 66.36% year-on-year. This was
driven by a 32.47% increase in basal (long-acting) insulin product
sales, with mealtime (rapid-acting) and pre-mixed insulin product
sales also increasing by 112.38% year-on-year. As a result of the
growth in domestic sales and increased revenues, the Company’s
cost of sales ratio has decreased from 63.46% in the same period
of 2022 t0 36.27% in 2023.

Steady progress in international market development

The Company’s biosimilar insulins offer patients a safe, effective,
and affordable alternative to imported reference products,
This provides patients with more options while maintaining the
quality of the drugs. The Company is committed to meeting
the therapeutic needs of patients and improving treatment
conditions for more patients through international collaboration.
The Company combines its own R&D and innovation resources
to introduce insulin products and production technologies
in emerging markets and apply them to localized production
overseas, breaking the situation where reference products
dominate the market and limit patient choice.

Despite the complexity and volatility of the current international
political situation, the Company maintains a steady strategic
pace and continues to promote the development of
international markets. We recognize that a stable and efficient
international market layout is crucial to the Company’s long-
term development. To achieve this goal, we are strengthening
our international sales team, maintaining close communication
with overseas customers, and deepening cooperation with
major international pharmaceutical companies to jointly
address market challenges. These collaborations have not only
strengthened our global presence but also provided us with
additional technology and market resources. At the same time,
we are improving our local production capacity to ensure the
launch of high-quality products that meet international market
demands.
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India is one of the Company’s key target markets in the
Asia-Pacific region due to its large population base and
high prevalence of diabetes, which represents a significant
opportunity in the diabetes drug market. India has a total
population of 1.417 billion (2022), making it the most populous
country in the world (Source: World Bank). In addition, its total
insulin market volume is approximately USD 470 million (Source:
IQVIA). According to the “IDF Diabetes Atlas 10th edition”,
India has the second-highest prevalence of diabetes in the
world in 2021, with approximately 74.2 million adults aged 20-
79 years, resulting in a prevalence rate of 8.3%. This number
is expected to increase to 125 million by 2045. In addition,
there are 39.4 million undiagnosed cases in the country, with
an undiagnosed rate as high as 53.1%. The diabetes market is
projected to have significant growth potential. In May 2023, the
Company’'s Long-acting Glargine Injection pre-filled pen was
approved for marketing in India, marking the Company’s formal
marketing license to sell such products in India. The Company
plans to continue to work with Indian customers and explore
opportunities for localized production in additional territories.

In addition to India, Indonesia has significant demographic
advantages and future market potential, with a population of
approximately 276 million (2022), making it the fourth most
populous country in the world, and a GDP per capita of USD
4,332.7 (2021) (Source: World Bank). The insulin market in
Indonesia is currently valued at approximately USD 54 million
(Source: IQVIA). According to the “IDF Diabetes Atlas 10th
edition”, Indonesia has the highest rate of undiagnosed diabetes
in the world, with approximately 19.5 million adults aged 20 to
79 years diagnosed with diabetes, resulting in a prevalence rate
of 10.8%. The Company’s collaboration with a major Indonesian
pharmaceutical company has resulted in significant progress
in the local filling and production of Long-acting Glargine
Injection pre-filled pens and rapid-acting Aspart Injection pre-
filled pens. In January 2023, these two products stood out in
the Indonesian government tender and successfully won the
order. This achievement affirms the Company’s product quality
and localized production capacity in Indonesia, as well as the
strong cooperation with major pharmaceutical companies in the
country.

In October 2023, the Company’s rapid-acting Insulin Aspart
Injection and Reusable Insulin Pen Device won the tender in the
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Kazakhstan government’s drug and medical device procurement
program. The quantity of successful bidders will meet the
demand for insulin aspart in the Kazakhstan market for the next
full year, providing a stable and high-quality treatment option
for local diabetes patients. Winning the tender will not only meet
the urgent needs of the Kazakhstan market, but also promote
the Company's business expansion in countries along the ‘Belt
and Road’, and is also an important milestone in the Company’s
internationalization strategy.

According to the “IDF Diabetes Atlas 10th edition”, approximately
33 million adults aged 20-79 years are suffering from diabetes
in Latin America by 2021, of which Brazil ranks first with 15.7
million diabetes patients, representing 47.5% of the total number
in the region, its market potential cannot be ignored. In the first
quarter of 2023, Brazil experienced an insulin shortage caused
by a lack of production capacity among foreign manufacturers.
This resulted in an urgent need for millions of rapid-acting insulin
products, causing widespread concern among Brazilian society
and the pharmaceutical industry. In response to the medication
risks faced by Brazilian patients, the Company acted swiftly and
attached great importance to the tender. The Company actively
contacted the relevant Brazilian authorities and engaged in
several rounds of in-depth communication to ensure that the
actual needs of the local community were fully understood and
addressed. After a rigorous bidding process and official technical
evaluation, the Company’s rapid-acting Insulin Aspart Injection
and Reusable Insulin Pen Device won the tender in April 2023
thanks to their excellent quality. The first batch of products
was shipped and delivered in July 2023, which not only eased
the insulin supply pressure in Brazil but also provided timely
and effective treatment options for local diabetic patients. The
Company's achievement was widely reported and praised by the
Brazilian media, enhancing its reputation and influence in the
international market. This has attracted more Latin American
countries to seek collaboration with the Company and laid a solid
foundation for expansion in the region.

During the reporting period, the Company obtained six new
regulatory approvals for its insulin products in emerging markets.
In April 2023, the Company received approval to sell its Long-
acting Insulin Glargine Injection in Bolivia, marking an important
milestone as the Company's first approval as a Marketing
Authorization Holder (MAH) for pharmaceutical products in Latin
America. Furthermore, The advancement of Insulin Glargine,
Insulin Lispro, and Insulin Aspart biosimilars into the FDA and
EMA's substantive review phase signifies a pivotal step in the
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company's internationalization journey and China's expansion
into the European and US insulin markets. With extensive
expertise in R&D, production, and commercialization of anti-
diabetic medications within China, Gan & Lee is well-positioned
to enter the European and US markets, supported by high-quality
products and cost advantages.

During the reporting period, under the strict upgrading of EU
medical device regulations, the Company's reusable pen insulin
syringes and disposable pen needles for disposable insulin pens
successfully passed the product certification under the new EU
medical device regulations, and obtained the CE (Conformity
Europe) mark, which is a kind of product safety certification
to ensure that the products placed on the European market
meet the European safety and health requirements and is also
a mandatory certification for the entry of products into the EU,
The Company is one of the first medical device manufacturers in
China to obtain the MDR certification under the new EU medical
device regulations, which is strong proof that the Company’s
products have been recognized by the EU, and it also plays an
active role in promoting the realization of the vision of “ the
global market layout”.

For a long time, the Company has been participating in various
communication activities to enhance brand awareness and
influence, including government external communication
meetings, diabetes-related academic conferences,
pharmaceutical industry business exhibitions, and other market
activities. In June 2023, the Company participated in the 83rd
Annual Scientific Sessions of the American Diabetes Association
(ADA), showcasing the Company's global brand image on the
world's largest academic stage. In addition, the Company
has participated in the China Convention on Pharmaceutical
Ingredients (CPHI China) for many consecutive years, showcasing
the Company’s international brand image and attracting
international business partners by setting up booths. In July of
the same year, the Company and its partners participated in a
local diabetes symposium at Thailand’s top-ranked domestic
public hospital to promote the launch of the Company's glargine
insulin product in Thailand. The Company also supported a local
seminar organized by a Thai customer for the launch of insulin
glargine product in Thailand.

During the reporting period, the Company obtained the
Advanced Certification for Customs Authorized Economic
Operator (AEO), the highest credit rating in the customs
credit management system. It allows enterprises to enjoy
22 preferential measures in 5 categories, and 49 joint credit
incentives for trustworthiness implemented by customs and
relevant government departments. In addition, it provides
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customs clearance facilitation measures in 52 mutually
recognized AEO countries or regions. This certification positively
contributes to enhancing the credibility of the enterprise’s
international exports, strengthening the security of the overseas
supply chain, and expanding the competitiveness of products
overseas. It not only demonstrates Gan & Lee's competitive
advantage but also recognizes the Company’s excellent
management in international trade.

The Company will continue its efforts to build the overseas
brand, expand sales channels in overseas markets, and promote
the overseas sales coverage of the Company’'s products so

BRBEEBEAUZERETHEE. 7
NENRERBERT M

that more diabetic patients around the world can enjoy insulin
products with better efficacy and affordability.

Bl HF2HRERETHLSLE
Figure 1: Global Insulin Market Share of Gan & Lee

Rapid growth is expected in the number of people with diabetes worldwide
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Acceleration of ongoing projects

In order to meet the Company’'s future development strategy
and enhance the competitiveness of the Company’s products
and technology, as well as its comprehensive research and
development production capacity, the Company accelerated the
construction of various ongoing projects during the reporting
period, to enhance the Company's development to meet the
market growth demand.

With the continuous expansion of domestic and overseas product
markets, to meet the growing demand for orders, and also to
help the Company expand overseas markets, the preparation
workshop of the Beijing headquarters passed the GMP compliance
inspection in January 2023 and is now ready for production.

In addition, the Company has invested in the construction of the
Phase | Project of Gan & Lee Shandong Linyi Production Base, as
shown in Figure 1. This project serves as the Company's second-
largest pharmaceutical production base and is an important step
in establishing the Company’'s global commercialization network.
The Company is committed to building a high-standard production
base that adheres to sound product, process, and quality standards,
and is committed to becoming the largest hypoglycemic drugs
production base in China with the most complete product range
and the highest concentration of innovative products. The Phase
| Project of Gan & Lee Shandong Linyi Production Base includes a
biologics plant, a chemical drug plant, a medical device plant, and
other supporting facilities. During the reporting period, Gan & Lee
Shandong completed the construction of ancillary facilities installed,
commissioned, and validated equipment for each production line,
and actively promoted the validation process and the product

registration of each production line according to the plan.

E2: WA &£ P & i
Figure 2: Gan & Lee Shandong Linyi Production Base
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Strengthening production quality management

“Quality First, Innovation Forever” is the Company's corporate
motto, and the Company has always been committed to
providing higher-quality medicines and better services to
diabetic patients by maintaining a corporate culture of science
and excellence. During the reporting period, the Company
has consistently prioritized quality as the foundation of
its operations. It has established a comprehensive quality
management system, continuously strengthened quality
supervision, and ensured that each production process
strictly complies with the requirements of the National Good
Manufacturing Practice (GMP). These measures have guaranteed
the quality and safety of the Company's products and provided
high-quality and reliable medicines to the majority of patients.

Strengthening the integrated production management
system across the Group

As some of the production lines of the subsidiary, Gan & Lee
Shandong, have been put into production, the Company has placed
great importance on establishing its production management system
and product quality assurance. To ensure that the production process
of Gan & Lee Shandong meets the requirements of high standards
and quality, the Company conducted a comprehensive audit of Gan &
Lee Shandong during the reporting period to assess the compliance
and effectiveness of its production management. Based on this, Gan
& Lee's headquarter, in collaboration with Gan & Lee Shandong,
has drafted production-related operating procedures that cover all
aspects of raw material procurement, production process control,
and quality inspection. These provide clear guidance and a basis
for Gan & Lee Shandong's ever-increasing production activities. At
the same time, they lay a solid foundation for the Company's overall
development and the maintenance of the brand image. Going
forward, the Company will continue to enhance the management
and support of Gan & Lee Shandong and other subsidiaries. It will
also continue to develop an integrated production management
system across the Group. Furthermore, it will actively promote
standardization of the production process across the Group and
the controllability of the entire production process. This will help the
Company create quality advantages and ensure the consistency and
stability of its products.

Strengthening employee training and quality culture
construction

In addition to enhancing the quality management system, the
Company has made significant efforts in building a quality culture,
During the reporting period, the Company organized various
activities aimed at improving employees' understanding of GMP
principles and promoting the inheritance and renewal of knowledge
and experience related to production quality within the Company.
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Through both online and offline activities, the Company increased
employees' sense of participation, creating a learning atmosphere
that combines education with entertainment. These activities have not
only enhanced employees' understanding and application abilities of
GMP knowledge in various departments, but also implemented GMP
principles throughout the Company. This has ensured that employees
can integrate theoretical knowledge with practical work, thus
providing strong assurance for the improvement of product quality.

Enhancing quality risk management and control.

To enhance the Company's capacity for quality risk management
and control, regular quality risk assessments and inspections are
conducted to identify potential quality risks in the production process.
Emergency protocols and response plans are formulated to reinforce
the institutional framework, ensuring that product quality always
remains under control. This comprehensive approach guarantees
quality assurance throughout the production process, thereby
safeguarding the production of high-quality products.

Implementing strict safety measures to reinforce the Company's
safety production

Gan & Lee consistently embraced the core principles of “Safety
first, prevention-oriented, comprehensive management” as the
foundation of its safety program. The Company’s commitment
to the “People-centric, safe development” guides its approach
to safety management. Gan & Lee upholds high standards
and rigorous requirements, continuously enhancing its safety
management system, excelling in production safety, and actively
fulfilling its social responsibility.

Continuous improvement of the standardization system.

During the reporting period, the Beijing headquarters implemented

improvements to the safety work mechanism, revised and
updated over ten safety management systems in accordance with
relevant national and local laws and regulations, and work safety
standardization. Additionally, the Company aligned its health and
safety management systems with the 1SO45001 standard, which
was also implemented in collaboration with the subsidiary, Gan
& Lee Shandong, to create a comprehensive safety production
management system and safety production operation procedures
for each position. This initiative aims to enhance the Group's safety

management system.
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Ensuring the implementation of safety responsibilities

During the reporting period, the Company implemented a new EHS
Safety Management Manuals to asign safety responsibilities for
each department in accordance with the systematic documents,
normative requirements, management regulations and other
relevant rules and regulations on production safety. These manuals
were developed in conjunction with the actual positions within the
company. These manuals clearly define safety responsibilities for
personnel at all levels and provide standards for implementing work.
They ensure the implementation of safety responsibilities at all levels
and promote the formation of “safety systematized” awareness
among staff, further strengthening the implementation of safety

responsibilities at all levels.

Strengthening the construction of safety culture

The awareness of employees regarding safety precautions is the
foundation for safe production. During the reporting period, the
Company implemented a comprehensive strategy to cultivate
a robust safety culture, prioritized the training of personnel,
elevated the management level of safety management personnel,
and emphasized the importance of raising employee awareness
and compliance with operational standards and norms for safe
production. The Company has established a three-tier safety
education system covering all employees through a combination of
online platforms and offline practices. It has also conducted a series
of fire evacuation drills and special drills on electric shock, confined
space, etc. to improve the ability of all employees when dealing with
emergencies. During the reporting period, the Company was also
awarded the honorary title of “Beijing Safety Culture Construction

Model Enterprise.”

Deepening the "full closed-loop" investigation of hidden
hazards

During the reporting period, the Company continued construction
of the dual prevention mechanism which covers the entire plant
area for risk identification and grading control. The mechanism
relies on the risk cloud platform of government departments for
risk source monitoring. The Company’s main focus is on identifying
and addressing safety hazards through self-examination and mutual
examination, in line with the “Great Investigation and Elimination
of Hidden Safety Hazards” initiative. This approach covers all levels

of personnel, positions, and operating sites, ensuring that safety
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risks are identified and eliminated in a timely manner. In addition,
the Company conducted targeted special inspections on hazardous
chemicals, electricity, fire, gas, etc. in connection with the national
production safety situation, and adopted closed-loop rectification
and review measures for safety risks, to ensure that all production
conforms to the Group's safety standards. During the reporting
period, the Company conducted daily inspections hundreds of
times, as well as dozens of special and comprehensive inspections.
By taking preventative measures beforehand and continuously
promoting the investigation of safety hazards, the responsibility for
the smooth operation of production and business, as well as the

safety of our employees’ lives, is effectively managed.

Talent development drives the implementation of strategic
initiatives

In the current business environment, characterized by intense
competition, the Company is focusing on two key strategies: the
R&D and internationalization. The Company is also emphasizing
the value of its core talent value of “result-oriented” and “value-
creating.” Additionally, the Company is working to enhance its
talent management and training system in order to achieve its
talent-driven corporate development strategy.

The Company is committed to exploring innovative ways of
practicing talent development. By formulating a series of evaluation
and incentive policies, the Company is able to retain key talents,
continuously stimulate the motivation of talents, and encourage
talents in various business areas to accept challenges and strive
to become a high-performance team. In terms of incentives, the
Company issued two consecutive stock incentive plans in 2021 and
2022, covering 742 core talents in various business areas. These
plans were designed to motivate them to maximize their support
for the Company to achieve its strategic goals and make them truly
become the masters of the Company. The Company launched its
third incentive plan in February 2024, which will inject a booster
for the construction of the core team. The “Successor Program” is
a talent echelon construction strategy that starts with the end in
mind. It is designed to enhance the level of training for middle and
senior managers, improve their strategic thinking, global vision,
corporate governance, and influence, and build a team of middle
and senior talents capable of driving the Company's development
and achieving corporate goals. It also supports the Company’s
internationalization development. As part of the succession

program, tailored courses have been developed to enhance the
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ability of middle and senior managers to provide practical solutions
in dealing with complex businesses. These courses also help them
to enhance three key competencies: advocacy vision, strategic
influence, and business sensitivity, as well as the related knowledge
and experience. Furthermore, company-level live sharing sessions
are held, during which managers from various departments their
insights on management practices, industry information, progress
on strategic goals, and so forth. This helps “successors” gain a
deeper understanding of the current state of operations and the
strategic direction of the Company, enhancing their strategic thinking

and holistic viewpoints.

The Company dedicated to continuing its efforts to attract
emerging and high-potential talents. Through precise targeting
of colleges and universities, we organize and conduct a variety
of interactions with schools to promote the deep integration
of industry, academia, and research. The objective is to export
the corporate brand and attract the attention of colleges and
universities. To achieve this, we establish long-term strategic
cooperation with colleges and universities through various
modes of collaboration, including teaching apprenticeships,
curriculum interaction, building off-campus internship bases,
joint training for master’'s degrees, open days, and more.
This allows us to share resources and leverage each other’s
strengths, while jointly cultivating the talents required for the
development of the industry. Additionally, the Company places a
strong emphasis on cultivating its core talent pool, continuously
identifying high-potential individuals with exceptional expertise
and a global perspective at universities worldwide through its
“Future Leaders Program.” This initiative aims to develop leaders
who can spearhead the Company’s international expansion.

The Company places a high value on the construction of a
positive corporate culture, and is dedicated to shaping and
promoting a culture that aligns with the Company’'s strategic
goals and values. The company disseminates its cultural values
through a series of carefully planned training, value promotion,
honor recognition, professionalism training, and other cultural
activities. These activities ensure that the corporate culture
is deeply rooted in people’s hearts and minds, to enhance
employees’ sense of identity and belonging to the corporate
culture, and to strengthen the cohesion and spirit of cooperation
among employees. Additionally, the Company flexibly adjusts and
continuously optimizes its corporate culture strategy as needed
in response to employee feedback and real-time market changes,
through diverse forms such as cultural co-creation meetings,
etc. The goal is to create a positive, healthy, harmonious, and
dynamic corporate culture environment that provides a strong
spiritual impetus and support to achieve the Company's long-
term goals.
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Situation of the industry in which the company
operated during the reporting period

Industry policy changes

In the policy context of the “14th Five-Year Plan for Medical Insurance
System with Universal Coverage” in 2023, the pharmaceutical
industry is characterized by frequently issuing various policies,
and opportunities and challenges coexist.

Centralized volume-based procurement

As of December 2023, nine batches of drugs and four batches
of high-value consumables have been organized for volume-
based procurement at the national level, and centralized drug and
consumable procurement has gradually entered normalization.
Under the guideline of “recruitment and procurement under
one roof, and linking volume and price”, the rules of centralized
procurement have been gradually perfected. In particular, more
stringent regulations have been added in terms of meeting
actual clinical needs, guaranteeing supply, deepening the credit
evaluation mechanism for procurement, etc.

The Company participated in the bidding for the sixth batch
of insulin-specific centralized procurement, the first state-
organized centralized procurement of biological products. In
June 2023, the National Healthcare Security Bureau issued
the “Circular on Further Improving the Implementation of the Agreed
Volume of State-Organized Centralized Procurement of Drugs (Insulin-
specific)”.The Circular stipulates that “in principle, the agreement
will be renewed with the agreed purchasing volume of the
previous year for the medical organization, without reducing
the purchasing volume of the selected products in Category A",
The State will continue to support the selected enterprises with
low prices in the centralized procurement and implement the
spirit of the centralized procurement contract. Additionally, the
Circular explicitly states that “medical institutions should strictly
adhere to the centralized purchasing agreement volume and
strengthen its implementation evaluation “.

In February 2024, the Office of State-Organized Joint Purchasing
of Drugs issued the “Notice on the Reporting of Purchasing
Data Related to the Scope of Varieties for Successive Purchasing
at the Expiration of the Centralized Insulin-specific Volume-based
Procurement Agreement”. The range of data reporting varieties
for the successive procurement is still limited to 6 procurement
groups, the same as the first round of centralized procurement
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(the sixth batch of centralized procurement of state-organized
medicines). The medical institutions at all levels should report
their quantities online, comparing them with the historical
purchasing quantity in 2023. In principle, the total reported
quantity of each medical institution should be at least 80%
of the purchasing amount of the previous year. The reported
quantity of Class A human insulin products selected in the
first round of centralized procurement should not be less than
40% of the purchasing amount of the product of the previous
year; the reported quantity of Class A insulin analogs products
selected in the first round of centralized procurement should
not be less than 60% of the purchasing amount of the product
of the previous year. Medical institutions must explain when the
reported volume is less than 80% of their historical procurement
volume. Additionally, medical institutions with historical
procurement volume but do not participate in the volume
reporting need to be followed. In the successive procurement
policy, the state should appropriately favor the reported volume
of Class A selected products in the first round of procurement,
as well as clearly state in the subsequent procurement opinion
draft that the pre-filled products with lower successful prices
should enjoy favorable procurement rules for low-priced
selected enterprises, such as appropriate price increase on top
of the price increase in the first round of procurement, etc.

On March 29, 2024, the Office of State-Organized Joint
Purchasing of Drugs issued the “National Centralized Procurement of
Medicines Document” (insulin-specific succession), which stipulates
that each enterprise shall complete the submission of filing
material by 10:00 a.m. on April 23, 2024, and publicize the filing
information on the same day. The procurement cycle runs from
the date of execution of the successful results to December 31,
2027.

a. The rules for being selected in the centralized procurement:

Within the same procurement group, products are classified into
three categories, A, B, and C, based on the rules for selecting and
ranking, combined with price levels. The rules for the successful
price line for each specific group are as follows:

Table 1: Rules for the successful price line for each procurement
group
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Procurement Procurement group f& #R Last price line of Price line for this policy
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number abbreviations TRZEBBEMIR  Resurrection price line % (T/%)
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The high lid £33 ' 7%
e highest valid gk R BICE = RMIE  price line of Category A
quot_ed price 57 Category B (RMB per unit)
(78/%) . Price line of Category C  (RMB per unit)
(RMB per unit) without phase-out risk
(7t/3%)
(RMB per unit)
1 BEWNARS= “REN 30.00 29.56 28.62 25.93
Mealtime human Second-generation
insulin mealtime insulin
2 Bt ABRSE “HREM 30.00 29.56 28.62 25.93
Basal human insulin Second-generation
basal insulin
3 TR AR R v 30.00 29.56 28.62 25.93
Pre-mixed human Second-generation
insulin pre-mixed insulin
4 BN BESREMNY —REN 43.20 38.42 35.55 25.93
Mealtime insulin Third-generation
analog mealtime inslin
5 Bt REMUY =HE 79.20 77.11 75.53 65.33
Basal insulin analog Third-generation
basal insulin
6 TR PR B R KM =R 43.20 38.42 35.55 25.93
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pre-mixed insulin

BEFRR: EXRATE

E,

7

SE/NSIE

FARRBEEERB AR T
BERWATEXRFNOTRNIEL,
mEMMNETMAEEZRS, B
TR RESEAL, §EEMLER
MR, SLXPEFRNBER
REXREXE), RETHERFR
Fo

MARALFRNIE LA LUEL, =
RKEBENKEAS =N, ME
BRHEREMUYNEL -, AW
- R#F=AREZEHR_-_NA
BRENHEE, BERMTFRESRER
RFEBENBEA M, THHERE
BENRGRMN=EBRE. 5FKE&E
RXHESNBLELL, RAER
M m B R PAR N R T AORAZEMN
=

Source: Public information on centralized procurement and
Company collation

This insulin succession procurement document specifies the
product price line for the selected category in each procurement
group. The selection rules have been significantly improved,
which helps enterprises develop rational quotation strategies
based on strategic planning. The price difference between
selected products in each category is narrower than in the first
procurement round, promoting orderly market competition.

The price line of second-generation insulin is consistent with
that of third-generation mealtime and pre-mixed insulin analogs
among Class A products, which will further promote the
replacement of second-generation insulin with third-generation
insulin, improving the accessibility of medicines for Chinese
diabetic patients and continuously enhance patients’ sense of
accessibility and well-being. Compared with the guide price line
of this procurement document, the successful bidding price of
five of our products is lower than the price line of Category A.
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H4: AAXHIESNIRES FrE Figure 4: Comparison between the guide price line of this
RIBRUHRENNLERCEAR procurement document and the successful bidding price of
) leading enterprises in the last centralized procurement (third-

generation mealtime insulin)
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Figure 5: Comparison between the guide price line of this
procurement document and the successful bidding price of
leading enterprises in the last centralized procurement (third-
generation pre-mixed insulin)
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Laboratories

Source: Public information on centralized procurement and
Company collation

b. Confirmation of agreed procurement volume

The procurement volume for the selected products is divided
into two steps. The first step confirms the base volume,
while the second allocates the remaining volume. The policy
encourages the upgrading and entry of enterprises into the A
category. If downgrading occurs, the proportion of the volume
of products allocated to the A category increases. If selected as
Category B or C enterprises, a certain proportion of the pending
volume allocation to the A category will be allocated. The specific
rules for implementation are as follows:

Table 2: Table for determining the agreed purchasing volume for
each product
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Non-Selected Products
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Insulin degludec, insulin glargine U300 (1.5 ml: 450 units) retention incentive of 10%, but not more than 100%.
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c. Analysis of data on centralized procurement requirements for
the first year

This successive round'’s first-year centralized procurement
demand totaled 242 million units, representing an increase of 28
million units or 13% over the procurement demand for the first
year of the last centralized procurement. The implementation
of the national insulin-specific centralized procurement
has prompted the price of insulin products in China to fall,
substantially reduced the burden of medication on patients,
promoted the successive increase in the rate of knowledge,
treatment, control, and diagnosis of diabetes in China, and
allowed more patients to be willing to choose and use insulin
products promptly, thus further expanding the insulin market
in China. The Company's first-year centralized procurement
demand accounted for 17% of the total demand, second only to
Novo Nordisk. The Company’s first-year centralized procurement
demand increased by 9% compared with the previous year.
Of which, the Company accounts for 24% of the first-year
centralized procurement demand for third-generation insulin in
this round, representing a 10% increase from the previous first-
year centralized procurement demand share.

The first-year centralized procurement demand for third-
generation insulin in this round is 168 million units, accounting
for 70% of the overall market, an increase of 36% compared with
the last round. Second-generation insulin accounted for 30% of
the first-year centralized procurement demand in this round, a
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12% decrease from the previous round. Thus, it is evident that
after the first insulin-specific centralized procurement policy was
implemented, the market share of third-generation insulin has
rapidly improved; with accelerated insulin generation upgrading,
domestic enterprises are seizing the opportunity to capture
more market share.

Gan & Lee, a leading domestic insulin company and, significantly,
a leader in third-generation insulin, actively responded to
the national policy. The Company’s multiple products were
selected as Category A in the first round of insulin centralized
procurement, reducing the burden of patients’ medication and
expanding the academic promotion efforts of third-generation
insulin in the market to seek patient benefits effectively.

Figure 6: Comparison of demand for two rounds of centralized
procurement
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Source: Public information on centralized procurement and
Company collation

The first-year centralized procurement demand for the Company
is 41.77 million units, 25.13 million units higher than the last
round, with a growth rate of 151%. Third-generation insulin
products accounted for 24% of the overall first-year centralized
procurement demand for third-generation insulin in this round,
which was 10% higher than the last round, and the quantity of all
products has reached the second in the industry, only surpassed
by Novo Nordisk.

In the last round of the centralized procurement, the Company
won bids for all products, with many of them selected as
Category A, gaining access to nearly ten thousand medical
institutions. The Company seized the opportunity to rapidly
expand the academic promotion team, deepen and refine the
management of grassroots markets, and continue to enhance
market recognition of the Company’s brand. The sales of various
products are growing rapidly, and the market share continues
to expand, laying a solid foundation for this round of centralized
procurement. All the Company’s products have grown
significantly in the first year of centralized procurement demand
for this round. The growth of mealtime and pre-mixed products
is particularly noteworthy, with growth rates of 381% and 564%,
respectively.

Figure 7: Increase in demand for Gan & Lee’s third-generation
insulin analogs in the first-year centralized procurement demand
between this round and the last round
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Source: Public information on centralized procurement and
Company collation

The Company consistently adheres to national policies,
actively participates in insulin successive procurement, and
diligently promotes all related work to ensure the efficient
implementation of centralized procurement results, provide
more comprehensive, professional, and meticulous services for
more patients, and continuously improve their quality of life.

Adjustment of the catalog of medicines covered by national
medical insurance system

On December 13, 2023, the National Health Care Security
Administration (NHSA) published the “National Drug Catalog
for Basic Medical Insurance, Employment Injury Insurance and
Maternity Insurance (2023)". The total number of drugs in the new
version of the Medical Insurance Drug Catalog has reached 3,088,
including 1,698 Western drugs, 1,390 proprietary Chinese drugs,
and 892 Chinese herbal drugs. Compared with the 2022 version,
the total number of medications in this catalog has increased by
126. One hundred forty-three off-catalog drugs participated in
the negotiation or bidding, of which 121 drugs were successfully
negotiated or bid, with a negotiation success rate of 84.6% and
an average price reduction of 61.7%, which is comparable to
that of the 2022 version in terms of both the success rate and
the rate of price reduction. The new version of the catalog was
officially implemented on January 1, 2024. The adjustment of the
National Medical Insurance Drug Catalog concerns every insured
person and is a significant event for the country’s economy and
people’s livelihood. It is the core concept of health insurance
work to let drugs return to the essence of saving lives so that
patients can have access and afford, making every penny spent
worthwhile, which is also the original intention and goal of the
adjustment of the National Medical Insurance Drug Catalog. From
the perspective of maintaining fairness in the use of medicines by
patients, improving the doctor-patient relationship, and facilitating
rational clinical treatment, the National Medical Insurance Drug
Catalog is dynamically adjusted every year while firmly grasping
the functional positioning of “guaranteeing the basics” ,and taking
the affordability of the medical insurance fund as a “bottom line”
that must be upheld, to meet the needs of the majority of insured
people. Including 126 new drugs in medical insurance means that
more patients will enjoy the benefits of medical insurance.

Outpatient pooling policy
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In 2023, the National Health Care Security Administration
(NHSA) issued the "Circular on Further Improving the Management of
Designated Retail Pharmacies Included in Outpatient Pooling’, bringing
retail pharmacies into pooled fund payments. By the principle
of "Steady advancement, gradual expansion”, eligible township
health centers, street-level health service centers, community
health service stations, village clinics, and non-public medical
institutions are encouraged to participate in designated retail
pharmacy outpatient pooling services, which is conducive to
enhancing the convenience and accessibility of medical treatment
and drug purchases for insured individuals. With the successive
introduction of outpatient chronic diseases, "dual-channel" and
outpatient pooling policies, the market opportunities for retail
pharmacies are gradually emerging. The Company's academic
promotion team has assisted retail pharmacies in carrying out
policy-oriented academic promotion and publicity work, allowing
patients to fully understand that retail pharmacies can now
provide medical insurance pooling services. The team also deeply
introduces and analyzes the professionalism and advantages of
pharmacies in a medical insurance settlement, aiming to enhance
customers' trust and recognition of retail pharmacies, further
increasing the Company's market share in the retail pharmacy
market.

Medical and health services

In May 2023, the National Health Commission and the National
Administration of Traditional Chinese Medicine issued a notice
on launching the “Comprehensive Quality Improvement Action Plan
for Medical Services (2023-2025)" The action plan aims to further
enhance quality and safety awareness across the industry over
three years, improve the quality and safety management system
and mechanisms, further strengthen the multi-governance
mechanism of medical quality and safety management involving
government supervision, institutional autonomy, industry
participation, and social supervision, to further consolidate
the foundation of medical quality and safety management,
refine, standardize, and scientific medical quality and safety
management, and to further optimize the allocation of medical
resources and service balance, enhance the diagnosis and
treatment capabilities for major diseases and the level of medical
quality and safety, as well as continuously improving people’s
satisfaction with medical services. With the fundamental purpose
of meeting the increasingly growing needs of the people for a
better life, with the theme of promoting high-quality development
of medical and health services, and with the primary focus
on improving the quality of supply, equal emphasis is given
to traditional Chinese and Western medicine, strengthening
comprehensive quality and safety management, promoting the
expansion of high-quality medical resources, and achieving
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balanced regional development, aiming to enhance people’s sense
of acquisition, happiness, and security.

In December 2023, the State issued the “Guiding Opinions on
Comprehensive Promotion of the Construction of Close-knit County-
Level Medical and Healthcare Communities”. The construction of
close-knit county-level medical and health communities aims
to integrate county-level medical institutions and grassroots
township health centers by establishing specific management
and operational mechanisms, forming a community of shared
responsibilities, management, services, and interests. It
promotes mutual support between counties and townships and
between townships and villages, driving hierarchical support
and development. Shifting from the development of individual
institutions to emphasizing the coordinated development of
all member units within the medical and health community,
it optimizes resource integration and downward allocation,
providing people with higher-level medical and health services.
The construction of close-knit county-level medical and health
communities involves systematically reshaping the county-level
medical and health system. The issuance of the guiding opinions
provides guidance and standards for the comprehensive
promotion of this work. According to the guidance opinions, by
the end of 2025, more than 90% of counties and cities should
have established close-knit county-level medical and health
communities. By the end of 2027, close-knit county-level medical
and health communities will achieve full coverage.

As chronic disease management gradually shifts to grassroots
medical institutions, the Company closely monitors the
development trends of relevant policies in the grassroots
market. It continues to strengthen the academic promotion
investment in markets such as rural areas, grassroots
healthcare institutions, retail pharmacies, etc. By enhancing
the specialization of academic promotion capabilities and fine-
tuning market management capabilities, the Company aims
to continually improve the quality of services provided to
grassroots diabetes patients and enhance market recognition of
its products.

The Company's position in the industry

The structure of the diabetes market is undergoing constant
change as new medicines have been launched in recent years.
While the current patient penetration rate for new hypoglycemic
drugs is low, they occupy a higher market share and will also
have a larger profit margin in the future. Three major categories
of domestic new drugs, DPP-4 inhibitors, SGLT-2 inhibitors,
and GLP-1 receptor agonists, entered the market late, and
are currently in a rapid development stage with huge market
potential.
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Figure 8: 2022 Global hypoglycemic drugs market structure (by
value)
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Global sales of GLP-1RA products have grown rapidly in recent
years, with an increasing number of pharmaceutical companies
developing this product. The Company was an early participant
in the development of this product and is now seeking to
differentiate its offering and demonstrate superior efficacy
in order to compete effectively in the market. In addition, the
Company is the first domestic company with a single-target
GLP-1RA to conduct head-to-head drug efficacy evaluation
with Semaglutide. Furthermore, the Company’s innovative
drug, GZR18 Injection (indications are type 2 diabetes and
obesity/overweight), is a once-weekly GLP-1RA product, with
a competitive advantage over other single-indication or once-
daily products in development. While many pharmaceutical
companies are developing this product, few have both the
commercialization capacity and mature commercialization
team necessary for success. The Company has both production
capacity for insulin products and the capacity to produce
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supporting devices. Additionally, the Company’s global academic
promotion team of over 2,000 people will facilitate the rapid
promotion of new products in the future. The Company has also
developed oral hypoglycemic drugs, including DPP-4i, SGLT-2i,
and oral GLP-1RA, and others. The Company's DPP-4i, Sitagliptin
tablet is the first oral hypoglycemic drug independently
developed by the Company, which was approved for marketing
in China in June 2022. As of the report disclosure date, the oral
GLP-1RA product, GZR18 Tablet, have completed the dosing of
the first subject in Phase | clinical trials. The successive listing of
the Company’s oral hypoglycemic drugs will further consolidate
the Company'’s industry position in diabetes treatment.

Diabetes is a chronic disease that requires long-term, intensive
treatment. Insulin is an irreplaceable end product for the
treatment of diabetes. Despite a decrease in the proportion of
insulin in the market structure has decreased, it still accounts for
the largest share and its total amount is increasing significantly.
This represents a considerable future market.

From the perspective of the EU and US markets, 90% of insulin
product sales are third-generation insulin products, making it the
world’s largest insulin sales market. As treatments for diabetes,
the Company's three primary products, Insulin Glargine Injection,
Insulin Lispro Injection, and Insulin Aspart Injection, have received
file acceptance from the US FDA and the EMA for their applications.
Under the terms of the DEVELOPMENT, COMMERCIALIZATION, AND
LICENSE AGREEMENT signed between the Company and Sandoz
AG in 2018, Sandoz is responsible for commercialization of insulin
products glargine, lispro, and aspart in specific regions including
the United States, Europe, and other key territories. Gan & Lee
Pharmaceuticals is responsible for drug development, including
clinical research, and supply. If the products are approved by the
US FDA and the EMA, the Company expects to see significant
incremental profits from the US and European markets, which is
expected to drive the Company to usher in a new round of rapid
growth.

The economic development of emerging markets and increased
consumption ability are driving insulin demand globally.
However, foreign insulin manufacturers have experienced
supply issues in recent years, while the Company has a stable
production capacity, excellent quality standards, and obvious
price advantages. As a result, overseas customers actively seek
to cooperate with the Company, and the Company is taking
advantage of the opportunity to accelerate customer expansion,
increase overseas orders, and continue to increase international
revenue growth.
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The implementation of 2022 insulin-specific centralized
procurement in China has the dual benefit of promoting the
growth of the Chinese insulin market and accelerating the
replacement of second-generation insulin with third-generation
insulin, as well as the substitution of imports with domestic
products. The Company, a national enterprise primarily
engaged in the production of third-generation insulin products,
won the bid for all products in the centralized procurement,
Many of its products were selected for Category A, which
contributed to the Company’'s new access to nearly 10,000
medical institutions. The Category A products have enable the
Company gained a significant market share in third-generation
insulin, capturing a significant portion of the volume divided
by foreign enterprises that previously held a higher market
share. The company expanded its academic promotion team
and accelerated grassroots coverage to realize the rapid volume
release of its products after centralized procurement. With the
in-depth promotion of centralized procurement and the effective
implementation of the Company’s sales strategy, the sales
volume of the Company's basal (long-acting) insulin product
grew significantly in 2023, reaching 32.47%. Mealtime (fast-
acting) and pre-mixed insulin products experienced even faster
growth, with a growth rate of 112.38%. Compared to the pre-
procurement period, the Company’s product sales volume has
doubled, and the market share has significantly increased. The
Company has basically accomplished the strategic goal for the
first round of insulin-specific centralized procurement.

In 2024, the country’s policy support for the original Category
A selected enterprises is clearly visible in the insulin-specific
centralized procurement policy. The Company will continue to
actively respond to national policies, seize the opportunity,
and actively participate in the insulin-specific centralized
procurement process in order to expand access to Gan & Lee's
third-generation insulin products for more Chinese diabetic
patients.

The Company’s expanding sales can also be attributed to its
extensive product line. In the insulin market, the Company
offers comprehensive coverage of third-generation products,
distinguishing it from other insulin sales companies. The
Company has received approval for the oral hypoglycemic
product Sitagliptin, which is expected to be available for sale
in 2024. The listing will complement the Company’s insulin
preparation product sales, contributing to the growth of the
Company’s product sales. The Company's GZR18 Injection,
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GZR4 Injection and GZR101 Injection, currently in development,
will expand the range of medication options for diabetic patients,
and enhance the Company's brand influence and market share. The
Company's GLP-1RA weekly preparation product in development for
the treatment of overweight/obesity will create new opportunities
for the Company and generate additional profits. In addition to
the Company’s extensive presence in the field of diabetes, its R&D
pipeline also encompasses eukaryotic and prokaryotic protein
engineering, oncology, cardiovascular, metabolic diseases, and other
research areas, with R&D investment ratio in recent years takes the
top position in the industry.

The Company is one of the few that produces its own diabetes
equipment, including reusable and disposable insulin pen
devices and needles, and reusable insulin pen device. In addition
to supplying relevant products to support the use of the
Company’s insulin products, it is also actively exploring business
development and cooperation opportunities to create more
profitable growth points.

Information on the business in which the Company
was engaged during the reporting period

Main business of the Company

The Company is a high-tech enterprise engaged in the R&D,
production, and sales of insulin analog APIs and preparations,
with a complete insulin R&D pipeline. As a leading high-tech
biopharmaceutical enterprise in China that has mastered
the technology of industrialized production of insulin
analog, the Company has successfully developed several of
China’s first third-generation insulin analogs independently,
making China one of the few countries in the world that can
carry out industrialized production of insulin analog. The
Company’s main products include Long-acting Insulin Glargine
Injection (Basalin®), Rapid-acting Insulin Lispro Injection
(Prandilin®), Mixed Protamine Zinc Lispro Insulin Injection (25R)
(Prandilin®25), Rapid-acting Aspart Insulin Injection (Raplin®),
Premixed Insulin Aspart 30 injection (Raplin®30), and Mixed
Protamine Human Insulin Injection (30R) (Similin®30), covering
three insulin functional segments of long-acting, fast-acting
and pre-mixed insulin. Meanwhile, the Company’s products also
cover related medical devices, including reusable pen insulin
syringes, non-reusable pen syringes, disposable pen needles
for injection pens, and disposable insulin pens, etc.,, which are
convenient for patients to use in conjunction with each other.
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The Company aims to provide complete coverage of its product
line for diabetes diagnosis and treatment. Additionally, the
Company will actively invest in research areas, such as chemical
drugs, eukaryotic and prokaryotic protein engineering, oncology,
and cardiovascular and metabolic diseases, to offer patients
high-quality drug treatment solutions.

Company business mode

Procurement model

The Purchasing Department is responsible for external
procurement by the Company’'s purchasing system. They
organize the Company’s annual purchasing plan and oversee
the completion of purchasing tasks based on monthly demand.
Additionally, they manage supplier access, evaluation, and
maintenance, identify high-quality suppliers, and continuously
optimize the supplier system. Meanwhile, to ensure production
safety and a stable supply of raw and auxiliary materials,
the Quality Management Department conducts audit and
qualification management of raw and auxiliary materials
suppliers. Upon storage of the materials, the Department carries
out strict quality inspections. For engineering and equipment
goods, final suppliers are determined through bargaining or
bidding based on the Company's procurement management
system and state regulations.

Production model

The Production Management Department oversees the
Company's commercial production planning, process
management, production scheduling, and production
organization. The Production Management Department
formulates the rolling production plan of the production plant
based on the production and marketing plan developed by
the Supply Chain Management Department. The department
combines the Make-to-Order and Make-to-Stock production
modes to meet the needs of multiple customers while ensuring
strict management of the entire production process, including
procurement of raw and auxiliary materials and product
inventory. The Quality Control Department oversees the
production process and conducts thorough inspections of
raw and auxiliary materials, intermediate products, packaged
products, and finished products to ensure their quality.
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Sales model

Domestic sales model

The Company primarily uses a sales model that combines
commercial companies and specialized academic promotion. The
Company's domestic product sales mainly follow a distribution
model, which involves the sales and distribution of drugs to
hospitals through pharmaceutical commercial companies, who
do not undertake market development and promotion functions
but only issue orders to the Company based on the demand
for drugs in hospitals or pharmacies in their distribution areas.
The Company sells medicines to cooperative pharmaceutical
commercial companies based on the annual “Distribution
Agreement” and specific orders, and the sales of medicines to
hospitals and retail terminals, as well as logistics and distribution,
are completed by each regional commercial company.

According to the characteristics of insulin analog with high
technical barriers, the domestic market is mainly promoted and
advertised by the marketing system for the Company and its
products through independent specialized academic promotion
mode, in which the promotion information includes product-
related information (indications, usage, safety, as well as
relevant academic theories and latest clinical research results),
information on the Company'’s brand, etc.

Overseas Sales Model

The Company's international sales products include insulin
APIs, insulin preparations, pen components, and other medical
devices, according to overseas countries’ policies and market
characteristics. The sales model is divided into authorized
distribution of insulin preparations and cooperation with local
enterprises in importing countries to fill APl preparations.
The Company’s authorized international distributors sell the
Company's preparation products to overseas markets under the
authorized distribution model. The Company typically uses a filling
cooperation sales model to partner with local enterprises with
strong filling capacity, complete assembly lines, and qualifications
for biological drug production, in which the Company exports APIs
and pen components. In contrast, the partner in the importing
country carries out preparation filling production, pre-filled
injection pen assembly, and local sales.
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Main performance drivers

With the in-depth implementation of the first round of insulin-
specific centralized procurement policy in the domestic market,
replacing second-generation insulin with third-generation
insulin and substituting imports with domestic products has
been accelerated. The Company continues to deepen its market
penetration efforts, accelerating expansion into grassroots
markets and maximizing the capabilities of its professional
academic promotion team. The sales of the Company's products
are growing rapidly. In the international market, customers
pay more attention to the stability of product supply and the
safety of product quality. With stable product supply, excellent
product quality, and years of brand influence, customers’ trust is
rapidly increasing, and their willingness to cooperate is further
strengthened. Overseas orders in emerging markets have
increased, and international sales revenue has doubled over the
same period of the previous year. Guided by the cost leadership
strategy, the Company has deepened the efficiency management
and cost reduction, tapped into work potential, and improved
work efficiency.

In the future, the Company will continue to practice the
development strategy and actively participate in centralized
procurement to provide better and more comprehensive
insulin services for domestic patients. Moreover, the Company
will adhere to the internationalization development strategy,
expand overseas markets, follow the national “Belt and Road”
policy, and bring Gan & Lee's high-quality and stable products
to more emerging countries. The Company will continuously
carry out efficiency management and cost reduction while
deeply practicing the cost leadership strategy. Besides, Gan &
Lee will continue to adhere to the R&D and innovation strategy,
accelerate the work of R&D projects, enrich the R&D pipeline,
optimize the product structure, broaden the cooperation mode,
and carry out the investment and commercial development
business to promote the sustainable and high-quality
development of the Company.

Analysis of core competencies during the reporting
period

Technology innovation and R&D advantages

As the first company in China to master the technology of
industrialized production of an insulin analog, Gan & Lee has
been adhering to the business motto of “Quality First, Innovation
Forever” since its establishment. The Company has successfully
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developed several third-generation insulin analogs covering the
three insulin functional segments of long-acting, fast-acting,
and pre-mixed insulin. At the same time, the company is striving
to improve the quality of diabetes treatment by developing
new medicines and services for patients. It is also engaged
in research and development of drugs for diabetes-related
endocrine and metabolic diseases, such as obesity/overweight
and lipid-lowering, with the aim of providing patients with
more effective and diverse treatment options. The Company
adheres to the principle of generic and innovative combination,
specializing in the R&D of new drugs for diabetes and related
indications while simultaneously conducting the R&D of drugs
for other indications. Meanwhile, the Company is rapidly
advancing the development of both innovative and generic
drugs and continuously expanding its R&D pipeline in chemical
drugs, eukaryotic and prokaryotic protein engineering, oncology,
cardiovascular and metabolic diseases, etc., to drive long-term
growth. Furthermore, by integrating diverse resources and
actively engaging in exchanges and cooperation at home and
abroad, the Company will enhance its R&D capabilities and inject
more vitality into our long-term sustainable development.

The Company regards R&D as the “lifeline of sustainable
development” and continuously strengthens the R&D investment
and capacity building of its drug R&D team. The establishment
of postdoctoral research stations and the joint training
of postdoctoral researchers with postdoctoral stations of
Peking University, Tsinghua University, and other key national
universities has improved the Company's academic level in
drug research. In addition, the Company has established highly
creative R&D incubation platforms, including insulin, antibody,
pharmacology-toxicology, and analysis platforms. After years of
development, the Company has established a comprehensive
R&D management system that covers the entire drug
development process from target research, preclinical research,
translational medicine research, clinical trials, and beyond. This
ensures that projects can achieve their intended outcomes.

The Company’s clinical team has spearheaded and supported
numerous R&D projects across various disciplines, including
clinical trial design, operation, registration, pharmacovigilance,
and more. It has successfully advanced numerous projects to
the clinical stage, both domestically and internationally. Take
GZR18 Injection, an investigational drug with indications of type
2 diabetes mellitus and obesity/overweight, as an example. The
project successfully entered the Phase Ib/lla clinical trial stage
and Phase Il clinical trial stage in only eight months and 12
months, respectively. The Company has driven the remarkable
progress of the project with efficient work efficiency. As of the
report disclosure date, GZR101, GZR4, GZR18 Injections, and
GZR18 Tablet are in the clinical trial stage and progressing in
an orderly manner. GLR1023 Injection projects have received
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the “Notice of Approval for Drug Clinical Trial” from the National
Medical Products Administration (NMPA). They are being
accelerated in the Phase | clinical trial.

In the first half of 2023, Gan & Lee's self-developed biosimilars,
including Insulin Glargine Injection, Insulin Lispro Injection,
and Insulin Aspart Injection, were formally accepted by the
FDA. In the latter half of 2023, the Company welcomed a pre-
approval inspection by the United States Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) for the three biosimilars, namely Insulin
Glargine, Lispro, and Aspart Injection. The Company has
received preliminary feedback from the FDA, and is currently
working on improvements based on the comments. Necessary
rectifications will be completed as soon as possible. Gan & Lee's
previous clinical comparison trials abroad demonstrated that the
three biosimilars displayed comparable PK/PD (pharmacokinetics
and pharmacodynamics) to their respective original reference
drugs, and all three biosimilars were well-tolerated in study
participants with good safety profiles. Through this submitting
for approval in the US, Gan & Lee will further bring benefits
to more diabetes patients around the world with increased
drug accessibility. Additionally, the Company's marketing
authorization applications (MAA) for Insulin Glargine Injection,
Insulin Lispro Injection, and Insulin Aspart Injection submitted
to the EMA have been formally accepted. In the first quarter
of 2024, the Company underwent pre-approval inspections by
the European Medicines Agency (EMA) for the three biosimilars,
namely Insulin Glargine, Lispro, and Aspart Injection. The
Company has received EMA's initial feedback on the inspection.
The Company is currently preparing responses to these technical
guestions and meet EMA's requirements.

The Company's professional R&D team and independent
solid innovation and R&D capability have been continuously
recognized with the “Certificate of High-tech Enterprise” since
2011. Since its establishment, the Company has consistently
improved its innovation capability. It has been widely recognized
by several authoritative institutions and experts, including
several honors and certifications obtained during the reporting
period. In January 2023, the Company was honored with
the China Pharmaceutical and Biotechnology Industry Track
Winner Award for its outstanding market share in the vertical
track, R&D investment, and other achievements. In February
2023, the Company was awarded the “National Intellectual
Property Demonstration Enterprise” honor. In March 2023, the
Company was awarded the honor of “The Sixth Governing Unit
of Beijing Pharmaceutical Industry Association”. In April 2023,
the Company was awarded the “Tongzhou District Medical
Industry Collaborative Innovation Base” title. In April 2023, the
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Company was honored to be listed in the “2022 Zhongguancun
Listed Companies’ Sci-Tech 100" rankings. In June 2023, the
Company’s continued investment in pharmaceutical R&D was
honored to be listed in the “Top 50 Biologics R&D Strength
Ranking-2023 China Biologics R&D Strength Ranking” and
the “Top 100 Comprehensive Pharmaceutical R&D Strength
Ranking-2023 China Pharmaceutical R&D Strength Ranking”.
In August 2023, the Company was honored to be listed in
the “2023 Comprehensive Competitiveness Index of China’s
Pharmaceutical Industry.” In August 2023, the Company was
honored as “2023 Forbes China’s Employer of the Year for Best
Innovation Practices.” In October 2023, the Company was listed
in the “2023 Top 100 Beijing Private Enterprises in Science and
Technology Innovation” and “Top 100 Beijing Private Enterprises
in Social Responsibility.” In December 2023, the Company was
recognized as a “National High-Tech Enterprise,” a testament
to the Company’s commitment to the “Science and Excellence”
culture insisted by the Company. In December 2023, the
Company was awarded the “Most Valuable Overseas Investment
Enterprise of the Year” for unswerving commitment to expanding
its presence in the international market. In December 2023, the
Company was awarded the “Pharmaceutical Industry Award of
Excellence” for four consecutive years.

Advantages of the layout of the whole product line

As a leading Chinese company in recombinant insulin technology,
the Company has a complete insulin R&D pipeline with five
insulin analog products and one human insulin product. These
products cover the three functional segments of long-acting,
fast-acting, and pre-mixed insulin, and the Company has the
most comprehensive product coverage in the third-generation
insulin market.

The Company’s main glucose-lowering product line has been
developing steadily and comprehensively. In addition to the
second and third-generation insulins that have already been
marketed and matured in the market, the Company is actively
laying out and advancing the fourth-generation insulin and more
cutting-edge drugs and therapies related to diabetes treatment.
Currently, the R&D projects in clinical stage include GZR18
Injection, GZR4 Injection and GZR101 Injection.

In addition to the significant insulin products mentioned above,
the Company has also laid out oral hypoglycemic drugs, such
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as DPP-4i, SGLT-2i, oral GLP-1RA, and others. The Company's
DPP-4i, Sitagliptin Tablet, is the first oral hypoglycemic drug
independently developed by the Company, which was approved
for marketing in June 2022 in China. As of the report disclosure
date, the oral GLP-1RA product, GZR18 Tablet, has completed the
dosing of the first subject in the Phase | clinical trial.

The Company's insulin delivery device product pipeline
is comprehensive, including reusable insulin pen devices,
disposable insulin pen devices and needles, and so on, which
not only effectively protects the Company's supply of insulin
preparation products and services, but also provides the
Company with a new point of growth in profits.

Table 3: Layout of the Company’s major hypoglycemic drugs and

[ device products
P2 e 72 53 K3 = o E Rk #HE 15 Y IE
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Products Progress in domestic Indications
R&D
oA i (B 20 GZR04 7+ 51 & #E R A
Fourth-generation basal (long-acting) GZR0O4 Injection ...OOO Diabetes
A TR (W R & 2R & 75 &) GZR10LF & & R A
Fourth-generation pre-mixed (dual GZR101 Injection 000000 Diabetes
insulin analog)
=R (KR KFHEHRC #2E PR 55
: : : Basalin® 000000 Diabetes
Third-generation basal (long-acting)
=REM(TL BT RC 12 PR 955
2y an . . ’ ( )~ Rapli?@ “...‘ DiaGetes
Drugs Third-generation rapid-acting (Aspart)
S = R R0 (%) ®FE R ¥ PR 55
il
ﬁﬁe—f:ﬁnﬁgﬂ Third-generation rapid-acting Prandilin® ““‘. Diabetes
preparation — (50 57 o 2 R
=RIR (L 75 R A& PR IS
Third-generation pre-mixed (Aspart Raplin®30 000000 Diabetes
30)
=R TR (A5 25) ®E RO 1 PR A
Third-generation pre-mixed (Lispro Prandilin®25 000000 Diabetes
25)
“RITER 55 J o0 000000 YERE
Second-generation pre-mixed Similin®30 Diabetes
GLP-1RA GZR18F 59 & 2RUEPR 5 . BEBE/
GZR18 Injection ...OOO BE

Type 2 diabetes
mellitus and
obesity/
overweight
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7 E1 K2 7 E3 o E W& #H E & JAE
Category 1 Category 2 Category 3 Products Progress in domestic Indications
R&D
GLP-1RA GZR18 2BV PR 7R
GZR18 Tablet 000000 Type 2
diabetes
mellitus
DPP-4i R PSP 2BIE R R
75 3 B #5157 Sitagliptin 000000 Type 2
Drugs Oral diabetes
g preparation mellitus
SGLT2i RIS 5% 000000 (EERF
Empagliflozin Type 2
diabetes
mellitus
tRBESEENR(TEEEM) FRE® 000000 /
Insulin Pen (reusable) GanleePen
ERESB(RAEEEA) A 000000 /

Insulin Pen (disposable)

2=

Medical Device

—RMEERESERX
Disposable pen needles for Reusable
insulin pens

—RMERBREAX

Disposable pen needles for

Pen components

ST E 000000 /

Injection needle

000000 /

Rt
GanleeFine®

disposable insulin pens

BRIRRERE/ R —HIR R “Hlm R =8 R EHER et}
Submission of clinical Phase | clinical Phase Il clinical Phase Ill clinical Application for Listing  Listing
application/approval

@0OO000O0 000000 008000 000000 000000 000000

92 \ HEHURMBERLQE

ATENH@EKNTHER, R/F
WAERRMEHTERZIR . BAl, QF
PRV EMBIEER S B RS,
MiteBRFERARFDTmE L
WEFRHBHRE, HHRTE
BREAT NENETREBE

LA AT MNE

REPMELLFENA LM LA
FPA, BA FLRERRREEN
A, REIRESZENRLERE
FERN, ITETRAKHE. TZRZF
WEFTI, A/FaaiTI 20k,
RIERBFFmRER 2 U R M@K
AT, AU BT QB A AR QST
B REIENE KRB BERM
BLAINRANENARNER, T
EHEAFLMEAREARERE, U
ReEAFFRNRENZESN, &
R#EO~m, KUAEFKRENE
i, UEENMBERIEERERRBR
ERBEZER. BBREAHNME,

()

The Company is actively promoting the construction of
production capacity to meet the increasing market demand. The
capacity expansion project is progressing in an orderly manner
and is on schedule to support the commercial production of
the Company’s products and help establish a full product line in
diabetes treatment.

Cost leadership advantage

The company has an experienced R&D and industrialization team
that is well-suited to the rapid industrialization of laboratory
results. With years of R&D and production experience, the
Company has built a technologically advanced and scientific
production plant and continues to optimize the process to
ensure the safety of the Company’s product quality and contro
of product costs. The Company also practices its cost-leading
strategy continuously. The Company is committed to providing
more accessible and affordable medicines for diabetic patients
around the world. It also promotes the process of domestic
industrial and technological substitution to improve the quality
and competitiveness of domestic products, replace imported
products, and achieve the goal of localization and development
This will ensure that domestic diabetic patients’ demand for
medicines is met at a reasonable price
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The Company employs a comprehensive strategy of whole-
process control, integrating cost control into all aspects of its
operating activities. It implements a robust and effective cost
control system across the entire chain, from product R&D,
material procurement, manufacturing, product sales, and after-
sales service. At the same time, the continuous improvement of
the whole chain lean control system has enhanced the adhesion
between the chains, which helps the Company to achieve its cost
reduction and efficiency goals.

Following the implementation of volume-based procurement, the
Company has consistently increased its product sales volume,
leveraging the advantages of volume-based procurement to
enhance the utilization rate of production capacity, bring about
the scale effect, dilute the production costs, and maintain and
strengthen its cost advantage. Furthermore, the Company will
take adequate measures to ensure drug quality and improve
production efficiency by expanding production scale, enhancing
production management, and optimizing resource allocation
to ensure sufficient supply for volume-based procurement.
Moreover, as production volume increases, the fixed cost per
unit will decrease, further emphasizing the resulting scale effect.
The Company will leverage its cost and scale advantages to drive
continuous investments in marketing and R&D, thereby ensuring
sustainable growth.

Internationalization strategy advantage

During the reporting period, the Company maintained
stable business relationships with numerous international
pharmaceutical companies while simultaneously expanding
its global team, making market investments, and localizing its
distribution. Additionally, the Company explored internationally
diversified markets by region and country to promote
localization. Currently, the Company's approved product
categories for overseas markets encompass various insulin
APIs, cartridge injections, pre-filled injections, reusable insulin
injection pens, disposable injection pen needles, and other
related products. Going forward, the Company’s objective is
to expand its range of diabetes treatment products globally.
The Company aspires to provide patients worldwide with an
expanded array of high-quality products and services through
multifaceted collaborations.

The internationalization strategy is a key element in the
Company’s plan to achieve its vision of “laying out the global
market.” The Company initiated its internationalization strategy
in 2005, and the current strategy is outlined below:
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Occupy the high ground of registration standards

Building on its strengths in the research and development
of biological preparations, the Company has accelerated the
advancement of R&D projects. The Company is dedicated to
promoting high-quality domestically produced medicines to the
global market, with the goal of improving the accessibility and
affordability of insulin products worldwide. This will allow the
company to stand out in international competition and further
consolidate and enhance its market position.

In December 2021, the Company’'s proposed investigational
once-weekly long-acting (GLP-TRA) GZR18 Injection was approved
for the Phase I clinical trial in the US to treat type 2 diabetes
mellitus. The first subject’s dosing was completed in March 2022.

As of the end of the reporting period, there are only two
biosimilar insulin glargine products that have been approved by
the US FDA to be interchangeable with their reference products.
Currently, no biosimilar insulins for either insulin lispro or insulin
aspart are interchangeable with their reference products in
the US. Our company, as a leading Chinese biopharmaceutical
enterprise that was among the first domestically to submit
applications for the marketing of biosimilar insulin products in
Europe and the United States, has demonstrated its potential
and strength as an industry leader. The company is committed
to promoting domestically produced high-quality medicines to
the global market, aiming to enhance the global accessibility
and affordability of insulin products. This endeavor is intended
to secure a position in the international competition, further
consolidating and enhancing the company's market position.

The Company leverages local enterprises’ advantageous
resources in emerging markets to advance the registration of
drugs and medical devices. Emerging markets are becoming
increasingly crucial for the Company’s global expansion. As of the
end of the reporting period, the Company's insulin products have
been approved in 20 overseas countries and have established
official commercial sales in 18 countries. Furthermore, the
Company has accelerated the registration process for medical
devices. The disposable insulin pen needle (GanleeFine®) is the
first product of the Company to be registered and approved by
the US FDA.

Synchronized global market development

(1) Markets in developed countries such as Europe and
America: In 2018, Gan & Lee signed a DEVELOPMENT,
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COMMERCIALIZATION, AND LICENSE AGREEMENT with Sandoz
AG. Under the terms of the agreement, Sandoz has the right to
commercialize the three biosimilar medicines upon approval in
specific regions including the United States, Europe, and other
key territories. Gan & Lee is responsible for drug development
(including clinical research) and supply. The Company is expected
to seize the European and American markets in the future due to
its years of experience in R&D, production, and sales of domestic
diabetes drugs and through superior product quality and cost
advantages.

(2) Emerging Markets: The Company has successfully introduced
its advantageous resources into the markets of emerging
countries through two significant strategies: localization
of production and operation. This has enabled the rapid
development of its international business and realized the
expansion of its international business area. In the current global
market situation, the Company's advantage of stable supply
of production capacity is more favored by the market, deeply
recognized by customers, and more customers actively seek
to cooperate with the Company. This has led to an increase in
international sales orders and accelerated revenue growth.
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Corporate development strategies and business
plans

Corporate development strategies

The Company has always taken the mission of “Providing human
beings with higher-quality medicines and services” and focuses
on the cause of human health. Adhering to the corporate motto
of “Quality First, Innovation Forever”, the Company strives to
discover the most urgent needs of patients and clinicians. With
“Science and Technology” at the core of corporate culture, the
Company strives to innovate in academics and clinical practice,
“Laying out the global market and becoming the world's top
pharmaceutical company” stands as the vision of the Company,
the Company provides high-quality diagnostic and treatment
products, as well as healthcare services, to patients worldwide.

Based on this, the Company focuses closely on four major
strategies of R&D drive, cost leadership, internationalization,
and talent highland to promote the Company’s sustainable and
healthy development.

R&D-driven strategy: The Company has always adhered to
the motto of "Quality First, Innovation Forever”, and attaches
great importance to independent R&D and innovation. With
continuous committence to the core of endogenous innovation,
the Company will increase its investment in R&D to achieve
comprehensive coverage of product lines in the field of diabetes
diagnosis and treatment, and to further enhance the Company’s
market competitiveness in the field of diabetes treatment. The
Company will invest in researching chemical drugs, eukaryotic
and prokaryotic protein engineering, oncology, cardiovascular,
and metabolic diseases, etc,,so as to provide momentum for the
Company’'s performance growth, and make every effort to build a
world-class pharmaceutical company.

Cost leadership strategy: Cost leadership strategy is the key
to maintain long-term sustainable growth of the Company’s
performance, which is considered throughout the entire chain
from product development, launch, production, and sales. It
is important to establish a scientific cost-effective assessment
mechanism to ensure the Company's cost advantage.

Internationalization Strategy: The Company is currently
experiencing significant opportunities in the international
market, and its pace of internationalization within the industry
continues to accelerate. The continuous development of the
international market promotes the Company’s economies
of scale and consolidates its cost-leading position. Guided
by the internationalization strategy, the Company has
developed a long-term global layout of R&D, manufacturing,
and commercialization to become a leading multinational
pharmaceutical enterprise.
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Talent strategy: Talent is the foundation for the Company to
achieve its strategic goals, and the introduction, cultivation
and accumulation of talent are crucial for the Company’s
long-term planning. The Company has always adhered to
the “Synchronization of self-worth and company vision” as
the cornerstone of cooperation, “Science and Technology”
as the core of corporate culture, and advocate resilient,
results-oriented talent values. Over the years, the Company
has recruited talented individuals and developed a multi-
dimensional talent training system, constantly stimulating the
potential and innovation of employees, and is committed to
cultivating composite talents and teams with international
strategic thinking. The Company remains committed to
implementing a people-oriented human resources strategy,
allowing all types of talent to showcase their abilities and
contribute to the Company's learning and development,
To achieve this goal, the Company will enhance its internal
incentive, assessment, and job rotation mechanisms to maximize
staff enthusiasm and creativity.

Business plan

In 2024, the Company will consistently adhere to the corporate
development vision, implement the development strategy, and
realize the new year's business objectives based on the core
business philosophy of “Stabilizing growth, Innovation-driven,
and Improvement focusing”.

Stabilizing growth: In 2024, the Company will continue to place
equal emphasis on both domestic and international markets,
comprehensively enhance the market share of the products in
the domestic insulin market, and accelerate the development of
the international market, so as to contribute to the synchronous
growth of the domestic and international markets. 2024
will usher in the renewal of the insulin-specific centralized
procurement contract, and the Company will accelerate the
upgrading and iterative generation of insulin products in the
domestic market with the core of the needs of the patients and
the orientation of the market demand. As for the international
market, the Company will make every effort to promote the
listing and filing process of existing product lines in key markets,
continue to deepen sales cooperation with new and existing
customers, and further strengthen the overseas sales coverage
of the Company's products.
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Innovation-driven: Broadening the R&D technology platform
on the basis of the existing mature R&D pipeline. In 2024, the
Company will adhere to independent innovation and R&D,
focusing on advancing the R&D pipeline in the field of diabetes,
such as GZR18, GZR4, etc., and committing to providing
better treatment options for diabetes patients. In addition to
continuing to cultivate in the field of diabetes treatment, the
Company will gradually explore other areas, and successively
promote the clinical filing of multiple categories, to further
broaden the R&D technology platform and product pipeline
layout, and seek clinical and commercial licensing cooperation
opportunities, so as to provide endogenous growth momentum
for sustainable development.

Improvement focusing: Strengthening strategic management,
optimizing management mechanism, and improving efficiency
and effectiveness are the keys to the Company’s long-term
development. In 2024, the Company will focus on management
institutionalization, institutionalization processing, and process
informatization to achieve efficient operation and value
enhancement of the Company. Meanwhile, the Company will
also continue to promote the Company culture of “Science,
Excellence, Pragmatism, and Conservation” in 2024, with all
departments concentrating on improvement and all systems
collaborating to help the Company achieve high-quality and
sustainable development.

Risks the Company may face

Risk of industry policy

Pharmaceutical industry is one of the key industries for
development in China, and at the same time, it is also an
industry subject to strong state regulation. With the deepening
of the reform of the national medical and health system and
the gradual improvement of the social medical security system,
China has released a number of heavyweight policies in the
pharmaceutical industry, such as the consistent evaluation
of generic drugs, the centralized procurement of medicines
and medical consumables, and the dynamic adjustment of the
medical insurance drug catalog, etc.
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The Company actively responded to the call of the State to
reduce fees for the people, and won the bid for all six products
in the centralized procurement. The Company finally obtained
the first year’s agreed purchasing volume of 35.34 million
units, reporting 16.64 million units initially and obtaining the
sub-volume of 18.70 million units. As of May 2023, the state-
organized insulin-specific volume-based procurement had been
implemented for about one year on the ground in all provinces
(autonomous regions and municipalities directly under the
central government), and in the latter half of 2023, each region
formulated and released its own renewal policy one after
another in accordance with the state’s guidance.

Countermeasures: It is important to closely monitor the
policy development trend of the pharmaceutical industry and
adjust the enterprise’s business strategy accordingly. Specific
measures are as follows: (1) Actively seek external high-quality
targets for the introduction and expansion of product lines,
in addition to independent research and development of new
drugs. (2) Refine cost and quality management to address the
downward trend in product prices resulting from insulin-specific
centralized procurement by reducing costs and improving
efficiency. (3) Accelerate the coverage of recently admitted
medical institutions in insulin-specific centralized procurement,
strengthen the propaganda of relevant policy requirements for
the implementation of insulin centralized procurement, actively
promote medical institutions and doctors’ understanding of
the Company’s products, and assist medical institutions in
completing the agreed purchase volume of the centralized
procurement on schedule. (4) Speed up the certification process
for the products in Europe and the United States to create new
opportunities for profit growth for the Company.

Risk of supply of selected products in centralized
procurement

According to the requirements of the “National Drug Centralized
Procurement Document (Insulin-Specific)”, any selected
enterprise that fails to fulfill its supply commitment, resulting in
adverse effects on clinical use or serious quality issues with the
selected product, will be added to the “Violation List”. This may
lead to cancellation of the enterprise’s declaration qualification
or selected qualification. Depending on the severity of the case,
the enterprise or insulin product concerned may be disqualified
from participating in centralized procurement for medicines in
various regions for up to two years from the date of inclusion in
the “Violation List".

The Company has secured a higher agreed purchase volume
for insulin-specific volume-based procurement. However,
international political changes and large exchange rate
fluctuations may affect the Company’'s supply of raw material
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consumables, capacity arrangements, or product quality. These
issues pose a risk to the supply of selected products in the
centralized procurement. If the Company experiences any of the
aforementioned issues, it may be at risk of being listed in the
“Violation List”, which could lead to a loss of market share and
significant fluctuations in its operating results.

Countermeasures: (1) The Company will promote the localization
of raw material consumables to cope with the instability
of international supply. (2) The Company will continue to
strengthen the promotion of production capacity upgrading
and supply security, and rationalize inventory reserves. (3)
Carrying out lean production activities, improving supply chain
resilience, and taking the supply of products won in centralized
procurement as the first priority to ensure efficient production,
quality first, and stable supply. (4) Additionally, accelerate the
construction of capacity incremental projects to enhance the
Company'’s capacity scale.

Risks of single revenue structure and technology iteration

The Company relies on its core technology and R&D strength to
focus on diabetes treatment. The Company's operating income
mainly comes from sales of insulin preparations and insulin
API. While this focus provides a significant product technology
advantage, it also poses a risk of a single revenue structure.

If innovative technologies are introduced in the field of basic
research and application transformation, it may lead to the
development and launch of innovative drugs with higher
safety and efficacy. This could potentially impact existing
listed products and significantly reduce the demand for insulin
preparations, which may have an unfavorable impact on the
Company’s operating results. Additionally, the potential of
the diabetes market abroad should not be underestimated.
Currently, the Company’s operating income is primarily derived
from domestic sales revenue, with international sales revenue
accounting for a smaller proportion. This is not conducive to the
Company's growth and expansion.

Countermeasures: (1) The Company has enhanced its R&D and
innovation capabilities and is actively researching the formation
mechanism of diabetes, drug action mechanisms, exploring new
targets, and making efforts in drug design and clinical trials. The
goal is to accelerate the development of new glucose-lowering
drugs. (2) The Company is expanding its international business
by strengthening cooperation with overseas customers and
increasing the proportion of international revenue to operating
income. (3) The Company has enhanced its collaboration with
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universities and research institutes in production, learning,
and research. It has also expanded its product pipeline to
include therapeutic drugs for various fields, including oncology,
autoimmune diseases, etc. These efforts aim to optimize the
Company’'s revenue structure, ensure the sustainability and
stability of its profitability, and enrich its product offerings.

Risk of uncertainty in innovative drug development

The development of new drugs is characterized by a lengthy
R&D cycle, high investment, and a low success rate. Each step
of the process, from preliminary research and clinical trials to
production and marketing, carries the risk of failure. Additionally,
considering the lengthy research and development cycle for new
drugs and the potential market competition for future product
launches, any failure of the Company’s newly developed drugs
to meet changing market demands or to compete in a more
challenging market environment could negatively impact the
Company's operating results and profitability sustainability.

Countermeasures: (1) The Company will on one hand combine the
current domestic clinical needs and develop MeToo new drugs
or better Me Better new drugs with similar efficacy and safety
on the basis of international new drug products. On the other
hand, leveraging the advantages of the Company's R&D platform,
gradually exploring the development of Class | new drugs. (2) The
Company will establish a scientific decision-making system. The
Company fully utilizes its expertise in drug development, timely
grasps cutting-edge technologies, ensures the scientific nature
of the project decision-making process, in order to make correct
decisions. (3) The Company conducts technical assessment and
risk control on the early stage of research and development
projects (such as track selection, R&D cycle, cost inputs and
economic benefits assessment, industry policy trends affecting
new drug benefits, iteration of new drug usage technologies,
etc.), as well as key nodes, tracking the progress of R&D projects
in a timely manner, grasping major milestones in the R&D
process, and reducing R&D risks. (4) The Company actively seeks
high-quality resources that align with its future development
strategy. It collaborates with innovative biopharmaceutical
R&D enterprises that have complementary, profitable, and
cutting-edge technological advantages, thereby enhancing the
Company's R&D capabilities, expanding product pipelines, and
continuously improving the Company's core competitiveness. (5)
The Company evaluates the input-output ratio of each segment
of R&D, outsources low-value-added R&D segments, and
makes corresponding organizational structure adjustments to
accelerate the process of launching new drugs
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SECTION V CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

—. FIRERRBR

Environmental information status

B E B RERIPE XL

Whether mechanisms related to environmental

protection have been established

REMABANFRAE (B H )

Investment in environmental protection during
the reporting period (Unit: RMB 10,000)

=
E
Yes

2,7154.18

(1).
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Note: During the reporting period, as some of the production
lines of Gan & Lee's subsidiary, Gan & Lee Shandong, were put
into operation one after another, the corresponding investment
in environmental protection facilities also increased, and
therefore the investment in environmental protection funds
during the reporting period also increased substantially as
compared with the corresponding period of the previous year.

A description of the environmental protection situation
of the Company and its principal subsidiaries that are key
emission units announced by the environmental protection
authorities

The Company incorporates environmental protection and
green development into the whole process of operation and
development, continues to uphold the concept of prioritizing
environmental protection and green development, implements
the idea of ecological civilization, strengthens comprehensive
management measures, implements the target responsibility of
pollution prevention and control, promotes clean production,
expands green vegetation, and is committed to building a green
pharmaceutical enterprise and realizing sustainable development.
During the reporting period, the Beijing headquarters of Gan
& Lee Pharmaceuticals. (hereinafter referred to as “Beijing
headquarters”) and its subsidiary, Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical
Shandong Co., operated in compliance with the laws and
regulations, and all pollutants were discharged in compliance with
the standards.

Information on pollutant discharge

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:
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a Wastewater discharge

The Beijing headquarters follows a classified collection approach,
treating high-pollutant wastewater separately and using a targeted
pretreatment process. After pretreatment, various types of
wastewater are mixed and blended before undergoing biochemical
treatment. This ensures that the effluent is discharged into the
downstream municipal wastewater treatment plant for centralized
treatment in a way that is stricter than the indirect discharge
standard. The site has one wastewater port, located at the west
boundary of the Beijing headquarters; One domestic sewage port,
located at the south boundary of the Beijing headquarters; And
four rainwater ports, located within the Beijing headquarters.
During the reporting period, the wastewater treatment station
of Beijing headquarter had high treatment efficiency and stable
operation, and there were zero incidents of wastewater exceeding
the standard, and the specific discharge situation is shown in the

table below:

FEKTRY THHEABRE HBRRE HMEE WHHRE®G® BEBRF WITHR B
Major water (mg/L) (mg/L) (t) Permitted Whether or not Standard of
pollutants Average Discharge limit Total amount discharge (t) the standard is implementation
discharge (mg/L) discharged (t) exceeded
concentration
(mg/L)r
R 2.4131 45 1.7876 5940 S R ERYEEH
QT@Q;’Q%N) No B AR Of) (DB11/307-
2013)
hERER 25.9124 500 19.0031 534.6 S "Integrated Discharge
Chemical No Standard for
Oxygen Water Pollutants”
Demand (COD) (DB11/307-2013)
b ESHERIER b Exhaust gas emissions
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The Beijing headquarters strictly adheres to national and
operational air pollution prevention regulations and standards,
adopts clean production processes, carries out leakage detection
and repair work, eliminates leakage, and reduces exhaust gas
emissions at the source. Meanwhile, the Company has improved
its end-to-end treatment process and installed multiple exhaust
gas treatment facilities. The exhaust gases are collected and
treated before being discharged through exhaust pipes that are at
least 10 meters high to meet the required standards. The Beijing
headquarters has a total of 13 exhaust gas emission outlets
located within the plant. During the reporting period, the exhaust
gas treatment facilities at the Beijing headquarters operated
stably. There were no incidents of exhaust gas exceeding the
standard. Please refer to the table below for specific emission

data:
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FEXRRSTRY FHAKORE HKRE
Major air (mg/m3) (mg/m3)
pollutants Average Emission limit
emission (mg/m3)
concentration
(mg/m3)
RELY 27.0732 30(80)
Nitrogen
Oxides (NOx)
EEMEBENY 3.0833 20
(BAINMHCERAE)
Volatile Organic
Compounds
(VOC,

characterized
by NMHC)

HBEE

WaHBEGW® BT8R AT 5
Permitted Whether or not Standard of

Total amount of emissions (t) the standard is implementation
emissions (t) exceeded
3.1383 4.9415 = CERIP KR RT5H M H
No UMD (DB11/139-
2015)
“Emission Standards for
Boiler Air Pollutants”
(DB11/139-2015)
0.0229 0.0270 = (R TBRYMEEH
No WU ) (DB11/501-
2017)

“Comprehensive
Emission Standards
for Air Pollutants”
(DB11/501-2017)

(2).
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2).

Note: New boilers built before March 31, 2017 implement the
standard limit of NOx < 80mg/m3

C Hazardous waste discharges

Beijing headquarters strictly abides by the “Law of the
People’'s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes”, formulates the
Company-level “Hazardous Waste Management System”, the
"Garbage Classification Management System”, and operating
procedures, and is equipped with specialized personnel in charge
of the management of collection, transportation, storage, etc. In
addition, the floor of the hazardous waste storage room adopts
anti-corrosion and anti-seepage measures, and the internal
deflector ditch is set up to connect with the accident pool to
meet the requirements of storage standards. While the Beijing
headquarter has done a good job in the compliant collection
and disposal of waste, it has actively implemented solid waste
reduction measures such as sludge drying, green packaging, laser
coding machine instead of inkjet printer, paperless office, recycling
of office supplies, and sharing of chemical agents. During the
reporting period, the hazardous waste of Beijing headquarters
totaled 1,599.3045 tons, all of which were entrusted to qualified
manufacturers for disposal.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:
a Wastewater discharge
Gan & Lee Shandong follows the classification of collection, clean

sewage diversion, rain and sewage diversion principle, wastewater
is first treated by the plant sewage treatment station to meet the
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discharge standards before being discharged into the city sewage
network. After that, it undergoes centralized treatment at the
Economic and Technological Development Zone's second sewage
treatment plant. During the reporting period, the wastewater
treatment station of Gan & Lee Shandong had high treatment
efficiency and stable operation, and there were zero incidents of
wastewater exceeding the standard, and the specific discharge
situation is shown in the table below:

FTEKTRY THHBRE HRRE HREE FEHRE () ZBEBF HATIR
Major water (mg/L) (mg/L) ) Permitted Whether or not Standard of
pollutants Average Discharge limit Total amount discharge (t) the standard is implementation
discharge (mg/L) discharged (t) exceeded
concentration
(mg/L)r
an 27 40 1.2906 8.55 & G5 KN T
Nitrogen No N SN
Oxides (NOX) K38 7K B AR ) (GB/
T31962-2015)
hEEEE 22 420 13.0927 180.56 & “Waterwaste Quality
Chemical No Standards for Discharge
Oxygen to Municipal Sewers ”
Demand (COD) (GB/T31962-2015)
sy 1.15 6 0.5934 2.58 £
Total No
Phosphorus
(TP)
BA 8.1 50 5.5853 21.49 £
Total Nitrogen No
(TN)
b ESHERIER b Exhaust gas emissions
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Gan & Lee Shandong strictly complies with national and local
air pollution control regulations and standards, adopts clean
production processes, and carries out environmental monitoring
on a regular basis to ensure that the exhaust gases are discharged
in compliance with the standards. At the same time, Gan & Lee
Shandong has installed several sets of waste gas treatment
facilities to strengthen the end-to-end treatment, and the waste
gas is collected and treated, and then discharged through an
exhaust pipe with a height of 15 meters and above to meet the
standards. The whole factory sets up 14 waste gas pipes, which
are located in the Shandong plant. During the reporting period,
the operation of the waste gas management facilities of Gan & Lee
Shandong was stable, with zero incidents of waste gas exceeding
the standard, and the specific emission situation is shown in the
table below:
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FTERITRY FHHBOKRE HBRE HBE8 THHKRE (G REBRF MAITIRE
Major air (mg/m?) (mg/m?) ) Permitted Whether or not the Standard of
pollutants Average Emission limit Total amount of emissions (t) standard is exceed implementation
emission (mg/m3) emissions (t)
concentration
(mg/m3)
AENH 34.5500 100 2.3862 6.656 & GRIP RS54 H
Nitrogen Oxides No HUAR ) (DB37/2374-
(NOx)
2018)
“Emission Standard of
Air Pollutants for Boiler”
(DB37/2374-2018)
ERUBNEL 36452 60 0.9346 14.45 & (B % 17 W19
NMHCRAE) No RS 6 8853 B ALK
Volatile Organic T 471k)(DB37/2801.6-
Compounds
(VOC, 2018)
characterized by “Emission Standard
NMHCQC) of Volatile Organic
Compounds
Part 6: Organic
Chemical Industry”
(DB37/2801.6-2018)
c f& b & M) HEUIB R c Hazardous waste discharges

(1).
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During the reporting period, the total amount of hazardous wastes
in Gan & Lee Shandong was 322.1025 tons, all of which were
entrusted to qualified manufacturers for disposal.

Construction and operation of pollution prevention and
control facilities

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

a Wastewater treatment facilities:

The wastewater treatment station is located in the west side
of Beijing headquarters, and divided into clean/heavy sewage
treatment system depending on the type of wastewater being
treated: @ equipment cooling water, water machine thick water,
and other clean sewage is collected separately to be pH adjusted,
and only after passing the pH test will it be discharged, the
designed treatment capacity is 1,800m3/d, and the treatment
process is as follows: collection system - pH adjustment - terminal
discharge; @fermentation wastewater, solvent wastewater, and
other types of heavy sewage is collected separately, first through
different pre-treatment processes, then water quality adjustment
into the biochemical system for treatment, and discharge after
completing the treatment and passing the testing. The designed
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treatment capacity is 800m3/d, and the treatment process is as
follows: the collection system - pre-treatment - two-stage AO
biochemical treatment - terminal discharge. The wastewater
treatment facilities were in good operating condition throughout
the year, with regular inspections and maintenance and no
operational failures.

b Exhaust gas treatment facilities:

The Beijing headquarter adopts targeted treatment processes
according to the different nature of the exhaust gases. Meanwhile,
it reduces disorganized emissions by optimizing the process,
sealing the plant, sealing the equipment, sprinkling water to
suppress dust and other measures.

(D Adopt sterilization and filtration-alkali absorption process to
treat the fermentation waste gas emitted from the production
fermentation process.

@ Activated carbon adsorption process is used to treat the
exhaust gas emitted from the QC experimental process,
sterilization process, and storage, loading and unloading of
materials in the raw material tank area.

® The oil smoke exhaust from the cafeteria is treated by
electrostatic oil smoke purifier.

@ Hydrochloric acid configuration exhaust gas is treated by
alkaline absorption process.

® Urea packing workshop exhaust gas is treated by spray
absorption process.

® The waste gas from the fermentation liquid receiving tank
is treated by alkaline liquid absorption-activated carbon
adsorption process.

@ Use of gas boilers equipped with low-NOx burners to reduce
NOx emissions. The Company carried out low-NOx renovation
of the Company's two old boilers in 2017, and new boilers were
built after April 2017 with low-NOx burners to guarantee NOXx
compliance.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:
a Wastewater treatment facilities:
Wastewater treatment station is located in the southwest of

Gan & Lee Shandong, divided into clear/heavy sewage treatment
system, @ equipment cooling water, water machine thick water,
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the last cleaning water of the process equipment and other clear
sewage is collected separately to adjust the pH test until qualified
for discharge, the designed treatment capacity is 2,000m3/d,
and the treatment process is as follows: collection system - pH
adjustment - terminal discharge; @ fermentation wastewater,
solvent wastewater and other types of heavy sewage is collected
separately, first through different pre-treatment processes,
then water quality adjustment into the biochemical system for
treatment, and discharge after completing the treatment and
passing the testing. The designed treatment capacity is 1,200m3/
d, and the treatment process is as follows: collection system -
pre-treatment - UC hydrolysis - UASB anaerobic - HBF system
(Improved A/O-flocculation and sedimentation) - coagulation and
sedimentation depth treatment - terminal discharge.

b Exhaust gas treatment facilities:

Gan & Lee Shandong adopts water washing-activated
carbon adsorption device to treat the organic waste gas of
biopharmaceutical process; hydrochloric acid and trifluoroacetic
acid preparation waste gas is treated by lye spray absorption
device; organic waste gas of chemical process is treated by
condensation - alkali washing - alkali washing - water washing -
dehumidification and drying (2-stage tandem activated carbon
adsorption / vapour desorption) - condensation device; organic
waste gas of chemical process is treated by surface cooler
cooling - alkali liquid absorption - activated carbon adsorption
device; Pilot laboratory exhaust gas is treated by alkali washing -
activated carbon adsorption device; QC laboratory is treated by
alkali washing - activated carbon adsorption device; Raw material
tank area, waste liquid tank area, distillation treatment workshop,
hazardous waste warehouse exhaust gas is treated by alkali
washing - activated carbon adsorption device; Urea recovery,
urea condensate deamination of the exhaust gas is treated by
water washing tower device; Waste water treatment system, the
fermentation exhaust gas, and fermentation and sterilization
exhaust gas are treated by alkali washing - alkali washing -bio filter
- activated carbon adsorption device; the canteen exhaust gas is
treated by oil fume purifier; among them, simplified management
is implemented for the exhaust gas discharge port of device
building and sterilization station area. The device building exhaust
gas is treated by G4 filtration - photo-oxidative catalysis -activated
carbon adsorption device; and the sterilization station exhaust
gas is treated by EO post-processing device of ethylene oxide
sterilizer; the boiler exhaust gas adopts low-NOx burner to ensure
that the NOx is qualified and meets the standard.

In addition to the implementation of the hardware construction
of environmental protection management facilities, the Company
also focuses on soft power to improve, and fully guarantee
the operation of environmental protection work. Fully staffed,
strong professionalism: the establishment of environmental
management department, full-time responsible for the operation
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of pollution control facilities, maintenance, monitoring, etc.
Sound environmental management system, perfect system:
the development of exhaust gas, wastewater, solid waste, self-
monitoring, control facilities, such as operation inspection and
a number of management systems and operating procedures,
standardize environmental protection operations. Developing
environmental protection annual budget, to protect the
environmental protection investment and ensure that the
environmental protection work is carried out smoothly.

Environmental impact assessment of construction projects and
other administrative licences for environmental protection

The Company strictly implements the national requirements
for the management of new, renovated and expanded projects,
and implements the environmental impact assessment, “Tri-
simultaneous” and environmental protection acceptance of
construction projects. The Company applies for a sewage
discharge license in accordance with the law to ensure that
sewage discharge is licensed and managed according to the
license. During the operation period, the Company submits the
annual management plan of hazardous waste on time, operates
the hazardous waste transfer joint bill, records the environmental
management account, fills in the report on the implementation
of the sewage discharge permit, discloses the environmental
management information in accordance with the law, and ensures
that all the work carried out meets the requirements of the
environmental protection policy.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

As of the reporting period, the main administrative licenses for
environmental protection are:

The insulin industrialization project of Gan & Lee passed the
completion environmental protection acceptance on July 3,
2017, acceptance document number: Environmental Protection
Verification of Tongzhou District [2017] No0.0030.

On July 27, 2020, the application was made to obtain a permit to
discharge urban sewage into the drainage network, Permit No.
Tong Pai 2020 No. 20.

Gan & Lee completed an application for a Main Industry
Discharge Permit on December 29, 2020, Permit No.
91110000102382249M001U.

Gan & Lee obtained the EIA approval for the third-phase new
production workshop project (dangerous goods warehouse) on
September 6, 2021, with the approval document number: Tong
Huan Shen [2021] No. 0027.

Completion of environmental protection acceptance of the
biological pilot research project (Boiler House) of Gan & Lee on
January 28, 2022.
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Completion of the identification of hazardous characteristics
of evaporative crystallization for the recovery of urea and
pretreatment sludge for phosphorus removal from fermentation
wastewater by Gan & Lee on June 7, 2022.

Gan & Lee passed a re-application for an emission permit on
October 20, 2022, Permit No. 91110000102382249M001U.

Gan & Lee passed the environmental protection acceptance
of the the third-phase new production workshop project
(dangerous goods warehouse) on Auguest 11, 2023.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:

As of the reporting period, the main administrative licenses for
environmental protection are:

The Phase | Project of Gan & Lee Shandong Linyi Production
Base, obtained the EIA approval on April 2, 2022, with the
approval document number: Lin Jing Kai Hang Shen Huan Zi
[2022] No. 19.

Gan & Lee Shandong obtained a discharge permit on November
14, 2022, certificate number: 91371300MA3QTLTC4A001Q.

Gan & Lee Shandong passed the re-application of the
emission permit on January 18, 2023, certificate number:
91371300MA3QTLTC4A001Q.

Gan & Lee Shandong Linyi Production Base with an annual
production capacity of 1.5 tons of biopharmaceutical GZR
raw material series project on December 4, 2023 to obtain
the approval of the environmental assessment, the approval
number: Yi Xin Xing Shen Fu Huan Zi [2023] No. 38.

Contingency plans for environmental emergencies

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

The Beijing headquarter establishes a three-tier environmental
emergency plan system in accordance with the mode of
comprehensive environmental emergency plan, special plan
and on-site disposal plan, taking into account the nature, scale
and environmental risk situation of the enterprise. Gan & Lee
signed and issued the comprehensive contingency plan for
environmental emergencies on March, 2021, which has been
reported to Tongzhou District Ecological Environment Bureau for
the record, with the record number of 110112-2021-008-L, and
set up an emergency rescue team for environmental emergencies
within the Company, establish an emergency organization and
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command system, and reserve the necessary emergency rescue
materials and equipment. The Company organizes emergency
drills and trainings every year according to the plan, and
constantly standardizes and strengthens the comprehensive
disposal capacity of the Beijing headquarters for environmental
emergencies.

In November and December 2023, Beijing headquarters
commissioned a professional third party to carry out soil
pollution hazard investigation in the plant area, identify potential
hazardous points, and set up a hazard investigation system and
implement a hazard rectification program. In addition, Beijing
headquarters set up a total of 6 groundwater monitoring wells in
the key environmental risk unit area of the plant and 1 reference
well in the upstream of the plant to carry out regular monitoring
of groundwater and soil on a regular basis to eliminate pollution
hazards.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.:

Gan & Lee Shandong signed and issued the comprehensive
contingency plan for environmental emergencies on June, 2023,
which has been reported to the Yihe New District Branch of Linyi
Ecological and Environmental Bureau for the record, with the
record number of 371361-2023-024-M.

Environmental self-monitoring programme

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:

During the reporting period, the Beijing headquarter has
completed the preparation of environmental self-monitoring
program for 2023, and entrusted a third party with inspection and
testing qualification to implement manual monitoring of waste
gas, waste water, noise at the plant boundary and groundwater
in strict accordance with the monitoring requirements of the
environmental protection department, and all pollutants have
met the standards of discharge. At the same time, automatic
wastewater monitoring equipment is installed at the total
wastewater discharge port to automatically monitor the flow
rate of discharged wastewater, Chemical Oxygen Demand
(COD), Ammonia Nitrogen (AN), and pH value that all meet the
standards, and the monitoring data are regularly reported to the
national sewage license management information platform for
public disclosure, and the trend of pollutant monitoring data is
summarized and analyzed internally to continuously improve the
Company'’s pollution prevention and control capabilities.

Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.

During the reporting period, Gan & Lee Shandong has completed
the preparation of the 2023 environmental self-monitoring
programme, in accordance with the requirements of self-
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monitoring, commissioned a third-party testing agency to regularly
monitor the wastewater, waste gas and plant noise, all the
pollutant monitoring indexes are in compliance with the emission
standards, and have been made public on the National Emission
Permit Management Information Platform. Besides, in accordance
with the regulatory requirements of the environmental protection
authorities, the total wastewater discharge outlets are equipped
with online automatic monitoring equipment.

Other environmental information that should be disclosed

On November 14, 2018, the Company passed the 1SO14001
environmental management system audit for the first time,
obtained the system certification certificate, and still maintains
the system certification. In order to achieve the expected
results and improve environmental performance, the Company
has formulated the environmental management policy of
“Implementing pollution prevention, and creating green
production”, and actively carries out daily management activities
such as identification of environmental factors and rectification
of hidden dangers, interpretation of laws and regulations, and
compliance review, etc., to control and optimize environmental
impacts arising from business activities, and continuously improve
the environmental management system.

Information that helps protect ecology, prevent pollution
and fulfill environmental responsibilities

The Company strictly abides by the requirements of national and
local laws and regulations, builds a management system based
on the law, optimizes the details of the system operation by self-
examination of the law, continuously improves and enhances
the environmental management system by optimizing the
management measures, upgrading the hardware facilities and
refining the skills of the personnel. Adheres to the concept of long-
term sustainable development, the Company endeavors to build
a resource-conserving and environmentally friendly enterprise.
The Company formulates annual environmental protection
objectives, environmental management policies, and continuously
improves environmental management measures and pollution
prevention facilities. The work of complying with the three
wastes and meeting the emission standards has been effectively
implemented: 100% of wastewater emissions meet the standard,
100% of exhaust gas emissions meet the standard, 100% of
solid wastes meet the standard of complying with the disposal
standard, and 100% of factory noise testing pass rate.
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(=) ERSEBHBRABLDEREEMRERAE () Measures and effects taken to reduce carbon emissions

BY AU 45 i R B R during the reporting period
= 5 SR EUR Bk 18 1 =
Whether carbon reduction measures are adopted Yes

BOHMZ—a Y E (R A ME)
Reduction in carbon dioxide equivalent emissions (Unit: 502.9
tonnes)

BEERER (NEABERRAE . EEF 2P ER BT

BRAAREFB T RN TmE) s e .

Type of carbon reduction measures (e.g. use of clean energy @537151*791@&*% )

to generate electricity, use of carbon reduction technologies Using photovoltaic power generation technology, etc
in production processes, development and production of new

products that contribute to carbon reduction, etc.)

B K15 B3 Details

N TE A IR A5 A T 9 OB D BB HE R The measures taken by the Company to reduce its carbon
BF R BN pE R B4R emissions during the reporting period and their effects are set

out below:

(1)l KR S B EEE R (1) Continuously promoting the renewable energy renovation
METE, R EEBRBBOLE project for photovoltaic power generation in plant areas, so that
BESEAE ., NIBSHA, A58 photovoltaic power generation replaces part of the fossil energy
YR &R AR A #832,602.51 %, power generation. During the reporting period, the Company
Wb T SRR HE B2 $9502.90 generated a total of 832,602.51 kWh of electricity through

photovoltaic power generation technology, reducing carbon
dioxide emissions by 502.9 tons.

QXABNHERBREAHTHR —E (2) Adopting automated management technology for unified
B, XUSAEREXNKERE. /& management, realizing real-time monitoring of high-energy-using
EEE.EERE. EEMESER equipment, abnormal energy consumption, energy consumption
EHBINEE, B ARERESR. deviation, energy consumption estimation and other alarming
Nk TERAESNE, FeRAA auxiliary functions, and assisting in the projection and analysis of
KRERFHA energy-using indexes and the formulation of energy-saving plans,

so as to significantly improve energy utilization.

RmEAI XERYMREREEEE (3) Strengthen the quality control of the thickness and material of
SMRRERE, ReE®RABESRA the thermal insulation layer of the Company’s factory buildings,
BE], AR SEBEL D & P LB IMNE improve the thermal insulation and heat-insulating capacity, and
BMEREE, BLRRENES, increase the thermal insulation layer on the external walls of
AT R 2 1) 0% BY B AR R 8 AR o some of the production workshops at Beijing headquarters, so

as to minimize the conduction of cold and heat sources and thus
reduce the use of energy for refrigeration and heating.

A XBWRIFBERAFNBREAR, FIA (4) Adoption of boiler room waste heat utilization technology,
REZEHAES RS 5 WmIP #HKIE M utilizing deaerator exhaust and discharge to increase heat
W, moMBRA, BORSE exchange with boiler feed water, making full use of waste heat
Mg, and reducing gas usage.
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(5) In June 2023, the Company launched the “Dumplings will
shine” Dragon Boat Festival welfare activity. The Company
adhered to the concept of sustainable development and used
recyclable canvas bags instead of disposable paper gift boxes.
The Company also set up inflatable sofas and other green items
in the welfare, calling on people to participate in more outdoor
activities and advocating a green and healthy life.

Consolidating and expanding the achievements of
poverty eradication and rural revitalization

KRR ZNIRHXIE

BENCETT
Total devotion (RMB 1,0000)

Hep: #E (A7)
Of which: Funds (RMB 1,0000)

Mz (G T)
Material conversion (RMB 10,000)

BERAHN)
Number of people benefited (people)

Poverty alleviation and rural revitalization projects

HE/NE
Quantity/Content

15 58 5% BE
Overview

3.2

0.2

& A
N/A

BHEA (WML R . Bl HER HEHERAS)
Forms of assistance (e.g. industrial poverty alleviation
employment poverty alleviation, education poverty

FAER . BHEHR
" Employment poverty alleviation

alleviation, etc.)

and education poverty alleviation
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Details

In March 2023, the Company held the spring public welfare
activity of “6S Tidying Up - Clothes Donation”, and organized the
staff to recycle and donate 123kg of old clothes to Alipay's public
welfare recycling platform. After disinfection, the recycled clothes
are mainly used for public welfare donations to help poverty
alleviation and rural revitalization. The recycling of old clothes is
equivalent to reducing 658kg of carbon dioxide emissions and
saving nearly 738 cubic meters of industrial water resources, and
avoiding the waste of resources and environmental pollution to a
great extent. Every colleague of Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. took
an active part in this activity, and to be accompanied by public
welfare and charity, and to practice sustainable development
hand in hand.

The year 2023 is crucial for consolidating and expanding the
results of poverty alleviation and rural revitalization to effectively
connect and push forward in depth. The Company responded to
the call of the party and the country by participating in the “2023
Huoxian Town's Targeted Assitance to Sumu Town in Naiman
Banner and Some Towns in Ongniud Banner, Inner Mongolia”
compassionate action, to provided all-round, deep-level, and
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multi-dimensional support and help with RMB 30,000 donations.
The Company continues to fulfill its social responsibility by
helping Ongniud Banner District complete the battle against
poverty.

In September 2023, Gan & Lee organized the “Caring for
Education, Acting Together” activity, successfully organizing
employees to recycle and donate nearly 100 extracurricular
books. The campaign aimed to improve the educational
environment in the border towns of Jilin Province, with special
attention to left-behind children. By calling on caring individuals
within the Company to donate picture books, masterpieces
and other quality literature, the activity aims to use books as
a medium to build a bridge of communication and love. The
ultimate goal is to provide more high-quality learning resources
for children living near the border. Through this act of kindness,
the activity hopes to gather strength and bring the children the
joy of reading, so that they can thrive in the sea of knowledge
This activity not only supports education but also demonstrates
corporate social responsibility by contributing to a warm and
caring society.
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FAT ROTDRERERER
SECTION VI CHANGES IN SHARES AND SHAREHOLDERS

—. BAEZTHER I Changes in share capital
(—) BHOZToERLR 0] Statement of changes in shares
1. KROEZmBERR 1. Statement of changes in shares
B B
Unit:Share
2R 2 R B R (+, ) o, RS
Before this change Increase/decrease (+, -) After this change
HE EE 51 (%) RITHE HAh it HE  BI(%)
Quantity Proportion  New shares Other Subtotal Quantity Proportion
issued (%)
— . BRE % | Shares with trading 269,880,357 47.71 28,508,550 -235,302,052 -206,793,502 63,086,855 10.62
1 BG4 limited conditions
1L.EXRFE 1. Shares held by
state
2.HBEAFF 2. Shares held by 4,256,033 0.75 4,256,033 0.72
A domestic state-
> owned legal entity
3. HAM A ZE#F 3. Shares held by 237,705,757 42.02 28,508,550 -233,333,230 -204,824,680 32,881,077 5.53
Az domestic capital
Heh: MW 3E Of which: Shares 50,234,074 8.88 -49,974,747  -49,974,747 259,327 0.04

3 n held by domestic
EBEANFE O ctate-owned

legal entity
R A B A Shares held by 187,471,683 33.14 28,508,550 -183,358,483 -154,849,933 32,621,750 5.49
s domestic natural
person
49 E R 4. Shares held by 27,918,567 4.94 1,968,822 -1,968,822 25,949,745 4.37
foreign capital
Hrh: B48E Of which: Shares 27,918,567 4.94 -1,968,822 -1,968,822 25,949,745 4.37
o held by foreign legal
AR entity
BN B R AFF Shares held by
A foreign natural
> person
— . ERE% . Floating shares 295,772,843 52.29 235,302,052 235,302,052 531,074,895 89.38
8
2x = ogn on unlimited trading
f4om @ B 19 condition
1LARME® 1. RMB ordinary 295,772,843 52.29 235,302,052 235,302,052 531,074,895 89.38
hares
B >

20 BA LW 2. Domestically listed
i) 55 B8 foreign shares

3. S L 3. Foreign shares
i) 55 B8 listed overseas

4. Hfb 4. Others

=. Bm 2% . Total number of 565,653,200 100.00 28,508,550 28,508,550 594,161,750 100.00
shares
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Statement on the changes in shares

On January 31, 2023, 1,089,349 shares of the Company'’s pre-IPO
restricted shares were listed and circulated. For details, please
refer to the “Announcement on the Listing and Circulation of Partially
Restricted Shares of the Initial Public Offering”(Announcement
No. 2023-004) published on the website of the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) on January 19, 2023 by the
Company.

On May 22, 2023, 3,359,783 shares of the Company’s pre-IPO
restricted shares were listed and circulated. For details, please
refer to the “Announcement on the Listing and Circulation of Partially
Restricted Shares of the Initial Public Offering” (Announcement No.
2023-047) published on the website of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) on May 17, 2023 by the Company.

On June 29, 2023, 230,852,920 shares of the Company's pre-IPO
restricted shares were listed and circulated. For details, please
refer to the “Announcement on the Listing and Circulation of Partially
Restricted Shares of the Initial Public Offering” (Announcement No.
2023-054) published on the website of the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) on June 22, 2023 by the Company.

On November 27, 2023, the Company completed the share
registration procedures for the issue of shares to specific parties
at China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited
(CSDC) Shanghai Branch, with a total of 28,508,550 shares
issued. For details, please refer to the “Announcement on Results
of the Issuance of Shares to Specific Recipients and Changes in Share
Capital” (Announcement No. 2023-091) published on the website
of the Shanghai Stock Exchange (www.sse.com.cn) on November
29, 2023 by the Company.
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(=) RERGOZEHER (1

Changes in shares with trading limited conditions

B B
Unit:Share
FVNRERY AFRFBERBAFEMBERYE FREERK RERRA fR IR PR &5 B H3
Number of Number of shares Increase in Number of Reasons for Release date
B 7R & W shares with released from the number of shares with restricted sales
Shareholder trading limited restricted sale restricted shares  trading limited
Name condition at the during the year  during the year condition at the
beginning of the end of the year
year
=MEHE 1,089,349 1,089,349 0 BAR Lt 2023/1/31
Shanghai Initial listing
Greenwoods
Jingqi
Investment
Center (L.P.)
GS Direct 1,968,822 1,968,822 0 Ep g 2023/5/22
Initial listing
AT 1,390,961 1,390,961 0 EF-ds 2023/5/22
Beijing tinitial listing
Kuanjie Bohua
Investment
Center(L.P)
JERST/APIN 47,494,437 47,494,437 0 Ep:8sl 2023/6/29
Beijing Xute Initial listing
Hongda
Technology
Co.,Ltd
HE4 6,223,276 6,223,276 0 BA L™ 2023/6/29
Xiru Gan Initial listing
HERm 177,135,207 177,135,207 28,508,550 ER:-#s 2023/6/29
Zhongru Gan Initial listing
28,508,550 MEBENRET 2026/11/28
Issuance of
securities
towards specific
recipients
=01 235,302,052 235,302,052 28,508,550 28,508,550 / /
Total
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—. BRARMLREFRABR Il.  Shareholders and actual controllers
(—) BREEH ()  Total number of shareholders
HERTHAETERRALSH(F) Total number of ordinary shareholders by 86,492

the end of the reporting period

FERSEEANE—BARNEBEBREARSE(F) Total number of ordinary shareholders at 83,780
the end of the previous month before the
annual report disclosure date

HERSHEARAINMEMMERKR RS2 (F)  Total number of preferred shareholders with 0
voting rights restored as of the end of the
reporting period

FERSHEZHA L—BRRKR AN E /KL R R Total number of preferred shareholders 0
REHP) with voting rights restored at the end of the

previous month before the annual report

disclosure date

(Z) BERSEHKR+RBERER. 81 () Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders and the top ten
+E2RERAE (RLERELHR circulating shareholders (or shareholders with unlimited
) HRERAR rights to sell) as at the end of the reporting period
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AR L HFERHUVROBRAT RS
ENERRTREFN, RE5HR
MEET(MFHERBIRG NG
WO T (B 5% 1 £ 3089 AR 10 A T 1 Y
ZHFDI) e MIWAE: ZREIT
TRE, RITNRINBH KD BEE
REFTERZBEIBMNARNFTBE
o RRXRTHERNDETRER
BHREHNR-RXZHE®ELEIES
REMERETRERS, WiBZE
ETBRARKER, WIREEHF
WE—ITRXZH-

AR 2. BIBRABKRARBLELFN.
Wintersweet . Hillhouse. STRONG
LINK. R IMES REIER B AR .
LIREHAHBNDHEENCETF
ERROPEBRDIYNAE: (1)
EEHRUBEENMEEZERBEATAR
PRETH AR 2SR 55%8 51
RBh, SEKUERABRED G
HEBIERIMFAITARMKDINLG.ILI%
(UTET RS EEEB T
EHEHSEKME, EEHIW
TEHEHNEEREIEICH BRI E
MYAENEMEREBENBRE
KB EMMRE, ERBRRBF.
TARDDBEETERE. FZH. M
EMXHNRIESRZILSMUNE
Ko Q) ENEK B ENHITRIE,
WK ERARELZECHEHEH
EEERFERNMZERFEKIE
HinWEGS, WESERAKES —
ERFENDZRETE KB T WA
B M PTR Uz I50% 24 F H B0
(E®, STRONG LINK A93Z &5 5 15 U
HAHPEMFTEHRUEZMN), EX
B T BYORL I N R A8 AR XY B E
WHER. QEEKMERARMTR
BROPMEBENRANFAZ 0,
IRBIBE AR PSS RZ B RIIB AN « 3= R4 .
PDEANERANF, AZEKBE
BRARBIBEHETITE,

AR 3 20224 E PR H 1% AR AR T
VWEFHREMEREFTREXAE
HATDHES, REMAIINANER
FEICTMZARI2TA . 2418 .
361 A

Notes:

Note 1: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. issued shares to specific
recipients, and as part of this process, the Company and Zhongru
Gan signed the “Conditionally Effective Share Subscription Agreement”
and the “Supplemental Agreement to Conditionally Effective Share
Subscription Agreemen”. The agreements stipulate that the shares
subscribed by the issuance targets cannot be transferred for 36
months after the offering’s closing date. The newly issued shares
will be listed and available for trading on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange's Main Board starting on the next trading day after the
restriction period ends. If there are any statutory holidays or
rest days, the restriction period will be extended to the following
trading day.

Note 2: According to the “Agreement on Extension of Share Lock-
up Period” signed by the Company's shareholders MING HUA
TECHNOLOGY, Wintersweet, Hillhouse, STRONG LINK, Zhucheng
Shunkang, and the Company’s controlling shareholder as well
as the actual controller Zhongru Gan: (1) Under the premise
that Zhongru Gan directly and indirectly holds no less than
55% of the issuer’s total current holdings, each extended lock-
up shareholder is willing to extend the lock-up of 16.91% of
the issuer’s shares (hereinafter referred to as the “underlying
shares”) held by him after the expiration of the statutory lock-
up period. Until Zhongru Gan's written notice releases the
extended lock or other circumstances of locking termination
agreed upon in the locking agreement. After the extension lock is
lifted, the above-mentioned shareholders shall still comply with
the requirements of laws, regulations, normative documents,
and business rules of the stock exchange when they reduce
their holdings of the issuer’s shares. (2) As a guarantee for
the execution of the extended lock-up, if the extended lock-
up shareholder elects to reduce his holdings of the underlying
shares that are still subject to the extended lock-up at that time
after the expiration of the statutory lock-up period, the reducing
shareholder shall pay 50% of the proceeds from each reduction
of his holdings of the underlying shares that are still subject
to the extended lock-up at that time to Zhongru Gan (among
which, the proceeds of such divestment of STRONG LINK shall
be paid by MING HUA TECHNOLOGY to Zhongru Gan), and the
divestment in such circumstances shall not constitute a breach
of the lock-up agreement. (3) The shareholders’ rights enjoyed by
the extended locked-in shareholders in respect of the underlying
shares shall not be affected, and the shareholders’ rights such
as the right to know, the right to vote, and the right to dividend
corresponding to the underlying shares shall be independently
owned and exercised by each extended locked-in shareholder.

Note 3: Restricted shares granted under the FY2022 Restricted
Stock Incentive Plan will be unlocked in batches according to
relevant regulations. The restriction periods are 12, 24, and
36 months from the date of grant registration completion,
respectively.
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S KRR EREMESIATK Il Controlling shareholders and the actual controller
p

(—) FREARBR () Controlling shareholders

1. HAA 1. Natural person

e HEm Zhongru Gan

Name

= £5 FE China

Nationality

EENEEMERI KX EEN & No

Whether to obtain the right of residence in other countries or

regions

FERWRRS BHFEAURMBERRADESEK Chairman of Gan & Lee

Main occupation and position Pharmaceutical.

2. ATEESERBHEZENSENEE 2. Block diagram of the property rights and control relationship
HIXRMAIE between the Company and the controlling shareholder

HEm

Zhongru Gan

34.61%

HEAIRNHBRAF

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

(Z) EfFEHABER () The actual controller

1. HBHAA 1. Natural person

EE HEm Zhongru Gan
Name

[E %5 FE China
Nationality

EERSHEMER MK E BN = No
Whether to obtain the right of residence in other countries or

regions

FERIRERS HEAHURHERRATDESEK Chairman of Gan & Lee
Main occupation and position Pharmaceutical.
SBEIVFEGERNBERNIETRTER T None

Domestic and overseas listed companies held in the past 10 years
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2. NaAEERRRERFAEZENENNRE 2. Block diagram of the property rights and control relationship
HIXRMNHIE between the Company and the controlling shareholder

H B
Zhongru Gan

 65.02%

IERBERERRBRAF

34.61% E Beijing Xute Hongda Technology Co.,Ltd

£ 7.99%

HEARIDERAT
Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
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o

Audit Report

To all shareholders of Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.:
Audit opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. (referred to as "Gan & Lee" or the
"Company"), which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position and parent Company statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2023, and the consolidated income
statement and income statement of the parent Company,
consolidated cash flow statement and cash flow statement of
the parent Company, and consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders' equity and statement of changes in shareholders'
equity of the parent Company, and the notes to the financial
statements in 2023.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
attached below give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Company and the parent Company
as at December 31, 2023, and of the consolidated financial
performance and cash flows of the Company and the parent
Company in 2023 in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises.

Basis For Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing
Standards for Certified Public Accountants of China. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements" of the audit report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Certified Public Accountants
of China's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.



FNBETIENEFEAHITRE S
ABHYRBEITED

1.

2.

WX IA

&> H B R E

L @A RN B

EBUET: o

HEOLTBENERIEZLXMUYEREHES
ROESIFIB A . £ MEE, 2023
FEAHVSHREFELBANARD
260,803.705 7w, HFEWRANZHZF
Bl xBUWSIEIRz—, JRFEERE
BB A5 EBI NN LR R E B
MBI EB X o HIE, FHATRK W
NBINRBI KB EITE I

B it R X

FHATTF WAL EN EE R T2
FatE:

(0

)

3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

TR, OFEOULERRS Y
N AR 5 60 56 5P B ) 6038
PHAETE

ERERAREZEDN. HE
G, RSB RERNES
BXHEREFRSFMH, M
BWABIUNNREEFERLRIT
MM E ;

WEWWANREMNKIZAE.
FamELRBREREDTERF,
RIBEEETEARARE KD,
AERKHREA;

e BUAF A5 X A #E B Ak W A 01T 48
TR, BIAELIRANNESS M
UKk BEICREGHVEIE;

NEBEFALERIEREF, WIE
AEAHE ST RERRIR
HINE LN E R IEM TR ;

WRFERAREBEHIANEL
WO\ SE B A LB O, R E L
WANBEEBLEEFHIN;

(

Annual Report 2023

We determined that the following matters are the key audit
matters that need to be discussed in the audit report.

1. Revenue recognition

2. Impairment of development expenditures

Revenue recognition matters

Description of the matter

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. is mainly engaged in the R&D,
production and sales of insulin analogue APIs and preparations.
The operating income in the 2023 consolidated financial
statements is 2,608.04 million. As operating income is one of Gan
& Lee's key performance indicators, there may be an inherent
risk that management may achieve specific goals or expectations
through inappropriate revenue recognition. Therefore, we have
identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Significant audit procedures we performed for revenue
recognition include:

(1

Learn, evaluate and test the design and operational
effectiveness of management's key internal controls related to
revenue recognition.

Select samples to check distribution agreements and sales
contracts, identify contract terms and conditions related to the
transfer of control over commodities, and evaluate whether the
timing of revenue recognition complies with the provisions of
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

Implement substantive analysis procedures on operating
income and gross profit margin by month and product, identify
whether there are significant or abnormal fluctuations, and find
out the reasons for the fluctuations.

Select a sample to perform a detailed test on the operating
income of the current period to confirm the authenticity of the
operating income and whether it is recorded in an appropriate
period.

Carry out confirmation procedures for important customers,
inquire about the current sales amount and current account
balance, and confirm the authenticity and integrity of operating
income.

Carry out a cut-off test on the operating income recognized
around the balance sheet date, and evaluate whether the
operating income is recognized in an appropriate period.
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(1)

(7) Examine whether information relating to operating income has
been properly presented and disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

Based on the audit work performed, we believe that the
assumptions and methods adopted by the management in the
revenue recognition are acceptable, the management's overall
assessment on the revenue recognition is acceptable, and the
management's accounting estimates and judgments regarding
the revenue recognition are reasonable.

Impairment of development expenditures

Description of the matter

As of December 31, 2023, the carrying value of development
expenditure in the consolidated financial statements is RMB
813.11 million According to the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises, for development expenditures that have
not yet reached a usable status but have been capitalized,
since their values are usually subject to greater uncertainty, the
management shall conduct impairment tests at least annually.
In the impairment tests, the Company estimates the recoverable
amount of development expenditures based on each individual
development expenditure or the asset group to which it belongs.
The recoverable amount of development expenditures shall
be determined according to the higher of the present value of
the estimated future cash flows generated by the development
expenditures and the net amount of the fair value of the assets
minus the disposal expenses. The impairment testing process of
development expenditures involves key accounting judgments
and estimates. Accordingly, we identified the impairment of
development expenditure as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We have performed the following key audit procedures for
impairment of development expenditures:

m Learn, evaluate and test the management's internal control on
the impairment of development expenditures, including the
control on identification of impairment signs and measurement
of impairment provisions.

(2) Evaluate the assumptions and methods adopted by the
management, especially on the reasonableness of the discount
rate and cash flow growth rate used in cash flow forecast of
individual development expenditure or its asset group.

(3) Evaluate the reasonableness of future incomes and operating
results in cash flow forecast by comparing the historical
performance of cash flow generated by the relevant individual
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development expenditure or its asset group, and the
corresponding product sales plan.

(4) Check whether information related to development expenditure
has been properly presented and disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements.

Based on the audit work performed, we believe that the
assumptions and methods adopted by the management in
the impairment of development expenditures are acceptable,
the management's overall assessment on the impairment of
development expenditures is acceptable, and the management's
accounting estimates and judgments regarding the impairment of
development expenditures are reasonable.

Other Information

The management of the Company is responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2023 annual report of the Company, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of the management and those
charged with governance for the financial statements

The management of Gan & Lee is responsible for preparing the
financial statements that give a fair view in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, and designing,
implementing and maintaining the internal control that is
necessary to enable the financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

While preparing the financial statements, the management is
responsible for assessing the ability of Gan & Lee to continue as
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a going concern, disclosure of matters regarding going concern,
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
management either intend to liquidate Gan & Lee or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Company's reporting process.

CPA's responsibility for financial statement audits

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high-level assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with China's auditing
standards will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered incorrect. If reasonable expectation of misstatements
individually or in aggregate, could affect the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements, then the
misstatement is generally considered material.

As part of an audit in accordance with CSA (Chinese Standards
on Auditing), we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also perform
the following:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

2. Learn internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
appropriate audit procedures.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the management

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use
of the going concern basis of accounting, and based on the
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audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on Gan & Lee's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements. If such disclosures are inadequate,
we are required to express a qualified opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause Gan & Lee to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
Gan & Lee to express an auditors'opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our auditors' opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identified during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and related precautions (if
applicable).

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the
current period, and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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Consolidated balance sheet
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2023%12831H
31 December, 2023
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Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
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Current Assets:

Cash and Cash equivalents

Financial assets held for

trading

Accounts receivable
Financing receivables
Prepayments

Other receivables
Inventories

Current portion of non-

current assets

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current Assets:

Debt investment

Other non-current financial

assets

Fixed assets

Construction in progress
Right-of-use assets
Intangible assets
Development expenditures

Long-term prepaid

expenses

Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets

Total assets

M o

Notes

o N o U~ W

10
1

12
13
14
15

16

17
18

Bt MAARD
Unit: RMB

2022%12H31H
31 December, 2022

2,890,266,792.18
1,635,949,901.34

176,251,160.43
13,316,425.56
45,978,647.53
5,888,971.68
648,645,609.14
201,358,630.13

46,480,151.30
5,664,136,289.29

30,000,000.00

1,646,528,285.07
2,002,728,242.12
12,080,372.03
293,480,707.13
732,562,121.88
10,632,701.96

138,250,375.69
76,513,284.89
4,942,776,090.77
10,606,912,380.06
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Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

BHEFAGRR (B)

hp=3
I
=] Item Notes
ol fi i Current Liabilities
VARELEA Accounts payable 20
F U R I Accounts received in advance 27
& [ A= Contract liabilities 22
[ <3 BR T 37 BM Payroll and employee benefits 23
payable
7 22 i 2% Taxes payable 24
H i 7 1 3R Other payables 25
—FE W E BBV IE R h A R Current portion of non- 26
current liabilities
H At 5 71 1 Other current liabilities 27
mEh R E it Total current liabilities
EmEhfaf: Non-current Liabilities:
LizRe gl b Lease liabilities 28
BN EIVARER Long-term payables 29
& T N Deferred income 30
B I P B A5 Deferred tax liabilities
ERD ARSI Total non-current liabilities
A& It Total liabilities
FrEENE (HRANG) : Owners' (or Shareholders’)
Equity:
U A (3K R A Paid-in capital (or share 31
capital)
BAERRR Capital reserve 32
B ETFER Less: Treasury share 33
Hi 4R & W @ Other comprehensive income 34
BRAR Surplus reserve 35
RO EFE Retained earnings 36
PHEFBREIMEE N @ Equity attributable to owners
(B AN 38) & 3t of the parent
DI ARN @ Non-controlling interests
FiE &N am (3R R &) Total owners’ (or
&3t shareholders’) equity
ERFFR A E N (KR AR Total Liabilities and Shareholders’
) 2 it Equity
NSRS RS TESITIERE A NEE
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun
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Consolidated balance sheet (Continued)

2022%12H831H
31 December, 2022

44,692,994.55
603,555.70
68,125,067.69
142,022,574.85

14,413,032.33
534,680,233.19
7,563,363.97

936,179.18
813,037,001.46

8,327,140.36
12,274,100.29
187,634,504.08

208,235,744.73
1,021,272,746.19

565,653,200.00

2,563,002,386.27
71,364,020.00

3,442,128.87

291,531,843.96
6,233,536,610.40
9,585,802,149.50

-162,515.63
9,585,639,633.87

10,606,912,380.06

SRR A =]
Head of accounting .
department: Li Zhou
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BRBAEFARR Balance sheet of the parent company

20234128318
31 December, 2023

B HFTHIWERNHBERAS Bt mHARD

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. Unit: RMB
B E 2022%12H31H
e ltem Notes 31 December, 2022
MO E = Current Assets:
BhRE Cash and cash equivalents 2,799,824,725.51
R E R A Financial assets held for 1,635,949,901.34
trading
7 U T R Accounts receivable 177,294,215.46
I U 3R T B R Financing receivables 13,316,425.56
F0AS 7RI Prepayments 32,559,614.28
H fith i U #x Other receivables 1,940,495,809.17
A Inventories 593,262,944.51
— EREEAWNIERD R Current portion of non- 201,358,630.13
current assets
Htmoh &~ Other current assets 45,443,330.46
MR~ &It Total current assets 7,439,505,596.42
ERDEF: Non-Current Assets:
G Debt investments
KEARINE & Long-term equity 641,874,046.83
investments
HMIERh A~ Other non-current financial 30,000,000.00
assets
& E & Fixed assets 1,449,632,008.01
TREIR Construction in progress 315,540,173.66
£ B E = Right-of-use assets 154,121.03
THA~ Intangible assets 165,333,219.53
FRZ Development expenditures 722,571,603.15
BIEFTR R A Deferred tax assets 58,470,017.32
HMIEmoh A~ Other non-current assets 31,949,815.10
ERBAFHIT Total non-current assets 3,415,525,004.63
KRt Total assets 10,855,030,601.05
o fh e Current Liabilities:
IVENRLEN Accounts payable 24,973,731.12
& B RAf Contract liabilities 67,557,641.69
R 45 BR T 5 B Payroll and employee 129,061,774.73
benefits payable
Y 32 #5728 Taxes payable 7,558,432.89
HAth 57 13 Other payables 315,703,332.67

—F AR E A IR B R

HAth 7% 5 2 (5=

mEN RS it

Current portion of non-
current liabilities

Other current liabilities

Total Current Liabilities

1,298,278.32

916,461.40
547,069,652.82
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BREZEEAGRKR (& Balance sheet of the parent company (Continued)
B E 2022412831H

= Item Notes 31 December, 2022
e A fiR Non-current Liabilities:

FHE AR Lease liability

INEEIVASEN Long-term payable 7,904,292.95

3B 3E UK & Deferred income 53,687,371.51

AL AT A Deferred tax liabilities

FERBIAGREIT Total non-current liabilities 61,591,664.46

R E It Total liabilities 608,661,317.28
FrEENE (HRAENG) : Owners' (or Shareholders’)

Equity:
2 U R AN (3K AR AN Paid-in capital (or share 565,653,200.00
capital)

BAERNTR Capital reserve 2,563,001,626.10

B EER Less: Treasury shares 71,364,020.00

BENATR Surplus reserve 291,531,843.96

RO EFE Retained earnings 6,897,546,633.71

FrEEN G (SR AN ) Total owners’ (or 10,246,369,283.77
&3t shareholders’) equity
ERMETEENE (R KRN Total Liabilities and 10,855,030,601.05
%) =it Shareholders’ Equity
NEIATRA: BB BRI ERIEA: hiE SIFHE AR A T

Ve ; . Head of accounting .

Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun department: Li Zhou
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SHAER Consolidated income statement

2023%F1-128
From January to December 2023

FHRUHFHULRNDBERELRT

Bt mHARD

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. Unit: RMB
ip=a 2022F E
I
nE tem Notes 2022
— Bl EKA I. Total Operating Revenue 1,712,270,496.85
He: gl A Including: Operating revenue 37 1,712,270,496.85
Z.BlkREE Il. Operating cost 2,228,869,369.17
Hep: Bl A Including: Operating cost 37 405,803,824.65
5t & T2 Bff A0 Taxes and surcharges 38 20,954,253.84
HEEHA Selling expenses 39 1,086,546,460.67
EEZEA General and 40 247,389,398.20
administrative expenses
& & R&D expenses 41 562,469,155.04
52 A Financial expenses 42 -94,293,723.23
mn: EU Add: Other income 43 46,618,045.20
BHEWE GRELL Income from 44 87,566,857.88
= | investments (loss expressed
S5 with ")
NaAMET S (R Income from changes in 45 -80,655,151.19
K ple_” 2 F)) fair value (loss expressed with
n_n)
ERRBER K (GR%ELL Credit impairment 46 -27,246,137.30
«_veiEE) losses (loss expressed with
"
AFEBERK GRKLL Asset impairment losses 47 -79,043,365.13
«_veiEE|) (loss expressed with "-")
A BEWE R Income from disposal 48 485,848.90
«_veiEE|) of assets (loss expressed with
"
=. BUFMBEGHELL—"5 |l Operating profit (loss -568,872,773.96
1 51) expressed with "-")
m: g s N Add: Non-operating revenue 49 2,942,387.32
B BN H Less: Non-operating 50 16,542,568.16
expenses
AR (SR B IV. Total Profit (loss expressed -582,472,954.80
“__» %tﬁ§u) W|th |v7n)
B PS8 A 2% A Less: Income tax expense 51 -142,956,574.44

h.AMBGRSRLTS
=)
(DEZEFREDE

LEREESFE (SR
=" S 5)

V. Net profit (net loss
expressed with "-")

(I) Classification by business
continuity

1. Net profit from continuing
operations (loss expressed
with "=")

-439,516,380.36

-439,516,380.36
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aHFER &)

Consolidated income statement (Continued)

o
(D) EEAmERAR D %
LABTHRBRANA
Ao O ML =" S8 )

208 B AR m (FSIRLU
" SIET)
AL HMEEWRENRER
#

(DHAEBRBMEER
Hih & W B i 2 % 3

1. TRREDLHMENE
RS =l

2. BEHEHIAEN E A
Ga i

®) SIS REFTEEDR

(DPABFLHERARNE
iR & Wr at B9 AR /2 0% B

t. GERELH|

(DRABTHREMEE
BH&aE W S

M o

Notes

20225 E

ltem 2022

(1) Classification by ownership

1. Net profits attributable to
shareholders of the parent (net loss
expressed with "-")

-439,516,357.48

2. Minority profits and losses (net -22.88

loss expressed with "-")

VI. Net amount after tax of other 6,882,165.06

comprehensive income

(1) Net amount after tax of other 6,882,165.06
comprehensive income attributable

to owners of the parent Company

1. Other comprehensive income
that cannot be reclassified into
profits/losses

2.0ther comprehensive income
to be reclassified into gains/losses

6,882,165.06

(6) Exchange differences from 6,882,165.06
translation of foreign currency

financial statements

(I) Net amount after tax of other
comprehensive income attributable
to minority shareholders

VII. Total Comprehensive Income -432,634,215.30

(I) Total comprehensive income -432,634,192.42
attributable to owners of the parent

Company

(D)EABTFTLHBRANS (1) Total comprehensive -22.88
Al 2 24 income attributable to minority
& 5 A shareholders
N, BRME: VIII. Earnings Per Share:
(D ExsRWHEGT/R) (1) Basic earnings per share (RMB -0.78
per share)
(DERBEERWE(T/ER) (Il) Diluted earnings per share -0.78
(RMB per share)
KEEER—EGI TR EHN, # As for business merger under the same control in the current
EHAEESHAXMAEFER: 0 period, the net profit generated by the merged party before the
7C, LEAREH AR AFD A merge was RMB 0, and that generated during the previous period
07T o was RMB 0.
NEATRAN: B2 TELHIERE A NFE S mAR A AW
o . . Head of accounting .
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun department: Li Zhou
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FREFER Income statement of the parent company

20231128
From January to December 2023

WA B EFHIWERNERLST B MHART

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. Unit: RMB
Pz 2022 E
10

U§S| Item Notes 2022
— . Bl I. Operating Revenue 1,637,032,469.12
=A% Less: Operating cost 358,176,673.48
& KM m Taxes and surcharges 16,941,862.89
fHE A Selling expenses 1,036,189,458.07
BEZEH General and 154,125,916.75

administrative expenses
ot & 2% R&D expense 479,418,747.21
1 %% 2% A Financial expense -143,552,371.60
m: BEAa U Add: Other income 42,146,057.00
BRI (&L Investment income 87,566,857.88

=41 5)) (loss expressed with "-")
NANETHR G (7 Income from changes -80,655,151.19

N in fair value (loss expressed
ESO SIET) with ")

FERBER K ERKLU Credit impairment -6,912,294.44
“_reiEE) losses (loss expressed with
"
EFERERK (BELL Assets impairment -59,512,954.52
“» 2 g losses (loss expressed with
n_n)
BB W (KL Income from disposal
“_roiEE) of assets (loss expressed with
)
Z.EBLFBEGEHU“—"S |. Operating profit (loss -281,635,302.95
1 5) expressed with "-")
=R NN Add: Non-operating revenue 2,053,769.47
BBl Less: Non-operating 16,449,373.94
expenses
=, MEEBFM(S MBS LL L Total profit (Total loss -296,030,907.42
‘245 expressed with "-")

B P AS A 2% A Less: Income tax expense -94,004,881.61
CEFECESHRU—"S V. Net profit (Net loss -202,026,025.81
1 5) expressed with "-")

(O Fagg2MNE RS (1) Net profit from -202,026,025.81
N | continuing operations (Net
BRI =" S 15) loss expressed with "-")

A, HhZEWENHESE V. Net amount after tax of
£l other comprehensive income
N EEREBE VI. Total comprehensive -202,026,025.81
income
NSRS H&Ra FERITIMEATA: by I AE A Y=
o . . Head of accounting .
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun department: Li Zhou
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BHRERER

2023%1-128

Consolidated cash flow statement

From January to December 2023

RHEBAEFTHIWERNERALFT

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.
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Iltem

I. Cash flows from operating
activities:

Cash received from the sale
of goods and the rendering of
services

Receipts of tax refund

Other cash receipts in
relation to operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows
from operating activities

Cash paid for purchase of
goods and services

Cash paid to and for
employees

Cash paid for taxes

Cash paid relating to other
operating activities

Subtotal of cash outflows
from operating activities

Net cash flow from
operating activities

II. Cash flows from investing
activities:

Cash received from disposal
of investment

Cash received from
investment income

Net proceeds from disposal
of fixed assets, intangible
assets, and other long-term
assets

Cash received relating to
other investing activities

Subtotal of cash inflows
from investing activities

Cash paid for purchase and
construction of fixed assets,
intangible assets, and other
long-term assets

Cash paid for investment

Cash paid relating to other
investing activities

Subtotal of cash outflows
from investment activities

Net cash flow from investing
activities

M oE

Notes

BT mHARD
Unit: RMB
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2022 E
2022

2,473,969,224.05

121,434,393.12
102,088,669.33

2,697,492,286.50

553,659,303.48

676,741,608.39

237,684,128.63
932,725,554.62

2,400,810,595.12

296,681,691.38

4,621,037,214.89

182,224,131.72

60,422.48

33,264,600.48

4,836,586,369.57

983,444,233.51

4,294,988,000.00
600,000.00

5,279,032,233.51

-442,445,863.94




BHIAERER (B Consolidated cash flow statement (Continued)
b £
=
Bg=| Item Notes
= EREMFENMER NI Cash flows from financing
2 activities:
IR Uy 1% 25 W B B 3 & Cash received from
absorbing investment
FERGoHIME |NDIT Subtotal of cash inflows
from financing activities
D ECREF] « FIE = AT A Cash paid for dividend and
4 T profit distribution or interest
BN E payment
XHHEHMEEREDE X Other cash payments
I % related to financing activities
FERGHIME ME NIt Subtotal of cash outflows
from financing activities
ERFoIEENIERE Net cash flow from financing
= activities
CLCETHNUERME IV Effect of exchange rate
=N R oA changes on cash and cash
equivalents
A.HERRSENYAE V. Net increase in cash and
ik cash equivalents
m: BYRERREFEN Add: Opening balance of
) % B cash and cash equivalents
A HERAESKUWEENMNY V. Closing balance of cash and
B cash equivalents
NEAFEAN: H&Ra FERITIMEAR A Y
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun

Annual Report 2023

2022 E
2022

71,364,020.00

71,364,020.00

168,462,000.00

3,772,024.85

172,234,024.85

-100,870,004.85

4,194,716.32

-242,439,461.09

639,768,344.07

397,328,882.98

UMW HARZE A

Head of accounting
department:
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BAGRUNERER Cash flow statement of the parent company

2023F1-128
From January to December 2023

FHl R BFEAHUVROHBRATE BT MM ARM

Prepared by: Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. Unit: RMB
M o 20225 E
mE tem Notes 2022

— BEFEDFENBNER
==
HEAm. BEHFSWE
M &

Ui B B9 7 28R IR

WEHMEZEEEDB X
BT &
KEEDRET RN

MEEm. BRFH SN
B &

SXNMART R NRIZMN
B &

I. Cash flows from operating
activities:

Cash received from the sale
of goods and the rendering of
services

Receipts of tax refund

Cash received relating to
other operating activities

Subtotal of cash inflows
from operating activities

Cash paid for purchase of
goods and services

Cash paid to and for
employees

2,374,419,059.05

58,991,294.50

2,433,410,353.55

459,087,471.70

582,328,655.67

S AT BY & I A 2% Cash paid for taxes 231,450,222.03
T HEMEZXEENEX Cash paid relating to other 873,915,676.19
B S operating activities

2 EE B R NI

KEFEDITENNERE
ekl
“REFRMFENAER

Subtotal of cash outflows
from operating activities

Net cash flow from
operating activities

II. Cash flows from investing

2,146,782,025.59

286,628,327.96

2 activities:
e B W EI I & Cash received from disposal 4,621,037,214.89
of investment
BRERARZWIINIE Cash received from 182,224,131.72
investment income
REBBEEERSE. EHRAF Net proceeds from disposal 56,905,115.27
< B 2 b1 of fixed assets, intangible
A A KRR B assets and other long-term
AN assets
WEEMS®REEDB X Cash received relating to 107,306,733.82
R other investing activities

BAREIE RN

Subtotal of cash inflows
from investing activities

148\ HFEHIRBERAFE

4,967,473,195.70
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Cash flow statement of the parent company (Continued)

iz 2022FE
IR
=] Item Notes 2022
WEBEHR™. LA Cash paid for purchase and 163,794,275.54
< HA 2R 2 <5 ot B 3T construction of fixed assets,
MAMKAAF XN intangible assets, and other
long-term assets
KRAZGNIE Cash paid for investments 4,388,338,385.68
TRHEMEERERENE Cash paid relating to other 874,816,000.00
R investing activities
BRFEHI &R E /NI Subtotal of cash outflows 5,426,948,661.22
from investing activities
CEENTFENNERE Net cash flow from investing -459,475,465.52
R activities
=S ERFEHEENIMER 1L Cash flows from financing
2 activities:
T Uy 3% 5 B B I & Cash received from 71,364,020.00
investment
ERENIE RN Subtotal of cash inflows 71,364,020.00
from financing activities
D ECRF] .« FIE SR AT A Cash paid for dividend and 168,462,000.00
. profit distribution or interest
EXOHNIE payment
TRHEMEERENEX Other cash payments 254,792.36
R related to financing activities
EXRENIE HME /NIt Subtotal of cash outflows 168,716,792.36
from financing activities
EREHNTENAESRE Net cash flow from financing -97,352,772.36
B activities
CCRTHMMEKRIME IV Effect of foreign exchange 534,422.50
¥ A rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents
A, WERUEENY SR V. Netincrease in cash and -269,665,487.42
10 &5 cash equivalents
m: \yRNERRNEEMN Add: Opening balance of 587,007,535.57
i cash and cash equivalents
N HERMERWEENY VI Closing balance of cash and 317,342,048.15
B cash equivalents
NEAFEAN: HaRm FEHIERZTE A N2 =M AE A ISR
o ' . Head of accounting '
Legal representative: Zhongru Gan Chief accountant: Cheng Sun department: Li Zhou
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H-—MHEELHBFRART, T
201298 13H B A RN ER
NE o NBEF2020F6H29B 7 L8
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5 A 015 991110000102382249M £y
SR

ZHEIISEEEEZASIEK
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REIMRMNME) FLUREEEM,
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Basic information of the company

Company overview

Registered address, organizational form and headquarter
address of the Company

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals. (hereinafter referred to as the
"Company" or "the Company") formerly known as Beijing Gan
& Lee Biotechnology Co., Ltd., established on June 17, 1998. It
is a limited liability company registered in Beijing, China. It was
jointly funded by Zhongru Gan, Yiru Gan, and Xiru Gan, and was
restructured as a joint stock limited company on September 13,
2012. The Company was listed in Shanghai Stock Exchange on
June 29, 2020, and now holds a business license with Unified
Social Credit Identifier of 91110000102382249M.

According to the China Securities Regulatory Commission
Securities Regulatory Permit [2023] No. 1284, "Approval of Gan
& Lee Pharmaceuticals. to the registration of the issuance of
shares to the specific recipients" approved the registration, the
Company issued 28,508,550 RMB ordinary shares to the specific
recipient, and completed the share registration procedures on
November 27, 2023. The Company added new registered capital
of RMB 28,508,550, and the registered capital of the Company
changed from RMB 565,653,200 to RMB 594,161,750.

Up to December 31, 2023, the Company has issued a total
number of 594,161,750 shares of capital stock, with a registered
capital of RMB 594,161,750. Registered address is No. 8 Nanfeng
West 1st Street, Huoxian, Tongzhou District, Beijing. Headquarter
address is No. 8 Nanfeng West 1st Street, Huoxian, Tongzhou
District, Beijing. The actual controller is Zhongru Gan.

Business type and main business activities of the Company

The Company belongs to the pharmaceutical manufacturing
industry, principally engages in R&D, production and sales of
insulin analogue APIs and preparations. The main products
of the Company include several insulin analogues and human
insulin, namely Long-acting Glargine Injection (Basalin®), Fast-
acting Lispro Injection (Prandilin®), Mixed Protamine Zinc Lispro
Injection (25R) (Prandilin®25), Fast-acting Aspart Injection
(Raplin®), Aspart 30 injection (Raplin®30), Mixed Protamine
Human Insulin Injection (30R) (Similin®30).
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Annual Report 2023

Approval of the financial statements

This financial statements have been approved for disclosure by
the Board of Directors of the Company on Apirl 23, 2024.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

Basis of preparation

The Company prepares financial statements on the basis of
transactions and events that have actually occurred and are
recognized and measured in accordance with the "Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises - Basic Standards", specific
accounting standards for business enterprises, application
guidelines for accounting standards for business enterprises,
interpretations of accounting standards for business enterprises
and other related provisions (collectively referred to as
"Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises") issued by the
Ministry of Finance, and on this basis, in conjunction with the
provisions of the China Securities Regulatory Commission's
"General Provisions on Financial Reporting, No. 15 of the Rules
Governing Disclosure of Information by Companies Issuing Public
Securities" (revised in 2023).

Going concern

The sustainability of the 12 months of the report from the end of
this period has been evaluated. No significant matter or situation
which could influence the ability to maintain its sustainability has
been found. Therefore, the financial statements are based on the
assumption of going concern.
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Principal accounting policies and accounting
estimates

Reminders on specific accounting policies and accounting
estimates:

The Company determines specific accounting policies and
accounting estimates based on actual production and operating
characteristics, which are mainly reflected in the methods of
accruing expected credit losses on accounts receivable amounts
(see Note (V)/ (12) Accounts receivable), the valuation methods of
inventories (see Note (V)/ (15) Inventiory), depreciation of fixed
assets and amortization of intangible assets (see Note (V)/ (17)
Fixed Assets and Note (V)/ (19) Intangible Assets), and the timing
of revenue recognition (Note (V)/ (26) Revenue).

The Company evaluates the critical accounting estimates and
key assumptions used on an ongoing basis, based on historical
experience and other factors, including reasonable expectations
of future events. Significant changes in the following critical
accounting estimates and key assumptions could result in a
material impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in subsequent fiscal years:

Expected credit losses on accounts receivable

The Company calculates expected credit losses on accounts
receivable by using the exposure to default on accounts
receivable and the expected credit loss rate, and determines
the expected credit loss rate based on the probability of default
and the default loss rate. In determining the expected credit
loss rate, the Company uses data such as internal historical
credit loss experience and adjusts historical data by taking into
account current conditions and forward-looking information,
and in considering forward-looking information adjusts historical
data. In considering forward-looking information, the Company
uses indicators such as the risk of economic downturns, changes
in external market conditions and customer situations. The
Company regularly monitors and reviews assumptions related to
the calculation of expected credit losses.

Estimation of inventory impairment

In accordance with the Company's inventory accounting policy,
inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value,
and a provision for inventory write-downs is made for inventories
with cost higher than net realizable value and for obsolete, near-
expired and expired inventories. The impairment of inventories to
net realizable value is based on an assessment of the marketability
of inventories and their net realizable value. The identification of
inventory impairment requires management to make judgments and
estimates based on obtaining conclusive evidence and considering
factors such as the purpose for which the inventory is held and
the impact of post-balance sheet events. Differences between
actual results and original estimates will affect the carrying value of
inventories and the provision for impairment or reversal of inventories
in the period in which the estimates are changed.



(3)

4)

#7167 58

KRBWEERFMERLRZTES
REKER, TEATHRNREL
EITRTIBMME, 2B EHE
ZERSFS, LRERITAENE
EIBMMEERLS, £AF
MEANTREXNRFELEFHLUE
KUALEGTHOIRAENMEAE
B MRUBIEITTREEREW,
N 2 £ 2K 3R 87 18] X7 7 16 A0 B 35 25
THE,

2 FL I 13 W 28 7 Fl 2 AL P 13 i 3 132

ERBFIREE & 55 B9 N 48 B A1) ok
WOSHEHMRBREAR, XREMAAE
RAHAABK S R INEIEFTSH
Biro XHEBEARFEERZAKX
£ B9 FI Wy S (4 1 AR SR N A B A E 2
ENNEIMNEH, SEHSFENUR
BE , SRUHE NI BB T PR 1S T A
PR

BREE =T EN AR

KRBFRAINMTSRET S B
ZIENPENXR, B, BRI
TREWMW SRR . EERR . RAR
NaZTHHNAEREFEXER

=it HA A

TABRITEEERHIAIAREEL
A3IBLEA—T I FE,

B EAE

BEVEAREREEVMNBERTINT
NAFEELARNETRREFNY
BWHEAE o KRB UILNBMEA—D
B EH, HULEERE M AR
B9 7% B M R 0 A o

1B MK 2 fiL

EREWIERELUTHAART -
BONFRBUEZLEMANTIES
FERBERNICKAEMAT , &R
MERERFITENART -

(3)

4)

Annual Report 2023

Depreciation and amortization

The Company depreciates and amortizes fixed assets and
intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their useful
lives, taking into account their residual values. The Company
periodically reviews useful lives to determine the amount of
depreciation and amortization expense to be charged to each
year, and useful lives are determined based on the Company's
historical experience with similar assets and in conjunction with
anticipated technological updates. Depreciation and amortization
expense is adjusted in future periods if there are significant
changes in previous estimates.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

The Company recognizes deferred tax assets for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to offset the losses. This requires
the Company's management to use significant judgment in
estimating the timing and amount of future taxable profit,
combined with tax planning strategies, to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets to be recognized.

Statement of compliance OF ASBES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, which truly and completely reflect the Company's
financial status, operating results, changes in shareholders'
equity, cash flow and other relevant information during the
reporting period.

Accounting period

The Company's accounting year is from January 1st to December
31st of each calendar year.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle refers to the period from when a company
purchases assets for processing until it realizes cash or cash
equivalents. The Company uses a 12-month period as an
operating cycle anduses it as a liquidity classification criterion for
assets and liabilities.

Recording currency

The Company's recording currency is RMB.

Foreign subsidiaries are recorded in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate and are translated
into RMB for the preparation of financial statements.
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Methodology for determining materiality criteria and basis
for selection

= Item BEEMRE Materiality criteria

FEAEBM MU IAZ  Significant receivable write- BIMZESMENMWK I  Individual write-offs amounting to more

b offs during the period £ TM5% Ll FBE£% A  than 5% of the accounts receivable balance
TFHEHRATSIMA0.1% and amounting to more than 0.1% of total

assets at the end of the period

Wi BL1FEEZNE Prepayments aged over 1year B IKIRBITIFNF  Prepayments individually aged over 1 year

1 IR = IR and significant in amount I ST IR L5%  represent more than 5% of the balance of
M B4k FHEASRE ™ prepayments and are greater than 0.1% of

i % 8 3 17 20 8 AR Y

Accounts payable aged over 1

BE#0.1%
PRI B 1FE RIS

total assets at the end of the period

Accounts payable with an individual aged

ESE VAN year and significant in amount M 20 5 R M 2 & f95%  over 1 year accounted for more than
MBS AFHERES 5% of the accounts payable balance and

i % 8 3 147 2 8 B Y

Other payables aged over 1

SEAY0.1%

BUKE B 1IFEM

amounted to more than 0.1% of total assets
at the end of the period

Other accounts payable with an individual

SEEHMNA K year and significant in amount N EEMN 5% aged over 1 year accounted for more
5% FB4miATFH] than 5% of the balance of other accounts
S EE0.1% payable and amounted to more than 0.1%
of total assets at the end of the period

EZNERIRE Significant construction in BIMERTIEMARSTB  Closing balance of individual construction
progress TR BEH0.5% in progress exceeds 0.5% of total assets

BEMNARKRWIFHALIE Significant capitalised R&D BAMEMBERFIE Closing balance of individual R&D projects
projects TEFERBEM0.5% exceeds 0.5% of total assets

6. R—EHTMIER—&EHTEId 6. Accounting treatment of mergers of enterprises under or

BHN=

(1)

HELIE W EHIEBNETL

1 U3 E a3

(1)

not under common control

Multiple transactions are accounted for as a package when the

SRR, BHUREFZHTFE terms, conditions and economic effects of each transaction in the

L{F—#zg §/f¢ Br, BEXXS course of a step-by-step realization of a business combination

BIEA—EFRXEAITEITLIE meet one or more of the following conditions.

© REXZFRANHEETEERT @  The transactions are made simultaneously or with
12 It %2 e BY 15 0 N IT 1289, consideration of each other's influence.

@ XEXFEEAEAL I @  Only when the transactions are as a whole can they achieve a
m%ﬂ’\] R complete business outcome.

® —IOIXSBHNREBURTHME ®  The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of
D—ImRBNERE; at least one of others.

@ —IMRXZBERBEETEFN, @ A transaction considered alone is uneconomic, but it is
BREMEMZZ—HEZENE economic when considered together with others.
£

158\ HFEHIRHBERAF



(2)

(3)

R —#&# FHIE A & H

FRBERVEHPEENETM
R, REEABEREGHDE.
nE(BEERKXERMSRBREH S
MZRNEE) EREERAEHY
SHEPHKENETE. £&H
PERENFRTKENES T
BANNKENE(RLTROEE
SE)RNEH, BERAEQRPHR
g, BEARPOIRA @GN E
HBE, BEEFWE

MREFEXENNHTEH AT
MEWEF, M AGRHE T
S5RENENNEESIEDR, B
BAARR (BFENh I RAEEN)
RERNRAER, BEBFWE

WNTFBIZRRGEREARANELE
HH, BF—HFXZH, $&5M
R ZER— G = AR 32 5
TRUHAE;, AT —HFXZ6,
EREEHNE, KERNKEZES
BRARE, 5XEEHAET K
R AKENEMNESGHBHE—
2 S IR 10 T 2 A 30 B9 K | 0 (B
ZHMBNE, PBAKXRR; BER
MAE R, BEREFWTE . Xt
TEABZAFAENRNEKSR, A
KANR@mZEZBEH /M T BN
HEBENZEMBIANEMES W
m, BEFAHTRITAE, BEELE
ZIOMKRANXBERRARUER
o B AR X R 77 St AR [B) Y & b
TR E;, AXBNRmEZZEM
BIARI R IR BB AR RERER
m . B4R E W A A E 9 B A Sh
WrEENmEMED, TAHT
SUARE, EERLEZIRANE
NSHRE o

FEE—E#H FHIE A & H

aP= PP NS SNV ES P R )
XHEGNOEER, BIRBEXGH
ARTFRETEERRBOETH AN
BRARNTNE. BEFE T
FHE, ZRF—HRIAARATIE
AR 75

2

3)

Annual Report 2023

Mergers of enterprises under common control

In a business combination, assets and liabilities are valued at
the carrying value of the party being acquired, including any
resulting goodwill, as reported in the consolidated financial
statements at the date of the combination. The book value of
net assets acquired in a merger is compared to the book value
of the merger consideration paid (or the total par value of the
shares issued). Any difference is adjusted to the equity premium
in capital surplus. If the equity premium in capital surplus is
not enough to offset the difference, the retained earnings are
adjusted accordingly.

If there is a contingent consideration that requires recognition
of a projected liability or asset, adjust the difference between
the projected liability or asset and the subsequent settlement of
the contingent consideration to capital surplus (capital premium
or equity premium), or to retained earnings if capital surplus is
insufficient.

For business combinations achieved through multiple
transactions, each transaction is accounted for as a single
transaction for the acquisition of control if they are part of a
package deal. If they are not part of a package deal, on the
date of the acquisition of control, the difference between the
initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment and
the sum of the book value of the long-term equity investment
before reaching the merger plus the book value of the new
consideration paid for the further acquisition of shares on the
date of the merger adjusts the capital surplus. If the capital
surplus is insufficient to cover the difference, retained earnings
are adjusted. For equity investments held before consolidation,
any other comprehensive income resulting from adopting
the equity method of accounting or financial instrument
recognition and measurement guidelines is not accounted for
until the investment is disposed of using the same basis as the
investee unit's direct disposal of related assets or liabilities.
Other comprehensive income recognized in the net assets of
the investee unit due to the adoption of the equity method
of accounting, excluding net gain or loss, changes in equity
other than net profit or loss, other comprehensive income, and
profit distribution, are not accounted for until the investment
is disposed of and transferred to profit or loss for the current
period.

Mergers of enterprises not under common control

The acquisition date is the date on which the Company actually
obtains control of the acquire, i.e., the date on which control of
the acquiree's net assets or production and operating decisions
is transferred to the Company. The Company generally considers
that the transfer of control is achieved when all the following
conditions are met:
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® The business combination contract or agreement has been
approved by the Company's internal authority.

@ If the matter of business combination requires the approval
of the relevant state authorities, such approval has been
obtained.

® The necessary procedures for the transfer of property rights
have been carried out.

@ The Company has paid the majority of the consideration for
acquisition and has the ability and plan to pay the remaining
amount.

® The Company has effectively controlled the financial
and operating policies of the acquiree, and enjoys the
corresponding benefits and bears the corresponding risks.

The Company measures assets given and liabilities incurred or
assumed as consideration for a business combination at fair
value. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

The difference between the combination cost and the fair value
of the identifiable net assets of the acquiree obtained in the
combination is recognized as goodwill. The difference between
the combination cost less than the fair value of the identifiable
net assets of the acquiree obtained in the combination is
included in the profit or loss upon review for the current
reporting period.

For mergers of enterprises not under common control realised
by multiple exchange transactions, if the transaction is a package
deal, each transaction is accounted for as a transaction to obtain
control. If it is not a package deal, and the equity investment
held before the acquisition date is accounted for using the
equity method, the sum of the carrying amount of the equity
investment held in the acquiree before the purchase date and
the new investment cost on the acquisition date is taken as the
initial investment cost of the investment. Other comprehensive
income recognized by the equity method for equity investment
held before the merger date is accounted for on the same basis
as the investee directly disposes of related assets or liabilities.
If the equity investment held before the acquisition date is
accounted for using the financial instrument recognition and
measurement criteria, the sum of the fair value of the equity
investment on the combination date plus the new investment
cost is taken as the initial investment cost on the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value of the original equity
interest and the carrying amount and the accumulative changes
in fair value originally included in other comprehensive income
shall be transferred to the current investment income on the
acquisition date.
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Related expenses incurred for the combination

The audit fee, legal service fee, assessment and consulting
expenses and other directly related expenses incurred for
the business combination are recognized in current profit or
loss during the period incurred. Transaction costs for equity
securities issued for the business combination are deducted
from equity if they are directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Criteria for determining control and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements

Criteria for determining control

The scope of consolidation for the consolidated financial
statements is determined based on control. Control refers to the
Company's power over the investee. From the participation in
the activities of the investee, variable returns can be obtained,
of which the Company is able to use its power to affect the level
of those returns. The Company reviews its assessment of control
when changes in relevant facts and circumstances affect the
elements that define control.

In determining whether to include a structured entity in the
consolidated financial statements, the Company evaluates
whether it controls the structured entity based on a combination
of all the facts and circumstances, including an assessment of
the purpose and design for which the structured entity was
established, the identification of the types of variable returns,
and whether the Company assumes some or all of the variability
of returns through its participation in the related activities, etc.

Preparation of consolidated financial statements
@® Scope of consolidation

The scope of combination of the Company's consolidated
financial statements is determined based on control, and
all subsidiaries (including separate entities controlled by the
Company) are included in the combined financial statements.

@ Consolidation procedure

The Company prepares consolidated financial statements based on
the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries, and
other relevant information. The Company prepares the consolidated
financial statements to reflect the financial position, operating results
and cash flows of the enterprise group as a whole by considering the
entire enterprise group as a single accounting entity in accordance
with the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements of
the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises and in accordance
with unified accounting policies.
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The accounting policies and accounting periods adopted by
all subsidiaries included in the scope of consolidation of the
consolidated financial statements are consistent with the
Company. If the accounting policies and accounting periods
adopted by the subsidiaries are inconsistent with the Company,
the Company will make necessary adjustments to the accounting
policies and accounting periods of subsidiaries in preparing the
consolidated financial statements.

When the financial statements are consolidated, the impact of
internal transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries,
and between subsidiaries on the consolidated statement of
financial position, consolidated income statement, consolidated
cash flow statement and consolidated statement of changes in
shareholders' equity is offset. If the judgment of the consolidated
financial statements of the enterprise group is different from
the recognition of the same transaction by the Company or the
subsidiary as the accounting entity, the transaction is adjusted
from the perspective of the enterprise group.

The share of owner's equity, net profit and loss, and
comprehensive income of the current period attributable to
minority shareholders of a subsidiary are separately listed under
the owner's equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position, the net profit under the consolidated income statement
and under the total comprehensive income. The difference
between the current loss shared by the minority shareholders

of the subsidiary and the minority shareholder's share of the
owner's equity of the subsidiary at the beginning of the period is
eliminated to reduce the minority shareholders' equity.

For a subsidiary acquired under merger of enterprises under
common control, the financial statements are adjusted based
on the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities (including
goodwill resulting from the acquisition of the subsidiary by the
ultimate controlling party) in the financial statements of the
ultimate controlling part.

For subsidiaries acquired from mergers of enterprises not under
common control, the financial statements are adjusted based
on the fair value of the identifiable net assets at the acquisition
date.

Increase in subsidiaries or business

During the report period, if the Company increased subsidiaries
or business from mergers of enterprises under common control,
then the opening balance of the consolidated statement of
financial position should be adjusted. The revenue, expense and
profit from the combinations of the subsidiaries and business
from the beginning of the current year to the end of the
reporting period shall be included in the consolidated income
statement. Cash flows from the combinations of the subsidiaries
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and business from the beginning of the current year to the end
of the reporting period shall be included in the consolidated cash
flow statement. At the same time, the Company should adjust the
relevant items of the comparative statements and deem that the
reporting entity already exists when the ultimate controller starts
its control.

Where the company can control the investee under common
control from additional investments, it should deem that
parties involved in the combination have adjust at the current
state when the ultimate controller starts its control. Equity
investments held before the company controls the cquire, the
relevant profit and loss recognized during the period from
the later of the date when the company obtains the original
equity and the date when the acquirer and the cquire are under
common control, other comprehensive income and changes in
other net assets shall be used to offset the retained earnings
at the beginning of the year or the current profit and loss in the
period of the comparative statements.

During the report period, if the Company increased subsidiaries
or business from mergers of enterprises not under common
control, then the beginning amount of the consolidated
statement of financial position should not be adjusted. The
revenue, expense and profit from the subsidiaries and business
from the acquisition date to the end of the report period shall be
included in the consolidated income statement. Cash flows from
the subsidiaries and business from the acquisition date to the
end of the reporting period shall be included in the consolidated
cash flow statement.

Where the Company can control the investee not under common
control from additional investments, it shall remeasure equity
of the acquiree held before the acquisition date at the fair
value of such equity on the acquisition date and include the
difference of the fair value and book value in the investment
income in the current year. Where equity of the acquiree held
before the acquisition date involves in other comprehensive
income accounted for under equity method and other
changes in owner's equity other than net profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and profit distribution, the relevant other
comprehensive income and other changes in owner's equity shall
be transferred to investment income in the current year when
the acquisition date falls in, except for other comprehensive
income from changes arising from remeasurement of net
liabilities or net assets of defined benefit plan.
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Disposal of subsidiaries or businesses

General treatment

During the reporting period, if the Company disposed
subsidiaries or business, the revenue, expenses and profits from
the subsidiaries or from the beginning of operating period to
date of disposal shall be included in the consolidated income
statement. Cash flows from the combinations of the subsidiaries
and business from the beginning of the year to the disposal date
shall be included in the consolidated cash flow statement.

When the Company losses the control over the original
subsidiary due to disposal of partial equity investments or other
reasons, the remaining equity investments after the disposal will
be remeasured at the fair value at the date of loss of the control.
The difference of total amount of the consideration from disposal
of equities plus the fair value of the remaining equities less the
shares calculated at the original shareholding ratio in net assets
of the original subsidiary which are continuously calculated as
of the acquisition date is included in the investment income of
the period at the loss of control. Other comprehensive income
associated with the original equity investments of the subsidiary
and other changes in owner's equity other than net profit and
loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution are
transferred into investment income in the current year when
the control is lost, except for other comprehensive income from
changes arising from remeasurement of net liabilities or net
assets of defined benefit plan.

Step-by-step disposal of subsidiaries

If the equity investment in a subsidiary is disposed of step by
step through multiple transactions until the loss of control, the
terms, conditions, and economic effects of each transaction to
dispose of the equity investment in the subsidiary satisfy one or
more of the following conditions, which generally indicate that
the multiple transactions should be accounted for as a package
deal:

A These transactions are concluded simultaneously or under the
consideration of mutual effects.

B. Only when the transactions are as a whole can they achieve a
complete business outcome.

C The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of
at least one of others.

D. A single transaction is uneconomical, but it is economical when

considered together with others.

If all transactions of the disposal of an equity investment in a
subsidiary until the loss of control is a package transaction,
the Company accounts for each transaction as one transaction
to dispose of a subsidiary and to lose control. However, the
difference between the disposal price and the corresponding



—RAENRELERANNHNZ
BERFRAFRTMDANER, &
BEHUSHEFHINNEMEG S W
m, ERAEGNN—HEANEEK
RSB o

REWNFREARNKEREERKET
FINNEMRZAIBT —HFRXH
B, EREAEHINZE, AKX
EHRINNBERTEHOLENFAQF
RN ERANBERBRET IR
B ARAEHNE, REEF AT
—RAEBFEHAITIIUHLE,

T £ F 2 B D BRI

RABEMEE DR NG K
HAR ARG R 5 1 BRI 18 =5 AR L 1 it
BENEEFARBEMBXR (EEHE)
FUFETENRFAT DM ZEH
EZ8], BEEGARTAERPHERE
TARPHRAE LGN , BEARRPH
RAG MR, HEEFW

m o

T XIEH R BYIE S T 58 7 % & Xt
F A AHI RN

EARERERNBBERT AL L
EXWF RN KARNKEAZMNG
WABENRESLEKBRNK AN
NUEHEFASDBEBMXAXSHAH
BREETENFARTHAZENE
M, BREHABTNRERFNELERD
RPBRAEN , BREARRPHIRKRAE
wm N, BB

RERIMEFNYIEHEE A&

TRFINERERN, BEREE
FIE AR UERETZMHEF
HRHIANIE. RENAEHRERE
(—RMBEXBE="AREHEH) . &
MR, HTHREANABANEZTMN
T NMEZEDNER/NODFZFHL
BRE, MEAREFNY -

Annual Report 2023

share of the net assets of the subsidiary corresponding to the
investment disposed of in each case prior to the loss of control
should be recognized in the consolidated financial statements as
other comprehensive income, and should be transferred to the
current profit or loss at the loss of the control.

If the various transactions for the disposal of equity investments
in subsidiaries until the loss of control are not a package
transaction, prior to the loss of the control, the accounting
treatment shall be made according to the relevant policies for
partial disposal of equity investments in the subsidiary without
losing control; upon the loss of the control, accounting treatment
shall be made according to general treatment methods for
disposal of subsidiaries.

Purchase of minority interest of subsidiaries

The difference between long-term equity investments newly
acquired by the Company through purchase of minority interest
and the subsidiary's identifiable net assets attributable to the
Company calculated continuously from the acquisition date (or
the combination date) in accordance with the newly increased
shareholding ratio shall be charged against stock premium
within capital reserves in the consolidated statement of
financial position, when stock premium within capital reserves is

insufficient to offset, the retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Partial disposal of equity investments in subsidiaries without losing
control

The difference between the proceeds from partial disposal of
equity investments in the subsidiary and the share of identifiable
net assets of the subsidiary attributable to the Company which
are calculated continuously from the acquisition date or the
combination date and which are corresponding to the disposal
of long-term equity investments without losing control shall
be charged against stock premium within capital reserves in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When stock
premium within capital reserves is insufficient to offset, the
retained earnings shall be adjusted.

Criteria for determining cash and cash equivalents

In preparing cash flow statement, the Company recognizes cash
on hand and deposits that are readily available for payment
as cash. Investments that have all four conditions of short
maturity (generally maturing within three months from the date
of purchase), high liquidity, easy conversion to known amount of
cash, and minimal risk of changes in value are identified as cash
equivalents.
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Foreign currency transactions and translation of foreign
currency statements

Foreign currency transactions

When the foreign currency business transaction is initially
recognized, it is converted into RMB at the spot exchange rate on
the transaction date.

On the balance sheet date, monetary foreign currency items are
translated at the spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date.
The resulting exchange differences, except for those from foreign
currency special borrowings related to the acquisition and
construction of assets eligible for capitalization that are treated
based on the principle of capitalization of borrowing costs, are
included in the current profit and loss. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at historical cost are still translated at
the spot exchange rate on the transaction date without changing
the amount of the book keeping currency.

Non-monetary foreign currency items measured at fair value
are translated using the spot exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The resulting exchange differences
are recognized in profit or loss as change in fair value. In the
case of non-monetary items that are available for sale in foreign
currencies, the resulting exchange differences are included in
other comprehensive income.

Exchange differences on translation of foreign currency financial
statements

Assets and liabilities in the balance sheet are translated using the
spot exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Owner's equity
except for the "undistributed profit", are converted at the spot
exchange rate at the time of occurrence. Income and expense in
the income statement are translated at the spot exchange rate
on the transaction date. The exchange differences on translation
of foreign currency financial statements arising from the above
conversion is included in other comprehensive income.

When disposing of an overseas operation, the exchange
differences on translation of foreign currency financial
statements related to the foreign operation listed in other
comprehensive income in the balance sheet is transferred
from the other comprehensive income to the profit or loss for
the period of disposal. When disposing of part of the equity
investment or other reasons, resulting in a decrease in the
proportion of overseas business interests held but not losing
control over overseas operations, the translation difference of
foreign currency statement related to the disposal part of the
foreign operation will be attributed to minority shareholders'
equity and will not be transferred to the current profit or loss.
When disposing of a part of the equity of an overseas enterprise
or a joint venture, the exchange differences on translation of
foreign currency statement related to the foreign operation
is transferred to the current profit or loss according to the
proportion of disposal of the foreign operation.
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Financial instruments

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognized when the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
financial instrument.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest expense to each accounting
period.

The effective interest rate is the rate used to discount the
estimated future cash flows of a financial asset or financial
liability through its expected life to the carrying amount of the
financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial liability. In
determining the effective interest rate, the expected cash flows
are estimated taking into account all contractual terms of the
financial asset or financial liability (such as early repayment,
rollover, call option or other similar options, etc.) without
considering the expected credit losses.

The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the
cumulative amortization resulting from the initial recognized
amount of the financial asset or financial liability, less the
principal repaid, plus or minus the difference between that initial
recognized amount and the amount due using the effective
interest rate method, then less accumulated provision for losses
(applicable only to financial assets).

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial assets

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following
three categories based on the business model of the financial
assets under management and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets:

® Financial assets measured at amortized cost.

@ Financial assets measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in other comprehensive income.

® Financial assets measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss.

Financial assets are measured at fair value at initial recognition,
except for accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from
the sale of goods or provision of services that do not contain a
significant financing component or do not consider a financing
component of less than one year, which are initially measured at
transaction price.

For financial assets measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss, the related transaction
costs are recognized directly in profit or loss, and for other
categories of financial assets, the related transaction costs are
recognized in their initial recognition amounts.
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The subsequent measurement of a financial asset depends
on its classification, and all related financial assets affected
are reclassified when and only when the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets classified as measured at amortized cost

If the contractual terms of a financial asset provide that the cash
flows arising on a specific date are solely payments of principal
and interest based on the outstanding principal amount, and the
business model for managing the financial asset is to collect the
contractual cash flows, the Company classifies the financial asset
as financial assets carried at amortized cost. The Company's
financial assets classified as financial assets carried at amortized
cost include monetary funds, accounts receivable, other
receivables, long-term receivables, debt investments, etc.

The Company recognizes interest income on such financial
assets using the effective interest method, which is subsequently
measured at amortized cost, and any gain or loss arising from
impairment, derecognition or modification of such financial
assets is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. The
Company determines interest income by multiplying the carrying
amount of the financial assets by the effective interest rate,
except for the following situations:

1) For financial assets acquired or originated that are credit
impaired, the Company determines the interest income from
the initial recognition on the basis of the amortized cost of
the financial assets and the effective interest rate adjusted for
credit.

2) For financial assets acquired or originated that are not credit
impaired but become credit impaired in a subsequent period,
the Company determines interest income in the subsequent
period based on the amortized cost of the financial asset
and the effective interest rate. If the financial instrument is
no longer credit impaired in a subsequent period because
its credit risk has improved, the Company shifts to determine
interest income by multiplying the effective interest rate by the
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Financial assets classified as measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in other comprehensive income
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If the contractual terms of a financial asset provide that the only cash
flows arising on a specific date are payments of principal and interest
based on the principal amount outstanding, and the business model
for managing the financial asset is to both collect the contractual cash
flows and sell the financial asset, the Company classifies the financial
asset as a financial asset measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in other comprehensive income.

The Company uses the effective interest rate method to
recognize interest income on such financial assets. Except for
interest income, impairment loss and exchange differences
recognized in profit or loss, the remaining changes in fair
value are recognized in other comprehensive income. When
the financial asset is derecognized, the cumulative gain or
loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is
transferred from other comprehensive income and recognized in
profit or loss for the period.

Notes receivable and accounts receivable measured at fair
value and will have their changes accounted for in other
comprehensive income are reported as financing receivables,
and other such financial assets are reported as other debt
investments, of which other debt investments maturing within
one year from the balance sheet date are reported as current
portion of non-current asset, and other debt investments with
original maturity of less than one year are reported as other
current assets.

Financial assets designated as measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in other comprehensive income

On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
investments in non-trading equity instruments as financial assets
as measured at fair value and will have their changes accounted
for in other comprehensive income on an individual financial
asset basis.

Changes in the fair value of such financial assets are recognized
in other comprehensive income and no impairment allowance
is required. Upon derecognition of such financial assets,
the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other
comprehensive income is transferred from other comprehensive
income and included in retained earnings. Dividend income
is recognized in profit or loss over the period, in which the
Company holds the investment in this equity instrument, when
the Company's right to receive dividends has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividends will flow to the Company, and the amount of the
dividends can be measured reliably. The Company reports such
financial assets under the item of investment in other equity
instruments.
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An investment in equity instruments is a financial asset
measured at fair value and will have their changes accounted for
in profit or loss, if it meets one of the following conditions: it is
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term,
it is part of a portfolio of centrally managed identifiable financial
asset instruments at initial recognition and there is objective
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking,
or it is a derivative (other than meeting the definition of a
financial guarantee contract and derivatives that are designated
as effective hedging instruments).

Financial assets classified as measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in profit or loss

Financial assets that do not qualify for classification as financial
assets at amortized cost, or measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in other comprehensive income
and are not designated as measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for other comprehensive income, are
classified as financial assets measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in profit or loss.

The Company uses fair value for the subsequent measurement
of such financial assets and recognizes gains or losses resulting
from changes in fair value, as well as dividend and interest
income related to such financial assets, in profit or loss for the
current period.

The Company presents such financial assets in the items of
financial assets held for trading and other non-current financial
assets according to their liquidity.

Financial assets designated as financial assets measured at fair value
and will have their changes accounted for in profit or loss

At initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate
a financial asset as a financial asset measured at fair value
and will have their changes accounted for in profit or loss on
an individual basis in order to eliminate or significantly reduce
accounting mismatches.

If a hybrid contract contains one or more embedded derivatives
and its host contract is not one of the above financial assets,
the Company may designate the whole of it as a financial
instrument measured at fair value and will have their changes
accounted for in profit or loss. The exceptions are as follows:

1) The embedded derivatives do not materially change the
cash flows of the hybrid contract.
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2) When firstly determining whether a similar hybrid contract
requires a spin-off, little analysis is required to clarify that
the embedded derivatives it contain s should not be spun
off. If an embedded loan has an early repayment right that
allows the holder to repay the loan early at an amount
close to amortized cost, the early repayment right does
not require a spin-off.

The Company uses fair value for the subsequent measurement
of such financial assets and recognizes gains or losses resulting
from changes in fair value, as well as dividend and interest
income related to such financial assets, in profit or loss for the
current period.

The Company presents such financial assets under the line
items of financial assets held for trading and other non-current
financial assets according to their liquidity.

Classification, recognition and measurement of financial
liabilities

The Company classifies a financial instrument or its components
as financial liabilities or equity instruments at initial recognition
based on the contractual terms of the financial instrument
issued and the economic substance reflected therein, rather
than solely in legal form, in conjunction with the definitions of
financial liabilities and equity instruments. Financial liabilities
are classified at initial recognition as follows: financial liabilities
measured at fair value and will have their changes accounted
for in profit or loss, other financial liabilities, and derivatives
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Financial liabilities are measured at fair value at initial
recognition. For financial liabilities measured at fair value and
will have their changes accounted for in profit or loss, the related
transaction costs are recognized directly in profit or loss. For
other categories of financial liabilities, the related transaction
costs are recognized in the initial recognition amount.

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability depends on
its classification:

Financial liabilities measured at fair value and will have their changes
accounted for in profit or loss

Such financial liabilities include financial liabilities held for trading
(including derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial
liabilities designated as measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss on initial recognition.
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A financial liability is classified as a financial liability held for
trading if one of the following conditions is met: the financial
liability is assumed primarily for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near future, it is part of a portfolio of
centrally managed identifiable financial instruments and there
is objective evidence that the enterprise has recently adopted
a pattern of short-term profit-taking, or it is a derivative
instrument, except for derivatives that are designated and
are effective hedging instruments, derivatives that qualify as
financial guarantee contracts exceptions. Financial liabilities for
trading (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) are
subsequently measured at fair value, with all changes in fair
value recognized in profit or loss, except those related to hedge
accounting.

At initial recognition, for the purpose of providing more relevant
accounting information, the Company irrevocably designates
financial liabilities measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss if they meet one of the
following conditions:

1) Be able to eliminate or significantly reduce accounting
mismatches.
2) The management and performance evaluation of a portfolio of

financial liabilities or a portfolio of financial assets and financial
liabilities is performed on a fair value basis in accordance
with the enterprise risk management or investment strategy
set forth in formal written documents and reported to key
management personnel on this basis within the enterprise.

The Company uses fair value for the subsequent measurement
of such financial liabilities and recognizes changes in fair value
in profit or loss, except for those arising from changes in the
Company's own credit risk, which are recognized in other
comprehensive income. The Company recognizes all changes in
fair value (including the amount of the effect of changes in its
own credit risk) in profit or loss unless the inclusion of changes in
fair value in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Except for the following items, the Company classifies financial
liabilities as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost,
and applies the effective interest rate method to such financial
liabilities, which are subsequently measured at amortized cost,
with gains or losses arising from derecognition or amortization
recognized in profit or loss for the current period:
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1) Financial liabilities measured at fair value and will have their
changes accounted for in profit or loss.
2) Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial assets

that do not qualify for derecognition or continue to be involved
in the transferred financial assets.

3) Financial guarantee contracts that do not fall into the first two
categories of this article, and loan commitments to lend at
below-market interest rates that do not fall into category 1) of
this article.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the
issuer to pay a specified amount to the contract holder who
has suffered a loss when a specified debtor is unable to pay its
debt when due in accordance with the terms of the original Ol
modified debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts that
are not financial liabilities designated as at fair value through
profit or loss are measured after initial recognition at the higher
of the amount of the allowance for loss and the amount initially
recognized, less accumulated amortization over the guarantee
period.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset is written off from its accounts and balance sheet
when it meets one of the following conditions:

1) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset are terminated.
2) The financial asset is transferred and the transfer satisfies

the requirements for derecognition of financial assets.

Conditions for derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability (or a portion thereof) is derecognized when
the present obligation of the financial liability (or a portion
thereof) is discharged.

If an agreement is entered into between the Company and the
lender to replace an original financial liability by assuming a new
financial liability, and the contractual terms of the new financial
liability are materially different from those of the original financial
liability, or if the contractual terms of the original financial
liability (or part thereof) are materially modified, the original
financial liability is derecognized and a new financial liability is
recognized at the same time, and the difference between the
carrying amount and the consideration paid (including the non-
cash assets transferred or the difference between the carrying
amount and the consideration paid (including the non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.
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If the Company repurchases a portion of a financial liability, the
carrying amount of the financial liability as a whole is allocated
according to the proportion of the respective fair values of the
continuing recognized portion and the derecognized portion
to the fair value of the whole at the date of repurchase. The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the
derecognized portion and the consideration paid (including the
non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) should be
recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Recognition basis and measurement method for transfer of
financial assets

When a transfer of financial assets occurs, the Company
assesses the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets and treats them separately as
follows:

If control over the financial asset is not retained, the financial asset is
derecognized, and the rights and obligations arising from or retained
in the transfer are recognized separately as assets or liabilities.

If control over the financial asset is retained, the financial asset
is recognized to the extent of its continuing involvement in the
transferred financial asset and the related liability is recognized
accordingly. The degree of continuing involvement in the transferred
financial asset is the extent to which the Company bears the risk or
reward of changes in the value of the transferred financial asset.

In determining whether a transfer of financial assets meets
the above conditions for derecognition of financial assets,
the principle of substance over form is applied, The Company
distinguishes between transfers of financial assets as a whole
and partial transfers of financial assets.

If a transfer of a financial asset as a whole meets the derecognition
condition, the difference between the following two amounts is
recognized in profit or loss:

1) The carrying amount of the transferred financial asset at the
date of derecognition.

2) The sum of the consideration received for the transfer
of the financial asset and the amount of the cumulative
amount of changes in fair value recognized directly in other
comprehensive income (the transferred financial asset
is a financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income).




)

(5)

TREATHBOEBAEAZREBERD
BEBEALEWIAFHDN, BEB
MERATEBANKENE, L
IEHIASB D Ak S HIN 9 (FE Lt
MERT, MREMNRSETNY
AEHEHIANEBMATN—HD)
ziE, EREBASENEAXN QR
MEHRTIME, HFBTIRMEEM
BYEFIT N L E B

D RIEHIASDELXEHIAEN
K& 0 1E o

2) ARLEWIABOWREIBXN, 5
BRI NEMSE W m AN
BT RIT AR L LA
BONETOIREBHER
REAURANMETERRE
It NEM G S W m A SRR
)z

ETMATKBEARELRERIAFH
B, LNz Em AT, PTWE
BYXT B IA I — T B A R o

EHETHEZ M NGELA N EH
E 75 &

FREERTOINERATHAEHNA
5, LUERRT RN BEHA R
ME, FRIEZRNEMATFEHX
REABWRERH . T HNWE
AEHNRENEMAT, WIREEK
mHHRNHMOFETH S 5ERAE
BEHMBALEZEAATH LEHE
% & BR B XPL T B R IK 1S B A
RETMEHTE. TERTIHRMNE
ESTEOUEHRNZZH .. X558 .
SLANITTLER.. ENNBE S
ENMEERETEXATHAGRHIR
i, BEEAKRELAFTRZEM L
MHAZKERXENTIRS

MIBES R ITER TR A = S &8
BEmMHG, UhHXZNBIEN
MEEAANENEM.

(3)

Annual Report 2023

(2) If a portion of a financial asset is transferred and the
transferred portion as a whole meets the derecognition condition,
the carrying amount of the financial asset as a whole before the
transfer is apportioned between the derecognized portion and
the continuing recognized portion (in which case the retained
service asset shall be treated as part of the contimuing recognized
financial asset) according to their respective relative fair values at
the date of transfer, and the difference between the following two
amounts is recognized in current period's profit or loss:

1) The carrying amount of the derecognized portion at the
date of derecognition.

2) The sum of the consideration received for the
derecognition portion and the amount corresponding
to the derecognition portion of the cumulative amount
of changes in fair value previously recognized in other
comprehensive income (financial assets involved in the
transfer are financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income).

If the transfer of a financial asset does not meet the
derecognition condition, the financial asset continues to be
recognized and the consideration received is recognized as a
financial liability.

Methods for determining the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities

The fair value of a financial asset or financial liability for which
there is an active market is determined using quoted prices
in an active market, unless there is a restricted period for the
financial asset itself. The fair value of a financial asset or financial
liability for which there is a restricted period for the asset itself is
determined on the basis of quoted prices in active markets, less
the amount of compensation required by market participants
for assuming the risk of not being able to sell the financial asset
on the open market within a specified period, Quoted prices in
active markets include quoted prices for the relevant assets or
liabilities that are readily and regularly available from exchanges,
dealers, brokers, industry groups, pricing agencies or regulators,
etc., and are representative of actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm's length basis.

The fair value of financial assets initially acquired or derived or
financial liabilities assumed is determined on the basis of quoted

market prices.
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Financial assets or financial liabilities for which no active market
exists are valued using valuation techniques to determine
their fair value. In the valuation, the company uses valuation
techniques that are applicable in the current circumstances and
supported by sufficient available data and other information,
selects inputs that are consistent with the characteristics
of the asset or liability considered by market participants
in transactions for the relevant asset or liability, and gives
preference to relevant observable inputs whenever possible.
Where relevant observable inputs are not available or not
practicable to obtain, unobservable inputs are used.

Impairment of financial instruments

The Company conducts impairment accounting for financial
assets measured at amortized cost on the basis of expected
credit losses and recognizes loss reserves.

Expected credit losses, which are the weighted average of credit
losses on financial instruments weighted by the risk of default,
are recognized. Credit losses, which are the present value of the
difference between all contractual cash flows receivable under
the contract and all cash flows expected to be collected by the
company discounted at the original effective interest rate, i.e,
the present value of the entire cash shortfall. In particular, for
financial assets purchased or originated by the company that are
credit impaired, they should be discounted at the credit-adjusted
effective interest rate of the financial assets.

For receivables resulting from transactions governed by the
accounting standards of revenue recognition, the company
applies the simplified measurement method and measures the
allowance for losses at an amount equal to the expected credit
losses over the entire life of the receivables.

For financial assets that are purchased or originated with
credit impairment, only the cumulative changes in expected
credit losses throughout their lives since initial recognition are
recognized as a provision for losses at the balance sheet date. At
each balance sheet date, the amount of the change in expected
credit losses over the entire life of the asset is recognized as an
impairment loss or gain in profit or loss. Favorable changes in
expected credit losses are recognized as impairment gains even
if the expected credit losses determined at that balance sheet
date for the entire life of the asset are less than the amount of
expected credit losses reflected in the estimated cash flows at
the time of initial recognition.



PR ERRXAEEITE AN X
RERNB R EERBENINHA
ERMAT, ARBESIETAGRE
B HEXERIANEAXNKRE
MpHINEEEEEZRM, F&
RTIBEDITEERKES.
BN E IR R HZ B!

MRzzMITENEANKRBENSA
WINRFHAREZEM, LFH—M
B, WRES T zem TARK
ROMBATHRERRANEZIMITE
HiKES, ARRBRKERTME
FRF T BEF BN

MRzEMITENEHENKRBE ISR
MIANGEEZEREMENRLRERER
BEN, LFEZME, NiZERAE
ST zZERMITEENEFLHANTEN
ERRANETITEARKES,
FIZ R IK R BN KR F KT B A
BN

NMRZEMITEABVBEHIAGEES
REERBRERN, RTFE=MNEK,
ARBRBHEITZEMITAEZD
FEHEAMBERRANEZIOE
HiRRES, FAEBRMBRMAEMSE
FRA R EFBWN

THRIAEGERMAEFNIE MK
B8, FEARERKAFEFITA
SR m. RO EXNUAR AN ELT
EFHZHMIHTANEMEERaNE
BTN, ERIBKE SN ER
AEMNKERT. FFOLERUA
ANMETEERETHITANEMES
WHENEMAS, 2T EHME
G mPHINEERRAxES, ©
WML EZERETERT ARERT
TBIMKE N E o

AABEF —2HHIEE S %R

STEMITABINELANTIGE
BREANEHITETHRRES, B

FHMATAGERR, 2R IA
ENBRETEVNEHIAGERXK
EERMBNBIEL, xRFEHH
RFafRkBERES T RRKLLZD
ARAMBMERBRANETIMITERE
MIENBKES, AIEEKRIR
KEENRKOEHENRERNSIT
NEHBE .

Annual Report 2023

For financial assets other than those for which simplified
measurement methods and purchased or originated credit
impairment have been applied as described above, the Company
assesses at each balance sheet date whether the credit risk of
the relevant financial instruments has increased significantly
since initial recognition and measures the allowance for
losses, recognizes expected credit losses and changes therein,
respectively, in accordance with the following circumstances:

If the credit risk of the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and is in the first stage, the
allowance for losses is measured at an amount equal to the expected
credit loss over the next 12 months and interest income is calculated
based on the carrying amount and effective interest rate.

If the credit risk of the financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition but no credit impairment has occurred, and
is in the second stage, the allowance for losses is measured at an
amount equal to the expected credit loss over the entire life of the
financial instrument, and interest income is calculated based on the
carrying amount and effective interest rate.

If the financial instrument has been credit impaired since initial
recognition and is in the third stage, the Company measures its loss
allowance at an amount equal to the expected credit loss over the
entire life of the financial instrument and calculates interest income
based on the amortized cost and effective interest rate.

The amount of increase or reversal of the allowance for credit losses
on financial instruments is recognized as impairment loss or gain in
profit or loss. Except for financial assets classified as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, the allowance
for credit losses is offset against the carrying amount of the financial
assets. For financial assets classified as at fair value through other
comprehensive income, the Company recognizes a provision for credit
losses in other comprehensive income without reducing the carrying
amount of the financial assets presented in the balance sheet.

If the Company has measured the allowance for losses in the previous
accounting period at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
over the entire life of the financial instrument, but at the balance
sheet date of the current period, the financial instrument is no longer
subject to a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Company measures the allowance for losses on the financial
instrument at the balance sheet date of the current period at an
amount equal to the expected credit losses over the next 12 months,
and the resulting reversal of the allowance for losses is recognized as
an impairment gain in profit or loss for the current period.
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Significant increase in credit risk

The Company determines whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default of the financial instrument
at the balance sheet date with the risk of default at the
initial recognition date using reasonable and substantiated
forwardlooking information that is available. For financial
guarantee contracts, the Company uses the date on which the
Company becomes a party to an irrevocable commitment as
the initial recognition date when applying the provisions for
impairment of financial instruments.

The Company considers the following factors when assessing
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:

1) Whether there is a significant change in the actual or expected
results of operations of the debtor.

2) Whether there has been a significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic or technological environment in which
the debtor operates.

3) Whether there have been significant changes in the value of
collateral pledged as security for the debt or in the quality of
guarantees or credit enhancements provided by third parties
that are expected to reduce the debtor's economic incentive
to repay the debt by the contractual deadline or to affect the
probability of default.

4) Whether there is a significant change in the expected
performance and repayment behavior of the debtor.

5) Whether there are any changes in the Company's approach to
credit management of financial instruments, etc.

On the balance sheet date, if the company determines that
a financial instrument has only low credit risk, the company
assumes that the credit risk of the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition. A financial
instrument is considered to have low credit risk if the risk of
default is low, the borrower’s ability to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the short term is strong, and the borrower’s
ability to meet its contractual cash flow obligations may not
necessarily be reduced even if there are adverse changes in
economic conditions and business environment in the longer
term.

Financial assets that are credit impaired

A financial asset becomes credit impaired when one or more
events occur that have an adverse effect on the expected future
cash flows of the financial asset. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit impaired includes the following observable information:
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1) Significant financial difficulties on the part of the issuer or the
debtor;

2) Breach of contract by the debtor, such as default or
delinquency in the payment of interest or principal;

3) Creditors granting concessions to the debtor that the debtor

would not otherwise make, due to economic or contractual
considerations related to the debtor’s financial difficulties;

4) A high probability of bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization of the debtor;

5) The disappearance of an active market for the financial asset as
a result of the financial difficulties of the issuer or the debtor;

6) The purchase or origin of a financial asset at a significant
discount that reflects the fact that a credit loss has occurred.

Credit impairment of a financial asset may be the result of a
combination of events and may not necessarily be the result of
separately identifiable events.

Determination of expected credit losses

The Company evaluates expected credit losses on financial
instruments on an individual and portfolio basis, and considers
reasonable and substantiated information regarding past
events, current conditions, and projections of future economic
conditions when evaluating expected credit losses.

The Company classifies financial instruments into different
portfolios based on common credit risk characteristics. The
common credit risk characteristics used by the Company include:
type of financial instrument, credit risk rating, aging portfolio,
overdue aging portfolio, etc. The individual evaluation criteria
and portfolio credit risk characteristics of the relevant financial
instruments are detailed in the accounting policies of the
relevant financial instruments.

The Company determines the expected credit losses on the
related financial instruments in accordance with the following
methods:

1) For financial assets, credit losses are the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows receivable by
the Company and the cash flows expected to be received.

2) For lease receivables, the credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flow that the
Company should receive and the cash flow that is expected to
be received.
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3) For financial guarantee contracts, the credit loss is the present
value of the difference between the expected payment to be
made by the Company to the holder of the contract for credit
losses incurred by the holder of the contract, less the amount
expected to be collected by the company from the holder of
the contract, the debtor or any other party.

4) For financial assets that are credit impaired at the balance
sheet date but not purchased or originated with credit
impairment, the credit loss is the difference between the
carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original
effective interest rate.

The Company's method of measuring expected credit
losses on financial instruments reflects factors such as: the
weightedaverage amount of unbiased probability determined
by evaluating a range of possible outcomes, the time value of
money, and reasonable and substantiated information about
past events, current conditions and projections of future
economic conditions that is available at the balance sheet date
without unnecessary additional cost or effort.

Write-down of financial assets

When the Company no longer has a reasonable expectation that
the contractual cash flows from a financial asset will be fully or
partially recovered, the carrying amount of the financial asset is
written down directly. Such write-down constitutes derecognition
of the related financial assets.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately
in the balance sheet and are not offset against each other.
However, if the following conditions are also met, they are
presented in the balance sheet as the net amount after offsetting
each other:

The Company has a legal right to offset the recognized amounts and
such legal right is currently enforceable.

The Company plans to settle on a net basis, or to realize the financial
asset and settle the financial liability simultaneously.
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Notes receivable

Determining method and accounting treatment method of
expected credit loss of notes receivable.

Details of the Company's methods of determining the expected
credit loss of notes received and the methods of accounting
treatment are set out in this section/ (10) 6.Impairment of
financial instruments.

Categories of portfolios for which allowances are established
based on a combination of credit risk characteristics and the basis
for determining them

The Company determines its credit losses separately for notes
receivable that are sufficiently evidenced to assess expected
credit losses at a reasonable cost at a single instrument level.

When it is not possible to assess sufficient evidence of expected
credit loss at reasonable cost at single instrument level, the
Company, taking into account the experience of historical credit
loss, combines the current situation and judgment of future
economic conditions, divides the notes receivable into several
combinations according to the credit risk characteristics, and
calculates the expected credit loss on a combination basis. The
combination is based on the following:
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B AT FHR (E B K Y 75 9 I 3B
PN ERERRBEHESHARK,
SHERMITAHERELEZEZUGER K
HEFMAERMRRNTEDIERER,
KRNBEERELERMEER, &
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PGB Combination name T AEE B KIE

TRKIETT  Risk-free bank HEAAEBRSW
e t t e

AR ERA ;gﬁfoﬁgce”” ERITE, Bt

a REEREREN,

15 B H K KBk

£, TRBRETT

ﬁﬁfﬁAHﬂ,%uw
X EWEENR®R

K@ EAE A  Not overdue HEARBREN
= commercial SR

AL TR acceptance bil ERME, ML L

a portfolio REREZREERY,

BREHBEAR

Basis for determining TR 75 % Method for accrual

the combination

The issuer has a high S2ERLEA Refer to the experience

credit rating, no paper S 4zLs 4 of historical credit

default in history, the Lﬂ‘%jgf\’ - loss, combined with

risk of credit loss is BB current conditions and

very low, meeting the RNk Zx  expectations of future

obligation to pay the s R economic conditions

contract cash flow in RIRBI TN to measure bad debt

the short term is very EFRKEE provisions

strong

The issuer has a 2E[[$EH  Refer to the experience

high credit rating, no oA 4RO 4t of historical credit

default on the note }m%jgf\’ - loss, combined with

in history, and no SEHBKRRL current conditions and

overdue acceptance RNk ez x  expectations of future
s i economic conditions
RIRBIFNAIT to measure bad debt
ERKESE provisions
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12, UK R 12.  Accounts receivable
NI KT EAE B AN E A Determining method and accounting treatment method of the
SEREITANE 5 5E expected credit loss of accounts receivable
AN T X R U K Zh B9 $ BB (= B I5 Ak Details of the Company's methods of determining the expected
NiBE R ERSITAE G EFLAE credit loss of accounts receivable and the methods of accounting
ZET/(006. S TERE, treatment are set out in this section /(10) 6.Impairment of
financial instruments.
BREBNXKRSIEAS TR K Categories of portfolios for which allowances are established
ZBHESED N T RIE based on a combination of credit risk characteristics and the
basis for determining them
KAABNEBRINMTEEZEEUSER The Company separately determines credit losses on accounts
KT HMEBERIR AN RO IEIEN receivable for which sufficient evidence of expected credit
MY ESemmEEERR%. losses can be assessed at the individual instrument level at a
reasonable cost.
LYEBETNMTERELEUS B A& When it is impossible to assess the sufficient evidence of
TEEFNER E RN 7D I, expected credit loss at a reasonable cost at the level of a single
ANBBERHEEHEMKEZEYE, & tool, the Company refers to historical credit loss experience,
S WETROR U R W R SEZ TR H combines the current situation and the judgment of the future
FIBT, K385 B X Q4 1E B L W K economic situation, and divides the receivables into several
YO NEFLES, THSEM £ combinations based on the characteristics of credit risk, and
TEMBERARELE. BEAESH K calculate expected credit losses on a combined basis. The basis
‘BT for determining the combination is as follows:
HE 7R Combination name  HMEHLHEHMKIE  Basis for determining R 54 Method for accrual
the combination
FEEARM U Accounts 5%&xBt 208 Accounts receivable BEREERAML  Expected credit losses is
e = receivable from B R Lk T 2 with various related R stoauatye  Measured by reference
Tk =% related parties Y I M T 5 parties 23, HEHH 4\* to historical credit loss
ARSI R K LZ T experience, taking into
ORI & account current conditions
o "~ and expectations of future
HERBRK economic conditions
EEIMIHIE  Non-separate ZemNiRtkE  External accounts BWH 5B ANEL Provision is based on the
Fun e mis  provision for AN = receivable from HRsmHA (= @18 4 ageing of the accounts
TRA 15 A 4 expected {EE’J\\ L”(&%ﬁ unrelated parties ’\H%)‘“HTE'%L\SEK against the expected credit
KBS, credit losses of gIRMIXBIIEX  that have not been Xf R &R IT 1R loss rate for the entire
W g = external accounts B 75 41 2B 7 U ¢ individually tested for duration

receivable

B
A

impairment and that

are not subject to
separate testing
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Financing receivables

Determining method and accounting treatment method of the
expected credit losses in the financing of receivables

Notes receivable classified as measured at fair value and will have
their changes accounted for in other comprehensive income with
a maturity of one year or less, from the date of initial recognition
are presented as the method of determining expected credit
losses and for receivables financing. Those with a maturity of more
than one year from the date of initial recognition are presented as
other debt investments. Its related accounting treatment policy is
detailed in this section/ (10) Financial instruments.

Other receivables

Determination method and accounting treatment method of
expected credit loss of other receivables

Details of the Company's methods of determining the expected
credit loss of other receivables and the methods of accounting
treatment are set out in this section/ (10) 6. Impairment of
financial instruments.

Categories of portfolios for which allowances are established
based on a combination of credit risk characteristics and the
basis for determining them

The Company separately determines credit losses on other
receivables for which sufficient evidence of expected credit
losses can be assessed at the individual instrument level for a
reasonable cost.

When sufficient evidence of expected credit losses cannot
be evaluated at a reasonable cost at the level of a individual
instrument, the Company refers to historical credit loss
experience, combines current situations and judgments on
future economic situations and divides other receivables into
several combinations based on credit risk characteristics, and
calculate expected credit losses on a combined basis. The basis
for determining the combination is as follows:

Portofolio name

BER

XEAREN
% H A N URR

3F 2 I it 1R T
HERBRER
S B8 H Ath [ 1R

E=d
A

Related parties
and other
receivables
without risk

Non-separate
provision for
expected
credit losses of
external other
receivables

WEHSKIE

5& XK ZIEH
HAMW R RIE
. EAEER.
RS

2 8RN R OR(E
By R EREM
Mt B9 3F K BX 75 9h
BB H [z R

Basis for determining TR A% Method of accrual
portofolio
Other receivables with & Z[F £ {E A Reference to historical
various related parties, . ,zge 4w Creditloss experience,
guarantee deposits, = R E combined with current
standby loans, and export IR R IFAR  conditions and expected
tax refunds S 2 0O OR B credit losses for future
i " economic conditions
H{ERARK

External other receivables
from unrelated parties
that have not been
individually tested for
impairment and that are
not subject to separate
testing

e RN
4 58 T 5 15 PR R
S IR

Provision is made on the
basis of ageing against
the expected credit

loss rate for the entire
duration of the accounts
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Inventory

Inventory category, issue valuation method, inventory system,
depreciation method for low-value consumables and packaging

Classification of inventories

Inventories refers to finished products or merchandise
possessed by the Company for sale in the daily of business, or
work in progress in the process of production, or materials and
supplies to be consumed in the process of production or offering
labor service. Mainly includes raw materials, revolving materials,
packaging materials, goods in progress, self-made semi-finished
products, finished goods (commodity stocks), goods in transit,
etc.

Measurement method of inventory

Inventories are initially measured in light of the cost when they
are obtained, including preparation costs, processing costs and
other costs. Inventories are priced by the weighted average
method at the end of the month.

Inventory count system

Perpetual inventory system is adopted.

Amortization method of low-value consumables and packaging
materials

One-off write-off method is amortized using for low-value
consumables.

One-off write-off method is amortized using for packaging materials.

Other revolving materials are amortised using one-off write-off
method.

Criteria for recognizing and accounting method for inventory
impairment

At the end of the period, the provision for inventory decline is
made or adjusted at the lower of cost or net realizable value. The
net realizable value of finished goods, inventory and materials
for sale, which are directly used for sale, is determined in the
normal course of production and operation as the estimated
selling price of the inventory less estimated selling expenses and
related taxes. The net realizable value of materials for processing
is determined in the normal course of production and operation
as the estimated selling price of the finished goods produced
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less estimated costs to be incurred to completion, estimated
selling expenses and related taxes. The net realizable value
of inventory held for the execution of sales contracts or labor
contracts is calculated on the basis of the contract price. If the
quantity of inventory held exceeds the quantity ordered in the
sales contract, the net realizable value of the excess inventory is
calculated on the basis of the general sales price.

At the end of the period, the provision for inventory impairment
are accrued according to a single inventory item. However, for
the inventory with large quantity and low unit price, the provision
for inventory impairment are accrued according to the inventory
category. For the inventory related to the product series
produced and sold in the same region, with the same or similar
end use or purpose, and difficult to be measured separately from
other items, the provision for inventory impairment are accrued
in combination.

If the influencing factors of the previously written down inventory
value have disappeared, the written down amount shall be
recovered and reversed within the amount of the originally
accrued provision for inventory impairment, and the provision
amount shall be included in the current profit and loss.

Long-term equity investment
Determination of initial investment cost

For the long-term equity investment formed by the business
combination, the specific accounting policies are detailed in the
accounting treatment of business combination under common control
and not under common control as set out in this chapter/ (6).

Long-term equity investments acquired by other means

For a long-term equity investment acquired by cash, its initial
cost is the actually paid purchase cost. The initial cost includes
expenses directly related to the acquisition of long-term equity
investments, taxes and other expenses.

For a long-term equity investment acquired from issuance of
equity securities, its initial cost is the fair value of the issued
equity securities. The transaction cost incurred in the issuance or
acquisition of equity instruments is deducted from equity if it is
attributable to equity transactions.
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Under the premise that the exchange of non-monetary asset
has the commercial substance and the fair value of the assets
received or surrendered can be reliably measured, the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity investment acquired in
exchange for non-monetary assets is determined based on the
fair value of the assets exchanged, unless there is conclusive
evidence that the fair value of the assets transferred is more
reliable. For the exchange of non-monetary asset that do not
meet the above premise, the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investment is the carrying amount of the assets
exchanged and the related taxes and fees payable.

For a long-term equity investment acquired from debt
restructuring, its initial cost is determined based on the fair
value.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit and losses
Cost method

The long-term equity investment that the Company can control
over the investee is accounted for using the cost method, and
the cost of the long-term equity investment is adjusted by adding
or recovering the investment according to the initial investment
cost.

Except for the actual payment or the cash dividends or profits
included in the consideration that have been announced but
not yet paid, the Company recognizes the current investment
income according to the cash dividends or profits declared to be
distributed by the investee.

Equity method

The Company's long-term equity investments in associates
and joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method,
and some of the equity investments in associates that are
indirectly held by venture capital institutions, mutual funds,
trust companies or similar entities including investment-linked
insurance funds are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

If the cost of initial investment is in excess of the proportion of
the fair value of the net identifiable assets in the investee when
the investment is made, the difference will not be adjusted to
the initial cost of the long-term equity investments. If the cost of
initial investment is in short of the proportion of the fair value of
the net identifiable assets in the investee when the investment
is made, the difference will be included in the current profit and
loss.
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After obtaining the long-term equity investment, the Company
shall recognize the investment income and other comprehensive
income according to the share of net profit and loss and other
comprehensive income realized by the investee that is entitled
or should be shared, and adjust the carrying amount of the long-
term equity investment. Reducing the carrying amount of the
long-term equity investment based on portion of the profit or
cash dividend declared to be distributed by the investee. And for
other changes in the owner's equity other than the net profit or
loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution of the
investee, the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment
is adjusted and included in the owner's equity.

When recognising the share of the net profit or loss of the
investee, the Company shall adjust and recognize the net profit
of the investee based on the fair value of the identifiable assets
of the investee at the time of obtaining the investment. The
unrealized internal transaction gains and losses between the
Company and the associates and joint ventures shall be offset
against the portion attributable to the Company in accordance
with the proportion to be enjoyed, on the basis of which the
investment gains and losses are recognized.

When the Company recognizes the losses incurred by the
investee that it should share, the Company shall deal with it in
the following order: First, offset the carrying amount of the long-
term equity investment. Secondly, if the carrying amount of
the long-term equity investment is not enough to be offset, the
investment loss will continue to be recognized to the extent of
carrying amount of other long-term equity that constitutes a net
investment in the investee, and the carrying amount of the long-
term receivables is offset. Finally, after the above-mentioned
treatment, if the enterprise still bears additional obligations
in accordance with the investment contract or agreement, the
estimated liabilities are recognized according to the estimated
obligations and included in the current investment losses.

If the investee becomes profitable in a subsequent period, the
Company proceeds in the reverse order of the above, after the
reduction of book balance of the recognized estimated liabilities
and recovery of the other long-term interest that constitute the
net investment of the investee and carrying amount of long-term
equity investment, the Company shall restore the investment
income.

Conversion of accounting methods of long-term equity

investment

Fair value measurement to equity method accounting
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The equity investment originally held by the Company that does
not have control, joint control or significant influence on the
investee, which is accounted as financial instrument under the
recognition and measurement criteria, can exert significant
influence on the investee or jointly control but does not
constitute control due to additional investment and otherwise, its
initial investment cost shall be the fair value of the original equity
investment held in accordance with the "Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of

Financial Instruments" plus the sum of new investment cost.

If the initial investment cost calculated by the equity method is
less than the fair value share of the identifiable net assets of
the investee on the additional investment date determined by
the new shareholding ratio after the additional investment, the
carrying amount of the long-term equity investment is adjusted
and included in the current non-operating revenue.

Conversion method of fair value measurement or equity method
measurement to cost method measurement

If the equity investment originally held by the Company that does
not have control, joint control or significant influence on the
investee and which is accounted as financial instrument under
the financial instrument recognition and measurement criteria,
or the long-term equity investment originally held in associates
or joint venture, can exercise control over the investee not under
common control due to additional investment or otherwise, in
the preparation of individual financial statements, the sum of the
carrying amount of the equity investment originally held and the
new investment cost shall be regarded as the initial investment
cost under cost method.

The other comprehensive income recognized by the equity
method in respect of the equity investment originally held before
the purchase date is accounted for on the same basis as the
investee directly disposes of the relevant assets or liabilities
when the equity method is terminated.

If equity investments were held before the purchase date and
accounted for according to "Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of Financial
Instruments", any previously recognized cumulative change in fair
value in other comprehensive income is transferred to current
profit or loss when changing to the cost method.
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Equity method measurement to fair value measurement

If the Company loses joint control or significant influence over
an investee for reasons such as disposal of a portion of its
equity investment, the remaining equity interest after disposal
is accounted for in accordance with "Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments", and the difference between its fair value
and carrying amount at the date when joint control or significant
influence is lost, is recognized in the current profit or loss.

The other comprehensive income recognized in respect of the
original equity investment using the equity method is accounted
for on the same basis as the investee directly disposes of
the relevant assets or liabilities when the equity method is
terminated.

Cost method to equity method

If the Company loses control over the investee due to the
disposal of part of the equity investmentetc., in the preparation
of individual financial statements, if the remaining equity after
disposal can exercise joint control or exert significant influence
on the investee, equity method is adopted for accounting, and
the remaining equity is treated as an adjustment to the equity
method when it is acquired.

Cost method to fair value measurement

If the Company loses control over the investee due to the
disposal of part of the equity investmentetc., in the preparation
of individual financial statements,the remaining equity after
disposal cannot jointly control or exert significant influence
on the investee, the relevant provisions of the "Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and
Measurement of Financial Instruments" are adopted. The
difference between the fair value and the carrying amount when
joint control or significant influence is lost, is recognized in the
current profit or loss.

Disposal of long-term equity investments

For the disposal of long-term equity investment, the difference
between the carrying amount and the actual purchase price
shall be included in the current profit and loss. For the long-term
equity investment accounted for using the equity method, when
the investment is disposed, the part that is originally included in
the other comprehensive income is accounted for in the same
proportion based on the same basis as the investee directly
disposes of the relevant assets or liabilities.
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If the terms, conditions and economic impact of each transaction
dealing with the equity investment of the subsidiary satisfy one
or more of the following cases, the multiple transactions are
treated as a package transaction:

The transactions are simultaneously made or with consideration of
each other's influence.

Only when the transactions are as a whole, can they achieve a
complete business outcome.

The occurrence of a transaction depends on the occurrence of at least
one of others.

A transaction is not economical on its own, but it is economical when
considered together with others.

Where the loss of control over the original subsidiary due to
disposal of part of the equity investment or otherwise, which
does not belong to a package transaction, the individual financial
statements and combined financial statements shall be classified
for relevant accounting treatment:

In the individual financial statements, the difference between the
carrying amount of the disposed equity and the actual purchase
price is included in the current profit and loss. If the remaining equity
after disposal can exert joint control or significant influence on the
investee, it shall be accounted for under the equity method, and the
residual equity shall be deemed to be adjusted by equity method
when it is acquired. If the remaining equity after disposal shall not
exert joint control or significant influence over the investee, it shall be
measured by the relevant provisions of the "Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No.22-Recognition and Measurement of
Financial Instruments", and the difference between the fair value and
the carrying amount on the date of loss of control is included in the
current profit and loss.

In the consolidated financial statements, for each transaction
before the loss of control over the subsidiary, capital reserve (share
premium) is adjusted for the difference between the disposal price
and the share of the net assets that the subsidiary has continuously
calculated from the date of purchase or the merger date; if the
capital reserve is insufficient to offset, the retained earnings shall be
adjusted; when the control of the subsidiary is lost, the remaining
equity shall be re-measured according to its fair value on the date
of loss of control. The sum of the consideration for the disposal of
the equity and the fair value of the remaining equity, less the share
of the net assets that have been continuously calculated from the
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date of purchase calculated based on the original shareholding, are
included in the investment income for the period of loss of control,
while reducing goodwill.Other comprehensive income related to the
original subsidiary's equity investment will be converted into current
investment income when control is lost.

If per transaction on disposal of the equity investment in
a subsidiary until the loss of control, belongs to a package
transaction, each transaction is accounting for as a transaction
to dispose of the equity investment of the subsidiary with loss of
control, and should be distinguished between individual financial
statements and combined financial statements:

In individual financial statements, the difference between the disposal
price and the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment
corresponding to the disposed equity before the loss of control is
recognized as other comprehensive income, and when the control
is lost, it is transferred to profit or loss for the period of the loss of
control.

In the consolidated financial statements, the difference between each
disposal price and the disposal investment that has the share of the
net assets of the subsidiary before the loss of control is recognized as
other comprehensive income, and transferred to profit or loss for the
period of the loss of control.

Judging criteria for joint control and significant impact

If the Company collectively controls an arrangement in
accordance with the relevant agreement, and the activity
decision that has a significant impact on the return of the
arrangement needs to be agreed upon by the parties sharing
the control, it is considered that the Company and other parties
jointly control the arrangement, and therefore constitutes a joint
venture arrangement.

If the joint venture arrangement is reached through a separate
entity and it determines that the Company has rights to the net
assets of the separate entity in accordance with the relevant
agreement, the separate entity is regarded as a joint venture
and is accounted for using the equity method. If it is judged
according to the relevant agreement that the Company does not
have rights to the net assets of the separate entity, the separate
entity acts as a joint operation, and the Company recognizes the
items related to the share of the common operating interests and
conducts accounting treatment in accordance with the relevant
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.
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)

Significant influence refers to the investor's power to participate
in the decision-making of the financial and operating policies
of the investee, but it cannot control or jointly control the
preparation of these policies. Taking into account all facts and
circumstances, the Company has a significant influence on the
investee under one or more of the following situations:

@ Representation on the Board of Directors or similar authority
of the investee.

@Participation in the preparation of financial and business policy
of the investee.

@ Significant transactions with investees.

@ Assignment of management personnel to investees.

® Provides key technical information to the investee.

Fixed Asset

Recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets refer to tangible assets held for the purpose of
producing goods, providing labor services, renting or operating
management, and having a useful life of more than one fiscal
year. Fixed assets are recognized when they meet the following
conditions:

It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the fixed
asset will flow to the enterprise.
The cost of the fixed asset can be measured reliably.

Depreciation method

Depreciation on fixed assets is provided over their estimated
useful life based on their recorded value less estimated net
salvage value. For fixed assets that provision for impairment has
been made, depreciation is determined in future periods on the
basis of the carrying amount net of provision for impairment
and the remaining useful life. Fixed assets that have been fully
depreciated and continue to be used are not depreciated.

The Company determines the useful life and estimated net
salvage values of fixed assets based on the nature and use of
the fixed assets. The useful life, estimated net salvage values and
depreciation methods of fixed assets are reviewed at the end of
the year, and adjustments are made accordingly if there are any
difference from the original estimates.

The depreciation methods, useful life, and annual depreciation
rates for various types of fixed assets are as follows:
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el Category EilI=par #r 1R F R () REX FEXR
Method of depreciation Useful Life (year)  Residual ratio (%)  Annual Depreciation
Rate (%)
BEERERY Buildings and F R FI % 20-30 5.00% 3.17%-4.75%
constructions Straight-line method
Mg % Machinery and 4 R P39 5% 5-10 5.00% 9.50%-19.00%
equipment Straight-line method
EZHIR Carriers F R T E 5 5.00% 19.00%
Straight-line method
Hig& Others equipment  FE[RFi§7% 5 5.00% 19.00%
Straight-line method
18. #EETIRE 18. Construction in progress
(1) HTEBIEWEIIE (1) Initial measurement of construction in process
AABBITRENTR TRZEXM The actual construction cost of the construction in progress
B AT A, SERR AR AN B S % I A is determined by the actual expenses incurred before the
FREMER ARSI A ER construction of the asset reaches the intended usable condition,
HEXZHM, BEFETIEBY AN including the cost of project materials, labor costs, relevant taxes
K ANIEAR . XHNEXTRE. payable, capitalized borrowing costs, and indirect costs that
R F 25 A5 10 B9 18 30 28 FB LA e [ 99 should be apportioned.
MR-
2) HEBIFLZENETEEFHIEM (2) Criteria for and time point of construction in progress to convert

Bt =2

EEIENMERESEZMA AL
MEAFEARSHRMEAEN2BE
H, FREERFHANKNE. FT
BEMNETERIRECRAIMETFEHA
RS, BEFDEBBITRAERN, B
AMEAFERARSZHE, RIBT
BME . ENWELERMRAASE,
BETHNERANEER, HIZ
KRB)EERFITABRKITIRETE
AERITH, FHEBRTIRAERS, B
BRPRA A B RRNEGNE,
EBEREEREITIRNITIEM

into fixed asset

The total expenditure incurred before the construction projects
constructed to reach the intended usable condition shall be
recorded as the value of the fixed assets. The construction of
fixed assets under construction has reached the intended use
of the state, but has not yet completed the final accounts, since
the scheduled use of the date of use, according to the project
budget, cost or actual project costs, according to the estimated
value into fixed Assets and depreciation of fixed assets in
accordance with the depreciation policy of the company's fixed
assets. After the completion of the final accounts, the original
estimated value shall be adjusted according to the actual cost,
but the original depreciation amount shall not be adjusted.
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Intangible assets

Useful life and the basis for its determination, estimation,

amortisation method, or review procedure

Intangible assets refer to identifiable non-monetary assets
owned or controlled by the Company without physical form,
including land use right, software license, exclusive license, non-
patented technology, etc.

Initial measurement of intangible assets

The costs of external purchase of intangible assets comprise the
purchase price, related tax and surcharges and any other directly
attributable expenditure incurred to prepare the asset for its
intended use. If payments for the purchase of intangible assets
are extended beyond the normal credit terms with financing
nature, the costs of intangible assets are determined on the
basis of present values of the purchase prices.

For intangible assets obtained from debtors in settlement of
liabilities in case of debt restructuring, they should be initially
stated at their fair value. Differences between the book value and
the fair value of the intangible assets are charged to profit or loss
for the current period.

If the exchange of non-monetary assets has commercial
substance, and the fair value of these assets can be measured
reliably, the book-entry value of intangible assets traded-in
are based on the fair value of the intangible assets traded-out
unless there is any conclusive evidence that the fair value of
the assets traded-in are more reliable. If the exchange of non-
monetary assets does not meet the above criteria, the cost of
the intangible assets traded-in should be the book value of the
assets traded-out and relevant taxe and surcharges paid, and no
profit or loss shall be recognized.

For intangible assets obtained through business absorption
or mergers of entities under common control, the entry value
is determined by the carrying amount of the combined party.
For intangible assets obtained through business absorption
or mergers not under common control, the entry value is
determined by the fair value of the intangible assets.

The cost of an internally developed intangible asset include:
the materials consumed in developing the intangible asset,
labor costs, registration fees, amortization of other patents and
licenses used in the development process, interest expenses
meeting capitalization conditions, and other direct costs for
bringing the intangible asset to the intended usable condition.
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Subsequent measurement of intangible assets

The Company determines the useful life of intangible assets on
acquisition, which are classified as intangible assets with finite
useful life and those with indefinite useful life.

1) Intangible asset with a limited life

Intangible asset with a finite useful life is depreciated using
straight-line method over the term when it brings economic
benefit to the Company. The estimated useful life and basis for
the intangible assets with a limited life are as follows:

Hon KB T

ltem Wit fEAEe Estimated useful i Basis
life

LT HifE A Land use right 50 £ 50years RIFIHMEABEEFERER The legal useful life
according to the land
use right
WE#E AN Software license 54 5 years TR IE T 15 FB HA PR & 1t The legal useful life
according to the land
use right
B B Exclusive license 5-10 & 5to 10 years R IR 3t 155 BB HA PR 1 it Estimated based on
expected useful life
FEEZEFEAR  Non-patent 10 £ 10 years WRIEFN T B EAR T Estimated based on
technology expected useful life

BHX, WEBEHERNELHE
FRERFmAEE R EAEITER,
MEREGTBEEERD, #H1T
GERVAESRIEE:- 38

2EZ, AEAPRRELESNER
%up&%fﬁﬁ%%%ﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ?
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The useful life and depreciation method of intangible assets with
finite useful life are reassessed at the end of each period. If the
original estimate varies, corresponding adjustments are made.

Upon reassessment, at the end of the period there was no
difference in the useful life and depreciation method of
intangible assets from the previous estimates.

2) Intangible assets with indefinite useful life

If the term of economic benefit the intangible asset can bring
to the Company cannot be estimated, it is deemed to be an
intangible asset with indefinite useful life.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful life are not amortized
during the holding period. The useful life of intangible assets
with indefinite life is reassessed at the end of each period. If
it is reassessed to remain indefinite at the end of the period,
impairment tests shall be conducted during each accounting
period.
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Scope of attribution of R&D expenditures and related accounting
treatment

Specific criteria in dividing the research stage and development stage
of internal research and development projects of the Company

Research stage: the stage of original and planned investigation
and research activities to acquire and understand new scientific or
technological knowledge.

Development stage: the stage of applying research results or other
knowledge to a plan or design to produce new or substantially
improved materials, devices, products and other activities before

commercial production or use.

Expenses for the research stage of internal research and development
projects are charged to current profit or loss as incurred.

Specific criteria of expenses met for capitalization during development
stage

Expenditure on the development stage is capitalized only when the
Company can demonstrate all of the following:

1) The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale.

2) Intention to complete the intangible asset and either use or
sellit.

3) The way in which the intangible asset produces economic
benefits includes demonstrating the existence of a market for
the product that will be created using the intangible asset or
for the intangible asset itself. Additionally, it is important to
demonstrate the usefulness of the intangible asset if it is to be
used internally.

4) The availability of adequate technical, financial and other re-
sources to complete the development and the ability to use or
sell the intangible asset.

5) The expenditure attributable to the development stage of the
intangible assets can be reliably measured.

Taking into account the R&D process in thepharmaceutical industry
and the company's own R&D characteristics, the company's R&D
expenditure after the key time node or key stage of the R&D project
(in accordance with the Measures for the Administration of Drug
Registration promulgated by National Medical Products Administration
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or the review deadline stipulated by other countries to be declared,
or the "clinical trial approval document" approved, or the approval of
the international drug regulatory agency in the regulatory market, and
the related clinical research can be conducted) can be considered as
capitalized R&D expenditure; Other R&D expenses are included in the
profit or loss of the current period when incurred. On each balance
sheet date, the company assesses projects under development for
capitalization as described above. For the project no longer meet the
conditions of capitalization, the carrying amount shall be written off,
included in the current profit and loss.

Expenditures incurred in the development stage that do not meet the
above conditions shall be included in the current profit and loss in the
event of occurrence. The development expenditures which has been
included in the profit and loss shall not be reconfirmed as an asset
in the future. Capitalized expenditures in the development phase are
shown on the balance sheet as development expenditures and are
converted into intangible assets from the date when the item realizes
its intended use.

Impairment of long-term assets

On the balance sheet date, the Company determines whether
there may be a sign of a reduction in long-term assets. If there
are signs of impairment in long-term assets, the recoverable
amount is estimated on the basis of a single asset. If it is difficult
to estimate the recoverable amount of a single asset, then
determine the recoverable amount of the asset group on the
basis of the asset group that the asset belongs to.

The estimation the recoverable amount of assets is the larger
amount between the fair value deducting net cost when disposal,
and the expected value of future cash flow.

The measurement results show that when the recoverable
amount of long-term assets is lower than its book value, the
book value of long-term assets is reduced to its recoverable
amount. The reduced amount is recognized as impairment loss,
at the same time, make the corresponding provision for asset
impairment. As soon as the loss of assets is confirmed, it shall
not be returned in the subsequent accounting period.

After the asset impairment loss is confirmed, the depreciation
or amortization expenses of the impaired assets will be adjusted
accordingly in the future period so that the book value of
adjusted assets will be allocated in the remaining useful life
(deducting the estimated net residual value).
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Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives arising
from business combinations are tested annually for impairment,
regardless of whether there are any indication of impairment.

In performing the impairment test for goodwill, the book value
of goodwill would be amortized to the asset group or portfolio
group that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination. When performing the impairment test
for the relevant asset group or portfolio group containing
goodwill, if there is an indication of impairment for the asset
group or portfolio group related to goodwill, the asset group or
portfolio group that does not contain goodwill is first tested for
impairment, the recoverable amount is calculated and compared
with the relevant carrying amount, and a corresponding
impairment loss is recognized. An impairment test is then
performed on the asset group or portfolio group containing
goodwill by comparing the carrying amount of the relevant asset
group or portfolio group (including the portion of the carrying
amount of the goodwill apportioned to it) with its recoverable
amount, and an impairment loss on goodwill is recognized if
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset group or portfolio
group is less than its carrying amount.

21. KHIESHER 21. Long-term prepaid expenses

(1) #HE7Z* (1) Amortization method
KHGHER, BEARBBEE AR Long-term prepaid expenses refer to all expenses that have been
TENEAPAMUEEHNEND incurred but should be borne by the Company in the current and
MEREIFU ENEMER . K future periods and are apportioned over a period of more than
HREBERAETT R BANRESRENDH one year. Long-term prepaid expenses is amortized on a straight-
P, line basis over the benefit period.

(2) #HHEER (2)  Amortization years

Bl Category PR Amortization period

[T BB RI& I Plant decoration and design 10 & 10 years

fee
NREEEER Office renovation fee 54 5 years

198\ HEHIIRHERAF
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Contract liabilities

The Company recognizes the portion of the obligation to transfer
goods to customers for consideration received or receivable from
customers as a contractual liability.

Employee compensation

Accounting treatment of short-term remuneration

Employee remuneration refers to various forms of remuneration
or compensation given by the Company for services rendered by
employees or for the termination of employment relationships.
Employee remuneration includes short-term remuneration, post-
employment benefits, termination benefits, and other long-term
employee benefits.

Short-term remuneration is employee remuneration, other than
post-employment benefits and termination benefits, that is
payable in full within twelve months after the end of the annual
reporting period in which the employee rendered the related
service. The Company recognizes short-term remuneration
payable as a liability in the accounting period in which the
employee provides the service and includes it in the cost and
expense of the related assets based on the beneficiary of the
service provided by the employee.

Accounting treatment of post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits are all forms of compensation and
benefits, except short-term remuneration and termination
benefits, provided by the Company to obtain services
rendered by employees after their retirement or termination of
employment with the Company.

The Company's post-employment benefit plans are classified as
defined contribution plans and defined benefit plans.

Defined contribution plan of post-employment benefits refers to
the basic endowment insurance and unemployment insurance
paid for the employees organized and implemented by local
labor and social security institutions. During the accounting
period when employees render services to the group, amount
payable calculated by the base and ratio in conformity with local
regulation is recognized as liability and accounted for current
profit and loss or related cost of assets.

The Company will no longer have any other obligation to pay
after making the above-mentioned payments on a regular basis
in accordance with the standards prescribed by the State.
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Accounting treatment of termination benefits

Termination benefits refer to the compensation paid when the
Company terminates the employment relationship with employee
before the expiry of the employment contracts or provides
compensation as an offer to encourage employee to accept
voluntary redundancy. The group recognizes a liability into the
current profit or loss relative to the payment of termination
benefits, at the earlier of the date that the Company is unable to
unilaterally withdraw the plan for termination of the employment
relationship or the proposal for layoffs, and the date that the
Company recognizes a cost related to the restructuring that
involves the payment of the termination benefits.

Accounting treatment of other long-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benefits refer to all employee
benefits, except short-term employee benefits, post-employment
benefits, and termination benefits.

Provisions

Recognition criteria for provisions

A provision is recognized for an obligation related to a
contingency if all the fllowing conditions are satisfied:

The obligation is a present obligation of the Company.

It is probable that the fulfillment of this obligation will result in an
outflow of economic benefits to the Company.

The amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

Measurement method of provisions

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation.

When determining the best estimates, the Company considers
the risks, uncertainties and time value of the currency. If the time
value of money has a great influence, the Company determines
the best estimate by discounting the related future cash
outflows.

The best estimates are measured in different situation as follow:

If there is a continuous range (or interval) of the required
expenditure and the probability of the occurrence of all the
results in the range is the same, the best estimate is determined
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according to the median value of the range, which is the average
of the upper and lower limit.

Where there is no continuous range (or interval) of expenditure
requirements, or where there is a continuous range but the
probabilities of the various outcomes within the range are
not the same, the best estimate is determined on the basis of
the most probable amount to be incurred. If the contingency
relates to more than one item, the best estimate is determined
on the basis of a range of possible outcomes and associated
probabilities.

If all or part of the expenditure necessary for settling the
provision is expected to be compensated by a third party, the
amount of compensation is separately recognized as an asset
when it is basically certain to be received. The recognized
compensation amount shall not exceed the carrying amount of
the provision.

Share-based payment
Types of share-based payments

The Company's share-based payment is divided into equity-
settled share-based payment and cash-settled share-based
payment.

Determination of the fair value of equity instruments

For granted equity instruments such as options in an active
market, the fair value is determined according to the quoted
price in the active market. For the granted options and other
equity instruments that do not have an active market, the option
pricing model is used to determine their fair value. The option
pricing model is selected considering the following factors: (1)
the exercise price of the option, (2) the validity period of the
option, (3) the current price of the underlying shares, (4) the
expected volatility of the stock price, (5) the expected dividends
of the shares, (6) the risk-free interest rate during the validity
period of the option.

When determining the fair value of the equity instrument on
the grant date, the effects of market conditions and non-viable
conditions in the viability conditions set out in the share-based
payment agreement are taken into account. If there are non-
viable conditions for share-based payment, as long as employees
or other parties satisfy all non-market conditions (e.g. service
period etc.) in all viability conditions, the corresponding costs
and expenses of the services have been confirmed.

Basis for determining the best estimate of vested equity
instruments

2023FFERS /201
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On each balance sheet date during the waiting period, make the
best estimate based on the latest obtained follow-up information
such as changes in the number of exercisable employees, and
revise the estimated number of exercisable equity instruments.
On the exercise date, the final estimated number of exercisable
equity instruments is consistent with the number of those
actually exercisable.

Accounting treatment

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at the fair
value of equity instruments granted to employees. If the right
can be exercised immediately after the grant, the fair value of
the equity instrument shall be included in the relevant costs
or expenses on the grant date, and the capital reserve shall be
increased accordingly. If the option is not exercisable until the
services during the waiting period have been completed or the
required performance conditions have been met, at each balance
sheet date during the waiting period, the services acquired in
the period are recognized in the relevant costs or expenses
and capital surplus at the fair value of the equity instrument at
the date of grant, based on the best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will become exercisable. After the viable
date, no further adjustments are made to the related costs or
expenses recognized and to total owners' equity.

The cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured at
the fair value of the liabilities calculated and determined on the
basis of shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Company. If the right can be exercised immediately after the
grant, the fair value of the liabilities assumed by the Company
shall be included in the relevant costs or expenses on the grant
date, and the liabilities shall be increased accordingly. For cash-
settled share-based payments that become exercisable only
after the completion of services within the waiting period or
the fulfillment of specified performance conditions, at each
balance sheet date during the waiting period, the services
acquired in the period are recognized as a cost or expense and
the corresponding liability at the amount of the fair value of the
liabilities assumed by the Company, based on the best estimate
of the circumstances under which they will become exercisable.
On each balance sheet date and settlement date before the
settlement of the relevant liabilities, the fair value of the liabilities
is remeasured, and the changes are included in the current profit
and loss.

If the granted equity instruments are cancelled during the
waiting period, the Company treats the cancellation of the
granted equity instruments as an acceleration of the exercise
of options, and recognizes the amount to be recognized during
the remaining waiting period immediately in profit or loss and
recognizes capital surplus. If the employees or other parties can
choose to meet the non-viable conditions but not within the
waiting period, the Company will treat it as the cancellation of the
grant of equity instruments.



26.

(1)

LGN

BT b 55 28 B 18 2B I A 15 A 7l it 2
B R B9 = it B %

RRABHWERANEEZRRTOTLS

KA

EWFlam (REZRGIF~&) ME
TaRmEEmEERA
BFIFEENRS WA

W A B9 — AR IR T

ANBERBTTERTHEANS,
BP7£ & 7 BX 1S 48 X 7 an 5% Bk 55 5 )
RE, RBOBREZTBHONSH
RZMEHIAMN -

BANSE, BEEGRTEAATAE
P A% 1k BT BR A X 90 79 m 3 AR 55 BY 2K

W o

BEHEXEmENN, BEESBE
SZzEmNERAMNRRE/LFR

BB E A m o

ERBEGEFBBERINERHET
HiE, R ZERMAEEHEEM
BAXS, AMESRMBEAONS
RER—HNERANETT, ERRE—H
RET. BETIFHZ—H, BT
AR —HBERABITHEOXS,
ERBEBEAOHE, £—KRITE
WHIABN: (1)FFEEARBREAOH
EESENEN S H BEE AR BB H
RBEFMm; QFFEBIEH A
REBAOIETERNE®S; 3)FA
BRASERAFHNELERSL
AERAR, BARREENER
HENENMRITESETHNE
HE D WAL R . BN, KAFE
= P EVAS A X 7 ah AR 55 1 AN B9
BY R B IAUE N o

WNTFEX—FBRRABETHEAOXS,
ERABRIEEFRMSSHMER, X
BERNEWMEGISNBEOHE, I~
HZERREERBATPHBMXY
TEFHONEBEBRIHE RNE
EREADABTEANSZHERAN
BEBAHE), SEBAOHETES
EWHEN, RBBEZK LA

Annual Report 2023

Revenue

Accounting policies used for revenue recognition and
measurement

The Company's revenue mainly comes from the following
business types:

Revenue from sales of commodities such as biological products (APIs
and preparations), medical devices, etc.
Revenue from franchise services

General principles of revenue recognition

The Company has fulfilled the performance obligations in the
contract, that is, when the customer obtains control of the
relevant goods or services, the revenue is recognized at the
transaction price allocated to the performance obligation.

The performance obligation refers to the commitment of the
Company to transfer the goods or services that can be clearly
distinguished to the customer in the contract.

Obtaining control of related commodities means being able to
lead the use of the commodities and obtain almost all economic
benefits from them.

The Company evaluates the contract on the contract start date,
identifies the individual performance obligations contained in the
contract, and determines whether the individual performance
obligations are performed within a certain period of time or at a
certain point in time. If one of the following conditions is met, it
is a performance obligation performed within a certain period of
time. The Company recognizes revenue within a period of time
according to the progress of the performance: (1) The customer
acquires and consumes the economic benefits of the Company's
performance at the same time as the Company's performance.
(2) The customer can control the goods under construction of
the Company during the performance of the contract. (3) The
goods produced by the Company during the performance of the
contract have irreplaceable uses, and the Company has the right
to receiving money for the accumulated performance part that
has been completed so far. Otherwise, the Company recognizes
revenue when the customer obtains control of the relevant goods
or services.

For performance obligation fulfilled during a certain period
of time, the Company uses input method to determine the
appropriate performance schedule based on the nature of the
goods and services. The output method determines the progress
of performance on the basis of the value to the customer of the
goods that have been transferred to the customer (the input
method determines the progress of performance on the basis
of the inputs that the Company has made in order to fulfill its

2023FFEHRS
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performance obligations). When the performance of the contract
cannot be reasonably determined, and the Company is expected
to be reimbursed for the cost incurred, the revenue shall be
recognized according to the cost amount incurred until the
performance schedule can be reasonably determined.

Specific methods of revenue recognition

1) Revenue from sales of commodities such as biological products
(APIs and preparations), medical devices, etc.

Contracts for the sale of goods between the Company and its
customers usually contain only performance obligations for the
transfer of goods. The Company usually recognizes revenue at
the point when revenue is recognized at the point of receipt of
goods by the customer for domestic sales and at the point of
receipt of customs declaration for foreign sales after shipment
based on a combination of the following factors: acquisition of
the present right to receive the merchandise, transfer of the
principal risks and rewards of ownership of the merchandise,
transfer of legal title to the merchandise, transfer of the physical
assets of the merchandise, and acceptance of the merchandise
by the customer.

Some of the Company's contracts with customers have sales
rebate arrangements that result in variable consideration. The
Company determines the best estimate of variable consideration
based on the expected or most probable amount, provided that
the transaction price that includes variable consideration does
not exceed the amount, for which it is highly probable that there
will be no material reversal of cumulative recognized revenue,
when the related uncertainty is removed.

2) Revenue from franchise services

Contracts between the Company and its customers for the
provision of services generally contain certain performance
obligations. Since the Company's performance is simultaneous
with the customer's acquisition and consumption of the
economic benefits resulting from the Company's performance,
the Company recognizes revenue as a performance obligation
to be performed over a period of time in accordance with
the progress of performance, except where the progress of
performance cannot be reasonably determined. The Company
determines the progress of performance of services rendered
under the input method based on the proportion of costs
already incurred to the estimated total costs. When the progress
of performance cannot be reasonably determined, the Company
recognizes revenue in the amount of costs already incurred until
the progress of performance can be reasonably determined, if
the costs already incurred are expected to be reimbursed.
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Contract costs

Contract performance costs

The Company recognizes an asset as contract performance costs
if the costs incurred to perform the contract do not fall within
the scope of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
other than the Revenue Guidelines and the following conditions
are simultaneously met:

©) The cost is directly related to a current or expected contract,
including direct labor, direct materials, manufacturing expenses
(or similar expenses), clear costs borne by the customer, and
other costs incurred solely for the contract.

®) The cost increases the resources that the Company will use to
fulfill its performance obligations in the future.
® The cost is expected to be recovered.

The asset is presented in inventory or other non-current assets
based on whether the amortization period at the time of initial
recognition exceeds a normal business cycle.

Contract obtainment costs

If the incremental cost of the Company is expected to be
recovered, the contract obtainment cost is recognized as an
asset. Incremental cost refers to the cost that the Company
will not occur without obtaining a contract, such as sales
commission. For the amortisation period not exceeding one year,
it is included in the current profit and loss when it occurs.

Amortization of contract costs

The Company recognizes the above-mentioned asset related to
contract costs on the same basis as the commodity or service
income related to the asset, and amortizes it at the time when
the performance obligation is performed or in accordance with
the performance schedule of the performance obligation, and is
included in the current profit and loss.

Impairment of contract costs

For assets related to contract costs, the book value is higher
than the difference between the Company's expectation that the
goods related to the assets are expected to obtain the remaining
consideration and the estimated cost of transferring the relevant
goods, and the excess should be depreciated and confirmed as
asset impairment losses.
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After the impairment provision is accrued, if the factors of
impairment in the previous period change, so that the above
two differences are higher than the book value of the assets,
the asset impairment provision previously accrued is transferred
back to the current profit and loss, but the transferred book
value of the asset after the return does not exceed the book
value of the asset on the date of reversal under the assumption
that no impairment provision is made.

Government grants

Classification

Government grants refer to monetary and non-monetary assets
received from the government without compensation. According
to the subsidy object stipulated in the documents of relevant
government, government subsidies are divided into subsidies
related to assets and subsidies related to revenue.

Government grants related to assets is obtained by the Company
for the purposes of constructing or forming long-term assets.
Government grants related to revenue refer to the government
grants other than those related to assets.

Recognition of government grants

Government grants are recognized at the receivable amount if
there is evidence at the end of the period that the Company is
able to meet the relevant conditions stipulated in the financial
support policy and that the Company expects to receive the
financial support funds. Other than that, government grants are
recognized when they are actually received.

Government grants in the form of monetary assets are stated
at the amount received or receivable. Government grants in the
form of non-monetary assets are measured at fair value. If fair
value cannot be obtained, a nominal amount (RMB 1) is used.
Government grants that are measured at nominal amount shall
be recognized directly in current profit or loss.

Accounting treatment

The Company determines whether a particular type of
government grant operation should be accounted for using the
gross or net method based on the substance of the economic
operation. Under normal circumstances, the Company only
chooses one method for same type of or similar government-
subsidized businesses, and uses that method consistently for
that business.
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Government grants related to assets should be offset from the
book value of related assets or recognized as deferred income. If
government grants related to assets are recognized as deferred
income, they shall be included in profit and loss in installments in
accordance with a reasonable and systematic method during the
useful life of the constructed or purchased assets.

Government grants related to income that are used to
compensate the related expenses or losses of the enterprise in
the subsequent period are recognized as deferred income, and
are included in the current profit and loss during the period
when the related expenses or losses are recognized or used to
offset related costs. If they are used to compensate the related
incurred expenses or losses of the enterprise, they shall be
directly included in the current profit and loss or use to offset
the related costs.

Government grants related to the daily activities of the
enterprise are included in other income or to offset related
costs. Those not related to the daily activities of the enterprise
are included in the non-operating income and expenditure.

Government grants related to the subsidized interest received
from policy preferential loans offset the relevant borrowing
costs. If a loan is obtained from a lending bank with a policy
preferential interest rate, the actual amount of the loan received
is used as the recorded value of the loan, and the related
borrowing costs are calculated on the basis of the principal
amount of the loan and such policy preferential interest rate.

When a recognized government grant is to be returned, the
carrying amount of the asset is adjusted if the initial recognition
reduces the carrying amount of the related asset. If there is
a related deferred revenue balance, the carrying amount of
the deferred revenue balance is reduced, and the excess is
recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If there is no
related deferred revenue, it is recognized directly in profit or loss
for the current period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognized
for differences (temporary differences) between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. At the balance
sheet date, deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the asset is recovered or the liability is settled.
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Criteria for recognition of deferred tax assets

The Company recognizes deferred income tax assets arising
from deductible temporary difference to the extent it is probably
that future taxable amount will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utilized. However, the
deferred tax assets arising from the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities in transactions with the following features are not
recognized: (1) the transaction is not a business combination, (2)
transactions that do not affect accounting profit, taxable income,
or deductible losses at the time of occurrence.

For deductible temporary difference in relation to investment in
the associates, corresponding deferred tax assets are recognized
in the following conditions: the temporary difference is probably
reversed in a foreseeable future, and it is likely that taxable
income is obtained for deduction of the deductible temporary
difference in the future.

Criteria for recognition of deferred tax liabilities

The Company recognizes deferred income tax liabilities for
taxable temporary differences between current and prior
periods that are due and owing, excluding:

® Temporary difference arising from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

@ Temporary differences arising from transactions or events that
are not part of a business combination and that, at the time
they occur, affect neither accounting profit nor taxable income
(or deductible losses).

® For taxable temporary difference in relation to investment
in subsidiaries or associates, the time for reversal of the
difference can be controlled and the difference is probably not
to be reversed in a foreseeable future.

When the following conditions are satisfied, deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities shall be presented on a net basis

©) An enterprise has the statutory right to settle the current tax
assets and current income tax liabilities at their net amounts.



Annual Report 2023

@ 16 JE BT 15 B 2R P A IE E P AR @ Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income
MAGESR —MKIEEE taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
IS B — 49 # = A AE B PR entity or on different taxable entities, but in each future period
BB XIE RN in which deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
FHMEX, BEXRRE—EF reversed in a material way, the taxable entities involved intend
EEEMNBIEFIREAF to either settle the current income tax assets and current
A 3% GE P S 7 A i Bl Y ,HH income tax liabilities on a net basis or to realize the assets and
B, BRBENTEEEE settle the liabilities simultaneously.

UESEB LA RAR
K L HAPR 1S B A 152 30 =2 B B

BERF. BRES.

30. & 30. Leasing

@®  FARBEEIEHBEEMENEZ @  Judgemental basis and accounting treatment of short-term
7= 7 55 #1715 fE 2 2B B9 F B o 18 7T leases and leases of low-value assets as a simplified treatment
S L E 7% for lessees
EHEERETEEWEEENE Short-term leases are leases that do not include a purchase
AEBHABIRANBNEE. KN option and that have a lease term of not more than 12 months.
BEAFHEREREIEERT NS Low-value asset leases refer to leases with a low value when a
WREFENNERENEAR, T25R single leased asset is a brand-new asset, mainly office equipment
hRgEHER, leases.
KRB TRRBHEENENER The Company does not recognize right-of-use assets and lease
F‘%ﬂ I RFINEANAE MR R liabilities for the following short-term leases and low-value asset
f, MXMEEMNRMARAEANS leases, and the relevant lease payments are included in the
TMHBIRBELZ ZHHMAR LS relevant asset costs or current profits and losses on a straight-
B AT NI K 2B AL A B R R line method or other systematic and reasonable basis during
o each period of the lease term.

m e Items KAEHKLEBENAERST LS Classes of leased assets for which simplified

treatment has been adopted
SRR Short-term rental ETHMBEE. BaEE Vehicle rental, dormitory rental
KiNEAE-HEE Leasing of low-value assets hRgEER Office equipment rental

@ (EFHHEBEAFHHEESEEEMSZIF @  Criteria for classification and accounting treatment of leases as

L EE 7 % lessors

1) HENDR 1) Classification of leases

ZIK \BEIEMHEAGEHREEES I The Company classifies leases into finance leases and operating
REENEEHER, MEERERE leases on the lease commencement date. A financial lease is a

IR EEBTEHERFMENE lease that substantially transfers almost all the risks and rewards

X LT 2 20X e AN 3k B A9 AR 5 associated with the ownership of the leased asset, and its

HMBENSAORES, UalETR ownership may or may not be transferred eventually. Operating

B, 2EHERERMEAEELN leases refer to leases other than finance leases.

SN EMAEE,
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If a lease has one or more of the following circumstances, the
Company usually classifies it as a finance lease:

a At the end of the lease term, ownership of the leased asset is
transferred to the lessee.

b The lessee has the option to purchase the leased asset, and the
purchase price entered into is sufficiently low compared with
the fair value of the leased asset when the option is expected
to be exercised, so it can be reasonably determined that the
lessee will exercise the option on the lease commencement

date.

C Although the ownership of the asset is not transferred, the
lease term accounts for most of the useful life of the leased
asset.

d On the lease commencement date, the present value of the
lease receipts is almost equal to the fair value of the leased
asset.

e The leased assets are of a special nature, and only the lessee

can use them if no major transformation is made.

If a lease has one or more of the following signs, the Company
may also classify it as a finance lease:

a If the lessee revokes the lease, the lessee shall bear the loss
caused by the revocation of the lease to the lessor.

b Gains or losses arising from fluctuations in the fair value of the
residual value of assets are attributed to the lessee.

C The lessee has the ability to continue the lease to the next
period at a rent far below the market level.

2) Accounting treatment of financial leases

On the commencement date of the lease period, the Company
recognizes the finance lease receivables for the finance lease and
derecognizes the finance lease assets.

When the finance lease receivables are initially measured,
the finance lease receivable is recorded at the sum of the
unguaranteed residual value and the present value of the
lease receipts not yet received on the start date of the lease
term, discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease. Lease
receipts include:
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a Fixed payments net of amounts related to lease incentives and
substantive fixed payments.

b Variable lease payments that depend on an index or ratio.

C When it is reasonably determined that the lessee will exercise
the purchase option, the lease receipts include the exercise
price of the purchase option.

d When the lease period reflects that the lessee will exercise
the option to terminate the lease, the lease receipts include
the amount payable by the lessee for exercising the option to
terminate the lease.

e The residual value of the guarantee provided to the lessor by
the lessee, a party related to the lessee, and an independent
third party that has the economic ability to perform the
guarantee obligation.

The Company calculates and recognizes interest income for each
period during the lease term based on a fixed lease implicit
rate, and variable lease payments acquired that are not included
in the measurement of the net investment in the lease are
recognized in profit or loss when they are actually incurred.

3) Accounting treatment of operating leases

The Company recognizes lease receipts under operating leases
as rental income using the straight-line method or other
systematic and reasonable methods in each period of the lease
term. Capitalized initial direct costs incurred in connection with
operating leases are amortized over the lease term on the same
basis as rental income recognition and are recognized in profit
or loss by installments. The variable lease payments relating to
operating leases that are not recognized as lease receipts are
recognized in profit or loss when they are actually incurred.

Changes in significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates

Changes in the significant accounting policies
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Bt MM AR™

Unit: RMB
REEEZMNBRRIME BT AL

Content and reasons for

P 75 k2 ; ;

SUBELTENANEMNRE changes in accounting policies Name of statement item materially Amount affected
affected

KRB B2022F128138E H117 Effective December 3 I T A BB 3 A i A5 B 4 £ 0

Deferred income tax assets and deferred

. vy 13,2022, the Compan
m = GUAY 23+ ) ) pany
AZIEQEB2O22E!55(2?EE’]<<H:JLEI‘|'E . income tax liabilities

o "~ implemented "Accounting
MEEBREIS) X FRITHPDE for the income tax effects of

W TER S A T B4 F dividends related to financial
instruments classified as

BB E M= T B KX equity instruments by the

F Al IS LI 4 45 B A RS 14 sk 4F Issuer” and "Accounting for

B LUR 3 L5 B S TB0 ) o Saclod 1 coon e

SR share-based payment settled
in equity by an enterprise"
in the "Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises
Interpretation No. 16" issued
by the Ministry of Finance in
2022.

H At 358 B Other Notes:

XJ2023F 18 1H & & PR 18 & 28 7= 1Y The effect on deferred tax assets at January 1, 2023 is an

212\ HEHURHBERQE

MR REIWEHBEFRESHRE
F= 18 I02,726,473.4375 . B I PR 13
BEFMNAGERE K EEIE M
2,726,473.4370 . MEE ATV TH
36 E P 4S A 2 7 38 AN0.007T -

XY2023F1H1H 38 i A 15 ¢ T 51 /Y
TN REMHB B LTSI 0
18 h02,726,473.4375 . % I PR 13
Bt & P A0 A 5 HA oK B & IS A0
2,726,473.4370 « MEEATYI T
8 RE PTG A 02 5318 900.007T o

increase of RMB 2,726,473.43 in unoffset deferred tax assets, an
increase of RMB 2,726,473.43 in the amount of the period-end
offset of deferred tax assets and liabilities, and an increase of
RMB 0 in deferred tax assets presented net of offsets.

The effect on deferred tax liabilities at January 1, 2023 is an
increase of RMB 2,726,473.43 in unoffset deferred tax liabilities,
an increase of RMB 2,726,473.43 in the amount of period-end
offsets of deferred tax assets and liabilities, and an increase of
RMB 0 in deferred tax liabilities presented net of offsets.
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1. FTEHWRBE

VI. Taxation

1. Main taxes and tax rates

ETEHMEHEEL Information on main taxes and tax rates
i Tax types it Ak 1B Taxable basis
B ER Value-added tax (VAT) ##ZMETENIEE The output tax is calculated
b7 v 5 on the basis of income from
)\%@Fiﬁ%xnuﬁ)\j} the sale of goods and taxable
Bt HEHEIAE , £ services in accordance with
MY HE 4 iRin e the provisions of the tax law,
) s and after deducting the input
MBEG, ZBMEBDHN  tax allowable for deduction
7 3 18 {8 R in the current period, the
difference will be the value-
added tax payable.
Yo 4 A IR A Urban construction and  S2 4557 % %t %t &7 Payment of the acual
maintenance tax turnover tax
A Frg R Income tax K7 4% %% PIT 1 & Taxable income
BB MM Education surcharge A R R Payment of the acual
turnover tax
75 B &K Local education SO B B A AR Payment of the acual

surcharges

turnover tax

AL FT3 8 %W ZE M

# , #% %187 ¥ B
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Details of income tax rates for different taxpayers are set

out below

PR E R B R

HEHUIRNBERAE
TTREERXBRLQE
IERBAUEEREZBRAT
HERWIFAEBRAE
HZEHLLWARERAE

Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals USA Corporation
ERRFRERKBRAF
HHETREZIAERAS
HEIERERAET

G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC

G&L MANUFACTURING NEW JERSEY INC
HEEYR R (LB BRAT

Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH

Name of taxpayer

Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

Beijing Gangan Technology Co., Ltd.

Bejing Dingye Haoda Technology Co., Ltd.
Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Jiangsu Co., Ltd.
Gan & Lee Pharmaceutical Shandong Co., Ltd.
Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals USA Corporation
Beijing Yuanhe Genze Technology Co., Ltd.
Gan Gan Medical Technology Jiangsu Co., Ltd.
Gan&Lee Holdings Limited

G&L HOLDINGS NEW JERSEY INC

G&L MANUFACTURING NEW JERSEY INC

Gan & Lee Biotechnology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH

it BH: Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals
Europe GmbHAY 1k Wl PR 1F # Bt =
15%, EPFRE M M EE M E 0k
550N BEALEM Mtz ERNEERME
7915.825% o

Note: The corporate income tax rate of Gan&Lee
Pharmaceuticals Europe GmbH is 15%, and the statutory tax rate
after adding a solidarity surcharge of 5.5% to the income tax rate

is 15.825%.
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Tax benefits

Since January 1, 2008, according to the "Enterprise Income Tax Law of
the People's Republic of China", high-tech enterprises that need to be
supported by the state are subject to a reduced enterprise income
tax rate of 15%. The Company obtained the Certificate of the High and
New Technology Enterprise in 2011, and has reapplied and qualified
for the recognition of the High and New Technology Enterprise every
three years since 2011, therefore, it is entitled to the tax benefits
of high-tech enterprise from 2011 to October 2026. The certificate
number of the "Certificate of the High and New Technology Enterprise" of
the Company is GR202311000039, which was issued on October 16,
2023 and is valid for three years.

On January 19, 2009, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation (SAT) issued the "Circular on the Policy of
Applying the Low VAT Rate and the Simplified Method of Collecting VAT on
Some Goods" (Cai Shui [2009] No. 9), and on June 13, 2014, the Ministry
of Finance and the SAT issued the "Circular on the Policy of Simplifying
the Collection Rate of Value-Added Tax" (Cai Shui [2014] No. 57), which
provides that the sales of self-produced biological products made
from microorganisms, microbial metabolites, animal toxins, human
or animal blood or tissues may choose to pay VAT calculated in
accordance with the simplified method pursuant to a 3% levy rate.
The Company applied for and received approval for the simplified
levy from December 1, 2015, and income from the sale of biological
products is subject to VAT at a levy rate of 3%, with no further
deduction of input tax.

On January 17, 2019, the Ministry of Finance and the State
Administration of Taxation (SAT) issued the "Circular on the
Implementation of Universal Tax Relief Policies for Small and Micro
Enterprises" (Cai Shui [2019] No. 13), which reduces the portion of
the annual taxable income of small and micro enterprises in excess
of RMB 1 million but not exceeding RMB 3 million by 50% of the
taxable income, and pays the enterprise income tax at a rate of
20%. And the portion of the annual taxable income of not exceeding
RMB 1 million is reduced by 25% of the taxable income and subject
to enterprise income tax at a rate of 20%. On March 26, 2023, the
State Administration of Taxation (SAT) issued the "Announcement
on Preferential Policies on Income Tax for Small and Micro Enterprises and
Individual Industrial and Commercial Households" (No. 6 of 2023 of the
SAT Announcement), under which small and micro enterprises are
required to pay enterprise income tax at a rate of 20% by reducing
the portion of the annual taxable income not exceeding RMB 1 million
by 25% of the taxable income. During the period under review, Gan
& Lee Biotechnology (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. and Bejing Dingye Haoda
Technology Co., Ltd., subsidiaries of the group, were subject to the tax
exemption policy for small and micro enterprises.
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. SHMEZKRRIIBEITE VIl. Notes to items in consolidated financial statements
1. HEm&ES 1. Monetary funds
BT MM ARM
Unit: RMB
= Item BRI R AN
Opening balance
EEI& Cash on hand
RITHER Bank balance 2,696,620,882.98
HihBEm & Other monetary funds 11,434,939.08
KR EIHA U B Unexpired interest receivable 182,210,970.12
= Total 2,890,266,792.18

Hrb: EREBRIINZTIM2E Of which: total proceeds 53,706,167.49

deposited abroad

H b 5% BF Other notes
HRZRENEDEERAMANT: The details of restricted monetary funds are as follows:

BT ™M ARM

Unit: RMB
H
mE ltem ) A3 ¥ R A
Opening balance
T HE R M W B Time deposits and interest 2,320,195,792.04
receivable
+ X8 H 1T 5% R U F] 2 Seven day notice deposit and 161,307,178.08
interest receivable
ERIERIES Letter of credit margin 6,710,555.18
BRBEIRRIES Guarantees for wages of 4,344,801.66
construction labor
FHEAEAR Refundable deposited 379,582.24
investment fund
= Total 2,492,937,909.20
g = NN R s i il BV 2l == 3= Note: Restricted monetary funds shall not be treated as cash
REFNEDRERERNRE R and cash equivalents when the Company prepares the cash flow
EENY o statement.
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2. XRBMEEMEFE 2. Financial assets held for trading

B MM ARM
Unit: RMB

ma Item R S

Opening balance

A RMEITE BET T Y Financial assets measured at fair value 1,635,949,901.34

A =T and and will have their changes accounted
BREEERAT for in the current profit and loss
Hrp: Of Which:
W@ TREER Investments in equity instruments 803,316,383.08
HAth Others 832,633,518.26
a1t Total 1,635,949,901.34
E 35 P Other notes:
NaE TERBENEARBFAEN LT Investments in equity instruments represent investments in
NEIRERRA, listed stocks held by the Company.
H A EARBFHENEMMETFR Others represent structured deposits held by the Company.
3. R FR 3. Accounts receivable
(1) RIKES IR E (1)  Disclosed by aging
BT ™ AR™
Unit: RMB
T 1 Aging HA 4 T T R AR
Opening balance
1FR Within 1 year
He: 1RSI Of which: Sub-item within 1 year
6 A LK Within 6 months 172,566,752.22
71218 7 to 12 months 4,702,857.13
1E /Nt Subtotal within 1 year 177,269,609.35
1E25 1to 2 years 27,470,218.19
2E3F 2 to 3 years 17,800,509.60
=1 Total 222,540,337.14

216\ BHFHIRHERAT
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BASITHERKES: Provision for bad debts by portfolio:
HAEITIRIE: FFRTIHETHAER External Accounts receivable subject to expected credit losses
2K B9 9h BB B2 U K R provided on non-separate provision

Bt M ARM
Unit: RMB

& Item
6MBUA Within 6 months
—121 8 7 to 12 months
1FEE2F 1to 2 years
2EFE3F 2 to 3 years
&1t Total
(3) HFHEHZHIER (3)  Provision for bad debts
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
KER L ThE &N
Changes in the current period
B R ° .
%3 Categor Openin Lo " » _
7 e e R WENBE SRS HtE
Accrual  Recovery or Write-off Others
reversal
L7 U Ik SRR & Provision for 46,289,176.71 15,964,110.46 17,703,293.60
bad debts
on accounts
receivable
&t Total 46,289,176.71 15,964,110.46 17,703,293.60
(4)  ZHEL B % 55 B9 o W T 7+ 18 7 (4)  Accounts receivable actually written off during the period
Bt MM ARD
Unit: RMB
py=| Item ZHEE M
Amount written-off
52 PR A% 5 BY I U TR =X Accounts receivable actually written-off 17,703,293.60
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BRZFITENH ARG AZR (5  Top five accounts receivable and contract assets with closing
B2 Y i 75 #lD & [ 25 75 16 270 balance based on debtors

B M ARD
Unit: RMB

=R v Entity

BEAFHRRT NRKRMEER” SHRKARMNESEA~RHR FKESHRRM
N KRIBRRE  Closing balance R R REMEIHEHALLHI (%) Closing balance of
Closing balance of contract assets Closing balance of Percentage of combined  provision for bad

of accounts

accounts receivable closing balance of accounts debts
receivable and contract assets receivable and contract
assets(%)
21 Customer 1 21,534,097.97 21,534,097.97 5.03 21,534,097.97
ZP2 Customer 2 17,278,200.00 17,278,200.00 4.03 17,278,200.00
=3 Customer 3 12,348,382.36 12,348,382.36 2.88
24 Customer 4 10,592,394.57 10,592,394.57 2.47
=5 Customer 5 8,914,291.36 8,914,291.36 2.08
&t Total 70,667,366.26 70,667,366.26 16.50 38,812,297.97
4. DU FR IO R R 4.  Financing receivables
(1). [ 45k 7 i 25 57 2K 5 o~ (1) Presentation of financing receivables classifications
Bt mi: ARM
Unit: RMB
e Item R RE HY R
Closing balance Opening balance
N W ZE R Notes receivable 1,634,782.89 13,316,425.56
&3t Total 1,634,782.89 13,316,425.56
(2). Hfthiges: (2)  Other notes:

B E2023F128318, KRB
ERNWREINRTARLE,
ERBNARNEFEEEREANK ,
FERBAMEEERREL, BX

TR ERR K., incurred as a result of default.

As of December 31, 2023, all of the notes receivable held by the
Company were bankers' acceptances, and the Company has not
provided for expected credit losses because it believes that there
is no significant credit risk and that no significant losses will be
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5. WM 5. Prepayments
(1)  FS R TTI I 16 5 (1)  Byaging
BT A ARD
Unit: RMB
H R
Opening balance
T e Aging
Bl £k 51l (%)
Amount Proportion (%)
1E A Within 1 year 43,814,102.59 95.29
1E26F 1to 2 years 2,163,716.18 4.71
2E3F 2 to 3 years 828.76
&t Total 45,978,647.53 100.00
i 881 1F B+ MEZ M RN A description of the reasons why prepayments aged more than
RAENERERANGEA: one year and of significant amounts have not been settled in a
timely manner:
B 2023128318, M KM R As of December 31, 2023, there were no prepayments in the
AR FERKKRBYT —FEEME prepayment balance that were more than one-year-old and
ZW AT I o significant in amount.

(2) BAMWKRITENHFRFEHESL (2) Topfive closing balances of prepayment, grouped by prepayment
BYFAS 5% 18 7 recipients

B MM ARS
Unit: RMB

& IS FRIEA R R A S T 2RI EE B (%)
Percentage of total closing balance of prepayments

51U & R Entity (%)
R AL Supplier 1 33.18
RV 752 Supplier 2 12.71
L7 73 Supplier 3 6.29
R A4 Supplier 4 5.14
VAR Supplier 5 4.8
= Total 62.14
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6. Other receivables

ltem presentation

m B 5 7w
m e ltem
R W F B2 Interest receivable
07 L A 1) Dividend receivable
H b {7 U 7R Other receivables
a1t Total

H b 17 W 5%

(1) K 9% 5%

Other receivables

(1)  Disclosed by aging

T 1% Age of accounts

1E A Within 1 year

Hep: 1F A DM Of which: Sub-item within one year
1FUA Wwithin 1 year

1F AW/t Subtotal: Less than 1 year

1ZE26F 1to 2 years

2E34F 2 to 3 years

3E4HF 3to 4 years

4E54F 4 to 5 years

ait Total

(2) BEHITMERSEER (2)  Details of classification by nature

RIUE B Nature

WERIEE

RER

BRMER
RIMRHHRRAR

Rz Y tH E1R #t 7%

ait

Deposit guarantee

Advance of funds

Expense borrowing
Withholding and payment of

social security and provident
fund

Export tax rebate receivable

Total

Annual Report 2023

Bt ™M AR®
Unit: RMB

R
Opening balance

5,888,971.68
5,888,971.68

B MM AR™
Unit: RMB

H K E R
Opening balance

2,655,192.74
2,655,192.74
2,721,749.62
284,911.48
224117.84
3,000.00
5,888,971.68

Bt MM AR™
Unit: RMB

HA) WK E R
Opening balance

2,433,634.34
2,018,866.71
1,360.00
449,528.98

985,581.65
5,888,971.68
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(3) BXFFHFAEHFRFEHESZL (3) Topfive other receivables with closing balance based on debtors

Bt k1%
Byt M ARM
Unit: RMB
G H A I R EA R & K&
1A I BEI LB (%) | , KRR
BAIZH Entity Percentage of total R IBY 1 R mt‘.ﬁe Closing
closing balance of Nature Aging balance of bad
other receivables (%) debt provision
F—F NO. 1 4519 LHRIEE 2-3%F
Land guarantee deposit 2 to 3 years
et NO. 2 573 WERIEE 1E AW
Deposit guarantee Within 1 year
£=3F NO. 3 449 18 %{%iﬁﬁ 1-24: 100,000.007T;
Deposit guarantee 1 to 2 years: RMB 100,000.00
2-3%: 56,896.007T;
2 to 3 years: RMB 56,896.00
R NO. 4 3.87 RAEBEX 1F A
Advance of funds Within 1 year
FHA NO. 5 280 MREXR 1FE AW
Advance of funds Within 1 year
&1t Total 62.08 / /
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1. #X® 7.  Inventory
(1) HFESE (1)  Classification of inventories
B M ARM
Unit: RMB
R
Opening balance
KERG FRENES/ARE K & 7 &
Carrying WA REES Book value
e Item amount Provision for
decline in value
of inventories/
impairment
of contractual
performance costs
MR Raw materials 104,177,895.38 949,268.80 103,228,626.58
a7 Packing 127,658,502.53 4,902,982.28 122,755,520.25
materials
B &l ¥ B & Self- 316,932,190.56 29,639,415.08 287,292,775.48
o manufactured
REFR  dnitfinished
products and
in-process
products
EFEs  Merchandise 128,320,080.39 4,329,871.70 123,990,208.69
in stock
B E Revolving 11,378,478.14 11,378,478.14
materials
A HBEH  Goodsin
transit
& it Total 688,467,147.00 39,821,537.86 648,645,609.14
2) HFEHENESKSEELREZLREE (2) Provision for decline in value of inventories and impairment of
HE contractual performance costs
B g M ARD
Unit: RMB
R 75 HE 12 10 % 50 AN HAOR D & 8
Opening  Increase during the Decrease during the period
balance period
=] Iltem N "
itie Hl #% (o] BY ¥ 5 Hl
Provision Others Reversal or write- Others
off
=7 % Raw Materials 949,268.80  1,297,101.39 267,454.64
2y Packing 4,902,982.28 375,260.53 4,947,441.93
materials
Bf ¥ MES~® Self-manufactured  29,639,415.08 20,972,466.35 27,799,138.68
semi-finished
products and
inprocess products
EEE R Merchandise in 4,329,871.70  4,637,937.95 4,679,197.25
stock
=h1 Total 39,821,537.86 27,282,766.22 37,693,232.50
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FEROREHEEFEERNEENR

AREATREEBENEENEF R
FTERAMRMEETBNEFF
P an-FEE AT H), BT R A
BEfF, BEHEENHE, H2W
HRERBENES.

8. —FERIMMIFERBDAES

Reasons for reversal or write-off of provision for decline in value
of inventories during the period

Inventories for which provision for decline in value of inventories
was made during the reporting period mainly consisted of
homemade semi-finished products - non-commercial dry
powders for R&D projects. Due to the suspension of the R&D
projects and the fact that the inventories were approaching their
expiry date, full provision for decline in value of inventories was
made.

Non-current assets due within one year

BT MM ARM
Unit: RMB

mE ltem

AR H-KEi A7 2

&1t Total

Debt investments - large
certificates of deposit

YR
Opening balance

201,358,630.13

201,358,630.13

(1) —FERAZHEERRZIER

me Item

=FHAGFERE 3-yearlarge
certificate of deposit

&1t Total

224\ BHFHIRHERATE

Status of debt investments maturing within one year

BT MM ARM

Unit: RMB
O R
Opening balance
KERE HEEE Ik E= (&
Carrying amount Provision for Book value
impairment

201,358,630.13 201,358,630.13

201,358,630.13 201,358,630.13
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2) HBEEEN—FERNFHHERRE  (2)  Significant debt investments maturing within one year at the end
of the period

B M ARD

Unit: RMB
RIS
Opening balance
I = R= P A
o EE ZEAX  REAX  HMEE asss
€ Par value Coupon rate Effective  Maturity Overdue
interest rate date principal
—FEHK 50,000,000.00 3.80% 2023/4/10
mize
3-year 50,000,000.00 3.80% 2023/4/23
large
certificate 100,000,000.00 3.80% 2023/5/8
of deposit
= 200,000,000.00 / / /
Total
9. HfwRzh&Em™ 9.  Other current assets
Bt M ARM
Unit: RMB
=] ltem EER IS
Opening balance
BEEBIKIOA VAT credit 7,532,583.62
DUIRSEE 2B 5 T8 % Net of eliminations income tax 38,947,567.68
S 484 75 27 advances
FEVE I E M B B ER Input tax pending receipt of credit
vouchers
&1t Total 46,480,151.30
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10. BN E 10. Debt investment
(1) FZRREZFIES (1)  Status of debt investments

Bt MM AR™T
Unit: RMB

BRI
Opening balance

KERET  OBEESE K m& (&
Carrying Provision for Book value
amount impairment

mE Item

LIS At & Financial assets

e large certificates of

By B A 7 deposit measured

KEF R at amortized cost

a1t Total
WHE: RABK —FERNE AN KEGE Note: The Company has reclassified its debt investments in
BEENREREDLE“—FHNEHED large certificates of deposit with maturity of less than one year
ERDEFHIR, ERAZET(8) to "Non-current assets with maturity of less than one year", as
—FERNHSENERDET, detailed in this section/ (8) Non-current assets with maturity of

less than one year.
(2) HEEEHFENRE (2)  Significant debt investments at the end of the period

Bt MM AR™

Unit: RMB
BRI
Opening balance
s EE TEAE  SEAE #8AE
ltem - s =
Par value Coupon Effective Maturity
rate interest rate date
ZEHAMER
3-year large
certificate of
deposit
‘it / / /
Total
1%BE: F2023F12831H, EiRKER Note: At December 31, 2023, the cumulative outstanding interest
FRENERRITIHEN R AN receivable balance accrued on the above large certificate of
W F B 5 81 /9 4,658,333.337C deposit debt investments was RMB 4,658,333.33.
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11. HtiERohE /A~ 11.  Other non-current financial assets
B M ARD
Unit: RMB
=i Item B REN
Opening balance
PDEUR AN EITE B ET )T Classification of financial 30,000,000.00
o L o o assets at fair value through
NE R B R profits or losses
Hf: N&mTEBRR Of which: Investments in equity 30,000,000.00
instruments
= Total 30,000,000.00
Higeg: Other Notes:
HE2023F12831H, ARBFE As at December 31, 2023, the Company held 2,711,378 shares
AINFD B RHBRAS2,711,378 of Suzhou Sepax Technologies, Inc., with a shareholding of
R 5, #FARELH10.7398% , B HE 0.7398%, which is listed as other non-current financial assets and
TTEMIERSDERMET, TR measured at fair value.
MEITE,
12. BIE&EF 12. Fixed assets
;A 5w ltem presentation
Bt MM AR®
Unit: RMB
=] Item BV REN
Opening balance
ElE & ™ Fixed assets 1,646,528,285.07
a1t Total 1,646,528,285.07
FRIPHVE TR ZEIDREE R Fixed assets in the above table are net of fixed asset liquidation.

FRERNBEER.
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B E & 7~ Fixed assets
(1) BEEZ~ER (1) Status of fixed assets
BT MHARM
Unit: RMB
EERERAY Hegir& ZHIE Hithig & ait
mE Item Houses and Machinery and Carriers Other equipment Total
buildings equipmnt

—. KEERE:
LB R
2. HERIE N & B

O ME

QERTER

Qo mImEINE
EH

AR L 2

(1) A EHRE

AR R

—. BitirA

LB R
2. HAIE PN & 5

(1) it1=

() ShmIRER
BED

3EHR L 2

(1) A ERRE

AR R

=, REES

LB R

2. HERIE N & B

(1) it1=
AR 2

(1) A EHIRE

AHARRE
M. 0K E 6 E

LBAKRKENE

2. 837K E B

I. Original book value:
1. Opening balance

2. Increase during the
period
Acquisition
Transfer from

construction in progress
Translation

differences on foreign

currency statements
3. Decrease during the

period
Disposal or
scrapping
4. Closing balance

II. Accumulated
depreciation
1. Opening balance
2. Increase during the
period
Acquisition
Translation
differences on foreign

currency statements
3. Decrease during the

period
Disposal or

scrapping
4. Closing balance

IIl. Provision for
impairment
1. Opening balance
2. Increase during the
period
Acquisition
3. Decrease during the

period
Disposal or

scrapping
4. Closing balance

IV. Book value
1. Closing book value

2. Opening book value

1,165,191,279.97

201,403,079.28

172,027.53

201,231,051.75

1,366,594,359.25

217,420,434.02

59,665,246.80

59,665,246.80

277,085,680.82

22,779,306.91

178,155.82

178,155.82

22,957,462.73

1,066,551,215.70

924,991,539.04

1,054,468,161.48

228,322,383.10

228,322,383.10

6,681,132.42

6,681,132.42

1,276,109,412.16

413,652,152.70

115,555,292.95

115,555,292.95

2,809,347.45

2,809,347.45

526,398,098.20

17,482,514.53

918,091.01

918,091.01

43,239.98

43,239.98

18,357,365.56

731,353,948.40

623,333,494.25

11,207,191.46

2,267123.78

1,094,696.43

1,172,427.35

621,086.28

621,086.28

12,853,228.96

4,927,652.57

1,884,876.33

1,884,876.33

547,353.96

547,353.96

6,265,174.94

6,588,054.02

6,279,538.89

171,167,773.73

14,665,853.24

243,084.60

14,406,589.18

16,179.46

924,469.25

924,469.25

184,909,157.72

78,590,174.46

27,279,159.74

27,269,190.85

9,968.89

637,481.02

637,481.02

105,231,853.18

653,886.38

11,448,873.15

11,448,873.15

12,102,759.53

67,574,545.01

91,923,712.89

2,402,034,406.64

446,658,439.40

1,509,808.56

445,132,451.38

16,179.46

8,226,687.95

8,226,687.95

2,840,466,158.09

714,590,413.75

204,384,575.82

204,374,606.93

9,968.89

3,994,182.43

3,994,182.43

914,980,807.14

40,915,707.82

12,545,119.98

12,545,119.98

43,239.98

43,239.98

53,417,587.82

1,872,067,763.13

1,646,528,285.07
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2) FhE=NIFBEIEEZFIER (2)  Fixed assets of which certificates of title have not been obtained

BT M ARM

Unit: RMB
e Item RADEFEROEBNRE
Reasons for non-obtainment of certificates of title
% BT Fermentation facilities P & 4 3t J9 2 FE B9 = R £ 3
Land occupied is leased collective land
Bab A= Boiler room [ERREY S NP2
Incomplete construction procedures
VIVl Office building BERFEFTE
Incomplete construction procedures
I B 22 Temporary storage BRFEFATE
Incomplete construction procedures
It 18] Kitchen P 5 £ ) 79 7 FE B9 S R £ i
Land occupied is leased collective land
&it Total /
W RN ZFRGEBNEE & ™~ Note: Fixed assets for which title certificates have not been
BEREIEH . WIPFE . DRBAE . issued include fermentation facilities, boiler rooms, office
I BY 2 Rz dt 18], HTE20226F B2 & buildings, temporary storage and kitchen, which have a zero
WIREE R REES, WHHRK carrying value at the end of the period as full provision for
HNEANZ, impairment of fixed assets has been made in 2022.
13. TEIRE 13.  Construction in progress
B 3R ltem presentation
BT M ARD
Unit: RMB
mA Item HAR) R &R
Opening balance
TRIRE Construction in progress 2,000,401,864.84
TEME Project materials 2,326,377.28
&t Total 2,002,728,242.12
EEIRE Construction in progress
(1) #HEBIFEENX (1)  Status of construction in progress
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14, FRANEFE
(1) FEHAREFIEL

14. Right-of-use assets

(1) Status of right-of-use assets

B mMARM
Unit: RMB

mHE

—. KEFRE:
1.HA%) R A
2.7 HR 18I0 <& &N
(D#IgFE &
Q) mIRRITEER
3R D&M
(IR ESIRE
4EAR RN
—. Z2itA
LB R
2.7 HA 3% 10 < 3R
(1)it42
(2)5r R IR R ITE E 8
RN R o
ez
Q) miIRRITEEM
4HR R
=, BEESE
1.HAR] R &
2.7 HR 1 0 <& &N
IEREB L
4 HAR &
M. WENE
LEAR K E M &
2K ENE

ltem

I. Original book value:
1. Opening balance
2. Increase for the period
New leases

Translation differences on foreign currency
statements

3. Decrease for the period
Disposal or scrap
4. Closing balance
II. Accumulated depreciation
1. Opening balance
2. Increase for the period
Accrual

Translation differences on foreign currency
statements

3. Decrease for the period
Disposal

Translation differences on foreign currency
statements

4. Closing balance

Il. Provision for impairment
1. Opening balance
2. Increase for the period
3. Decrease for the period
4. Closing balance

IV. Book value
1. Closing book value

2. Opeaning book value

BEERBERY
Houses and
buildings

20,935,946.56
876,400.85
768,212.73
108,188.12

4,944,858.65
4,944,858.65
16,867,488.76

8,855,574.53
4,533,278.67
4,504,730.70

28,547.97

3,113,728.96
3,113,728.96

10,275,124.24

6,592,364.52
12,080,372.03
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15. ER&HEF 15. Intangible assets
(1) EEZFIEXR (1)  Status of intangible assets
Bt mMHARD
Unit: RMB
=] Item = {5 AR X FEEMEZAR BIFEAN REERN

—. kERE:

I. Original book value:

Land use rights

Non-patented Exclusive license

technology

Software
license

1LERY R &N 1. Opening balance 278,776,544.00 46,315,420.07 7,600,000.00 32,758,974.29
2.7 HA 3 0 & &N 2. Increase for the 1,561,761.11
period
1 mE Acquisition 1,472,975.45
(2) spm ik R IT Translation 88,785.66
differences on foreign
RE@ currency statements
AR LS 3. Decrease for the 7,600,000.00 2,255,151.46
period
nHeaE Disposals 7,600,000.00 2,255,151.46
(IR E i Translation
differences on foreign
-
BEM currency statements
4 B R REN 4. Closing balance 278,776,544.00 46,315,420.07 32,065,583.94
. Bt II. Accumulated
amortization
1.HR¥) R &N 1. Opening balance 37,732,884.80 12,335,852.63 7,600,000.00 14,301,493.80
2. KR HRIE N & 2. Increase for the 5,575,530.84 4,631,541.96 6,223,731.29
period
(1) it12 Accrual 5,575,530.84 4,631,541.96 6,172,892.32
Q) shm k&R Translation 50,838.97
=X differences on foreign
currency statements
3.AHRR D £ ER 3. Decrease for the 7,600,000.00 1,726,083.23
period
naaE Disposals 7,600,000.00 1,726,083.23
4 HBRREN 4. Closing balance 43,308,415.64 16,967,394.59 18,799,141.86
=. BEEE Il. Provision for

LEBRI RN
2. B N £ A

3R D &
4 AR R

M. WENE
LEBRKE N E

2.H3 K E M B

impairment
1. Opening balance

2. Increase for the
period

3. Decrease for the
period

4. Closing balance

IV. Book value

1. Closing book
value

2. Opeaning book
value

235,468,128.36

241,043,659.20

29,348,025.48

33,979,567.44

13,266,442.08

18,457,480.49

REIR B R E R E B R T AR
ERARFALERET RAHOLLHZ
10.55% o

Intangible assets formed through in-house R&D accounted for
10.55% of the balance of intangible assets at the end of the
period.

2023FFERE /233



Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

16. KHEIFHZER 16. Long-term amortisation
BT M ARM
Unit: RMB
MY RTM FHEMEEM EABE 3H = A
Opening balance Increase during ~ Amortisation for
A tem the current the current period
period
VER R /AT B EE)ST Diabetes 10,434,966.45 1,704,499.08
%%WQEFEIJHE treatment
N supporting
medical
equipment
production
project
TANEEEEZE  Leased-in home 197,735.51 3,111.95 63,260.13
improvement
costs
&t Total 10,632,701.96 3,111.95 1,767,759.21
H A5 8e Other notes:

FEENEMRLXTHNT BT
o

The increase in the current period represents the effect of
exchange rate changes.

17. BIEFREBEHES/BEFREBIHA 17. Deferred tax assets/deferred tax liabilities

&=

(1) KEWHEEEELFTIFRE T~ (1)  Deferred tax assets not offset
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB

AR
Opening balance

=i Item ARNENEES % 4 PSR
Deductible temporary e
differences peferred tax assets
BAEREES Assets impairment 127,026,422.39 19,053,963.37

M EB 32 5 & SLHL A Unrealized profits
from internal
transactions

AR5 ]

U RF ¥ 42 B A Bl B3 Advance receipts
for pre-franchise
=2
AR5 W services
ERE R ANET Gains and losses on
changes in fair value

Deductible losses

BhIR 5 of financial assets
% IE U T Deferred income
HRE Leasing fee

B A 3% fBh Share incentive

BB IE A M & Expenditures on

I A= advertising and
BN S S5 business promotion

in excess of the

deduction limit

iR %R A Accruals
NmtEEEE Y Expenditures for

public donations
= Total
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73,802,328.91

625,078,398.43
21,869,401.22

192,632,850.39
163,858,896.21
13,721,191.64

2,627,690.42
1,109,485.65

567,426.00

1,222,294,091.26

11,070,349.34

100,842,568.59
3,280,410.18

28,894,927.56

37,973,547.69

3,025,688.05

401,137.73
166,422.85

85,113.90

204,794,129.26




(2)  KEWHEE L7 5 2

me Item

EEZ -~ Depreciation of

fixed assets
fFERNE™ Right-of-use assets

ait Total

(3) UUMHFFTI T EEFFHE (3)

Annual Report 2023

Unoffset deferred tax liabilities

Bt M AR®
Unit: RMB

R
Opening balance

MAHENEESR
Taxable temporary
differences

425,448,534.24

6 JE BT S M fA R
Deferred tax
liabilitie
63,817,280.14

12,467,565.94 2,726,473.43

437,916,100.18 66,543,753.57

Deferred tax assets or liabilities presented as net of offsets

V1284
Bt M AR™
Unit: RMB
BEFERAMA INEERERMSHE BEMERAEFNARIKEEELEREMR R
RHRERET FHAGRBRRO BB FHAGRBURM
Amount of deferred  Closing balance of  Amount of deferred Opening balance of
B ltem tax assets and deferred tax assets tax assets and deferred tax assets
liabilities offset at or liabilities after liabilities offset at or liabilities after
the end of the period offsetting  the beginning of the offsetting
period
BIEFTS R AR Deferred tax assets  57,629,719.40 168,953,020.84 66,543,753.57 138,250,375.69
BIEFTS B AR Deferred tax liabilities 57,629,719.40 66,543,753.57
(4) KN EERT B Z =B (4)  Breakdown of unrecognized deferred tax assets
BT MR AR™
Unit: RMB
¥R EN
M
me Item Opening balance
RFEREES Assets impairment
EEiFR=g7l Deductible losses 504,488,624.67
&t Total 504,488,624.67

(5) FXBINBEFBFHESBHARAST (5)
B FUTFEER

The deductible losses for which no deferred tax assets have been
recognized will expire in the following years
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B c mM: ARM

Unit: RMB
R &x
i vear Opening balance Note
20234 2023 219.30
2024 2024 21,757,567.27
20254 2025 35,394,958.97
20264 2036 20,938,664.66
20274 2027 7,337,775.98
20284 2028
20355 -20434F 2035 to 2043 419,059,438.49
&It Total 504,488,624.67 /
18. HhIEZRHE = 18. Other non-current assets
BT mH AR™
Unit: RMB
RO
Opening balance
mE tem KERT OAEEE i< 2 40 128
Carrying Provision for Book value
amount impairment
AT 1% & Prepayments 58,631,294.06 58,631,294.06
for equipment
AN A AL AN Input tax to be 14,337,268.86 14,337,268.86
offset
A TIE R Prepayments 2,564,071.97 2,564,071.97
for projects
AT BN KT Prepayments 386,150.00 386,150.00
for software
purchases
S B 5T FF & 7% Prepayments 594,500.00 594,500.00
for research
and
development
a1t Total 76,513,284.89 76,513,284.89
19. FFENHERANZRET 19. Restricted assets in ownership or right-to-use assets
BT M AR™
Unit: RMB
BRI
Opening balance
mE Item
K & & KENEZRER ZRER
Carrying amount Book value Type Restriction
fim&EE Monetary 2,492,937,909.20 2,492,937,909.20 Hi
funds Others
it Total 2,492,937,909.20 2,492,937,909.20 / /
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H At 8e Other notes:

RRFNEDTAESTATHRER. 7 Restricted monetary fundsmoney funds are time deposits,
HEEAR. ERIEIRIEE. BRS deposits out of investments, letter of credit deposits,
FSIARRIEE. BEBAFRAE construction labor payrollwage deposits. For details of the
T/, BEm&AE, breakdown, please refer to this section Article/1. Monetary

Money Funds.

20.  Rzft KR 20. Accounts payable
(1) 5w (1)  Presentation of accounts payable
Bt mH: ARM
Unit: RMB
mME ltem ¥R EN
Opening balance
FRiEr Raw and auxiliary materials 27,437,010.46
12 R&D 8,172,183.74
M Raw and auxiliary materials 3,236,662.86
HAty Others 5,847,137.49
= Total 44,692,994.55
21. TR Im 21. Receipts in advance
(1) AWK 7 (1)  Presentation of receipts in advance
Bt MM ARD
Unit: RMB
=i Item BRI R &N
Opening balance
M EER S Rent received in advance 603,555.70
&1t Total 603,555.70
22. BEfKE 22. Contractual liabilities
(1) &ERBGERL (1)  Presentation of contractual liabilities
BT A ARM
Unit: RMB
=] Item B REN
Opening balance
FUg B2 7R Payments received in advance 46,255,666.47

MU AL BN RS Advance receipts for
prefranchise services

&t Total

21,869,401.22

68,125,067.69
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23.  RZ{4ER T Fr M 23. Remuneration payable to employees
(1) BRI FHMI T (1) Presentation of remuneration payable to employees
BT M ARM
Unit: RMB
R A HAIE N A< HA R D
m B ltem Opening balance  Increase during Decrease during
the current period the current period
— . EHF l. Short-term 139,151,772.96 710,402,176.14 712,948,086.92
remuneration
Z. BRERA- G ERFEITL I Post-employment 2,870,801.89 46,092,391.83 45,807,841.01

benefits defined
contribution plans

NE=3EE=F Ill. Termination benefits 3,069,543.56 3,069,543.56

=1 Total 142,022,574.85 759,564,111.53 761,825,471.49
(2) FREEEFENF 2) Presentation of short-term remuneration
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
H R 75 BR 18 A0 7 HR R 2
e ltem Opening balance Increase during Decrease during
the current the current
period period
— . L& EE. 2L | Salaries, bonuses, allowances 84,731,452.99 647,533,666.83 643,352,024.30
A s andsubsidies
. RITEMNE Il. Employee benefits 13,261,636.97 13,261,636.97
=\ 2R E I1l. Social security contributions 1,771,419.54  25,237,365.20  25,036,642.57
Heb: EFRK 2 Of which: Health insurance 1,643,546.21 22,891,771.46  22,743,649.87
premiums
TR 2R Employment injury 117,886.07 1,993,153.68 1,940,749.94
insurance premiums
TERKZE Maternity insurance 9,987.26 352,440.06 352,242.76
premiums
M. FEAMRE IV. Housing provident fund 1,329,272.76  20,542,248.32  20,475,543.76
f. T2KLBEMETHSE V. Funds for trade unions and staff ~ 51,319,627.67 3,827,258.82  10,822,239.32
iz education
&t Total 139,151,772.96 710,402,176.14 712,948,086.92
(3) REEFIEIF (3)  Presentation of the defined contribution plan
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
H R & 75 #R 18 A0 7 B R 2
=i Item Opening balance Increase during the Decrease during the
current period current period
1.EAKFERM 1.Basic pension insurance 2,778144.77 44,704,628.29 44,430,608.82
2. KR 2R 2.Unemployment insurance 92,657.12 1,387,763.54 1,377,232.19
premiums
&t Total 2,870,801.89 46,092,391.83 45,807,841.01
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24.

Taxes payable

Other payables

Iltem presentation

B Item
ER Value-added tax (VAT)
PSR Corporate income tax
WNZIEEX Income tax
T AR RIS A Urban maintenance and
construction tax
T A Land use tax
BB EM Education surcharge
ENTE 2 Stamp duty
Hth Others
=1 Total
25. HMRF TR 25.
E=RIIPN
e Item
IVAREAIPSY Interest payable
VAR & Dividends payable
Hfh 7 1 3¢ Other payables
ait Total
=R VENEA
(1) IS B A% (1)

Other payables

Annual Report 2023

BT ™M AR®
Unit: RMB

R
Opening balance

7,744,488.99
1,352,699.23
3,490,766.20

166,796.97

890,915.20
166,530.31
427,099.05
173,736.38
14,413,032.33

Bt ™M ARM
Unit: RMB

BORTM

Opening balance

534,680,233.19
534,680,233.19

Presentation of other payables by nature of amount
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BT ™M AR

Unit: RMB

=] Item BV REN

Opening balance

WA TEIEER Payables for engineering 367,691,730.55
equipment

BRIl M B = [0 X 55 Restricted share repurchase 71,364,020.00
obligations

R B & AR 5 =X Payables for research and 37,704,202.43

development

IVENRONES I Payables to individuals 551,234.49

R A 1R I & Margins payable 3,322,500.00

NARTHESRREATRE Payable for employees' social 699,154.40

insurance and provident fund
Hth Others 53,347,391.32

a1t Total 534,680,233.19

(2) IKESETIFRBHHEERMMET (2)  Significant other payables aged over 1 year

7

BT M ART
Unit: RMB
=i ltem KEEHEENRRA
Reasons for not being repaid or transferred
PRl 1 B REIMG X 55 Restricted stock W 7E 15 1A
repurchase obligations still on waiting list
VA= Supplier 1 TEFXRU
Project not accepted
a1t Total /

26. 1FERFHAMNIERD HG 26. Non-current liabilities due within 1 year
BT M ARM
Unit: RMB
=] Item B RE
Opening balance
IERNFPEMIRERBF S Warranty foron equipment due within 1,877,021.78

Tone year

1FANEEARHE R A Lease liabilities due within Tone year 5,686,342.19
ait Total 7,563,363.97

240\ BHFHIRHERAQT



27. Hftmznfafk

Htmzh i i)

27

Other current liabilities

Status of other current liabilities

Lease liabilities

mA Item

FEREBM Output tax to be transferred
a1t Total

28. fHEAMG 28.

=i Item

LR Lease Payments

B RN R 2R

B —FRNE AR A R

ait

Less: Unrecognized finance

costs

Less: Lease liabilities due

within one year
Total

29. KHARM

o E 5 R

29.

Long-term payables

Item presentation

oA

N IVAREN
ERIUVENEA

ait

Item

Long-term payables
Specialized payables

Total

Annual Report 2023

B MM ARM
Unit: RMB

BRI

Opening balance

936,179.18
936,179.18

BT MM ARM
Unit: RMB

AR

Opening balance
15,545,734.56

1,532,252.01
5,686,342.19

8,327,140.36

B M ARM
Unit: RMB

AR

Opening balance
12,274,100.29

12,274,100.29

2023FFERE /241



Gan & Lee Pharmaceuticals.

NI VARNE Long-term payables

(1) BHIMES T KB % (1) Presentation of long-term payables by nature of amount

Bt ™M ARM

Unit: RMB
=] Item BV REN
Opening balance
M AT B AR & Warranty payables 12,274,100.29
ait Total 12,274,100.29
HAth g 8e Other notes:
R A KRR R A EREE 0 BR F IR A Long-term payables in the above table represent long-term
E =R N VA /S payables less specialized payables.
30. BHEUW 30. Deferred income
W E Overview of deferred income
B M ARD
Unit: RMB
e ltem HR R < HAE AN 7B D 224
Opening balance Increase in this Decrease in this Causes of formation
period period
5% HE% Government 187,634,504.08 9,608,863.68 VWIRLMSEN . BUFANBIL. 3
BUpFahEy)  grantsrelated to Ko BT #h B B9 £ 53 T B
assets The reasons are detailed in
the Note IX Government
grants 1. Liability items
involving government grants
5 miEx  Government 2,400,000.00 800,000.00 PWERMSEN  BUFANBIL.
B F By grants related to T BURT # Bh 89 2 5 10 B
revenue The reasons are detailed in
the Note IX Government
grants 1. Liability items
involving government grants
&It Total 187,634,504.08 2,400,000.00 10,408,863.68 /
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31. B&F 31. Share capital
Byt M ARD
Unit: RMB
TR EVE LT IGNE)
Opening balance Increase/decrease in current changes ("+" and "-")
AT beyis YN HAth Nt
e Bonus #pe  Others Subtotal
Issuance of shares Transfer from
new shares provident
fund
% 19 23 565,653,200.00 28,508,550.00 28,508,550.00

Number of shares

Hhi7 BF

APEIEFEEEEERRIEST
F1[2023]1284 5 X(Xx FREBH =%
YERNHDERATEREENRLXITR
MO E) FTUREEM, A7
A 45 1€ X R £ 1728,508,550 A R
Z @B, F20234F118278 5 &L &
MBREFEL, ARRKTEERETL
& 9773,151,876.00 7T , 30 bR 32 {1 2
HRREZER. ZMERASIRITR
A&t AR™M13,423,90793tENE
£ RE I NTE9,727,968.07, H
HRIt N BR 4$28,508,550.007T , 3T
RAR TR (B A8 1) 731,219,418.07

Other notes:

According to the China Securities Regulatory Commission
Securities Regulatory Permit [2023] No. 1284, "Approval of Gan
& Lee Pharmaceuticals. to the registration of the issuance of
shares to the specific recipients" approved the registration,
the Company issued 28,508,550 RMB ordinary shares to
the specific recipient, and completed the share registration
procedures on November 27, 2023. The total amount of
proceeds raised from the issue was RMB 773,151,876, and the
net proceeds after deducting the payment of underwriting
and sponsorship fees, legal fees and other expenses of the
issue totalling RMB 13,423,907.93 was RMB 759,727,968.07, of
which RMB 28,508,550.00 was added to the share capital and
RMB 731,219,418.07 was added to the capital reserve (share

TTo premium).
32, BEXEAM 32. Capital reserve
B M AR™
Unit: RMB
e ltem HR R A HAIE N 7R D
Opening balance Increase in this Decrease in this
period period
HAm f (R ) Capital premium 2,510,332,061.98 731,219,418.07
(share premium)
Hh#ZARRR Other capital reserves 52,670,324.29 56,532,035.53
&t Total 2,563,002,386.27 787,751,453.60
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EHiSPE , GIEAHAI R T hISE )R « Other notes, including changes in the current period and reasons
5 5 B ] 335 B - for the changes.
A&mN (BamE) KEBPEmnRER The reasons for the increase in capital premium (share premium)
FUAET/ABL. KA, during the period are detailed in the section/ 31. Share capital.
HEMAERXARAHZIMATIRSH The increase in other capital reserve during the period was
PN FH AR 22 2R AN A BR &l M4 AR ZE B due to the amortization of share option and restricted share
AT, EPRRZEHSOH BT X incentive expenses during the reporting period, of which RMB
M1\ 2% F18,330,020.517% , B &l 1% 18,330,020.51 was recognized for the share option incentive
T BT XML 28 B9 31,782,300.02 plan, RMB 31,782,300.02 was recognized for the restricted share
7T, FREIMERR EHINREFTE A incentive plan, and RMB 6,419,715.00 was recognized as deferred
F6,419,715.007T tax assets in respect of the restricted stock.
33. E#ER 33. Treasury shares
Bt mH: ARD
Unit: RMB
oA Item HA R 7 HA 38 0 7 HR R D
Opening balance Increase in this Decrease in this
period period
BRI M AR Z= 3] 1y X 55 Restricted share 71,364,020.00
repurchase obligation
=h1) Total 71,364,020.00
34, Htz&W= 34. Other comprehensive income
BT MM ART
Unit: RMB
H R KPR EETE
Opening Current Period Occurrence
mE ltem balance A EAFFB M AL RGBT ELRE REARTFLHRER
) Amount incurred Attributable to the Attributable to
before income tax  parent company minority shareholders

after tax after tax
— . TNEEEH K H# | Other
S g EM s S comprehensive
R RMEE W income that cannot

be reclassified to
profits or losses
Z . BEDEFER . Other 3,442,128.87 375,299.98 375,299.98
S b 42 A 26 COMpPrehensive
@ M R4S WE income that can be
reclassified to profits
or losses
SR IV B3R T/ 3T E Exchange differences 3,442,128.87 375,299.98 375,299.98
=3 on translation of
foreign currency
Hihx & Wz & 1t Total other 3,442,128.87 375,299.98 375,299.98
comprehensive
income

k
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35. BRAM 35. Surplus reserves
B A ARD
Unit: RMB
I E ltem B REN 7S HA 38 0 7 HA R
Opening balance Increase in this period Decrease in this period
EEBANT  Statutory surplus reserve  291,531,843.96 5,549,031.04
&t Total 291,531,843.96 5,549,031.04
36. XRSECFE 36. Retained earnings

BT M AR

Unit: RMB
mME ltem 1A
Previous period
BEF EBHEREKDEF D Retained earnings at the end 6,841,514,967.88
of the previous period before
adjustment
BERHYERSEFMESITEGEA  Total amount of adjustment
1y EE—) for retained earnings at the

beginning of the period ("+" for
increase and "-" for decrease)

VB E FHEAFI R 9 BL A Retained earnings at the
beginning of the period afer

6,841,514,967.88

adjustment
mn: xFHBETFT B RBFMESE Add: Net profit attributable -439,516,357.48
v ) to owners of parent company
By 3 for the period
B RBUEERRAR Less: Appropriation of

statutory surplus reserve

7 {3 & 38 B B F Dividends payable on
ordinary shares

168,462,000.00

BERANEERRKT Dividends on ordinary shares
transferred to share capital

AR Kk 70 BC A1) 5E Retained earnings at the end of
the period

6,233,536,610.40
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AR R EFHRLA:

(1)

BT (k= AN R EH A X
FAMEHTEREE, N
)R 3 B A7E07T o

MTRITHRES, MW
AR D EFBOTT o

MTFEARRIIUTERELE, ¥
)R 23 B A7E07T o

HTRE—IZHSBRNEHEE
TE, MR DEFEO

TCo

HMBAESITEWMBIAIRD
FEFE0TT o

37. BEWBMAMELRE

(1) EWKNFELRE LGS
mE Item
FEISE Principal operating
activities
Hiblk % Other business
activities
=l Total

246\ HEHURHBERQE

Adjustments to the allocation of retained earnings at the
beginning of the period:

(1) Retroactive adjustments due to "Accounting Standards for
BusinessEnterprises" and its related new provisions affect
retained earnings at the beginning of the period by RMB 0.

(2) Due to the change in accounting policy, the retained
earnings at the beginning of the period were impacted by
RMB 0.

(3) Due to the correction of significant accounting errors,
the retained earnings at the beginning of the period were
impacted by RMB 0.

4) Change in scope of consolidation due to common control,
the retained earnings at the beginning of the period were

impacted by RMB 0.

(5)  Total other adjustments affect retained earnings at the
beginning of the period by RMB 0.

Operating revenue and operating costs

(1) Overview of operating revenue and operating costs

BT M AR

Unit: RMB
LHR LT
Amount incurred in the previous period
S ON |5
Revenue Cost

1,709,873,845.74 403,869,291.26

2,396,651.11 1,934,533.39

1,712,270,496.85 405,803,824.65
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(2) EBAKA. BEUREEL S HEES (2) Decomposition information for operating revenues
¥4 and operating costs

B M AR™
Unit: RMB

' 20235 &t

2023 Total

P P

=SNG ES Classification of contract NN Bl A& TTATSN =l B 2

Operating revenues  Operating costs Operating revenues  Operating costs
EEEES
W& & (R ¥ 25 K &l Biological products (APIs and
517 82) formulated products)

=77 25 1 N Hofth

Commodity type

2,360,202,125.13 617,617,965.33 2,360,202,125.13 617,617,965.33

Medical equipment and
others

K ENRS W Exclusive license

148,460,999.43 79,803,449.86 148,460,999.43 79,803,449.86

99,373,826.49 99,373,826.49

BREGHWX HE Classification by business
area
ER-EERA Domestic - sales revenue 2,182,056,960.92  498,582,024.44 2,182,056,960.92  498,582,024.44

PR-$8E UL N International - sales revenue 326,606,163.64  198,839,390.75 326,606,163.64  198,839,390.75

fr-453F 2 E N BR £ International - exclusive 99,373,826.49 99,373,826.49

TN license
a1t Total 2,608,036,951.05 697,421,415.19 2,608,036,951.05 697,421,415.19
38. MiE MmO 38. Taxes and surcharges
B M ARM
Unit: RMB
mE Item LR A
Amount incurred in the
previous period
RIS City construction and 2,659,213.02
maintenance tax
BB EMM Education surcharges 1,595,099.03
75 BB &M Local education surcharges 1,063,399.35
B Property tax 9,480,578.69
+ b feE B Fi Land use tax 3,914,217.66
EARE R Vehicle and ship use tax 15,300.00
ENTE Bt Stamp duty 1,674,892.53
KB RHL Water resource tax 70,030.20
HRH Green rax 481,523.36
a1t Total 20,954,253.84
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39. $HEEH 39. Selling expenses

mE Item
ERZE IS &Rk Marketing and consulting fees
BR T % B Employee remuneration
Z ik 2k Traveling expenses
Hl Others
it Total
HAth e 8E Other notes:

Bf:oc ™M AREM
Unit: RMB

LTHR LG
Amount incurred
in the previous period

694,596,515.57
295,404,967.86
65,540,564.80
31,004,412.44
1,086,546,460.67

FEHERB-HWSUINaEER
& 1 2 19 2% F32,544,202.627T -

Selling expenses for the current period - others include equity-
settled share-based payment expenses of RMB 2,544,202.62.

40. EEHHR 40. General and administrative expenses
BT M AR®
Unit: RMB
WA Item LHIRET
Amount incurred
in the previous period
BT 3 Employee remuneration 107,167,942.06
KI5 iR %5 2% Consulting and service fees 34,075,205.50
#718 R ¥ 55 Depreciation and amortization 55,703,306.82
IVNINE =Y & Office and travel expenses 12,538,155.25
Hl Others 37,904,788.57
=h1 Total 247,389,398.20

H i B8 : Other notes:

FHREEER-HUSUNTDEEN
R& 17 2 19 2% F319,869,775.957T o

248\ BHFHIRHERAT

General and administrative expenses for the current period -
others include equity-settled share-based payment expenses of
RMB 19,869,775.95.
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41. HREH 41. Research and development expenses
Bt MM ARD
Unit: RMB
e ltem LHRED
Amount incurred
in the previous period
SR 90 Bt 7 2% Je A L 2R Experimental research fee 288,305,863.29
BR T % Bl Employee remuneration 175,698,605.61
718 X b 55 28 A Depreciation and amortization 42,304,677.05
Ht Others 56,160,009.09
&t Total 562,469,155.04

Hhi7 B Other notes:

MM AER-EMEa UNmEBERNR R&D expenses for the current period - others include equity-

13321325 F21,387,841.637T - settled share-based payment expenses of RMB 21,387,841.63.

42. MBEHA 42. Financial expenses
Bt MM AR®
Unit: RMB
= Item THRR L
Amount incurred
in the previous period
AELH Interest expense 776,008.62
PRI =Y @N Less: Interest income 99,058,737.95
Lo (W at) /3 5k Exchange gain or loss 2,387,847.99
RITF4 % Bank charges 1,601,158.11
= Total -94,293,723.23

43. Httgz= 43. Other income

Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
BHERDE Classification by Nature THERED

S5HEEDEXNBFHE

Government grants related to
ordinary activities

Amount incurred
in the previous period

46,033,165.00

RN NAFTER . BER . Withholding and paying individual 584,880.20
Al BF B 4% 28 E R income tax, value-added tax, and

AP AL F R RRE corporate income tax fee refund

EER R R VAT relief

ait Total 46,618,045.20
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44, HEWE

44. Investmentincome

=

REMEMEFERBRENR
H IR T

IR R R A AEESHH R
L. ON
REXZUEERATNENERA
e &

B SRR AR EBS B R R W

it

Bi:oc ™M ARM
Unit: RMB

Iltem

Investment income on financial
assets held for trading

Interest income from holding
debt investments

Investment income from disposal
of financial assets held for
trading

Investment income from disposal
of debt investments

Total

45. NAMEZHKE

THAR &
Amount incurred
in the previous period

67,488,229.08
7,600,000.00
7,736,574.01

4,742,054.79

87,566,857.88

45. Gains from changes in fair value

P E QRN E 5 IR B SRR

Bt MM ARD
Unit: RMB

Sources that generate gains from
changes in fair value

LHRED
Amount incurred
in the previous period

-80,655,151.19
-80,655,151.19

TAMEERA Financial assets held for trading
= Total
H 358 PR Other notes:

TIREPRIANELENREREE
BERAE6,273.87THT, TERIUES
BRERANMEREPIR

46. ERBEHR X

Loss on changes in fair value for the reporting period decreased
by RMB 62.74 million compared with the same period last

year, which was mainly due to fluctuations in the fair value of

investments in securities.

46. Credit impairment losses

TE

B2 B R R 2
it

BT M ARM

Unit: RMB

Iltem

Accounts receivable loss on bad
debts

Total
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Amount incurred
in the previous period

-27,246,137.30

-27,246,137.30




Assets impairment losses

47. BEFERERX 47.
mE Item

—. BEAFEHERX

Z.BEERENBREREGRBEAOMR

TBER K
= KRR ERER K

M. RAMEEMERERR

. EER~BRBERK

I. Impairment losses on contract
assets

Il. Impairment of inventories and
contract performance cost

IIl. Impairment losses on longterm
equity investments

IV. Impairment losses on investment
properties

V. Impairment losses on fixed assets

a1t Total
48. HELREWE 48. Profits from disposal of assets
=i Item

Annual Report 2023

Bl MM ART
Unit: RMB

TR E
Amount incurred
in the previous period

-38,127,657.31

-40,915,707.82

-79,043,365.13

BRIt M AR

Unit: RMB

LHRED
Amount incurred
in the previous period

EE & =B FF R L Profits or losses on disposal of 485,848.90
fixed assets
Hth Others
=1 Total 485,848.90
49. EAl SN 49. Non-operating revenue
ERIZ NN =R Non-operating revenue conditions
Bt M ARD
Unit: RMB
THEED PNER-]
Amount incurred ELREMHRENST
o ltem in the previous Amounts included in non-
period  recurring profits and losses for
the period
ERmDEFREFS AT Total gain on disposal
of non-current assets
Heh: B~ EFG Of which: gain on
disposal of fixed
assets
BRT % By Government grants 65,000.00 50,000.00
HAth Others 2,877,387.32 4,072,559.53
&1t Total 2,942,387.32 4,122,559.53
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50. Bl 50. Non-operating expenses
BT miR AR™
Unit: RMB
LHEREH PN
Amount incurred EREMIRLWS T
b i=! Item in the previous period Amounts included in non-
recurring gains and losses
for the period
ERDAETRER LS  Loss from damage and 5,667,764.04 832,769.22
scrap to non-current
assets
H: BEAFVRER K Of which: fixed assets 5,667,764.04 303,700.99
disposal loss
TRV ERK Intangible asset 529,068.23
disposal loss
Xt b 18 Mg Donations 10,070,000.00 10,061,846.54
Hth Others 804,804.12 2,372,852.42
&t Total 16,542,568.16 13,267,468.18
51. FRie®iZMA 51. Income tax expenses
(1) FEHEHRAZE (1) Income tax expenses table
BT MM ARD
Unit: RMB
mE Item LR LG
Amount incurred
in the previous period
HHAFTE R Current income tax expenses 638,944.42
6 JE AT S B 2% A Deferred income tax expenses -143,595,518.86
=1 Total -142,956,574.44

)
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Bfi:r M ARM
Unit: RMB

mE

AR @

5% T /48 FB 4 3R 11 58 10 49 7t 28
FARBATABRENEM

Y 55 X 31 248 180 I 49 72 60 82 7

S 2 2 1 80 8
FERMAMA . B BARE LN
6 B A1 A SR B A KE PG 3 10
1S RE R

FERARBINB PRSI~ A B 40
BN ERI RN SREM

o & 2% A3 OO0 1T 40 BR 89 %2 0

MERIRES B BEREHR AT/
RGBT
HAith

FRiS %t 28 A

ltem

Total profit

Income tax expenses calculated at statutory/
applicable tax rate

Effect of different tax rates applicable to
subsidiaries

Effect of adjustments to previous
periods'income taxes

Impact of non-taxable income

Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses, and
losses

Effect of utilization of deductible losses on
deferred tax assets not recognized in prior
periods

Effect of deductible temporary differences
or deductible losses on deferred income tax
assets not recognized in the period

Impact of additional deduction for R&D
expenses

Change in opening deferred tax asset/liability
balance due to tax rate adjustment

Others

Income tax expenses

52. Hfth&Z&E W=

FRNAZED/34HMEE R &

5. BERERHEEH

(1) HETEXRHIFTEH

52. Other comprehensive income

° Please refer to this section/ (34). Other comprehensive income,
for further details.

53. Cash flow statement supplementary information

(1)  Cash flow statement supplementary information

B MM AR
Unit: RMB

W ER Supplementary information

1. BaFREATAELEZEMI  1.Reconciliation of net profit to cash

THEa
Amount of
previous period

Sne: flow from operating activities:

& R Net profit -439,516,380.36

mn: BEREES Add: Provision for impairment 79,043,365.13
losses of assets

FERBREREK Credit impairment losses 27,246,137.30
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BERFHIIA. BB Depreciation of fixed assets, 180,555,603.50
. depletion of oil and gas assets,
B EFEENRFNA and depreciation of productive
biological assets
£ B E =i Amortization of right-of-use assets 4,537,985.34
T A= HE Amortization of intangible assets 15,250,982.62
KEAREPEZE AP Amortization of long-term prepaid 1,765,112.47
expenses
REBBEEESE. ERAFTNHE Losses on disposal of fixed assets, -485,848.90
PRV f12 ey« intangible assets, and other long-
AR = B9 5K (a1 term assets (gains are expressed
SIET) with "-")
BEIEAFRERSL (WELL“—"  Losses from scrapping of fixed 5,667,764.04
=45 assets (gains are expressed with
w2y
NAMET IR K (WL “—"  Losses on changes in fair values 80,655,151.19
=141 5)) (gains are expressed with "-")

MEERWRL“—"SET]) Financial expenses (income is -88,826,661.06

expressed with "-")

BRRE (WFELL—"S1EY]) Investment losses (income is
expressed with "-")

5T P 1S B R R b (380 L Decrease in deferred tax assets

-87,566,857.88

-107,448,061.68

«_reiEE) (increase is expressed with "-")
3% 3 P 18 F5 3= 1200 Ot 2D LA Increase in deferred tax I?abilities -36,147,457.18
“_reiEg) (decrease is expressed with "-")
FEHRD @MU “—" 21 Decrease in inventories (increase is -35,444,066.89
51) expressed with "-")
SEUMBMERR L (L. Decrease in operating receivables 2,224,078,497.40
“_r o iEE|) (increase is expressed with "-")
ZEMNAIMBREM OR/ L Increase in operating payables -1,546,277,020.59
“« o (decrease is expressed with "-")
SIET)

H Others 19,593,446.93

FEFEMTFENIESTME S Net cash flow from operating 296,681,691.38

activities

2. MHRMEWZHEAKR  2.Significant investing and
MERE: financing activities not involve cash

receipts and payments:

HEBR. BREFSWEIMWE  Endorsement transfer of bank
5 e acceptance bills received from
TARRLEGBRIL sales of goods and provision of
labor services

3. WERIESENYETHIE  3.Net changes in cash and

44,385,160.05

R equivalents:
MENBRRE Closing balance of cash 397,328,882.98
B B B HB D R AR Less: Opening balance of cash 639,768,344.07
m: MEENWHBEFRRM Add: Closing balance of cash
equivalents
B MEENYN YR Less: Opening balance of cash
equivalents
W& MM EENYEIE I Net increase in cash and cash -242,439,461.09
equivalents
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(2) HEHHZENYHIHE (2)  Composition of cash and cash equivalents
B M ARD
Unit: RMB
mE Item H R
Opening balance
—. s |. Cash 397,328,882.98

Hod: EEFERE
BN ATFEZNNRITER

Z.OEENY
= BHERASRONEENIHRM

Hi: §RBAHEARNFARERE

Of which: Cash on hand

Bank deposits that are
readily available for payment

397,328,882.98

Il. Cash equivalents

I1l. Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents

397,328,882.98

Of which: Restricted cash and cash
equivalents of the Company and

RENAENRNESNY subsidiaries within the group
3) FEFHZzRIAZZMNYHEIHETFZE (3) Monetary funds not classified as cash and cash equivalents
z
BT MM ARD
Unit: RMB
=] Item LEEm EH
Amount of the Reason
previous period
EH 77 #7022 Time deposits and interest 2,320,195,792.04 A AR AF T
receivable Not readily
available for
payment
TRBEMEFRWMWHE  7-day call deposits and interest 161,307,178.08 R~ A HEES A F =14
receivable Not readily
available for
payment
ERIERIES Letter of credit deposit 6,710,55518 R AIFERY A T X 3
Not readily
available for
payment
BRHESZSIRFRILES Construction labour wage bond 4,344,801.66 FAIBENAF L
Not readily
available for
payment
FHEAR Deposit of investment funds 379,582.24 AAMNBTXZA
Not readily
available for
payment
ait Total 2,492,937,909.20 /
54. SpHELEHMEDE 54. Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
(1) SrmEmMETE (1) Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
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B T
Unit: RMB

Hrp: %7t
VAR
Hrp: %7t

&R 7T
HAth M A 7R
Hep: %7t

Xx 7T

#mgm

H

+H

ESS

BEAGRE-FREH)

Iltem

Monetary funds
equivalents

Of which: USD
EUR
Accounts receivable
Of which: USD
EUR
Other receivablese
Of which: USD
Accounts payable
Of which: USD
EUR
Accounts payable
Of which: USD
EUR
SCD

Lease liabilities (including
due within one year)

Of which: USD

HKRITRE
Closing balances of
foreign currencies

57,159,787.56
2,188,790.29

2,101,095.58
2,739,986.00

35,151.88

86,429.44
1,937,716.55

536,612.91

430,215.45
546,231.00

654,592.71

wEILCE
Exchange rates for
translation

7.0827
7.8592

7.0827
7.8592

7.0827

7.0827
7.8592

7.0827

7.8592
5.3772

7.0827

(2) BHEZEELMEHHA,

HESEE LM, WKEBREIE
10 J 2k i B K & I
1, DMK (L T & E T BT T 1%

EZEH.

FREA

BENFEE (2

A description of the foreign operating entity, including, in the
case of a significant foreign operating entity, a disclosure of the
principal place of business outside the country, the local currency
of account and the basis for its selection, and the reasons for any

change in the local currency of account.

ACIER
Company name

Gan&lee Pharmaceuticals

USA Corporation

G&L HOLDINGS NEW
JERSEY INC

G&L MANUFACTURING

NEW JERSEY INC

HHEIRARAT
Gan & Lee Holdings
Limited

BN TEHEEH

Principal place of business
located outside the
country

EEFFEAEM

New Jersey, USA

S EHFE M
New Jersey, USA
EEFEAM
New Jersey, USA
o A i

Hong Kong, China

Gan&Lee Pharmaceuticals & E 4t 3 = - B B 45 5% € M

Europe GmbH

North Rhine-Westphalia,
Germany

il N A

Local currency

e
usD

ETT
usb
ES
ush
xT7T
usb

XX 7T
EUR

12 MK 2 11 0 35 2 4R

Basis for choosing the local currency of accounts

LUPRTE B 58 D e kAL /@
Expressed in the currency of the host country

LAPR7E E 55 ™ 79 38 M AS (i
Expressed in the currency of the host country

LLPRPEE B8 A iE KA /@
Expressed in the currency of the host country
FEZFEDNED

Currency of the main economic activities

LLPRAEE 28 M e KA /@
Expressed in the currency of the host country
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IN. WARZH VIl Research and development expenses
1. BRERAMRIT 1. Presentation by nature of costs
Bl M ARM
Unit: RMB
mE Item THEREMD
Amount incurred in the
previous period
SCIG AT 33 2R M A R 2R Experimental research and materials 422,286,092.55
fees

BR T & Bif Employee remuneration 175,698,605.61
718 K 5 Depreciation and amortization 42,304,677.05
H Others 78,246,623.74
=1 Total 718,535,998.95

Hi: &BRLMASZE Of which: Expensed R&D expenditure 562,469,155.04

CaEN AT 3] Capitalised R&D
expenditure

156,066,843.91

2. BABHUEZGWHAABEAAL 2. Development expenditure on R&D projects is eligible

X for capitalisation

Bt mH ARM
Unit: RMB

mA BV RAN 75 B 18 10 & &N 7 R R D & 'R

[tem Opening balance Increase during the period Decrease during the period

A& FF & 2 H MIN R LR E =

Internal development Recognized as intangible

expenditure asset

BEREYARHERERME 544,955,161.22 38,230,804.29

X A I PR B 5T

Clinical research of major
biological drug Insulin
Glargine registered in EU and
the US

BEXREMAmBEERSEME 123,070,648.88 21,065,485.81
& A I PR B 5T
Clinical research of major

biological drug Insulin Lispro
registered in EU and the US

BAEDARIILEDRRE 64,536,311.78 19,124,239.54
A i PR B 5

Clinical research of major

biological drug Insulin Aspart

registered in EU and the US

W IE 2,122,641.47
Endocrine chemical drug

project

a1t 732,562,121.88 80,543,171.11
Total
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3. EENSANFETHE 3. Significant capitalised R&D projects
e WA Wk B it e BT iE I EFME~ERR AR ARUHNN S B iRk E
Item R&D progress Estimated Projected manner Point of Specific basis
completion of generation of commencement of
time economic benefits capitalisation
iéi?é&ﬁ%%%%@ IR L B ER / HRmEE 01778 ImPRSERH A K%
A A lim PR B 53 Application for Pharmaceutical sales July 2017 n = g O
Clinical research of major Listing AT E LR E
biological drug Insulin IE AL A B9 Ht
Glargine registered in EU The clinical trial
and the US approval and
regulatory market
approval from
international
drug regulatory
agencies
iéi??&ﬂ%%%%@t$ﬁt$%% / HmiEE 201948  ImPRSR KA
7 A I PR B 53 Application for Pharmaceutical sales April 2019 n - = 25 O
Clinical research of major  Listing AT E R R E
biological drug Insulin BN Bt
Aspart registered in EU and The clinical trial
the US approval and
regulatory market
approval from
international
drug regulatory
agencies
iéiﬁgﬁﬁ%%%?M$ﬁt$M% / AmiEE 2020F18 mARSER M HIOE
T A iR R B R Application for Pharmaceutical sales January 2020 m - = g O s
Clinical research of major  Listing AT E R E
biological drug Insulin B B #t
Lispro registered in EU and The clinical trial
the US approval and
regulatory market
approval from
international
drug regulatory
agencies
L. BT 4 EBY IX Government grants
1. BREF4BHNAZEINE 1. Liability items involving government grants
BT M ARM
Unit: RMB
VR E = R 7 B B 18 0 Bh & 5 KERE N HAtb HRRE 5F -/ WEEx
Items in financial statements Opening balance Amount of new grants Transfer to other gains' Closing balance Related to assets/
during the period during the period revenue
B FE U 3 187,634,504.08 9,608,863.68 178,025,640.40 S5HRFHE%E
Deferred income Related to assets
3B IE Ut % 2,400,000.00 800,000.00 1,600,000.00 518 @A x
Deferred income Related to
revenue
a1t 187,634,504.08 2,400,000.00 10,408,863.68 179,625,640.40 /
Total
2. N HA R = A9 BURT #b BY 2.  Government grants recognized in current profit and
loss
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Bt MM AR™

B E

B JE WY o
5 U 25 P 5

WVBFRMXEABRES LR
o

EtRmEBRTLRRERNEE
BINRSHERFL ERBRE
=

5 112 #h I

PRI ER SR ARREDE
#Bh

2023F R AL WHMIMB KT R
e

SR N B L AN I

ERBEAEOEAKRFRESRS
& RIE B

RINEBRERERIE

IEMBBRYIRS R B HHGZR4
B9 I PR B 53

S XM &R -2 5 G
ZMNEASHX (GEMNHEEX) E

BHELEEEDNAERET B
BMARKERS

ERARNBLEAMBILRAD
gh-HR = E B

R HEE

AFRE—HEEAERLEERE
VAR =|

ERTHERRERE

Subsidized projects

Amortization of deferred
income

Amortization of deferred
income

2023 Tongzhou district
pharmaceutical and health
industry development project

Beijing high-end industry
development special funds

Tongzhou district high-
end industry output value
contribution reward program

Job subsidies

Zhongguancun enterprise
patent and technical standard
program subsidy

2023 Municipal Talent
Agglomeration Project support
funding

Job subsidies for persons with
disabilities

Beijing short-term export
credit insurance premium
support funding application
subsidy

Project on promoting high-
quality development of foreign
trade

Clinical study of GZR4, a new
Class 1 ultra-long-acting
weekly insulin preparation

Financial and Financial Bureau
of the Economic Development
Zone - job stability subsidy

Funding support for the
standard workshop upgrade
in the administration office
of Taizhou Medical High-
tech Zone (Taizhou Gaogang
District) Pharmaceutical
Industry Park

National Intellectual Property
Administration Patent Office
Beijing Agency - intellectual
property subsidy fund

Employment promotion fund

The final batch of projects
to enhance international
operational capabilities in 2021

Beijing municipal foreign
economic and trade
development fund

Unit: RMB

Tz

Bl Amount of
Category previous period

5% ExX
Related to assets

S ¢EES
Related to revenue

5l mEx
Related to revenue

8,122,631.61

5z x
Related to revenue

B ¢EES
Related to revenue

7,020,000.00

S ¢EES
Related to revenue

S mEx

Related to revenue

12,500.00

S mEx

Related to revenue

5 mEx
Related to revenue

B ¢S
Related to revenue

368,725.68

S5 HEx
Related to revenue

5 Ex
Related to revenue

5l mAEx
Related to revenue

108,396.15

5 mAEx
Related to revenue

B ¢YEES
Related to revenue

100,000.00

B ¢EES
Related to revenue

5 Ex
Related to revenue

5w x
Related to revenue
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2022F E MR R SR 9 AR
&

AV B R 8 N K A

R

ERTERPEMK

ZMEDBHRAT U ALK (3
M =B X) EEERUERMfoFF
EHERMES

ERARIR =N E B =

72 59 b i

WNFEEHMEUEWONERR
B EE

KIOBANRRBRFLXBRABET
I B

EREHRFOEREWE/NE
HMEREMHEE

EHAEREE

B W E B = E 7 H7 GZR101
B9 It PR B 55572

HARR A &

LU Al S5 3011 40 i

X ES )

ERERREEL

2021FF E T BB AR D0 R R

&

ERTEATERSEAMBER
ESRLEHERIER

T A AEY) FE A ES B I PR Al 67

Z

P

Funding for the 2022 municipal

SR EEx

science and technology Relatedto revenue

innovation credit award

Enterprise R&D investment
subsidies

Social security subsidy
Beijing invention patent award

Taizhou Medicine Hi-Tech
Industrial Development Zone
(Taizhou Gaogang District)
Treasury Centralized Receipt
and Payment Center incentive
funds for invoice sales

Beijing Intellectual Property
subsidy fund

Job stability subsidy

2022 capital greening and
beautification creation
incentive funding subsidy

Changsha Human Resources
Development Co., Ltd.
retention training subsidy

Beijing Urban Sub-center
key enterprise eight policies
incentive fund

PO subsidy fund

Clinical study 572 of Batch 191
dual insulin analogue, GZR101

Relocation and upgrading fund

Employment promotion
training subsidy

Rent incentive

High-quality development
subsidy

2021 annual municipal science
and technology innovation
score award subsidy fund

Beijing Municipal Building
Energy Conservation and
Building Materials Management
Affairs Center wall retrofit

Preclinical study of biosimilar
Secukinumab

S EYEES
Related to revenue

SE S REES

Related to revenue

5k & 18 %
Related to revenue

SR EEx

Related to revenue

5l mAEx

Related to revenue

5k =18 x
Related to revenue

5l mAEx

Related to revenue

S A X

Related to revenue

5l mAEx

Related to revenue

S5 miEx
Related to revenue

S5 miEx
Related to revenue

5l mAEx

Related to revenue

5k =48 x
Related to revenue

S SRR

Related to revenue
5k =48 %
Related to revenue

5k =18 x
Related to revenue

S5 miEx
Related to revenue

LS RIEES

Related to revenue

56,395.00

100,000.00

96,000.00

12,228,600.00

7,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

1,399,000.00

1,361,623.01

740,116.00

652,700.00

516,578.00

500,000.00
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EMEDGBHEATWFFRK (=M
TEBXK) TYHNBREMmEES
MEAGLVIEERS

EARAREMERAERRENE
2021 5 — A OB REIRE
wHEe

IR
LRBBMEANERA LR
-5 R L B2 B

ERTEANRSEAMHEES
SO BUKIR IR

EMIEHFRETME T

BN 1 A AR A G

EHRXEMERMBEMRENE
IR P T I & 2R

BLOIAA R 02021F E B 03
RoksHEARE I KEHES

WHAFEERLEWH]RFLRERR
Ea

FREITAHRRERE

LA 2 B AN IS

ait

Taizhou Pharmaceutical High-
tech Industrial Development
Zone (Taizhou Gaogang
District) provincial high-tech
enterprise cultivation fund of
industrial and technological
innovation bureau

2021 first-batch of science and
technology innovation subsidy
funds for other key projects
and livelihood projects in the
pharmaceutical park in 2021

Enterprise subsidy funds

Beijing Tongzhou District
Human Resources and Social
Security Bureau - advanced
training program funding
subsidy

Beijing Building Energy
Conservation and Building
Materials Management Affairs
Center - water-saving retrofit

Jingiao engineering seed
project special funds

Wenzhou epidemic social
security subsidy

Intellectual Property Special
Fund for other key projects
and livelihood projects in the
pharmaceutical park

2021 science and technology
innovation score and high-tech
enterprise zone award subsidy
fund for the Science and
Technology Innovation Points
Center

Financial asset management
center enterprise development
support fund

Rewards fund for Party
Organizations of Non-public
Enterprises

Research funding subsidy

Total

Annual Report 2023

5@ x 200,000.00
Related to revenue

5k =18 % 150,000.00
Related to revenue

5 @mAEx 115,000.00
Related to revenue

5k &= 18 % 57,230.00
Related to revenue

5k =48 % 34,435.68
Related to revenue

5k w18 % 20,000.00
Related to revenue

5@ x 6,633.87
Related to revenue

5k w18 % 1,500.00
Related to revenue

5@ x 32,550.00
Related to revenue

5@ AEx 32,550.00
Related to revenue

5k =18 x
Related to revenue

5k =18 x 65,000.00

Related to revenue

/ 46,098,165.00
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+. 22NMENIKSE X  Disclosure of fair value
1. UARMETENE~NAGRN 1. Closing fair value of assets and liabilities measured at
HEAAIAARMNE fair value
Bt ™A AR®
Unit: RMB
mE Item

CFEN RN
Bit2
(D) RZ A

LURnthETER
Tapit N SR
TR A

ONFETAKR

(2) B Aty
() 2 4o 3% T o 28
(Z)EMIFERD =
B A

BEURRNEITE
B&E B8

|. Continuous fair value
measurement

(1) Financial assets held for
trading

1. Financial assets
measured at fair value and
will have their changes
accounted for in profit or
loss

(1) Equity instrument
investment

(2) Others
(I) Receivables financing

(I11) Other non-current
financial assets

Total assets continuously
measured at fair value

2. BEMIF/RE—

BR2ARNE 2.

Basis for determining the market value of continuous

T E I E O B E KR and non-continuous first level fair value measurement
items

EF—FEX. BEITE2HEBEENE First Level: Unadjusted quoted prices for the same assets or

BRAFRARETET LERE liabilities that can be obtained on the measurement date in the

EWIRM o active market.

3. HFEMIAFEE=
RANGERARMNE
ESHNEERTEERER

HEmE,

BE_BER BHRE—
RAFRAGERHEETNEN

mANE;

BEERRBANEEE: DEKTHS
EMAFH R
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BRAMME 3. Qualitative and quantitative information on valuation
techniques and important parameters used for
continuous and non-continuous second level fair value
measurement items

=Y/ PNER Y E! Second Level: Refers to the observable input values of related
assets or liabilities, either directly or indirectly, in addition to the

first level input values.

The second level input values include: 1) Quotations for
similar assets or liabilities in active markets, 2) Quotations for
identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets, 3)

SEYIR ;5 2) R IE BX
189




5 3) BRIROT LUSM I E AR ME SN
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HEPMERMBZEERIRL . RS K
RMNERFES; ) HHRIENEAN
BF.

4, BENEFEEZBR2ANE 4.
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1. BHENHEIAR 1.
AR RITIEINAY AR SR EAA S E A
mTH

BEFWNRET Category of recipients

2021F B ZHAME 2021 Share Option
Fhit & Incentive Plan

2022F PRI ZE 2022 Restricted Share
S i %l Incentive Plan
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Other observable input values other than quotation, including
observable interest rate and yield curve, implied volatility, and
credit spread during normal quotation interval, 4) Input values
for market validation, etc.

Qualitative and quantitative information on valuation
techniques and important parameters used for
continuous and non-continuous third level fair value
measurement items

Third Level: It is the unobservable input value of related assets or
liabilities.

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value mainly

include: accounts receivable, debt investment, accounts payable,
non-current and lease liabilities due within one year.

The difference between the book value and fair value of above
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value is
insignificant.

Share-based Payment

Various equity instruments

Share options or other equity instruments issued and
outstanding at the end of the period

B MM ARM
Unit: RMB
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Hhix B :

202112828, HFEAH U FEHREIE
FELLEEERTERTDLESA
8 70 32 5T Al 2 B 20214F B I HA A8
itk ZHNE IR FHEIZL
B, At MNERHNEERRE
AN TFZAEZEHMHN RRAERDN
PRERZHNRTNI THETFEZA
b, EKABIR2MB. Xt E
AETFTHRERNEFHRI 3 NE
RYEILTRZAEINA. 481D
A.60MR .. ENASHRATNRZ
Bz B/ ERAELDTI6TA,

2022128208, HZE B EREIE
SEREEERIERT LB
8] 1 38 52 Bk A B12022F R M R =
A R R T 22 TR, BRIt
VWERBHNERGERER T EIC
Se AL 2 B E R X KRR E /IR
MRE2EBRFRENRMEHZ
A, EKABI48MH o 25D
HRRFEMERENRER D 7!
NERTELCTAZHRERDA.
2418 361 A

2. LUN#EEENRHBIZMARER

(1) 20214 fg ZHIR B it %)

2.

(1)

Other notes:

On December 2, 2021, Gan & Lee registered the first grant of
stock options under the Company's 2021 Share Option Incentive
Plan at the Shanghai Branch of China Securities Depository and
Clearing Company Limited. The Incentive Plan will be valid for up
to 72 months from the date of the first grant of stock options
until all stock options granted to the incentive recipients are
exercised or cancelled. The waiting period for the first grant of
stock options under the Plan shall be 36, 48, and 60 months,
respectively, from the date of completion of registration of the
grant. The interval between the date of grant and the date on
which the options are first exercisable shall not be less than 36
months.

On December 20, 2022, Gan & Lee registered the grant of the
Company's 2022 Restricted Share Incentive Plan at the Shanghai
Branch of China Securities Depository and Clearing Company
Limited. The validity period of the Incentive Plan is a maximum of
48 months. It starts from the completion date of the registration
of the grant of the Restricted Shares and ends on the date when
the Restricted Shares granted to the Incentive Participants are
released from sale restriction or repurchased for cancellation in
full. The restricted shares granted under the Incentive Scheme
will be subject to a restriction period of 12, 24, or 36 months
from the date of registration of the grant.

Equity settled share-based payments

2021 Share Option Incentive Plan

B R M ARD
Unit: RMB

EFENE TEARNENHE S

date
EFENmZIEAANENEEZESHK

Method for determining the fair value
of equity instruments on the grant

Significant parameters of fair value of
equity instruments at grant date

Black-Scholes #1% & # 12 &
Black-Scholes valuation of options model

REEFHBN . BRITRNE . BRH. X
A xR, REX

Market price on stock grant date, option
exercise price, expiration date, risk-free interest
rate, dividend yield

TR & T B 82 0 E ik 1E

FBIT S LHGEHEERERNR

R & S B R MDA
BRIt & 5

/,\
NP

A HA IR 2 45 BB B9 IR 190 S AT B A B9 25
R SE

Basis for determining the number of
exercisable equity instruments

Reasons for significant differences
between the current estimate and
the previous estimate

Accumulated amount of equity
settled share-based payments
recognized in capital reserve

Total expense recognized for equity-
settled share-based payments during
the period

BN RBIRER W SHEZTMIE R
Resignation rate and performance evaluation
completion of incentive recipients

7z

None

37,714,867.35

18,330,020.51
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2) 2022 Restricted Share Incentive Plan

B R mM AR
Unit: RMB

RFANGE TER AN ENHE S

BEFENGZIEAANENEESHK

AT TRMENHERE

FHPGEITS LB BEERERNIR

DR #E & ENR M AT ANEERTR
BRIt M

AHUNZEBTRGO XA HIANE
ERSR

Method for determining the fair
value of equity instruments on the
grant date

Significant parameters of fair value
of equity instruments at grant date

Basis for determining the number of
exercisable equity instruments

Reasons for significant differences
between the current estimate and
the previous estimate

Accumulated amount of equity
settled share-based payments
recognized in capital reserve

Total expense recognized for
equity-settled share-based
payments during the period

BTBEBNRERT NE

Market price at grant date less grant price

T &
N/A

BN RBIRERWGEZTRIE R
Resignation rate and performance evaluation
completion of incentive recipients

T

None

40,945,315.02

31,782,300.02

3. FHRGXMHER

3.  Share-based payment expenses for the period

BRI RES

EBFE . aREE AR K Directors, senior
management and core
technical (business)

ZOER OS5 F
backbone
=l Total

Category of recipients

BT MR ARD
Unit: RMB
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T RERNEBED

Xl Commitments and Contingencies

1. BEHESED 1. Important commitments
ARENERAEEHNNINE EBAIE Significant external commitments, nature, and amount existing
MR, 25, on the balance sheet date
BT MM AR™
Unit: RMB
BiE ltem 20224128310

EENERKEREEKIE Signed but not prov isioned
capital commitment

=1 Total

December 31, 2022
413,277,100.61

413,277,100.61

2. FHEEDM

2. Contingencies

(1) ZHFRFXAFENEEFZEFED (1) Important contingency on the balance sheet date

LAHERIE

1. Issue letters of credit

HZE2023F128318, ARAFEHFH As of December 31, 2023, the Company has issued outstanding

RETRENERIEB RO T!

letters of credit as follows:

ERIEHRS @A
Documentary credit Beneficiary
No.

LC0770123A00464 Rieckermann GmbH

LC1084523000130 GEA HONG KONG
TRADING LIMITED

i ERIEE M ZHAE REAEH FFIEAT
Currency Letter of Maturity date Unused Issuing Bank
credit amount amount

¥t 7T 1,352,000.00  2024/2/15 169,000.00 TORSRITILRIBINZ 1T
EUR Bank of Ningbo Beijing

Tongzhou Branch
¥t 7T 561,000.00  2024/3/21 185,100.00 REIRIT IR DT
EUR Bank of China Linyi Branch

2. RRIFIR

2. Pending litigation

B FE2023F12831H, ARAARE As of December 31, 2023, the Company does not have significant
HBEERRIFR

266\ HEHURHBERQE
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+=. #REH XNl Additional information
1. YHIIER E MM ZPEAR 1. Non-recurring profit and loss for the period broken down
BT mi: AR™
Unit: RMB
=] ltem T8 3t A
Amount in the current Others
period notes
ERBERFAERT , BEBITIEZ SR Profit or loss from disposal of non-current -493,503.57
i N &k S 2 assets, including the write-off portion of the
BE & TEES asset impairment provision that has been
made
TAHHRGENHBFWE, BE5R/BEES Government grants recognized in the profit 13,759,486.13
EREt ~ A S m= impg OF loss for the current period, except for
:‘iﬁ%:\ﬂia%‘ ﬁ':'%{%%ﬂi‘ & those government grants that are closely
MEMMESTE . WATME~ERLFLM related to the Company's normal business
B9 B AT 20 B B Gh operations, in line with national policies and in
accordance with defined criteria, and that have
a sustained impact on the Company's profit or
loss
BREASEELELSHEXNENERRE Gains and losses from changes in fair value 45,414,567.99
) & S Al o 5 of financial assets and liabilities held by
ﬂf%’ 3F$m*¢ﬂj{_§ﬁ%'ﬂ*ﬁﬂ$@{ﬁ non-financial corporations and gains and
EFEENRANEZD R m U KRB EEZR A losses from the disposal of financial assets
RS AE IR and liabilities, except for effective hedging
S ) activities related to the Company's normal
business operations
bR EREMZ AN EME N SR AFZE  Other non-operating revenue or expenses -8,362,139.43
than above items
HMPTESELEMRNEZEXNRGTIME Other profit and loss items that meet the 650,296.37
definition of non-recurring profit and loss
B PSR 52 I &R Less: income tax effects 7,895,753.43
DHEAENZEME (K E) Effect of minority interests (after tax) 162,925.00
=3 Total 42,910,029.12
NABE(AFRITIEFHAEER Explanations shall be made for the non-recurring items
HERBEASHEIS—IFLEHHR identified by the company according the "Explanatory
m)RINENMEINENNEZE S Announcement No. 1 on Information Disclosure by Companies
MEMBBESME AN, UEEAR Publicly Offering Securities — Non-recurring Items”, and for the
FERITIUEFNABEEREBEE company identifying the non-recurring items enumerated in the
NEFIS—FLREHHER)PFZ "Explanatory Announcement No. 1 on Information Disclosure by
HNELEMRGEZTNERENEE N Companies Publicly Offering Securities - Non-recurring ltems" as
MENIME, WRARRA, recurring items.
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mBE Item R & B R &
Amount Reason

BIEW I PESE  Amortization of deferred income 9,608,863.68  AAERFE A K BY BN # B 2B 3 UL 75 B9 B BE A E
RNEBERT
The Company recognizes the amortization of

deferred income from asset-related government
grants as recurring gains and losses

&t Total 9,608,863.68 /
2. AAFKEERSRWE 2. Return on net assets and earnings per share
&= o
i Eami?ﬁsﬁuifnshare
Profit in the reportin A 27 I R (%) P
iz & HA 51 . P 5 Weighted average ol < 52 4 ALl 26
period BEARgRKHE wmRERWE
return-on net ass(e(;s) Basic earnings per share Diluted earnings per share
(]
ITBTFABEERKZ  Net profit attributable to 3.44 0.60 0.60
8 % F 38 ordinary shareholders of

the Company

MBIELEMMEFYI Net profits attributable 3.01 0.53 0.53

SN = A s n ,  to ordinary shareholders
E?fﬂa@ﬂﬁﬁx;{ﬁa}] of the Company after
A deduction of non-

recurring profits or losses
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